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CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Good nor ni ng.
| m Senator Liz Krueger, chair of the
Senate Finance Commttee. |I'mjoined in

partnership with nmy coll eague fromthe

Assenbly, Hel ene Weinstein, chair of the Ways

and Means Commi tt ee.

Today is our |ast budget hearing for
'21-'22, a hearing on the Governor's Health
Executi ve Budget.

It is February 25th. It's a little
past 9:42 in the norning, we're a little
| at e.

| want to wel cone you all to our
virtual budget hearings, a new nodel for us
because of the pandemic. It's actually been
going quite well. More people have been

participating than ever before, both

| egi sl ators and public who wi shes to testify.

Today is the final of the 13 hearings
conducted by the joint fiscal conmttees of
the Legislature regarding the Governor's
proposed budget for state fiscal year
*21-'22. These hearings are conducted

pursuant to the New York State Constitution
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and our Legislative Law.

Today the Senate Fi nance Conmttee and
Assenbly Ways and Means Conmittee will hear
testinmony concerning the Governor's proposed
budget for the Departnment of Health, the
O fice of Medicaid Inspector General, and the
Depart ment of Financial Services -- which has
many functions, but today will be in
relationship to health insurance issues.

Representing each of the agencies, |
would like to reference that we will be
j oi ned by Linda Lacewell, Superintendent of
t he Departnent of Financial Services first,
then Erin Ives, acting Medicaid |Inspector
General, and then Dr. Howard Zucker,

Comm ssi oner of Health, along with Donna
Frescatore, the Medicaid Director, Departnent
of Health.

Because of a scheduling conflict,

Dr. Zucker and his peopl e cannot be here
till, at earliest, 11:00 aam So if they
have gotten here and we are on a panel, they
will wait till we conplete that panel and

then we will shift to the Health
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Conmi ssi oner .

Fol | owi ng each testinony there will be
some tinme for questions fromthe chairs of
the fiscal commttees and the |egislators
fromthe other |l ead commttees for today,
whi ch woul d be the Health Conmttee --
GQustavo Rivera, fromthe Senate;

Dick Gottfried, fromthe Assenbly -- and the
| nsurance Conmmttee -- Kevin Cahill, chair
fromthe Assenbly, Neil Breslin, chair from
t he Senat e.

After other chairs and rankers ask
their questions, there will be an opportunity
for menbers fromall three of these
committees to ask questions.

And then finally, after we conplete
t he governnent representatives, there will be
atime to nenbers of the public who have
signed up to briefly give us an overvi ew of
their testinony and take some questions.

Anyone is wel cone to have submtted
testinmony, and it will be put up online for
everyone to see, all l|egislators and everyone

fromthe public. But it is inmpossible to
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al |l ow everyone to read their full testinony,
so many people who are interested in
testifying have not been able to get a sl ot
to speak at today's hearing. Because if you
choose to stay with us all day and night,
you' | I know why.

| will now introduce nenbers fromthe
Senat e, and Assenbl ynenber Hel ene Wi nstein,
chair of the Assenbly Ways and Means
Comm ttee, will introduce nenbers fromthe
Assenbl y.

In addition, | want to nention that
Tom O Mara is the ranker on Finance, and he
will be introducing the nenbers of his
conference, as will Assenblyman Ra, the
ranki ng nmenber of Ways and Means. And then
we will shift to Superintendent
Li nda Lacewel| fromthe Departnent of
Fi nanci al Servi ces.

And so just going through, to nake
sure | get everyone who's here so far -- and
over the course of the day nore Senators and
Assenbl ymenbers will show up, and they w |

be announced when they're here. But so just
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starting with our Insurance chair, Nei
Breslin; Brad Hoyl man, Senator Brad Hoyl man;
Senat or Rachel May; Senator Gustavo Rivera,
the Health chair; Senator Kevin Thomas, the
Consuner Affairs chair. Just continuing down
my master list -- sorry -- Senator Janes
Skoufis; Senator Pete Harckham Senator Sanra
Brouk; Senator Julia Sal azar; Senator

Al essandra Biaggi. | told you these were big
commttees. Everyone is going to be here

t oday.

| think that's it for the Denocratic
Senat or s.

|"msorry, Tom O Mara, ranker, do you
think you can take a stab at the Republican
Senators? |1'm seeing nany of them here as
wel | .

SENATOR O MARA: There's a | ot on our
list as well, Chairwoman. Thank you.

We are joined on the Republican side
of the aisle with our Health Committee
ranker, Senator Pat Gallivan; our I|nsurance
Comm ttee ranki ng Republican nenber,

Pam Hel mng. W're also joined by Senators
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Dan Stec, Ed Rath, Jim Tedisco, Joe Giffo,
Patty Ritchie, Peter oberacker, Phil Boyl e,
Sue Serino, and George Borrello, who has his
hand up for questions already.

(Laughter.)

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Very good. |'m
going to pass it over to Hel ene Wi nstein.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you,
Senat or .

We too have a | ot of colleagues with
us. W have Assenblyman Gottfried, chair of
our Health Committee; Assenblyman Cahill,
chair of the Assenbly's |Insurance Conmitt ee;
and Assenbl ynenbers Anderson, Barron
Bi chotte Hernelyn, Braunstein, Bronson, Cook,
Cynmbrowitz, Dilan, Gunther, Hunter, Meeks,

Ni ou, Paulin, Sayegh, Seaw i ght and
Zebrowski. 1'msure we will have sone ot her
menbers joining us shortly.

Assenbl yman Ra, would you like to
i ntroduce nmenbers of your conference?

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Yes, thank you,
Chai r woman.

Good norning, everybody. W are
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j oi ned by Assenbl yman Kevin Byrne, who is the
ranki ng menber on the Health Conmitt ee;
Assenbl yman Ken Bl ankenbush, who is our
ranki ng menber on the Insurance Commttee;
and Assenbl ynenbers Mssy Mller, Jarett
Gandol fo, Sal ka, Byrnes, Ashby and Jensen.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: Ckay. So back
to the Senate to begin our first wtness.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

And good norni ng and wel cone, and
t hank you for comng earlier than usual.

Do you have a nmute on that can be
t aken of f?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Thank
you, Chair. | have unnuted.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: Great. Wl cone.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Shall
proceed?

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: COh yes, pl ease.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Thank
you so much

Good norning to Chairs Wi nstein,
Krueger, Breslin, Cahill, Rivera and

Gottfried, to the ranking nmenbers, and to al
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di stingui shed nenbers of the State Senate and
Assenbl y.

Thank you for inviting ne to testify
here today. |'mLinda Lacewell. ['mthe
Superi nt endent of Financial Services at the
New York State Departnent of Financi al
Servi ces.

We do have nmany responsibilities, as
the chair indicated. As pertinent here, we
regul ate commerci al health insurance for the
State of New York and New Yorkers. | am
privileged to work for Governor Cuonp and to
serve all New Yorkers in this inportant role
and to work with all of you in that regard.

Qur missionis multiple. W protect
New Yor k consumers, we strengthen the
financial service industries in our state, we
saf eguard markets from fraud and ot her
illegality. Qur operating expenses, as you
know, are assessed to industry under Section
206 of the Financial Services Law. W
regul ate nearly 1800 insurers with assets of
nore than $4.7 trillion, and approximtely

1500 banki ng and other financial institutions




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

21

with assets of nore than 2.6 trillion

We have in New York and across the
nation, as you know, the people of our state
have been enduring at |east three multiple
overl apping crises: The gl obal pandemc,
which has tested all of us and remains a
significant chall enge even as the nunbers
come down after the holiday spike.

The health crisis, of course, which
led to the econom ¢ and jobs crisis which has
adversely and di sproportionately affected
comunities of color and wonen in the job
mar ket. Because to fight the pandem c, work
and social |ife and education of course had
to beconme renote, and many people were unabl e
to work or sinply lost their jobs, |eaving
them unable to pay their rent, their
nort gage, ot her household bills -- or even to
feed their famly, given the |oss of incone.

Added to these two crises, of course,
is the cry for racial justice across the
country, aggravated by the disparate inpact
of both the pandem c and the jobs crisis.

That crisis, of course, |long predates the
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first two. The | egacy of discrimnation
unfortunately, even in the great State of New
York, continues to inpact conmunities of
color struggling with the first two cri ses.

| am proud of the role of DFS during
these three crises. DFS did its job
proactively, affirmatively and with speed.
W issued five enmergency regulations,
11 circular or guidance |etters, nunerous
FAQ, both for industry and for consuners, on
heal th i nsurance, COVID 19 as pertinent, and
answered many hundreds of inquiries from
consuners, insurers, providers and ot her
st akehol ders.

W i ssued an energency regul ation
wai vi ng cost-sharing for COVID- 19 testing at
i n-network providers and facilities and
i ssued gui dance on coverage of COVID 19
testing at pharnmacies. W expanded
telehealth to hel p New Yorkers, especially in
underserved and rural comunities. W
prioritized the nental health of our hero
essential workers by prohibiting insurers

from i nposing cost-sharing for in-network
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out patient nmental health services.

We al so worked with insurers and
directed themto extend the grace period for
paynents of health prem uns for those
affected by the pandem c. And we then opened
up the exchange with the Departnent of Health
multiple tinmes to ensure coverage could be
obt ai ned.

We al so worked with health and dental
insurers to return over $200 mllion from
surplus prem uns, given the fact that
services were really not being as extensively
used.

In anticipation of the vacci ne phase,
we proactively reviewed all the | aws and
regulations in this regard under our purview
and i nmedi ately issued an energency
regul ation requiring i medi ate coverage of
t he vaccine, wi thout cost-sharing, including
protections from bal ance billing and
excessi ve provider charges.

And our consumer assistance unit
performed admrably as well. Notably,

provi ders or doctors even w thin network
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began to charge consuners for PPE equi prment
that they needed to operate, and we took
action there as well with the health
i nsurance industry to return funds to
consuners for that as well

Even during the pandem c our work
continued, ensuring nmental health and

substance use disorder treatnment parity

t hrough regul ations, in conjunction with DCH

We appreciate the work that we did together
on this, especially partnering with the
chai r, Senator Krueger, and Assenbl ynenber
Rozic to make sure consuners are aware of
this initiative,

We al so continued our work benefiting
New York famlies in the LGBTQ conmunity,
including the lift of the ban of gestational
surrogacy and ensuring that surrogates have
access to conprehensive health i nsurance and
i ndependent | egal counsel of their choice.

We al so cl osed the | oophole allow ng
out - of -network hospitals and doctors to bill
consuners in excess of their in-network

cost-sharing for energency services and
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i npati ent adm ssions foll ow ng emergency room
visits. And this protects New York consuners
fromsurprise nmedical bills, a matter we have
wor ked on together with the Legislature for
years.

We are fully engaging with our
sharehol ders, and the Admi nistrative
Sinmplification Wrkgroup has been neeting and
their work is going on apace with all the
stakeholders in this matter. W al so
established, following |egislation |ast year,
the Drug Accountability Board, a panel of
experts that will guide us as we carry out
our new statutory power over drug price
spi kes. And we have announced our first set
of investigations on drugs that are
COVI D-r el at ed.

As you know, the two primary matters
in the budget that reflect -- with respect to
our purview are PBMs and tel eheal t h.

Phar maceuti cal drug costs, as you
know, are one of the biggest drivers of
heal th i nsurance prem umincreases. Pharmacy

benefit managers, or PBMs, have an outsize
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role in the sale and pricing of these drugs,
as they're on both sides of the table, and

t hey keep a percentage of the spread in that
regard. They negotiate rebates from drug
manuf act urers and deci de how nuch if any to
pay on them There are many potenti al
conflicts of interest, and we nust address
this issue to help bring health prices under
contr ol

This would require PBVs to i mredi ately
register with DFS and, by 2023, to be
licensed by us, with a code of conduct and
detailed prescriptive rules to govern the
behavi or and cabin the conflicts and generate
transparency of what is essentially a bl ack
box i ndustry.

On telehealth, | identified for you
the work we' ve already done. W need to nake
sonme of this pernmanent. The | aw needs to be
changed to al |l ow tel ephonic devices for
tel eheal th services, not just conputers with
WFi. This will help expand the service to
ot herwi se underserved comunities, including

renote rural areas and in urban areas as
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well. And we will work together with the
Department of Health on their proposals as
wel | .

W will continue to put the consuner
at the center of all we do. And all the work
that we do, including with respect to these
crises, is difficult, conplex, new and
energing. It requires us all to work
t oget her, government with industry, the
agency with the Legislature, our federal
counterparts, other states, experts and, nost
i mportantly, consuners.

| look forward to continuing that work
with you. | will be happy to take your
guestions and to follow up as needed to
provi de additional information.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

And our first questioner will be the
chair of Insurance, Neil Breslin.

SENATCR BRESLIN:  There, unnuted.
Thank you, Madam Chairman. And |'Il be

rat her brief.
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Good to see you, Madam Superi ntendent.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Thank
you.

SENATOR BRESLIN: | just have -- |
t hi nk nost of the people who will be asking
you questions have certain opinions on PBMs.
As the sponsor of the PBMbill in the Senate
that was vetoed by the Governor, | have a
difficult tinme explaining that when you have
just said that the pharmacy benefit managers
face difficult problens and conflicts of
interest. And | don't think that getting
their nane and address is sufficient to
counteract that kind of behavior.

And | would like, first of all, if you
coul d di scuss your feelings about the bill
t hat we have introduced now for severa
years, which has been vetoed by the Governor,
in conparison to the bill that you have
present ed.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Thank
you. Thank you, Chair. And it's a pleasure
to see you and it's a pleasure to develop a

wor ki ng relationship with you and your staff.
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What we agree on, of course, is the
policy and the need to address the cost
driver of pharnaceutical drugs, and to bring
about oversight and regulation of this
i mportant actor who is currently unregul at ed,
t he pharnmacy benefit nanagers. So we agree
that we've got to deal with the conflict of
interest issues and bring about transparency,
whi ch can be its own force multiplier for
good.

The registration, as | believe you
know, is an initial step, of course. For one
thing, we need to identify the full field of
the PBMs. Many of them are unknown. Nobody
seens to have a conplete list. W know who
the big ones are, but not the rest. And then
over that period of time, over the next year,
DFS would work with industry and consuners
and the | egislature and the Departnent of
Health and others to craft a set of best
practices, a code of conduct, rules of the
road that then would go into effect as each
of these were |icensed.

| nportantly, that would al so enabl e us
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to go in and | ook behind -- | ook under the
hood, so to speak, of these PBMs and see
what' s happening to hel p i nform our

oversi ght.

So you are absolutely correct that
nerely registering and getting a nanme and
address and how do | find you is not renotely
enough. And we plan to have the npost robust
and bal anced and fair set of best practices
and rules of the road for the PBMs in the
country. And | ook forward to incorporating
both the received wi sdom and what we | earn
al ong the way.

As far as the prior bills, | fully
understand and we have di scussed that this is
a point of concern. And | understand that.
To my understanding, there were issues with
respect to preenption and | egal standards
bei ng applied, and the concern of counsel's
of fice was that collectively working together
we achieve a |law that can survive | ega
chal l enge and that actually goes into effect
and is not subject to sonme court challenge

that will knock it out of the box and then we
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have to conme back again.

| realize there's a difference of
opinion, to put it mldly, between sone
menbers and chairs in the Legislature and the
counsel. But | am hopeful that the Executive
and the Legislature will reach agreenent on
this inportant matter during the negotiations
so that we can do the work for the people
that we are all here to do and help deal with
t he economc crisis, now nore than ever, to
help try to bring down these prices and to
get this unregul ated bl ack-box sector under
regul ati on.

SENATOR BRESLIN: Al right. Madam
Superintendent, | -- again, taking the tine
to nmove on pharnmacy benefit nmanagers, given
the fact that there are three nmajor players
in the pharmacy industry who have a
relati onship with pharmacy benefit managers,
| eavi ng i ndependents out. And while we
dilly-dally on |legislation, pharnmacies that
are i ndependent in nature, including the one
where | live, have closed their doors.

They' ve cl osed their doors because of the
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practices of pharmacy benefit managers who
have a different all egiance.

And unl ess and until we direct our
attention to those all egiances and find out
where they're getting their noney, how
they're using it and who they're responsible
to, this market will continue to be an
enbarrassment in the State of New York.

| know that's nore of a statenment, but
it's also in the nature of a question.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Yes.

And | amfamliar with this problem thanks
in part to you and certain other nenbers
hi ghlighting that for us.

We recogni ze the inportance of the
i ndependent pharnmacy industry. It's
i nportant for the econony, it's inportant for
smal | business, it's inportant to protect
smal | er busi nesses agai nst these giants. And
that is an area of singular focus with
respect to what we intend to | earn and how we
intend to protect an open and fair and robust
and conpetitive industry for all.

SENATOR BRESLIN: Well, |I'lIl nove on
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because ny tinme is relatively limted, and I
know there will be other questions in this
area by ny successive questioners.

And we've read a | ot about business
interruption during this past sumrer. Can
you -- does the departnent have a position on
what happened vi s-a-vi s busi ness
interruption? And do you have an opinion
upon any pending legislation on it?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: So thank
you. Business interruption | knowis a very
| arge i ssue. W haven't taken a position per
se, including with respect to any pendi ng
| egi sl ation.

| will say, as you're aware, with
respect to the circunstances, many people are
upset that businesses closed down and they
did not have resort to insurance when they --
many of them believed that they were covered
agai nst eventualities outside of their
control

The difficulty is that business
interruption is a matter of contract. And

the way these contracts have been witten
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historically is many of them-- and |'m not
going to opine on | egal issues, but nmany of
them overtly or explicitly exclude pandem cs
or require physical damage, which are natters
for court interpretation.

DFS unfortunately cannot unilaterally
override that agreed-upon and executed
contract | anguage because of the need to
protect contracting -- existing contracts,
which is a constitutional provision, as al
are aware. So we can't go back and change
all of that.

Second, we've been in these kind of
situations before where there is a
wi despread, diffuse, high-dollar inmpact on
i ndustry. And typically what happens then --
it's not a single-state issue, and typically
t he federal government would get involved and
say, We have this problem our existing
system doesn't work, the insurance industry
doesn't know how to manage pandem c ri sk
t hrough policies, even if you force themto
cover it. How do they determ ne the doll ar

i mpact? How do they operate? What are the
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prem umnms going to |look like? Typically there
you woul d have sone type of backstop or pool

And that is where, fromtine to tine,
t he federal governnment has gotten invol ved
and tried to come up with a solution for
everyone. | think terrorismis an issue
where this has been addressed after 9/11, and
there are other matters of the kind. So I'm
not aware of any current efforts in that
regard. QObviously we have a new
adm ni stration in Washi ngt on.

| will say, when | say the consumer is
at the center of what we do, it's the
consuner, the famly, the snall business,
which is frequently a couple of people at a
time. And we want to protect small business.
And we're open to any di al ogue, worKking
through any idea. W're agnostic as to the
source of the idea to address this for the
future because we can't guarantee, right,
that this never happens agai n.

SENATOR BRESLIN:  What -- ny tine --
one |l ast question on that. Has the

departnment put forth any of its
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recommendations relative to a prospective
TRI A arrangenent on business interruption to
t he federal governnent?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: | think
that we woul d be happy to engage with the
federal government once they're sort of
firmy in place; the transition really is
still happening. And obviously there are
many priorities in Washington. But we ought
to be engaged on this issue, to your point.

SENATOR BRESLIN:  No further
guestions. | defer to ny dear friend and
chai rman of the Insurance Conmittee in the
Assenbl y.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.
CHAl RWOMAN WEI NSTEI'N: Yeah, | just --
before we go to our Insurance chair, | just

want to acknowl edge we' ve been joi ned by
Assenbl ynenber Norris, Assenbl ymenber Steck,
and Assenbl ynenber Hyndnman.

And we go to Kevin Cahill, chair of
the Assenbly's Insurance Commttee, for

10 m nut es.
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CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Whil e Kevin gets
ready, |I'msorry, we've been joined by
Senat or Martucci, Senator -- |'ve already
| ost them W' ve been joined by other
Senators. |I'Il renmenber their nanes in a
little bit (laughing).

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Well, thank you,
Chair. And thank you, Neil, for teeing off
and getting sone good questions in already.

Superi ntendent, thank you for your
testinmony. It's -- |I'Il be reading through
it again, and | hope to have sone foll ow up
testinmony fromyou in witing to questions
you don't get to answering today. | know we
had a problemwi th that at our |ast hearing

with the Conm ssi oner of Health. It took us

six or seven nonths to get sone answers and a

subpoena fromthe Attorney General. | hope

we don't have that same experience with you
|"d like to start by tal king about

sonmet hing that you did not nention in your

prepared remarks, and that is the fact that

t he Departnent of Financial Services is going

into the fam |y planning busi ness. The
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Governor has proposed to nove famly pl anning
fromthe Departnent of Health to the

Depart ment of Financial Services. | assune
that is a fiscal matter, that the intention
here is to take it off of the CGeneral Fund
and nmake it a suballocation for fees that are
assessed agai nst insurance conpanies.

Is that a fair assessment of what's
goi ng on here?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: | think
that's likely correct, although frankly I
woul d defer to the Departnment of Health in
t his area.

And |'m al so happy, as you i ndicat ed,
to follow up in witing.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Thank you very
much.

So it's just a fiscal nove, in other
words. You're not going to be taking over
the adm nistration of famly pl anning
services in New York State, is that correct?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: That
seens highly unlikely.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Okay. because it
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appears that way in the budget right now.
When you nove a responsibility to an agency,
usual |y that agency gets the regulatory
responsi bility.

Just out of curiosity, do you have any
doctors or nurses on your staff at DFS?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: We may.
But obviously DOH has far nore in that
regard.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Al right, fine.
Thank you very much

Do you happen to know how nuch we
subal | ocate fromthe fees that are assessed
agai nst insurance conpanies in the entire
budget ?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: | had
that nunber at one tine. It is certainly
true that the insurance industry supports
industry-related matters that are executed by
ot her agencies. And we can get you that
nunber .

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: And it's your
estimation that famly planning services is

part of health insurance or part of




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

40

i nsurance?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: | would
tend to think so.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Ch, okay. That's
interesting. | think nost people would think
it was a nedical issue largely covered,
interestingly enough, by Medicaid, not the
agenci es regul ated by you. But okay, that's
fine.

l"d like to shift to sonethi ng where
it mght nake sone sense for DFS to have a
subal | ocation or a fee, and that's early
chi | dhood intervention services. Right now
insurers, health insurers pay about
$12 mllion or about 2 percent, the sane
nunber they've been paying for 10 years after
Governor Cuonp entered into a sweetheart
contract with a fiscal agent who has now
recei ved in excess of $50 million to increase
t hat nunmber -- but in fact the nunber has
been stagnant or even dropped a little bit.

Do you think it's tinme to change the
way we require insurers to participate in the

Early Chil dhood Intervention Progranf
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DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: | really
have no informati on about your reference to
sone sweet heart contract and --

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Well, 1'Il be
happy to share the information with you about
that contract, Superintendent, because | do
bel i eve that you have some supervisory role
withit. | knowit's resident in the
Departnment of Health, but it is intended to
go agai nst i nsurance conpanies that you
specifically regulate, and they've had no
success what soever.

They came to New York prom sing
i ncredi bl e great success in doing so and then
have basically opi ned that because our
regul atory structure and our |egal structure
didn't change to accommodate their needs,
they couldn't do what they prom sed to do
$60 million ago.

That bei ng said, insurance comnpanies
continue to provide about 2 percent of the
cost of Early Childhood Intervention, and
t hose costs are extracted frominsurance

conpanies only after protracted battles to
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secure that noney through a series of denials
and resubm ssions by the providers
t hensel ves.

| f the providers are unsuccessful in
getting the noney fromthe insurers, then
guess who pays? New York State. So it | ooks
like we are asking people who are getting $25
a visit to do the collection work for
New York State.

Do you now believe it's appropriate to
change the way insurers participate in the
Early Chil dhood Intervention Progranf

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: |'m nore
t han happy to confer with the Departnent of
Heal t h and di scuss this issue, and also with
i ndustry, to talk through what is currently
happeni ng, if anything, and how to nove
forward in a way that is effective.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Ckay. So | was
very surprised that the Superintendent of
| nsurance i s hearing about this issue for the
first tinme today. It has been a proposal by
Assenbl ywoman Paul in for about a dozen years,

somet hi ng that has been di scussed at every
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budget hearing since you've been
superintendent and before that tinme. But
we' |l nove on.

Just on the subject of pharmacy
benefit managers, you indicated a difference
of opinion before you and certain nenbers of
the Legislature. Wuld you have to
acknow edge that given the Rutl edge vs. PCVA
case that your difference of opinion is also
wi th the unani nous Suprene Court in a
decision witten by New York resident
Sot omayor ?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWVELL: That
decision is actually not on point.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Ch, | get it,
it'"s not on point. So what is on point is
some Arizona Supreme Court case that has no
rel evance in New York that says maybe there's
an ERI SA issue -- but the United States
Suprene Court case doesn't matter? Thank
you, Superintendent. |It's interesting to see
your assessnent of the law. Let's nobve on to
excess nedi cal mal practi ce.

Excess nedical nal practice. The
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Governor has proposed slashing in half,
ultimately, the governnent participation in

t he Excess Medical Mal practice Program This
is a programthat provides insurance

benefits for doctors who are serving

under served areas, at-risk areas.

And is there anything, in your
estimation, that has changed the fisca
situation or the financial situation of
doctors that would now allow themto be in a
better position to pay for their mal practice
i nsurance than they were before COvVI D 19?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Well,

t he nedi cal nal practice sector, which was in
consi derabl e distress, has inproved narkedly,
thanks in part to the work that we've done
together with industry, and of course --

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: If | may
interrupt you on that point. It's all well
and good that there are doctors who are
securing medi cal mal practice. But when you
ask the remaining doctors to participate at
50 percent, you're not talking to the doctors

who are no longer in the pool. W are
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tal ki ng about doctors that are in the pool.
And if there's enough doctors that have |eft
the pool, isn't that enough of a place to
find savings rather than having to penalize
t hose doctors who are serving the nost
comunities in need in New York State?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: [|'m
sorry, I'mjust not follow ng your question.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Onh, okay. You
i ndi cated that the reason we could do this is
t hat many peopl e have mgrated out of the
excess nedi cal mal practice pool, correct?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: That's
actually not what | said.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Go ahead, then,
pl ease.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: | was
sinply trying to say that the state in part
has been subsi di zi ng because the industry was
in distress.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: And the
i ndustry --

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: The

i ndustry has recovered, there are additional
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entrants, the surplus deficits have gone down
dramatically. The layer that the state
provides is in addition to ordinary

mal practice insurance. Doctors can el ect
whet her or not to participate in that, and
there are all kinds of doctors who may have
deci ded the | evel of coverage they have

wi thout that is sufficient and therefore they
don't need to participate.

The question is whether the state
needs to be the hundred percent backstop
anynore. And the assessnment based on the
nunbers was that the support could be
reduced.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL:  Superi nt endent,
just again for your information -- because |
see a great disconnect between your testinony
and reality, so let's just have anot her
conversation about this later on.

But the people who participate in the
excess nedi cal mal practice pool are the
peopl e who woul d be paying that 50 percent,
not the people who have | eft the pool. There

is no new resources for people serving
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underserved communities. |f anything, those
resources have dried up.

But let's nove on to one nore item
was under the inpression that the Governor

was going to renove his no-fault |anguage in

his 30-day bill. Do you know if that
happened?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: | don't
believe so. | think it's still in there.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Ckay, that's
terrific. Let's talk about it.

There's two parts to it. Part 1 is
where the Departnent of Financial Services
woul d exercise regulatory authority over
provi ders by extracting fromthem comrtnents
not to participate in the no-fault program
Do you or anyone in your agency feel
gqualified to determ ne who should and shoul d
not practice nmedicine in any area?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: No. To
nmy under st andi ng, what the provision would do
is if the Wrkers' Conp Board nmade a
determ nation that a particul ar provider had

engaged in fraud or crimnality or other
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m sconduct in connection with workers' conp,
that DFS woul d be enpowered to take that
finding and, through a notice of hearing and
opportunity to be heard, renove for a period
of tinme those bad actors who are abusing the
Wor kers' Conp Program - -

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: The second hal f
of the Governor's proposal creates the
ultimate kicking-the-can-down-the-road, a
study panel, to | ook at no-fault insurance --
no-fault insurance that has utterly failed
New Yorkers with high prem uns, |ow coverage
conpl i cated di agnostics that don't even
recogni ze anything that's been added to the
nmedi cal community since the early 1970s, and
a no-fault bar that is huge.

| see I"'mrunning out of time; | want
to give you a chance to answer: Wuld you
consi der ending no-fault in New York State?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: | don't
believe in replacing sonething with not hing.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Thank you,
Superintendent. 1'Il come back to you | ater

when | can get a second chance. Thanks so
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much.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Thank
you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Next is Senator Hel m ng, the ranker on
| nsur ance.

SENATOR HELM NG Thank you,
Senat or Krueger.

Thank you, Superintendent, for your
testinmony. As the new ranker on the Senate
| nsurance Conmmttee, | |ook forward to
wor king with you and Senator Breslin to
address the nmany, nany issues that are
i npacti ng consuners and the insurance
i ndustry all across our state.

| wanted to shift the discussion for a
nmonment and tal k about it's ny understanding
in the TED budget bill that the Governor has
proposed a notor vehicle insurance task
force, of which you will be the chair, and
all eight commttee nmenbers will be appointed
by the Governor.

Superi ntendent, are you open to adding

appoi ntees appointed by the majority and
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m nority conferences of both houses?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Well,
certainly our approach at DFSis to consult
across the board to all those with an
i nterest, stakehol ders and those connected to
comunities, including the Legislature.

And so if through the negotiations it
shoul d ensue that the parties agree to that,
then we woul d be pleased to proceed in that
regard.

| f for some reason that doesn't
happen, | am happy to work with you and ot her
interested nenbers on this and all other
i ssues.

SENATOR HELM NG To ne there's a
dramatic difference between |ike reaching out
and consulting with someone, versus them
having an official position on a conmttee
that's established.

It's so inportant -- and we're seeing
this of |ate, especially -- that we have
coequal branches of governnment and coequal
representation, especially on these task

force conmttees, et cetera, that are going
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to be making inportant recommendati ons off
whi ch deci sions are made, right, whether it's
financial, whether it's policy, whatever it
is. So | hope you would help us press for
representation on this task force by the
majority and mnority conferences.

Also on this task force, do you know
how many appoi ntnents would be fromthe
i nsurance industry?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: | do
not .

SENATOR HELM NG | think it's
critical that we have representation fromthe
i nsurance industry on this task force as
wel | .

Turning to another subject, I'm
curious how you see the | egalization of
marijuana inpacting the insurance industry,
specifically auto insurance. Do you believe
we'll see a rate increase? O what are your
t hought s?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Well,
it's a very interesting question. W have

been | ooki ng across the board since |ast
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year, actually -- you know, ever since the
bill has been proposed through the budget
process -- both on the banking side and the
i nsurance side: How can we help industry
feel confortable with offering insurance
around the issue of cannabis, whether it's
property, casualty or whatever else it may
be.

Certainly we need to | ook at the
experience of other states, who we're
starting to confer with. | nmean, | think
driving a car, whether it's al cohol or drugs,
i ncludi ng cannabis, is problematic. And |
woul d i magi ne that the auto insurance
i ndustry is very focused on that. And one is
not permtted to be under the influence, even
t hough al cohol is legal, and the sanme ought
to pertain, presumably, for cannabis.

So it's something that we've got to
| ook at closely, and thank you for raising
that. And going into any new ventures,
right, there are many unknowns, so we have to
| earn fromthose who have been there before

us and we've got to talk with industry and
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experts and you and see what we can do to
cabin the risks around all of this.

SENATOR HELM NG So any thoughts on
how we ensure that enployers are protected
fromliability of enployees that may show up
to work under the influence of marijuana?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: | would
t hi nk, again, that would be the sane as being
under the influence of alcohol. And the case
| aw that gets devel oped on the
enpl oyer/ enpl oyee rel ati onshi p and agency and
was in this course of enploynent and was it
enpl oyer vehicles and is testing permtted --
a whol e conpl ex area of |law that should
certainly be | ooked at and understood as we
proceed.

SENATOR HELM NG Is DFS certainly
engaged in discussions and di scovery?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: We're
havi ng conversations with industry in small
groups. Qur insurance division is doing
that, and our banki ng division on the banking
si de.

Because assumi ng that this becones
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law, we want to help to cabin the risks
around all of this, including by having sone
mechani sm for banks to be able to handle the
noney in a way that they can do it
responsi bly and ensuring -- obviously,

i nsurance i s about protecting people and
busi nesses agai nst risk, so how can we
facilitate that as well.

W' ve done this previously on henp and
other matters, and we woul d continue that
work as wel .

SENATOR HELM NG Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI N Assenbl yrman
Gottfried.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRIED: Hi. So --

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N Yeah, okay.
Just wanted to get the clock right for you,
D ck. Ckay.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Ckay.

Superi ntendent, the Affordable Care
Act says that the Essential Plan Trust Fund

may, quote, only be used to reduce the
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prem unms and cost-sharing of or provide
addi ti onal benefits for eligible individuals,
unquot e.

The budget would take 420 mllion from
the Essential Plan Trust Fund and use it for,
guote, rate enhancenents under the Essenti al
Pl an.

My question is, howis that an
al | onabl e use under federal |aw?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: | really
woul d defer to the Departnment of Health in
this area. 1'malso happy to follow up to
you in witing or with your staff with
respect to that matter.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Ckay. That's
sonmething you're not famliar with?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: [|'m
really not permttable -- I'"'mreally not
versed in the question that you raise, that's
right.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Ckay. That's
not encour agi ng.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: | do the

best | can, sir.
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ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Ckay.

On the question of PBMs, sone of the
things that the Governor objected to in the
bill are the | anguage inposing on PBMs a duty
to act in the best interests of their
i nsurance conpany clients and patients -- a
duty that we inpose on | awers, real estate
brokers, et cetera. The Governor objected to
t hat .

And the Governor objected to the fact
that these prohibitions on stealing fromyour
client, et cetera, would apply to
sel f-insured pl ans.

Now, under New York law if a
self-insured plan is trying to sel
real estate in their portfolio, the real
estate broker who handles that for themis
required by state lawto act in their best
interests. Nobody thinks that violates
ERI SA. The |l awer that represents themin
that transaction is not allowed to defraud
them Lawyers are not allowed to defraud a
union wel fare fund that they happen to

represent; nobody argues that that violates
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ERI SA.

The Penal Law, the section that says
that if you're filing a claimyou can't stea
froman insurance conpany -- a good | aw --
explicitly mentions self-insured plans anpong

t he peopl e New York does not |et you stea

from | haven't heard anyone say that it
violates ERISA to say that we can't -- you
know, to say that we -- you know, because we

try to stop people fromstealing from
sel f-insured pl ans.

So why can't we tell PBMs not to stea
fromself-insured plans? And by the way, if
there is a real issue about that, the bil
has a severability clause that would just
carve that right out.

So | don't understand that theory.
And it seens to nme the Rutl edge deci sion
makes that even clearer. And | guess on the
matter of the Rutledge decision, | don't know
anyone outside the Cuono adm ni stration who
shares your interpretation of that decision.
Well, | guess there are probably people who

work for self-insured funds who don't agree
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with ne.

But does the admi nistration have a
| egal anal ysis of why Rutl edge does not apply
here, and could that be shared with us?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Well,
all right, let me begin where you start ed,

M. Chair.

Fiduciary duty, as you are aware, is a
very old concept. And you're correct, it
applies to lawers and fiduciaries or agents.
But a fiduciary duty nmeans an obligation to
act solely and exclusively in the best
interest of the other party.

Once you say you have a fiduciary duty
to multiple actors of different sorts, you're
now rai sing the specter of a conflict of
i nterest between those two. So how do you
sel ect?

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Well, the bil
-- the bill answers -- excuse ne, the bill
answers that question in black and white.

The bill says if the duty to the patient
conflicts with the duty to the insurance --

to the client, the duty to the patient has
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priority. Problem sol ved.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: | think
one of the fundamental differences that we
have in this regard is that | believe that if
you provi de oversight to an experienced
regul ator, which DFS is, then you can,

t hrough regul ation, get at all of the ills
that are of concern -- and, by the way,

obvi ously with exam nation, investigation and
enforcenment powers -- rather than try to
shoehorn it into the bill in the first
instance if it may invite | egal attack.

And | realize, as | said at the
begi nni ng when | was speaking with
Chair Cahill -- or actually, no, it was with
Senator Breslin -- that there are differences
of opinion. The Rutl edge decision is not
directly on point. It's in the area, and it
provi des sone help but it's not -- it doesn't
say yes, you can do this.

The problemis, as you know far better
than I, the | aw of ERI SA and of preenption is
hi ghly specialized and conplex, and it's not

al ways totally clear. So why invite the
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| egal attack when what you are trying to --

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  The answer to
that is the Rutledge decision is actually
quite clear as to what it says. And while
t he Arkansas statute is not word for word,
the New York statute -- the hol dings, the
principles in Rutledge, which is what we | ook
at, apply equally, nunber one.

Nunber two, | don't know any | awyer
who doesn't work for the Cuonp admi nistration
or the PBMindustry who agrees with you.

And nunber three, a severability
clause, which is in the bill, solves the
problem |If some court someday says, Tsk,
tsk, tsk, New York, you tried to stop people
fromstealing fromself-insured plans, not
allowed -- well, good, then the | aw won't
apply to stealing fromself-insured plans.
Probl em sol ved.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Rutl edge
said just because there was an inpact on
actors in the federal area did not invalidate
the bill.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Ri ght .
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DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL
Qobviously if sonmebody who works for a
self-insured plan commts hom ci de, they can
still be prosecuted. That's not really the
poi nt .

The point of the bill is to register
and license and oversee the players in this
i ndustry. That can be done through the
regul ati ons, the exam nation, the
i nvestigation, the oversight.

| would like to --

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED: Excuse ne. So
you think you can stop PBMs from stealing
fromtheir clients but the -- but the |aw
can't?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: \What |'m
saying is --

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRIED: How is it
different? Howis it different if a
regul ation says "don't steal"™ or if a statute
says "don't steal and, DFS, go nmake regs"?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: What |'m
saying is the statute, by virtue of having

certain wording in it, could bring it under
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| egal attack and therefore we achieve
not hi ng. \Whereas through regul ati ons that
are carefully witten and crafted with the
benefit of input fromall can help reduce the
ills and the harns that we are all concerned
about, and let's get sonething done.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED: So you're
saying ny bill |anguage, passed unani nously
by both houses and that's been around for
several years and been | ooked at by a | ot of
people, is not, quote, carefully witten
because it says you have to act in sonebody's
best interests? Even though it gives you
rul e-maki ng aut hority.

And you haven't addressed the question
of the severability clause. That sol ves your
problem But you haven't tal ked about that.

And | et me remind you, |'ve asked for
a copy of whatever |egal analysis you have.
WIIl you send that to ne?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Well,

t hat obvi ously woul d be attorney-client
privilege, so | don't know that we can

wai ve - -
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ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRIED: It's only
attorney-client privilege if you assert it.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: That's
right. That's right.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRIED: If you choose
to share it, then you can share it.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Yeabh,
we're not --

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRIED: It's a | egal
anal ysis. You're sharing your |egal analysis
with me right now.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: No, |'m
not .

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Except you're
doing it in very general ternms.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: No, |I'm
not. I'mnot. And we're not in the business
of waiving attorney-client privilege. It's
not smart for us to do.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRIED:  You're not in
t he busi ness of explaining to the Legislature
why you think something is illegal?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: | think
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ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Shame -- how
can you say that?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: W are
explaining it. You don't have to waive
privilege to do that.

|"d be happy to tal k about you
further, M. Chair, and to engage on this
issue and to confer with counsel's office to
do the sane.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Yeah, but
you're -- but that conversation is not going
to give ne a detailed anal ysis.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: |'m just
trying to be respectful of the time which --

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED: Because if you
can give nme a detailed analysis orally,
that's no nore or |ess a waiver of your
privilege on that material as if you give it
tome in witing. You know that.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL
Respectfully, | disagree. |'man attorney
and | teach |l egal ethics at NYU Law School
whi ch | have done for years, including on the

i ssue of privilege and its waiver. So we
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di sagree. But | am happy to engage further

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED: And you -- you
think --

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: And time
expi red about a m nute ago.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  (Laughi ng.)

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ynman
CGottfried will have five mnutes for seconds
|ater, so you'll have an opportunity to be
able to respond to his question, or engage
further on this issue.

We'll go to the Senate now.

SENATCOR RI VERA:  And Liz is nuted, but
| believe it is me, is that --

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: | apol ogi ze, |'m
so sorry, | couldn't get off mnute.

And it is Senator Rivera's turn.
Thank you.

SENATOR RI VERA: The one-two punch
conti nues.

Good norni ng, Superintendent.
Actually, let's pick up right where ny
col l eague in the Assenbly left off. Now, |
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amnot an attorney nor do | play one on TV,
unli ke both of you. But | will say that as
t he Assenbl ynenber said, you' re asserting
your right to not waive privilege, but what
you're doing there -- now you're doing that,
you' re choosing to do that, and then you can
obvi ously go down the road and tal k about

et hics and everything. But you're choosing
not to tell us, not to explain to us how it
is that our bill -- which again, as the

Assenbl ynmenber nentioned, passed unani nously

-- actually fails to do the thing -- you just
say, Well, it's not witten correctly, it
shoul d have sonething -- it should have

something witten differently.

Maybe you can explain to us what that
is nore specifically, and maybe we woul d
change the bill. But we're not going to go

down that road.

Just for the record, | absolutely -- |
not only voted for that bill, support that
bill and believe that we should do it

| egi sl atively, not through regulations --

because you coul d probably put those
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regul ations in effect -- if you could put the
regul ations in effect, you would have done it
already. You're trying to put it into the
budget so that it can becone | egislation.

How about we just pass the bill that we all,
as a |legislature, agree on?

Al so, earlier, was it a slip of the
t ongue when you said that you were not
permtted to share some of this thing, as
opposed to not versed in it? | guess that
was a slip of the tongue?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: On which
issue was that? | didn't say "permtted,"
don't think.

(Overtal k.)

SENATCOR RIVERA: It was a Freudian
slip, of course. That's fine.

kay. So as far as the -- when you're
tal king about the trust fund in particul ar,
so the -- and on that issue, on the trust
fund, when you were asked specifically about
it and you said you were not permtted and
t hen you corrected yourself, you're not

versed in that, and you said ask the
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Departnment of Health. |Is that what you sai d?
Rel ated to the issue of whether it was
permtted to use the trust fund for the

pur poses that -- one of the purposes that is
in the budget proposal?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: | think
| -- yes, | was saying that | would refer
that respectfully to the Departnent of
Health. [|'malso happy to cone back with a
witten answer or to speak with your staff.

SENATCR RI VERA: Gotcha. Gotcha. Al
right. And then | got two nore things.

One of them first, | think we can al
agree that this -- this pandem ¢ has made
t hi ngs strange for everybody. But one of the
things is that there have been massive
profits for insurance conpanies. It has --

t he pandem ¢ has decreased heal t hcare
utilization and there's been a huge uptick in
t el eheal t h.

So | want to specifically ask, there
is -- like during the pandem c you have
directed the insurance conpanies to charge no

copays for telehealth. Wy hasn't the
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adm ni stration proposed to continue this
requirenent in its telehealth agenda? A |ot
of which | agree with, by the way, that's in
the -- that is in the proposal. But -- or at
| east require the carriers to charge | ower
copays for telehealth when -- utilization by
menber s?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Ckay.

So on your first point about the profits. As
you know, DFS has oversight of prem um
increases for health insurers. That's a very
careful process that | ooks at the experience
of the prior year. And we do that with great
detail and attention to what the experience
actual ly was.

Second, and perhaps nore inportantly,
once a year HHS | ooks to determ ne whet her
the nedical loss ratio of at |east 80 percent
has occurred or, instead, are there outside
profits, in which case HHS will direct the
insurers to return that -- those excess
prem uns.

So one of the difficulties is the

unknown, so that's why this is | ooked at
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periodically. W can see -- well, once the
econony starts to reopen, within the sane
time frane is there a rush to obtain these
servi ces, which generates costs, which
bal ances in any way or reduces what the
profits may be. | should state generally --

SENATOR RI VERA: (kay, okay, let's not
keep goi ng down the road of profits; you can
explain that to ne for hours. Let's talk
about the telehealth part, because | only
have five and a half mnutes left.

So tell nme about that. Tell nme about
-- I"mjust wondering, since you are
proposi ng a whol e agenda around tel ehealth --
whi ch, again, much of which I think is good
and | would agree with -- why hasn't the
Cuono admi nistration proposed to conti nue
that requirenent that relates to no copays
for telehealth? O at least require carriers
to charge | ower copays for tel ehealth when
utilized by menbers?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: So the
requi renent of waiving the copays was and is

meant to address the circunstances of the
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pandem c. And what has not yet been done is
an assessnent of the sort of cost, quality,
prem um i npact, et cetera, of all of these
itenms. And we will be |ooking closely at

t hat .

For telehealth, as you know, our
proposal is that we need to change the law to
i ncl ude tel ephonic services, which is not
currently permtted in the statute.

SENATOR RI VERA: R ght.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWVELL: And we
will also be requiring insurers to nake sure
that they have a robust network that includes
tel ehealth services. Qherwise, the right is
sort of illusory, because you' ve got to nake
sure there's sonmething there to actually take
advant age of.

As far as reinbursenent rates and the
like for telehealth, as | indicated, we need
to exam ne the data flow ng through the
current period and then also | ook at what the
incentives are and what the cost/quality
i ssues are for the particular services to

sort of see how we m ght adjust in that
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regard. And |I'm happy to work with you and
your staff on that matter.

SENATOR RIVERA: All right, | got one
| ast one. This one relates to external
appeals. So in particular, what seens to be
a very big parity probl em between nedi cal and
surgi cal cases and nental health cases.

According to sone of the stuff that --
sonme information that is on your website,
that's the Financial Services External
Appeal s website, it says that denials are
uphel d about 64 percent of the tine in
nmedi cal -surgi cal cases, and they are --
however, they're denied -- in the nental
heal th and substance use treatnent, denials
are -- the carriers lose nearly 70 percent of
the tinme. So it's conpletely flipped around.

So it seens that there's a vast
practice of restricting access to nental
heal th and substance use services by the
i nsurance industry.

So particularly considering the nonment
that we're in, where there are many deat hs of

despair, when we are seeing |lack of resources
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to places that provide substance abuse
services, et cetera, what is the departnent
doing to actually regulate the carriers in
this area as it relates to nental health and
subst ance use di sorder treatnent?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: So
excel l ent question. Cbviously this is a big
priority for DFS as well as the Legislature
and for consuners.

The Mental Health and Substance Abuse
Di sorder Parity Law was very inportant, and
we have issued our regul ati ons and we have
told the industry our expectations,
particularly with respect to the robustness
of the network.

One of the reasons for the appeals is
if there's nobody in the network to provide
the service, then you end up goi ng out of
network. And that can generate a denial and
an appeal. |If we expand the networks and
make sure we have qualified avail able
providers to give these services, then
hopefully that will reduce the appeals.

But to your point, we ought to take a
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| ook at the external appeals and see what the
various reasons are and draw from that data
what ot her inprovenments we can make, not

just, you know, informng the industry or
doi ng enforcenment with the industry, but how
do we get nore granular as to what the
expectations are.

But it's an area of immense focus for
us right now, and --

SENATOCR RIVERA: 1'd like to fol |l ow
up -- yeah, I'd like to follow up with your
office on this.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Yes.

SENATCR RIVERA: We -- this -- there's
going to be a long tail to this pandem c, and
particularly as it relates to either nental
heal th services or substance abuse, there
will be many issues to deal with. And the
fact that this is kind of baked in,
apparently that there's just -- there's just
-- the rate of denials is so flipped
sincerely concerns nme. So I'd want to be
able to dig deeper into it.

And maybe some of ny col |l eagues w ||
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follow up with you about it while you're here
t oday, but we certainly will follow up with
you of fli ne.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL
(I naudi bl e.)

SENATOR RI VERA: Thank you, Madam
Superi nt endent .

| am good for the nonent,
Madam Chai rwonman. Thank you

CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEIN: So we wi Il go,
then, to Assenbl yman Ra, the ranker on \Ways
and Means for five m nutes.

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you,

Hel ene.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you, Chair.
Hopefully | don't have any issues. | know a
| ot of ny coll eagues and nyself keep getting
knocked of f the internet feed here.

But good norning, Superintendent.

| just wanted to go back to sonething
that you discussed a little bit with our
chair of Insurance related to the Excess
Medi cal Mal practice Program And really just

t he concern that how are we naki ng sure that
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that, you know, noney isn't just shifting
onto the physicians who are paying for the
costs? Are there any other proposals that
woul d reduce the actual cost of nedical

mal practice insurance? And if there are,
coul d you highlight themand answer the
concerns that by pushing this cost onto the
enpl oyees that we'd be reducing

partici pation?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: So thank
you for that question.

One of the things that we've been very
focused on is increasing the conpetitiveness
of the industry so that there can be nore
conpetitive rates. And the difficulty
previously was at |east one of the major
carriers, now in liquidation, had been
undercutting the other providers in a
di storted market.

But now that we are hel ping each of
the carriers who have been distressed to
i nprove their finances, the market has
stabilized somewhat. And as | nentioned,

we' ve hel ped admit a nunmber of new players in
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the industry, and that shoul d hel p.

But as you know, mnedical mal practice
is a big problemacross the country in terns
of its cost. And given our trial system the
costs are very high. And this is doubtless
sort of a piece of the puzzle that snmarter
and nore conprehensive policy experts than
nmysel f may have insight into.

But with respect to our piece, our
property division is very invested in this
and spends a great deal of tinme onit. And
| "' m happy, again, to talk with you, your
staff, any other menber who would like to
expl ore additional ideas, provider
associ ati ons who have ideas. Because it is
part of our job to ensure that we do what we
can to inprove conpetitiveness for al
pl ayers in our health system

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  And t hank you for
that. You know, as you nentioned, it is a
concern nationwide. It certainly has been a
particul ar concern in New York State. And
it's an inportant issue for -- you know, when

we tal k about things |ike access to doctors
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and everything, having, you know, this not be
kind of a cost-prohibitive state for people
to practice in is obviously an inportant

i ssue.

So | just would again, you know, state
my concern about potentially shifting this
cost onto those physicians that are paying
for their insurance.

Just one other issue. You did nention
telehealth earlier. And I'mglad you tal ked
about the, you know, audio-only services,
because | think it is inportant that -- you
know, we're seeing this in so many ways ri ght
now. |I'mcertainly hearing from
constituents, you know, when they're trying
to register for vaccines and everything, that
they're not always all that conputer savvy.
So havi ng access to things that they can just
use a tel ephone, for many individuals, both
in ternms of people's famliarity with using
t hese, you know, web-based platforns and al so
just, you know, the access to broadband and
things like that, make it an equity issue to

make sure that we're providing, you know,
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support, when or if, for audio-only services
as wel | .
DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL
Absol utely.
ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you.
DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Thank
you, Ssir.
CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
Back to Senate, | believe, correct?
Senator Borrello for three m nutes.
SENATOR BORRELLO  Thank you,
Madam Chair. Appreciate it.
Good norni ng, Superintendent. Can you
all hear nme?
DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Yes.
SENATOR BORRELLO  Ckay, thank you.
| want to speak to you a little bit
about the -- | think the rather disturbing
trend of New York State contracts being
awarded to out-of-state vendors, and
specifically as it deals with healthcare.
Right nowl'm you know, fighting a
battle with OPWDD on contracts for

pharmaceuticals. You know, Senator Breslin
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brought up the -- how our | ocal pharmacies
have been under pressure, and this is doing
t he sane thing

The state recently awarded a contract
t hrough OPWDD for pharmaceuticals to -- that
are serving, you know, hones that deal with
people with disabilities, and to a conpany,
Omicare, out of Chio -- and can't even show
that this is actually a savings, in fact.
And we have a history, unfortunately, in New
York State of trying to save noney and
spendi ng nore noney. And in fact it's
harm ng | ocal pharnacies.

Previ ously other conpani es woul d
subcontract with | ocal pharnacies, and
currently through conpanies |ike
Heal thDirect. And now Omicare, based out of
Ohi o, has cut that off entirely and will not
be using any locally owned pharnacies. W
have one here in ny district that's an MABE
t hat has been serving the community for
years, serving the homes through the OPWDD
contract; it is now basically being cut off.

And ny question to you is, you know,
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why are we allowing this? Wy are we -- why
is there not an investigation as to why

out - of -state conpani es that are not even the
| ow bi dder are receiving contracts that are
ultimately taking business away from MABE
smal | busi nesses and pharnacies? It's a very
bi g concern, not just for nme but for people
across largely upstate, but it's -- I'"msure
it's throughout the entire state that this is
occurring.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: So
obvi ously MABE contracting is a major
priority of the Governor, and he's nade
tremendous progress in that regard.

And smal | business is the backbone of
our economny and very inportant in our upstate
communities. And | agree, where possible,
and consistent with the rules and the | aw and
all the other restrictions, we ought to try
to use the businesses in the state to do the
wor k of the government for the people.

SENATOR BORRELLO | agree.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Beyond

that, I"'mnot famliar with the circunstances
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at OPWDD, but |I'm nore than happy to
facilitate somebody becoming famliar with
the facts and getting back to you.

SENATOR BORRELLO | woul d appreciate
that very nmuch. [|'mnot getting answers.
There's a |l ot of hidden costs because of
usi ng an out-of-state conmpany. |Instead of
using | ocal delivery, for exanple, you're
going to have to use, you know, FedEx, things
l'i ke that.

There's a -- and this is affecting a
| ot of people, but this is an MABE and ot her
MABEs, snmal | businesses that are being
i npacted by the fact that we are awardi ng
contracts to people out of state.

| realize it's cheaper to do business
out of state, but the state governnent should
not be exploiting that fact. So | would
appreciate if you could nmake a connection so
we can get to the answer and get to the
bottom of this.

Thank you.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Ckay.

Happy to do so.
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SENATOR BORRELLO  Thank you.

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Ckay. Thank you.
Assenbl y?

CHAl RAOVAN VWEI NSTEI'N:  Yes, we go to
Assenbl yman Byrne, the ranker on the
Health Committee in the Assenbly, five
m nut es.

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Thank you, Chair.

And Superintendent, | apologize if I'm
alittle redundant in nmy questions because,
i ke ny colleagues, |'ve been knocked off at
| east five tinmes already fromthe Zoom and
rel oggi ng in.

For starters, | want to just talk a
little bit about telehealth. And I have been
a strong supporter of telehealth. The
Legi sl ature expanded access to tel ehealth by
i ncludi ng audi o-only as well. | know that
was nentioned in your testinony as part of
the adm nistration's response to the
pandem c, which | think is a good thing.

| also just want to make sure that
when putting in telehealth that we do have

sonme guardrails in place. I1t's a good thing,
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i ncreases access, gives people options and
choi ces. But for exanple, home care is one
such provider that | -- you know, | think
there are some concerns that it would be
hel pful to nake sure that they're not pushed
out and that they benefit fromtel ehealth
t 0o.

| wanted to ask first if you had sone
guestions -- if you had any sort of response
to sone of those concerns that have been
rai sed

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: So yes,
it's inmportant -- look, this is going to be
one of the difficult things, right? W need
to build back better, we've got to innovate
to deal with the new world that we're in.
But with anything new, you've got to have a
bal ance of concerns and identifying and
capping the risks that are bei ng generated,
and that includes expandi ng what has
traditionally been an in-person service to
sonmething that is renote

W need to go forward because that's

what the pandem c showed us, is that we
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frankly shoul d have noved a | ot faster,
collectively. But we've got to nake sure, as
you say, that we have guardrails in place.
And |'m happy to confer with the Departnent
of Health and with you and your staff, the
Legi slature, to make sure that all of us have
appropriately identified and cabi ned what
t hose risks are, how we reduce incentives for
ei ther unnecessary or inappropriate behavior
that comes along with anything. You know,
putting the patient, the consunmer at the
center of the exercise and naking sure at the
same tinme that the healthcare systemis not
bei ng abused or we're not adversely affecting
ot her professionals in the system
unnecessarily.

| don't have specific ideas today, but
as indicated, |I'mhappy to work with others
and with you or your staff, sir.

(Pause.)

THE MODERATOR: | think the
Assenbl yman has a connection issue.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER:  So shal |l we wait

a few seconds?
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Assenbl ynmenber, are you still with us?

UNI DENTI FI ED MEMBER: |' m sure Cahi l
woul dn't mnd taking his --

(Overtal k.)

ASSEMBLYMAN RA: He got knocked of f.
He's com ng back on now.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Ckay, thank you.

THE MODERATOR:  Yeah, we just -- he's
back in now

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Ckay.

CHAl RA\OVAN VAEI NSTEI'N: - Ckay.

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: |'m back. |'m
back. | apologize. This has been a -- such
a frustration, | can sense, with a lot of ny

col | eagues.

Superintendent, | heard part of your
answer. |I'mstarting nmy video now. Ckay,
we' re back

About home care, | just want to make
sure that we think about all these providers
and ensure that there's sonme sort of space
for themtoo.

| wanted to al so just expand --

there's a couple of other points | want to
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raise. W tal ked about the excess nedical
mal practice insurance. And while the state
is slashing the funding for this program --
and | know their -- it sounds like their
justification is reduced enroll nent and
participation in the program-- | fear that
that could further reduce participation.

And | want to point out that according
to the Westchester & Fairfield County
Busi ness Journal, they're citing Wall et Hub --
this is fromearlier |ast year -- New York
was burdened with the highest nedical
mal practi ce award payout --

(Zoom drop.)

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Ch, | ost you
again. On behalf of the Senate, this is not
a plot against the Assenbly, just --

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Apparently a
nunber of the Assenbl ynenbers are having
i ssues with being kicked out. Qur tech staff
is trying to work and figure out what's going
on and see if we can --

(Cross-tal k about the timeclock.)

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: W' Il, you
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know, reset it for himif we can get
Assenbl yman Byrne back in, or we can --

CHAIl R\MOVAN KRUEGER: What woul d you
i ke, Helene? Should we go on and conme back
to hin? Ch, wait, |ooks |ike he's com ng
back.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Maybe we shoul d
go to the Senate and we'll cone back to
Assenbl yman Byrne when he has better
connections so that -- yeah, | think you
ought to do that.

CHAIl R\MOVAN KRUECER: Al l right.

| want to announce that we've been
j oi ned by Senator Ortt, sonewhere on this
Hol | ywood Squares. But | believe he's here
for the next guest.

Hello, Mnority Leader.

And I"'mgoing to junp to Senator My
for three mnutes while the Assenbly is
trying to fix their connections.

SENATOR MAY: Ckay, great. | don't --
| can't start my video, but thank you anyway.
Ch, here we go.

So | had two questions. | wanted to
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foll ow up sone of the questions about
tel ehealth, the issue of nodality authority.

So | understand that some of the
barriers to telehealth in general that were
facilitated, made -- sort of taken away by an
executive order in March, but it included
just having the state naybe contract with
busi ness associ ate agreenents so that al
provi ders could use the sanme one instead of
having to make their own agreenents with
tel ehealth services. |Is this sonething -- or
with the tech providers.

s this sonmething that the state is
consi dering doi ng?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Well,
certainly I know that the Departnent of
Health thinks it's inportant to help
providers either to be educated, trained or
get the support they need to participate.
And that is for the benefit of all.

| don't know about that precise
proposal, but | think that the Departnent of
Health woul d certainly be aware. |'m happy

to follow up with you in that regard.
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SENATOR MAY: Ckay.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: But |
know our DFS narrower proposals, you know,
fit in as part of the greater whole that DCH
i S pursuing.

SENATOR MAY: Ckay. Yeah, ny
understanding is it's a contracting issue
that is prohibitive for individual providers.
But if it could be done at a state level, it
woul d be great.

My ot her question was about the
adm ni strative sinplification workgroup that
you tal ked about. Does that include workers
conmpensati on?

Because |'ve been hearing about just
enornmous barriers where providers aren't
of fering, for exanple, nental health services
to peopl e who have workpl ace trauma, which is
going to be a | ot of people these days. And
apparently just the paperwork is so
prohibitive and the tine lag of getting paid
is so long that workers' conpensation just
isn't working there.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Well, |
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can certainly check

And if they're not in there, | don't
have any problemw th adding them It's
nmeant to be as expansive as possible to --
there's so nmuch overlap between issues that
i npact on other parties.

SENATOR MAY: Ckay. And then,
finally, do you have a a position on pay
parity for providers with tel ehealth and
i n-person heal th?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: So |
think we tal ked about that a little bit
before. W're generally, obviously -- |
mean, right? -- in favor of parity, like for
like.

The question is, what is the I|ike,
right? What is happening on telehealth
versus what is happening if that service is
in the office? W need to | ook at the
experience generated during the pandem c and
ot her information, including from other
states. It's -- it's conplicated to achieve
an equivalence, is what I'mreally trying to

say. This is sort of one of the new areas,
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based on the changes and i nnovations, that
all of us are trying to make.

| don't have the answer, but it's
sonmet hing that we are exploring and others
are exploring, and we can do that together.
| don't know that anybody has the answer

ri ght now, because we need to | ook at the

dat a.

SENATOR MAY: Ckay. Thank you.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL:
Certainly.

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Let's get back to
t he Assenbly.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: So si nce we
began, we've been joined by quite a few
Assenbl ymenbers. And then we're going to try
M. Byrne again.

W' ve been joined by Assenbl yman Dan
Rosent hal , Assenbl yworman Li nda Rosent hal ,
Assenbl ywoman dick, Assenbl ymenbers Pretl ow,
Jacobson, Reyes, Rozic and Forrest.

And we are going to -- M. Byrne has
i ndicated that he nay be live again, so we're

going to try to go to M. Byrne and see if
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Assenbl ynenber Byrne -- if his video and
i nternet can work.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: And for anyone
who's having trouble, our tech people have
recommended turning off your video and then
supposedly the audio m ght work nore clearly
for you. Just a suggestion.

Thank you, Hel ene.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N Ckay, sure.
And you can use the chat function if you get
ki cked off and -- but | have the -- as does
Senat or Krueger, we both have the l|ists of
orders of nenbers when you raised your hand
originally. So not to worry if you get
ki cked of f and come back; we still have you
on the |ist.

Assenbl yman Byrne, let's try it again

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Thank you, Chairs.
And t hank you agai n, Superintendent.

| apol ogi ze if anyone heard the
expletives that | shouted when I was frozen.
| wasn't sure if that audi o went through.

| asked about hone care and

t el eheal th, asking about, again, the Excess
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Medi cal Mal practice Insurance Programthat
has been reduced. And | just wanted to
hi ghlight the fact again, in the Wstchester
& Fairfield County Business Journal, New York
was quoted as the highest nal practice award
payout per capita and the npbst expensive
annual mal practice liability insurance rate.

And | bring that up because we're
reducing this program |'mconcerned it's
going to reduce enroll ment even further.

But -- and this may not necessarily be
i n your wheel house, Superintendent, but we're
doing this and we're not doing anything to
actual ly reduce the cost of nedical
mal practice insurance. So | do have a very
serious objection to further reducing the
funding for this program

And | also wanted to ask you one ot her
guestion; hopefully I don't freeze. There's
been a | ot of discussion about the PBM
proposed regul ation and registration. And I
just wanted to just follow up, because there
does seemto be a lot of players in the drug

chain -- whol esal ers, pharmacists. And is
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t here any consideration or thought we woul d
be registering or requiring transparency for
all these other players as sone other states
may be doing as well?

You know, | would just like to see if
that was sonmething that's being considered
for not just the PBMs but for other players.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Well,

t he budget proposal, as you know, is for
PBVMs. Many ot her players in the system --
obvi ously, doctors, providers, insurers --
are already regulated. So |I'mvery nuch
hopi ng and | ooki ng forward to having the
ability to have governnment nake a difference
with respect to prescription pricing by

bri ngi ng transparency and oversight to the
PBMs.

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Ckay. Thank you.
And again, | would just voice ny opposition
to the cut in the Excess Medi cal Ml practice
| nsurance Program w th many of ny
col | eagues. And ny col | eague the I nsurance
chai rman nentioned that as well, so I'd |ike

to echo that support for the program
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Thank you.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you,
M. Byrne.

Now we go to the Senate.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much. And oops, if | can find ny |ist
again -- it's sonewhere up here -- we're at
Sue Serino, Senator Sue Serino.

Are you there, Sue? There she is.

SENATOR SERINO There we go. Thank
you, Madam Chair.

And good norni ng, Superintendent. And
actually this norning just before this
hearing | had a call froma constituent who's
been living with M5 for 13 years. She takes
a daily injection to keep her condition under
control. And with the help of a copay
assi stance card, she has never had to pay for
the injection. But w thout the card, the
nont hly cost would be $2500.

This mont h when she went to get the
prescription she was charged $705 with the
copay assistance card. Despite active help

from her doctors and her pharmacist, there's
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been no explanation for the price spike. And
her pharmacist told her it mght even be due
to a penalty she's being charged for being
unabl e to use a generic version of the drug,
a version that has been proven to be
effective for her. And |I'm sure you agree
this is truly outrageous to see such a spike
with no justification, especially in the

m dst of a pandem c.

I n Novenber of |ast year you
established a new office to investigate
skyrocketing prescription drug prices, and
you announced the appoi ntnment of a new
Drug Accountability Board. Awesone. So |I'm
wondering if you could provide an update on
the work of that office, what you're finding
and actually what recourse is avail able
t hrough the office for New Yorkers who
experience these kind of spikes.

And is there sonething that we can do
in the budget to actually bol ster the work of
t hat office?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Well,

t hank you, Senator.
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First, with respect to your
constituent, that's very upsetting. And one
of the worst aspects of our healthcare system
i s when individuals are kind of caught in
between all the other players that have so
much power.

We have a very vi brant Consuner
Assi stance Unit, which our staff would be
delighted to work with your constituent to
find out what happened and what can be done
for her individually.

The O fice of Pharmacy Benefits has
been stood up. W have a full board of
advi sors, including Assenbl yman John
McDonal d, who has experience in the pharmacy
i ndustry, and we're getting all kinds of good
advice there. W've |aunched a series of
investigations with respect to
COVI D-19-rel ated drug price spiking

But anyone can report a drug to be
reviewed for inappropriate price spiking, and
that's available on our website. 1'll also
have ny staff follow up with your staff. W

| egi sl ative affairs person, Tanusha {ph}, can
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foll ow up and make sure that this is fully
expl ai ned to you and that we can reach out,
wi th your help, to your constituent.

SENATCR SERINO Onh, that's awesone.

And | just want to say also, too --
|"'mglad to see the enphasis on increasing
the access to telehealth. But | just want
for the record that the telehealth is only as
good as your access to broadband, right, the
i nternet.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL
Absol utely.

SENATCR SERINO So we need to focus
on truly getting universal access to
af f ordabl e, fast broadband. And | hope that
you'll join us in that push.

Thank you, Superintendent.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Thank
you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. And
back to the Assenbly.

CHAI RAMOVAN VWEI NSTEI'N: Now we go to
Assenbl ywoman Hunter for three m nutes.

| know she's been getting kicked off a
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nunber of tinmes also, so hopefully --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN HUNTER:  |'m here. It's
been chal | engi ng, the internet.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: | have you in
the order -- | take nmenbers in the order they
rai se their hand --

(Unintelligible cross-talk.)

ASSEMBLYWOVAN HUNTER:  -- Chai r woman,

t hank you. And thank you, Superintendent.

A coupl e of other nmenbers have nmade
mention, so | kind of wanted to continue the
conversation about the telehealth. And, you
know, this COVID pandenmi c has really shown us
glaring gaps and disparities relative to
access to healthcare and, specifically, the
unreliability of broadband.

And you nentioned several tines that
consuners are the center of what your
department does. So can you explain, | guess
specifically, what is DFS s plan to expand
tel eheal th services w thout the coinciding
necessary broadband upgrade requirenents?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Well,

certainly making tel ephonic services qualify
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under the statute, which is one of the
Governor's proposals, so that an individual
can use their phone even if they don't have
br oadband access.

Second, we are going to work with the
i ndustry to make sure they have enough
provi ders, doctors in their network that
provi de tel ehealth services. Because if that
person is not avail able, then there's nothing
for you to utilize because you can't do it.

The Departnent of Health has a nunber
of proposals in that regard too.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN HUNTER:  And | can
appreciate that. And obviously |I'musing ny
phone right now, and | have the data and the
capacity to be able to do that, because ny
conput er obvi ously was not wor ki ng.

But we have several instances, and
especially in communities of col or where, you
know, people may have a Medi caid phone or the
banmaphones, people call them where they
don't have data and they don't have the video
capacity to do these calls.

My office did a survey, you know,
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trying to figure out who has been utilizing
telehealth during this. 1I1t's all been
suburban areas and it's all been fol ks who
are 65-plus. So we are not capturing the
comunities who in this pandem ¢ have not had
the capacity to have equitable access to
heal t hcare.

And anot her question, quickly, before
my time runs out. |If you could please
explain in the departnent's plan to assi st
in-state | ocal healthcare practitioners who
are concerned about | osing their business to
out -of -state web doctors to ensure that,
agai n, the consuner-centered approach we
tal ked about, that in-person quality of care
conti nues.

That there has been a | ot of concern
with local doctors that this push to certify
and license out-of-state doctors will inpact
the ability for | ocal healthcare
practitioners to keep their businesses.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: So great
guestion. | know the Departnment of Health is

wor ki ng to hel p educate all providers to nake
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sure they have the tools they need.

But putting that aside, |ook, we've
al ready had, as you know, right, a disparate
i mpact on communities of color fromthe
pandem ¢ and fromthe econom c jobs crisis.
The solution, as we build forward, can't also
have di sparate negative inpacts on those
conmmunities. W need all, in all of our
comunities, to nove forward together.

And so | would actually be very happy
to work with you and your staff and others on
sort of nore, you know, |ocal ground-up
initiatives where we can do this.

|"d also put in a plug for our new
soon-t o- be- opened statewi de O fice of
Fi nanci al Inclusion, which is neant to
address exactly this problem How do we nake
sure all comunities are participating in our
financial system-- and to your point, in the
i nnovations as well that are nmeant to address
the harns that these crises have caused?

So I"'mexcited to work with you on
this.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN HUNTER:  Thank you,
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Superi nt endent .

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Thank
you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Next up is Senator Kevin Thomas, if he

SENATCR THOVAS: |'mhere. |I'm here.
Thank you so much. Good norni ng,

Chair Krueger.

Good norning to the superintendent.
Thanks for joining us today.

|"ve got a couple of questions here
about artificial intelligence. As you know,
technology is rapidly transform ng every
i ndustry, specifically in the healthcare
sphere.

Artificial intelligence and al gorithns
are taking over healthcare decisions. |'ve
heard from many constituents and hospital
adm ni strators who have had nedi cal - procedure
preaut hori zati ons denied or clainms denied
based of f of algorithms that insurance
conmpani es are using.

The infuriating part here is that the
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consuner does not even know that a human
being is reviewing it. Do you think this is
fair?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Well,
you' ve raised a very inportant area --

i nnovation, artificial intelligence,
al gorithms, all of that.

Again, this area, which is energing
and rmushroom ng, really, can be benefici al
but, if not done correctly, can be harnful,
and both in fact and in appearance.

So | think it's very inportant that
there are disclosures to consuners about what
is actually happening so that they understand
what ki nd of technol ogi es are bei ng used.
That' s point one.

Poi nt two, yes, they have to operate
fairly. And we have already been telling our
licensed entities that they have to make sure
if they use an algorithmor artificial
intelligence, they have to nake sure that
doesn't have a disparate inpact, just as if
they did it thenselves, for exanple.

And there's a lot of work to do here,
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and thank you for raising the topic. And I'm
sure that we can work together on this.

SENATOR THOMAS: Woul d you support,
you know, havi ng insurance conpani es, when
they send a denial letter or whatever it is,
that it clearly states in their letter that
an algorithmdeterm ned this health decision?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: You
know, it's a great question. | renenber back
in the old Ingenix days where that
happened -- everybody got denied on their
out - of -networ k rei nbursenent or they got |ike
a small amount of noney back, and they didn't
know it was sone database. And it was one of
the things that we conpl ai ned about.

So | do think there should be nore
transparency. |If that's not already
occurring, I'msure we can look at it within
DFS, under our regulatory authority, and it's
somet hi ng we ought to explore.

SENATOR THOMAS: Thank you so mnuch
Superi nt endent .

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Thank

you, Ssir.
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CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

CHAI RAMOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  Yes, we're
going to go to Assenbl ywonan Bi chotte
Her el y.

But before, | just wanted to say that
the problem | think, with the -- that
menbers are having with the internet has to
do with the -- at |east on the Assenbly side,
with their main firewall systens. So that if
there are nenbers in the -- in A bany who
are -- or other places who are trying to |og
in through the Assenbly VPN, you should --
and have access to a private network, you
should do that, and | think that would clear
up any issues you're having.

But neanwhil e, our fol ks are working
on resolving this systemu de probl em

So now we go to Assenbl ywoman Bichotte
Herrmel yn for three mnutes.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BI CHOTTE HERMELYN
Hel l o. Thank you so nmuch, Chair. Thank you,
Superi ntendent, for being here.

| was in and out as well, and | just
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wanted to kind of get sone feedback on the
Excess Medi cal Mal practice |Insurance Program
whi ch | know you spoke a little bit about.

As you know, that |'m concerned and ny
comunity is concerned that this burden wll
be on these community-based physicians.

The Excess Medi cal Mal practice
| nsurance Program provides an additi onal
| ayer of $1 mllion of coverage to physicians
with hospital privileges who maintain primary
coverage at $1.3 million out of a $3.9
mllion level. And New York is consistently
havi ng t he hi ghest cumnul ative nedi cal
liability payouts out of any state. Wth so
much pressure, our doctors right now have
been justified in opposing these new
excessi ve costs.

We know t hat the federal governnent is
giving over $50 billion of supplement. Can't
that kind of offset these costs? As you
know, we are in a crisis. Many of our
comuni ty-based doctors service the mnority
comunities which were hit the hardest, and

t hey' ve been the frontline workers. They are
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heal t hcare workers, they are heroes, they
are -- they have been experiencing an
econonmi c | oss of 10 percent of their staff, a
32 percent drop in revenue -- and in other
cases, 50 percent.

So we're asking you not to do this.
Ckay? We're asking you not to put that
50 percent burden. There's other ways of
| ooking at this, potentially decreasing the
total nedical -- the programso that they
don't have the higher burden. But can you
pl ease explain a little bit nore why we're
doing this? And given the federal stinulus
package, can we -- just don't do it?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Al
right, thank you for that question and your
comment s.

| do hear what you're saying. And
we' ve al ready covered a nunber of these
points. But, you know, as you indicated, the
excess insurance is on top of existing
mal practice insurance that the provider would
al ready have obtained. Not all physicians --

you know, if you' re a dermatol ogist, for
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exanple, you may or may not need that if
you' ve got other insurance.

The state has been 100 percent
backstopping this, and the assessnent of the
data and the nunbers was that the nmarket has
stabilized and we don't need 100 percent
backst oppi ng by the state any |onger and the
prof essi onal should be able to add that.

Wth that being said, | do understand
what you're saying and I'msure that the
Budget Division and the Departnent of Health,
et cetera, are also watching. And |I'm sure,

as a matter of negotiation between the

branches of governnent, that this will be a
matter of discussion. And what | wll tell
you is that I will personally convey what you

said, both to the Departnment of Health and to
counsel's office and the Budget Division so
that, you know, at a bare m ni num we can

expl ore how do we ensure that there is not a
di sparate inmpact on providers who serve

di sadvant aged conmuniti es who have
experienced and continue to experience

di sparities in healthcare.
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So | do -- | understand your point.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BI CHOTTE HERMELYN
Thank you very much

CHAl RWOVAN VEI NSTEI'N: Senat e?

CHAl R{MOVAN KRUEGER:  |'m sorry, | was
nmut ed agai n.

Senator Giffo.

SENATOR CGRI FFO  Thank you,
Senat or Krueger. Thank you, Conm ssioner.

| just have a real quick question.
Essentially when you tal k about the vaccine
program ri ght now and assurances that this is
really not costing anybody anywhere -- anyone
anything -- why then are we obtaining this
i nsurance information from everybody when
they go to various sites?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Well,
t hank you for the question, Senator.

| nsurers are required to provide
i nsurance coverage. |f you're paying for
i nsurance coverage, they need to be covering
it. And we did send them gui dance before the
vacci ne was | aunched rem ndi ng them t hat

vacci nes are covered and they need to do
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their part. They are collecting prem uns
from consuners, and they need to be using
t hose dollars as required under the |Insurance
Law and the regul ati ons and our oversi ght.

So that hel ps, by the way, the state
or the federal governnent. And as you know
far better than |, there are limted dollars
to cover everything that the state and the
federal and | ocal governnents are handling at
t he nonent, and i nsurance conpani es are doi ng
their part. [|'ve heard no conplaints from
industry in that regard.

It's actually to the benefit of the
i nsurance conpany for individuals to be
vacci nated to help reduce infection and the
extent of harmto the individual, which would
engender vast, vast costs if the person is
hospitalized in the 1CU and on a ventil ator.
So | actually think this is something that
i nsurers ought to be chanpi oni ng and maki ng
easy.

SENATOR CGRI FFO  So basically what
you're saying, then -- | understand that,

Conmi ssi oner.
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But what |'m asking you is that based
on obtaining that information at the state
facilities that are conducting vaccines right
now, all that insurance information that's
bei ng gat hered and being sent to the
i nsurance conpany, the noney is com ng back
to the state, then. So that part of that
noney is being -- the insurance conpani es are
covering this, but when there was copays,
things like that, are you billing, is the
State of New York then getting noney from
t hese i nsurance conpani es or these other
di stribution sites?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: No. No.
The federal government is paying for the
vaccine, as I'msure you' re aware. This is
sinply processing it through insurance
conpani es. The federal governnent is
conmitted, the state is commtted that no
i ndi vidual, with or w thout insurance, would
be paying for a vacci ne.

So | understand your question. But
certainly the state is not profiting or

recei ving funds frominsurance conpanies in
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connection with the vaccine. |'mhappy to
follow up on that and get you a witten
answer that's nore detail ed.

SENATOR GRI FFO  Thank you for your

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: W go to
Assenbl yworman Seawri ght.

(Pause.)

ASSEMBLYWOMAN SEAWRI GHT:  Can you hear

me? Am | unnuted?

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Yup, you're good.

ASSEMBLYWOVMAN SEAWRI GHT:  Thank you.

Thank you, Superintendent Lacewel|.

| have Roosevelt Island in ny
district, and last year it lost its only
bank. M office, along with other el ected
officials that represent the island, have
been working with DSS to get a repl acenent
chain to take over on the island. Many
residents or seniors --

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Assenbl ywonan,

| hate to interrupt, but this is the -- DFS
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is here to address health issues, not other
i ssues under their jurisdiction. So if your
guestion is not health-related, | think we
have to take care of it offline.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: And I'm
happy to do that, Assenbl ywoman. W have a
nunber of prograns, as |'m sure you know.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SEAWRI GHT:  Sur e.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Do you have any
heal t h- speci fi c questions, Rebecca?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SEAWRI GHT:  Wel |, |
t hi nk not having a bank on Roosevelt Island
i npacts --

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SEAWRI GHT: -- it being
an island of a large --

CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEIN:  That's a little
sneaky. Okay, we're going to --

(Laughter.)

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Qops.  |''m not
really trying to help, | was just trying to
be polite.

CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEIN: | know.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Assenbl ywonan,
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why don't we take anot her Assenbl ynenber who
has nore of a --

CHAl RWOVAN WVEI NSTEI' N: Yes.
Assenbl ywoman Li nda Rosent hal

ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL: Hi. Hi,
good to see you. | have a couple of
guesti ons.

My first question is about testing.
And as many in the city saw, the lines for
testing at certain tines and days were
wr apped around the bl ock and people had to
wait four or five hours just to get a test.

At sonme of those urgent cares, people
were actually not just tested but brought
into roons, had a, quote, visit where their
vitals were taken and other information, and
that was billed, as far as | understand, as
visit. As opposed to, let's say, an H+H
facility, where you went in, got a swab stuc
up your nose, and you left.

So can you explain the difference
in -- what kind of billing differences were

there for that, and were these urgent cares

a

k

authorized to actually conduct visits so they
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could -- you know, the result of which is
t hey got probably extra noney?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: So thank
you for the question. Happy to ook into the
specific facts.

The only thing that can occur to nme is
that if sonebody cane and they were
experienci ng synptonms and they needed a
nmedi cal consult, that m ght have occurred
al ongsi de, before they're given the test.

But certainly if it's anything other
than that, it would be of concern, and |'m
happy to speak with your staff al ongside and
get the facts and circunstances and figure
out what that was.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL: No, | think
it was everybody had to go into a roomwth a
heal t hcare professional and, you know, they
had different questions to answer and vitals
taken. Seem ngly unnecessary for everyone
who sinply wanted a COVID test to go through

And | understand it was billed as a
visit. So if you could enlighten nme, you

know, about how that cones about and if that
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was the -- | don't know if that was the
i nt ended purpose of these urgent cares, to
conduct visits.
DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Right.
| nmean, obviously there's a tenperature
screening and things of that |ike, but
not hi ng of the description that you provided.
Again, |'mhappy either to speak with
you after the hearing or have our staffs
connect and if you can get us the specific
i nformati on where this was occurring, we can
certainly look into it and we wll.
ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL: All right.
Thank you.
DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL:  Sure.
CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
Senat or Bi aggi .
SENATOR BI AGA : Thank you
Madam Chair. |'m al so having unstable
internet, so | apologize if | drop off. Just
pl ease go on to the next person so | don't
stop anybody.
kay, |I"'mready to begin. Thank you

so nmuch.
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Hi, Madam Superintendent. | only have
a few questions, and they're actually very
narrow i n nature, so hopefully we can get
sone answers here.

So I"'mjust wondering if DFS is aware
of the situation that's surrounding
Uni t edHeal t hcare. Essentially what has
happened is that they have, in the m ddle of
this pandem c, decided to go out of network
to many, many, many different individuals who
have UnitedHeal thcare as their, you know,
mai n i nsurance conpany. And predom nantly
where this is actually inpacting are
comunities of color and | owincone
communi ti es.

So I'"mjust wondering, first and
foremost, if DFS is aware of this.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Thank
you. Yes, | read the news reports and the
comments from nenbers, | believe including
yoursel f. And although we don't have
jurisdiction over these contracts, |
simlarly was concerned that fol ks were not

at the table negotiating this.
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And | personally called the head of
UnitedHeal th Group -- not the New York
conpany, the national conpany -- and | called
the head of Montefiore, and | said this is
unacceptable, I'"mnot getting involved in the
substance, but you've got to get to the table
on behal f of the people that you are serving,
and wi thout an excuse. And they did, they
returned.

We're nonitoring those negotiations.
| woul d continue to ask both sides to do the
right thing and try to cone to a
resolution -- especially, as you indicate,

during a pandemic. W' ve got to get this

done.

SENATOR BIAGA : (kay, | appreciate
that. | amgrateful that you are involved in
t hat .

| just want to note one thing to you.
This particul ar i nsurance conpany,
Uni t edHeal t hcare, has made |ike, | nean,
significant, significant profits during this
pandemc. And it just -- it seenms like it is

nefari ous action being taken. And the reason
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why | can say that in good faith is because
they're not actually just doing this in
New York, they're also doing this in Georgia.

So | would really appreci ate perhaps
if, you know -- | nean, | hear you that DFS
doesn't have official jurisdiction. But
si nce you have al ready reached out and had
t hose conversations, | would really
appreciate just a followup, an official
followup fromyour office to mine, mainly
because this affects a significant portion of
peopl e who live in the Bronx who already are
on the verge of, frankly, just |like nass
destitution, | mean in every single way.

And so to go to the doctor in a place
where, you know, usually you can go to the
doctor but also to be in a situation where
you m ght be unenpl oyed or on the verge of
becom ng honel ess and then your health
i nsurance is not even taken and then people
are getting a lot of surprise bills -- it's
hi ghly probl emati c.

Sol really will look forward to us

connecting and followi ng up and then al so
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hopeful | y having sonme kind of resolution to
this. Because |I'm deeply, deeply concerned
that a |large portion of Bronxites would be
left with large surprise bills in this
nmonent .

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Happy to
do so.

SENATOR BI AGA : (kay, thank you

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Ckay. Thank you.
| actually think I"'mthe | ast one up for
first round, then our chairs may choose to
have second rounds.

So, Conm ssioner, mdw ves have cone
to me with the fact that they don't have the
option to purchase mal practice insurance that
covers prenatal care but not delivery
services, even though the vast mpjority of
t hem are not providing delivery services --
maybe they should be, but they don't have
access to |locations to do so.

So can you hel p ne understand what
could be done to allow m dwi ves to purchase
t he coverage for the services they provide,

whi ch woul d be far | ess expensive than
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i ncl udi ng coverage for births. As you and |
both know, births end up in a very high risk
category for health insurance, and even in a
di fferent program

So is there a way to hel p those
m dwi ves who are perform ng all kinds of
i nportant services, but not actually
delivery, to have insurance?

And | think directly correl ated, and
maybe explaining this, is do the m dw ves no
| onger have access to nal practice insurance
like at all? |Is there sone rule that's gone
t hrough that doesn't allow themto have
mal practice insurance? And why was it
di scontinued if it disappeared?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: well, |
will look into that |ast question. |'m not
awar e of any changes.

But with respect to the |arger
guestion, I will confer with our property
di vi sion, which speaks regularly with al
ki nds of providers of insurance in this
regard, and find out is this service -- is

this product not available, why is it not
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avai l abl e, are there players in the narket
who are interested in providing it, how do we
encourage that, what are the obstacles -- and
get that back with you, Chair, about what is
happening in regard for m dw ves who are
trying to obtain this kind of protection,

that they play a very inportant role. And
we'll get to the bottomof it.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: G eat .

And actually so when |I'm thanking you
for getting back to me with that, I'mal so
sayi ng, on behalf of Helene and |, many
nmenbers asked you questions today where you
said you woul d need to get back to them
W' re asking that you, yes, get back to them
but al so send the answers to Hel ene and
nyself, and we will nake sure they go up on
the websites that share information from
t hese hearings so that everyone can take
advant age of the information you' re offering.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Happy
to.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

So a foll owup question -- and there
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seened to be a nunber of questions sort of
around it today, and I"'mnot sure if they're
exactly the sane question.

There's a belief at |east that
regulating risk retention groups who enter
New York State is sonething that we have not
gotten our arms around, so that several of
t hem have recently failed and they are
| eavi ng doctors w thout coverage. And the
Governor in his budget wants to cut the
funding for the excess liability pool.

But if the actual insurance options
for the nedical community are di sappearing on
us, what are we doing? So we would | ose
t hese conpani es who canme in and prom sed to
offer us -- | guess they're called risk
retention groups -- these higher-cost
i nsurance policies for doctors, they're
| eaving and we're reducing the excess
liability pool. Are both of those true?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Well, |
don't know if we're tal king about exactly the
same t hing

But DFS has worked directly with the
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provi ders of medical mal practice insurance to
hel p make them nore robust financially and to
expand conpetition in the market by bringing
in new entrants. Because the nmarket has been
stabilizing in that regard, this additional

| evel of excess coverage that has been

backst opped by the state, the assessnent has
been, based on the data and the dollars, that
the state could reduce that participation by
50 percent and doctors can elect as to

whet her or not they want this additional
coverage, pay part of the cost thensel ves,

whi ch gives them sone skin in the ganme too --
ot herwi se you're just taking a free policy,
potentially. And so that is what the
proposal is in the Executive Budget.

That's sort of ny understanding as to
what's happening in that area. | don't know
if that fully answers your question. |'m
happy, again, to come back with nore details
to you.

CHAl RWOMAN KRUEGER: | think the
overall question is concerns that there are

speci fic healthcare providers who are having
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nore and nore trouble getting insurance
coverage through what ever ways, and in theory
the state nmakes it available. And so the
concern is are we | ooking at these questions
right.

So, you know, one was specific to
m dwi ves, which is a healthcare provider
who's not an MD., the other relates to
t hi nk i nsurance through various sources that
primarily go to physicians, as opposed to
others in the healthcare field.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Al
right. Well, let ne go back and get into the
details further, and I'lIl followup with a
witten response for yourself.

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUECER:  And then there
was earlier questions about the inpact of
i nsurance that people thought were going to
cover them during the pandem c, business
interruption insurance for people in
heal t hcare.

Can you get us a list of who actually
ever paid out on this? |'mconvinced -- |

mean, you were explaining why it's very
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difficult to change the rules of the road for
i nsurance coverage. But |I'mjust wonderi ng,
is the whole world paying for a specific kind
of insurance that never pays out, period, so
we shoul dn't even allow that kind of
insurance to be in New York State?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: well, |
think -- yes, we'll conme back to you with
details on this.

But obvi ously business interruption
i nsurance, as it's known, covers a w de range
of things that may cause a business to cl ose
down. The problemis they either exclude
pandem cs or they require, typically,
property damage.

And that's probably a way for themto
hel p determ ne what the financial risk is for
them W' ve got to make sure we don't drive
our insurance conpani es, property and
casualty insurers, out of business al so.

But there have been a nunber of
guestions on this, so | do think it would be
appropriate for ne to work with the teamto

put together something in witing that | can
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get to you and that can be shared with the
ot her menbers as well, as you suggest,
t hrough the website or otherw se.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Appreciate it.
Thank you.

| "' m now going to nove, for second
round, to the Insurance chair fromthe
Assenbly, Kevin Cahill, for five m nutes.

Oh, and Hel ene got back just as | said
that. Okay.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Yes.  Kevin?

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Thank you,
Chairs. | really do appreciate it.

Thank you, Superintendent, for
enduring our questions. And | apologize to
you if you think | was a little bit rough in
the first round, but there was a | ot of
ground to cover and only 10 m nutes to cover
t hose topics.

So I'd like to spend the next few
m nutes just tal king about a few of the
t hi ngs we al ready nentioned and naki ng sure |
under stand what you prom sed us.

You are going to send conplete details
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on the suballocations that are included in
t he Departnent of Financial Services's budget
that are derived frominsurance conpany and
bank assessnents?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Okay. The next
thing, will you work with the Legislature --
and 1'Il be clear, not ne, Any Paulin and
Dick Gottfried in our house and a significant
group of people in the Senate -- to help
reach a conclusion on early chil dhood
intervention services between now and the
budget that will actually make it so that we
don't have our overburdened providers doing
the collection work for New York State?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: Happy to
work with the group on that.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Thank you very
much. We'll follow up with that as well.

WIIl you also revisit the excess
nmedi cal rmal practice issue fromthe
perspective of those providers who are
providing care in at-risk and difficult

communi ti es who cannot afford nedi cal
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mal practice, as opposed to the perspective
that you indicated in your testinony of those
who have already |eft that real n?

We still have a problem for people who
can't afford it. WIIl you agree to send us
sonme information as to how you intend to nake
excess nedi cal mal practice insurance nore
af fordabl e for those who are working in
at-risk hospitals and ot her settings?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: So |
don't want to promise that |I'm going to have
the answers, right?

What | promise to do is to confer with
the right entities -- DOH, Departnent of
Budget, counsel's office, nenbers of the
Legislature -- and to get back with you with
a response.

What | don't want is anybody to think
|"mgoing to solve all these conplicated
i ssues between now and the budget. | w sh |
coul d.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Fortunately for
you, we've offered significant workabl e

| egi sl ative solutions to each one of the
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things that |1've nentioned. And all you have
to do is say yes. |It's that easy. Take a

| ook at our proposals. If you say yes, then
it gets done.

So | understand your position. Al
|"masking is a good-faith effort, as opposed
to what we've confronted in the past, which
is sonething I'Il get to in my concl usion.

Just going back to the no-fault panel,
what was the thinking behind having only
menbers of the executive branch of governnent
serve as nenbers of the panel that were going
to reviewno fault? And if that was a
consci ous decision -- as opposed to bringing
people in fromthe industry, bringing agents
and brokers in, bringing consuner
representatives in, bringing nenbers of the
Legislature into that mx -- why do you need
| egislation to acconplish that?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL: | don't
think there's any deliberate intent to
exclude nmenbers. W know there are different
nodel s for these kinds of enterprises, and

soneti mes what you're doing is bringing
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together all the executive actors in that
regard, and then they engage with experts and
st akehol ders across the board.

Sonetimes you put themall on a panel
t oget her and have them hash it out.

They're sinply different nodels.
don't think there was any particular intent.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Understood. Is
there any reason that you need legislation to
do that? Can't the Governor pick up the
phone and say, Superintendent, have a
conversation with the conm ssioner and let's
work this out?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL
Certainly you don't require legislation to
have a nunber of state agencies get together
on an ongoi ng basi s.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: I'mgoing to --

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEVELL: And you
al so don't need legislation to do studi es,
and we do many of these things all the tine
t hrough | egi sl ati on as an expressed
commtment toward the priority that is in --

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Wen the
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Legi sl ature thinks that sonething should be
done by the Executive and it's not being done
by the Executive, we are forced to resort to
| egislation to get it done. |It's not
necessary for the Executive to force
t hensel ves to do sonething that they have the
power to do. So we'll nove on with that.

Can | also ask you to reviewthe
am cus brief that was filed on behalf of you
and all the people of New York State by the
Attorney Ceneral and the attorneys general of
45 states of this country, and also the
opi nions and the nodel |egislation drafted by
your organi zation, the National Association
of I nsurance Comm ssioners, and also to
review the decision witten by Suprene Court
Justice Sotonmayor to determ ne whet her you
are prepared to conclude that regul ation of
a -- state regulation of an internediary is
the direct regulation of health benefits and
therefore conflicts with ERI SA?

Wi ch, by the way, is exactly the
opposite of Justice Sotomayor's hol di ng.

amhere to tell you that it is my view that
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the State of New York and in particular the
Executive, who has taken tinme to veto our

| egislation, is specifically standing in the
way of conprehensive regulation of PBVMs. And
for the life of me, fromthe view of a
consuner, | don't know why.

Thank you very nuch, Superintendent.
My time has run out.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  And | think
there's one nore Assenbly chair who wanted a
second round?

CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEIN: No, | think we
are finished on the Assenbly side. If you
don't have someone on the Senate, | know that
the technical staff | believe needs a mnute
to repost the witness list, so that we need
to pause the live -- pause our next -- the
live feed till they reload that so we --

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Very good. W'l
t hank the superintendent, because | don't
beli eve we have any nore questions for you.

So thank you for being with us. W
| ook forward to quite a bit of data com ng

out of your shop in response to the nany
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guesti ons.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT LACEWELL
Under st ood.

CHAIl R\MOVAN KRUECER:  And we wil |l --
thank you. We will do whatever for a mnute,
cone back, and Conmm ssioner Zucker is here
with us when we cone back

(Brief recess taken from 11:46 to
11: 51 a.m)

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. Good
afternoon. |'m Senator Liz Krueger, chair of
Senat e Finance Committee, joined by
Assenbl ywoman Hel ene Wi nstein, chair of the
Ways and Means Conmittee, having our
13th hearing on the Executive Budget proposed
by Governor Cuonpb. It is the Health Hearing

We started off this norning with the
superi ntendent of the Departnment of Financi al
Services in relationship to health insurance,
and we are now noving on to Dr. Howard
Zucker, the comm ssioner of the New York
State Departnent of Health, who will have
10 minutes to testify and introduce whoever

he has with him and then we will open it up
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to questions.

And t hese hearings are being held
online, live, with the two |argest comittees
of the Senate and Assenbly. And based on the
nunber of requests already, pretty much every
nmenber has questi ons.

So Dr. Zucker, | hand it to you.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Thank you very
much. And good norni ng, Chairpersons --

SENATCR O MARA:  Chai rwonman
Chai rwonman Krueger, | have a request that
this witness be sworn in.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER:  You know,

Senator, | don't know that we have a format
for swearing in at budget hearings, and so it
would be a little unusual to try to conme out
with one that we all respected at this
nmonent .

Comm ssi oner Zucker, do you intend to
tell us the truth?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: O course |'1
tell you the truth. Yes.

SENATOR O MARA: Note my objection

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
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Pl ease continue, Senator -- excuse ne,
Conmi ssi oner .

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Thank you.

And good norni ng, Chairpersons Krueger
and Rivera, Winstein and CGottfried, and
menbers of the New York State Senate and
Assenbl y.

| thank you for the opportunity to
present CGovernor Cuonp's fiscal year 2022
Executive Budget as it relates to the health
of all New Yorkers.

| am joined by Donna Frescatore, the
State Medicaid Director and the Director of
the New York State of Health.

And | also will just nmention, given
that there's a |lot of technical aspects of
Zoom | have ny audi ovi sual person in the
room in case you see sone novenent. In case
we drop out of the Zoom | want to be sure we
get right back on

One year ago | sat before you, in
person, for the sane reason. |In nmy testinony
| commented on a new virus identified in

Wihan, China, that warranted cl ose
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monitoring. W sit here today, virtually,
because of the course that virus took during
t hese past 12 nonths.

In my nedical and public health career
| have borne witness to and worked on
resol ving many health chal |l enges, but few
have had as far-reaching inpact as this
pandem c. The virus we call SARS-CoV-2 has
put society on hold, but it has tapped into
the ingenuity of researchers, the intestinal
fortitude of health workers, and the
resilience of us all during the past year.

COVI D- 19 has caused unprecedented pain
and grief for nmany New Yorkers who are stil
struggling to find neaning and closure in
t hese uncertain tines.

The Departnent of Health, under
Governor Cuonp's | eadership, has tackled this
pandemic with all of its heart and soul. The
staff has given -- and continues to give --
every ounce of energy to stopping this
pandem c, from Wadsworth Lab devel opi ng the
nation's first COVID 19 test outside of the

CDC in February of last year, to | aunching
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nore than a dozen state testing sites that we
still operate today, to building an arny of
contact tracers and a conprehensive

vacci nation programthat has al ready put
nearly 4 mllion shots in the arnms of

New Yorkers in the first two and a half

nont hs.

Today marks ny 414th strai ght day of
tackling this virus on behalf of New Yorkers.
| wish | could say that | had all the answers
back then. | didn't. W didn't. Not the
scientists, the public health experts, the
journalists, the policymkers, those on the
front lines -- none of us. Ironically, the
year was 2020, and with 20/ 20 foresight we
woul d have built stockpiles, inplenmented nore
precauti onary neasures, and revved up
manuf acturing. |Instead, we have all |earned
t oget her.

New scientific findings shaped new
policy. Recommended behavi ors designed to
save lives -- |ike social distancing, nasks,
shut downs, testing -- have becone tiresone.

The urgency of the situation, the deadly
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nature of COVID 19, neant decisions had to be
made nore quickly than the science was
evol vi ng.

| cannot speak of COVID-19 w t hout
turning to the nursing honmes. Yes, there
were deaths -- too many. Yes, nursing hone
residents were and remai n anong the nost
vul nerable. And yes, there have been
guesti ons.

In July | presented a conprehensive
assessment of what |ikely happened i n nursing
hones, here in New York and all over the
gl obe. What we said in July remains true
today. The virus, despite all of our
coll ective best efforts to prevent it, was
i nadvertently brought into the nursing homes
by dedicated staff at a tinme when we did not
know enough about the science. It was
tragic, it was troubling, but it's true.

| was asked to provide the nunbers of
deaths by facility, by location of death, by
whet her confirmed or presuned. To the best
of the departnent's ability, | have done so.

| f some wish to find fault with the process,
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| ask themto renmenber that we continue to
battle this pandemic. As a resident of
New York, | believe in transparency. As a
doctor, | believe in accuracy. And we did
our best to achi eve both.

There is much nore we can achieve if
we apply the | essons of 2020 as we turn to
2021. As we now focus on the budget, the
reason we are here today, we need to keep
this in mnd. So let's start with the
nursi ng hones.

Last week the Governor announced a
conprehensive plan to bring real reformto
t he nursing honme industry. Reform neans
prioritizing patient care over profit,
focusi ng on services that directly inpact
residents, and staffing progranms accordingly.
Ref or m neans di scl osi ng payer rates and what
goods and services Medi care and Medi caid
funding is spent on. Reform means increasing
public health violation penalties to $25, 000
and renovi ng grace periods for fixing
violations. Reform nmeans operators with

repeat infection control violations nust work
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wi th an i ndependent quality inprovenent
monitor on their own dinme. And finally, it
nmeans if an operator cannot protect the
health and safety of their residents, we wll
nove qui ckly to appoint sonmebody who can.

W are living in a different world
than we were a year ago. W all learned to
live renotely this year -- renote work,
renmote school, renote shopping, renote famly
time, and renote healthcare. W can now
build on this positive transformation through
reforms that will |ower costs, enhance care
for vul nerabl e popul ati ons, and increase
access to telehealth services fromprinmary
care to early intervention

These reforms will al so expand access
to nental health and substance use services,
which is a critical need in the wake of a
pandem ¢ t hat has exacerbated these
chal | enges.

As you have heard fromny fellow
commi ssioners, this budget will propose
| egislation to establish a single integrated

Iicense for outpatient nmental health,
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subst ance use, and physical health services,
nmeani ng New Yorkers can receive all of the
services they need in one |ocation.

And that care needs to be affordable,
which is why the departnment will continue to
work with its sister agencies to inplenment a
strong regulatory framework to enforce
insurers' conpliance with parity for
rei nmbursenent for all three service types.

Furthernore, the New York State of
Heal t h has provided | owinconme famlies

qual ity health insurance through the

Essential Plan, but nonthly prem unms can be a

barrier. This budget will elimnate nonthly

prem uns for over 400,000 New Yorkers, saving

famlies nearly $100 mllion in annual
prem uns and enrolling 100,000 currently
uni nsured New Yorkers.

In addition, this budget will provide
$420 million to pronote access to vital
heal t hcare services for Essential Plan
enrollees. It will also commt $200 million
to support an Essential Plan Quality Pool to

pronote high-quality care.
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Al'l of these efforts continue to nove
us toward our goal of making New York the
heal thiest state in the nation. The Nourish
NY initiative will continue to encourage the
pur chase of goods from New York State farmers
and producers and hel p ensure access to | ocal
nutritious foods. W' Il continue our
cormmitment to nake it easier for transgender,
gender nonconfornm ng and nonbi nary
New Yorkers to have identity docunents that
reflect who they are. And we'll continue our
fight to reduce maternal nortality and raci al
di sparities.

And t he budget will, of course, allow
us to continue our fight agai nst COVID 19
with increased testing capacity and expansion
of the statewi de COVI D-19 vacci nati on program
that will enphasize health equity and reduce
vacci ne hesitancy. Qur viral adversary is
continually nutating, and we need to stay
vigil ant.

And finally, we'll need public health
ener gency response capacity that |asts beyond

COVID-19 to the next pandem c or other threat
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to the health and safety of New Yorkers. The
past year has shown us what public health
does. The state will create a New York
Public Health Corps, including public health
prof essi onal s, nurses, nedical and
pharmaceuti cal students fromundergrad to
doctoral levels, as well as retired nedical
prof essional s and vol unteer first responders.
They will cone from every regi on and
background in the state, and they will be
gi ven opportunities to work in their own
communi ti es.

As Covernor Cuonp has stated, New York
State is stronger because of the way we have
united to fight COvVID-19. | am confident
that we will prevail against COVID 19 and the
future of public health will flourish in
New York State.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

Qur first questioner will be Senator
GQustavo Rivera, 10 m nutes, please.

SENATOR Rl VERA: Madam Chair, | wll
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actually not ask questions at this tinme but
will reserve ny 10 mnutes for later on in
the program Thank you.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUECGER:  You' re wel cone.

Well, then I"'mgoing to invite our
speci al guest, Mnority Leader Robert Ott,
to be the next questioner.

SENATOR ORTT: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Thank you, Chair Wi nstein.

| al so want to recognize
Senator O Mara for his |eadership during
t hese hearings as well.

Comm ssi oner, thank you for joining
us. | do appreciate it, as | know all of ny
col | eagues, both Denocrat and Republi can,
both Assenbly and Senate, appreciate you
bei ng here today, not only to discuss the
budget but obviously to discuss the nursing
home i ssue and the departnent's response to
t hat over the |ast several weeks and over the
| ast several nonths, to be very honest with
you.

So, Commi ssioner, | have to ask you --

| know you said what you said back in July
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still is true today, but there have been a
| ot of reports that could seemto contradict
that statenent alone. And | was going to ask
you about your July report on factors
contributing, obviously, to COVID nursing
home deat hs, which was updated in February to
i nclude the real extent of nursing hone
deaths. And it continues, though, in both
versions, and as you continue here today, to
assert that the March 25th directive did not
contribute to the spread or to fatalities.

Yet -- yet -- the Attorney GCeneral
i ssued a report several weeks ago and the
Enpire Center, once they were actually --
once a judge gave themthe information that
they FO Led, both the Enpire Center and the
Attorney Ceneral of the State of New York
i ssued reports that concluded that the
March 25th directive did contribute to the
spread and, by extension, contributed to
fatalities in nursing hones.

We al so know that you had the
information that the Legislature requested at

t he hearing over the sunmer and requested
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several tinmes through nmedia outlets and

ot hers, but we now know -- not directly from
you, but fromothers in the adm nistration --
that that data was deliberately withheld for
reasons that | would term are shamneful

So having said all that, | have three
guestions for you -- because | don't have a
ton of time, so I'mgoing to ask you three
guestions and I would like you to respond.

What changed in the updated report,
the July to February report?

And secondly and thirdly, you still --
is it your assertion -- you did not nention
the March 25th order in your testinony. |Is
it still your assertion that the March 25th
order, which the Attorney Ceneral and the
Enpire Center both concluded played a role in
the spread and in the fatalities, is it your
continued assertion that that directive did
not have any effect -- you nentioned -- you
bl aned the staff, but there was no nention of
the March 25th order. Do you still contend
that that played no role?

And lastly, if that is true, then why
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was that order, the directive, rescinded

al nrost two nonths after the fact on May 10t h?
It would seemto ne -- the fact that that was
resci nded on May 10th woul d indicate that it
either wasn't working or that in fact it was
contributing to the spread in these nursing
home facilities.

So again, is it your contention that
the order did not play a role? And if so,
why was it rescinded and what changed in the
report fromJuly to February?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So let nme --

t hank you for your question. Let nme answer

themas -- in the parts that you raised.
Well, first, there are sone statenents
whi ch are not accurate, and we'll get to

those. But the first question you had was
what changed in the -- |I'mlooking at ny
notes -- what changed in the updated report?
The fact is that | support the July
assessnment, and | continue to support it to
t hi s day.

FromJuly to the present point, we had

nore data, we put the data -- and it
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confirmed exactly what we found back on
March 25th. It is troubling to nme that we
keep goi ng back to an issue where all the
data has shown -- not just New York, but
across the country -- that this is not what

brought the infection into the nursing hones.

The -- and we can get nore into the data
about -- or the guidances fromboth CM5 and
CDC - -

SENATOR ORTT: Commi ssioner, if | may.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Can you not hear
me?

SENATOR ORTT: Is the Attorney
Ceneral's report wong? |Is the Enpire
Center's analysis --

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  The Attorney
Ceneral did not -- the Attorney General did
not say that the March 25th nmeno brought this
into the nursing hones.

And the Enpire Center, Bill Hanmond,
| -- 1 don't know Bill Hammond. | have not
had a chance to review his assessnent. |
know he's a journalist now, he's working in a

t hi nk tank.
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But | know ny team And | know how ny
team works. And | know the conm tnent that
my team made to evaluating this report and
| ooking at the data. And so | can speak to
my team And what we found was -- and | will
reiterate it -- that there was 37,000 staff
who ended up having COVID, and they brought
it in, inadvertently, at a tine when we did

not know about asynptomatic spread.

Remenmber, back then the -- we asked
the international -- or the national experts,
we asked Fauci hinself, Dr. Fauci. He said,

you know, asynptonatic spread is not a driver
of the pandenic

So, | mean, they brought it in, they
brought it in inadvertently. And that is how
it spread. Ninety-eight percent of all the
nursi ng homes had COVID in it even before
anyone's even sent back to a nursing hone.
They went fromthe nursing home to the
hospi tal because they had COVID, the vast
majority, and so it was already in the
nursing homes. So that's the first part of

t he i ssue.
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And let's just keep going down that
whole path a little bit on the reasoning
here. So they brought it into -- you have it
in the nursing home. There's a nmeno, there's
a guidance that's put out that says that
nobody should go back to the nursing hones
who are COVID-positive in May -- this is what
you were referring to -- and the order was
not rescinded, there was a -- so | think
that's the wong word. That is not the
correct issue. That was a different guidance
t hat was put out.

But let's just use the issue of My
10t h, which is what you're referring to. So
t here was no one who was com ng back into the
nursi ng homes with COVID positive tests --
that doesn't mean they were contagi ous, but
we'll just stay with that for a second.

There was no one going into the
nursi ng homes who were visitors, because
there was no visitors allowed. And we were
now able to test people twice a week, staff
twice a week in the nursing hones. And yet

t he di sease was still going to the nursing
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homes because it was in the community. Wen
it"'s in the community, it's in the nursing
homes. They tie together.

So this ties back to your first
guestion was July to February. So what was
the difference? What we found was when we
| ooked at the nunbers and the data, once
agai n, when you put all the nunbers in there,
i ncreased spread in the community, increased
cases in the nursing hones.

And if you put New York aside for a
m nute and you just say, Ckay, let's just put
our state --

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Doct or,

Dr. Zucker --

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Yeah. Ch, did |
run out of time?

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Because
unfortunately you all have gone way beyond
tinme.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Ckay, sorry.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: And | suspect we
have 40 nore peopl e who have questions, |

think, so | suspect you will be asked
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variations on M. Ott's question and you can
start with, you know, and after May 10th. So
we'll all remenber up till May 10th and then
after May 10t h.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Ckay.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  And so |' m now
going to hand it over to the Assenbly.

CHAl RA\OVAN VEI NSTEI'N: And | think
there will be continued questions on this
subj ect .

We go to our chair of the Health
Comm ttee, Assenblyman Gottfried. Ten
m nut es, pl ease.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Yes.

Good norni ng, Conmi ssioner.

COWMM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Good nor ni ng.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Good to see
you. A few questions -- not surprisingly,
starting on nursing homes.

We've all -- lots of people have been
di scovering that there are enornous problens
in our nursing homes. COVID may have brought
themto |ight and made t hem worse, but a | ot

of us know those probl ens have been there for
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many, nmany, nmany years.

Considering all the attention on this
i ssue, considering all the problens in our
nursi ng homes that everyone is now aware of,
you know, the CGovernor's budget w pes out
funding for a small organization called the
Long Term Care Conmunity Coalition, which
al ways say is New York's | eading wat chdog and
advocate on behal f of nursing hone residents
and their famlies, although unfortunately to
a large extent they are practically our only
advocat e and wat chdog.

Way in this environment would the
Governor propose to zero out the state's
funding for that progranf

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  As |
mentioned -- thank you for the question. As
| nmentioned in ny opening renmarks, the
Governor has said that the issue of nursing
hone reformis one of the critical factors
and he won't sign a budget unless three areas
are addressed, and one of those is the issue
of making sure we hold bad actors

accountable. Another one is the issue of
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maki ng sure that patient care over profit --

(Overtal k.)

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED: W' ve got very
limted time. Could you answer the question?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: Wl |, the issue
is that we will address these issues of
nursing home reform And there are many
advocat es who work on behal f of nursing
homes, and | have spoken with many of them
regardi ng the budget.

The answer is that if the needs of
maki ng sure nursing honmes are going to be
met -- that is a primary focus of the
Governor's on those three areas, the two |
nmenti oned plus increased transparency. So |

can't speak to one specific group, but | do

know - -

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRIED: 1"l bet
that -- I'lIl bet that if all the advocates
that you' ve talked to -- 1'Il bet not a

single one of themlikes the idea or
expressed any support to you for zeroing out
the Long Term Care Conmunity Coalition.

But let's nove on. | was interested




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

158

in what you said about wanting to prioritize
care over profit, and | certainly agree with
that. Wat would be your reaction -- and if
you can't say so right now, naybe think about
it and send nme an email in a couple of
days -- to capping the nunber of for-profit
nursi ng homes in New York, granting no new
licenses for for-profit nursing homes, and no
increase in the nunber of beds for our
existing for-profit nursing hones? They've
gone from bei ng about one-third of the nunber
of beds to now bei ng about two-thirds.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: Wl |,
Assenbl yman, | hear you and | think that we
need to address that. |'m happy to send you
an emai | about it.

But I do want to say that -- and |
have -- long before this pandem c, | have
wor ked extrenmely hard at the issue of dealing
with the geriatric population, and nursing
homes obvi ously usually are those who are
primarily -- the residents are of that age.
And this was one of the issues to address,

the for-profit versus the not-for-profit
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nursi ng hormes.

So I'd be happy to have that
conversation and discuss it further with you,
to make sure that the care is provided to al
t hose residents. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Ckay. 1'd
like to talk about the recently issued
results of your -- of the departnent's
request for -- the RFP for fiscal
intermediaries in the consuner-directed
program And | would just suggest to people,
if you're not famliar with Big Julie's Dice,
after 1'm done speaki ng you can Googl e that.

Because a | ot of |ong-experienced,
extraordinarily highly regarded fisca
i nternedi ari es have been just shut out of the
programas a result of this RFP process.
They' ve been given no explanation as to in
what way they were deficient, they've just
been told, Oh, you didn't score high enough,
and No, we can't tell you or we won't tell
you in what way you were deficient.

You know, the last tinme | think the

departnment did something like this, it was
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with the nmedical nmarijuana program where you
gave out five |licenses and Applicants 6

t hrough 10 conpl ai ned that no one woul d tel
them why they didn't get a license and they
sued. And rather than respond to the

| awsuit, the departnment said, Ch, okay, we'll
give licenses to Nos. 6 through 10.

What can we do about getting sone
justice here, finding out was there a basis
for justifying denying fiscal internmediary
Iicenses to sone of these really very
i nportant, |ongstanding, high-quality
prograns?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  So,
Dr. Zucker, this is Donna. |'m happy to
answer that question.

Hel | o, Assenbl ynman Gottfried. Thank
you for that question.

So as you know, in February the
departnment, as a result of a conpetitive
process, selected 68 contractors. And
foll owing a very successful nodel that we
used, for exanple, with our navigators --

whi ch | think, Assenblyman, you're very
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famliar with and supportive of -- we gave
organi zations the option to have
col | aborating partners.

And so many of these 68 organizations
came in with community organi zations, | ocal
organi zati ons that had experience as well.
And they partnered with them [It's efficient
because you don't have every organi zation
contracting with soneone to do payroll, but
at the same tine you have a | ocal presence of
organi zati ons with experience.

W're commtted to having an open
process. For those weren't awarded, we've
extended debriefing rights in the initial
letters. Qur first step -- and perhaps we
need to nmake this nore clear that there's a
nunber of steps here that we don't want to be
barriers, it's just, quite honestly, because
of the volume of applications.

So we first told nonsuccessful
of ferers what their score was, how they
ranked. Many have conme back to us, asked for
a nore detailed debriefing where we will talk

to them probably virtually or, if they
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prefer, perhaps in witing with a detail of
where their offer was either particularly
strong or not as strong, and the weaknesses
in their proposal. And that's consistent
with what we do in conpetitive procurenents
under the State Finance Law.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  So you' ||
di scl ose all that information?

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: W wil |
di scl ose where an offerer's proposal scored
well and where it -- where we believed there
wer e weaknesses in the proposal. That is our
intent. O course, this process has actually
just started and there's --

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Yeah, okay.
Can you -- can you send that information to
me?

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR FRESCATORE: Yes, we
will do that. W will send you a description
of the process that will be followed, as well
as any, you know, docunents.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED: No. No, |
want the dat a.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATCORE: Wl I, |
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will go back and talk to fol ks about the
detail ed data. | can't make that conm tnent
right now, it is a conpetitive process. But
| will certainly ask those questions of our
experts.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Ckay.

Anot her question, the 1 percent
across-the-board Medicaid cut. You know,
it's kind of like the -- | forget the French
author who said "The lawin its infinite
maj esty prohibits the rich and poor alike
from sl eepi ng under the bridge." If you cut
1 percent of Munt Sinai's Medicaid allotnent
and 1 percent of, say, Elnhurst's Medicaid
allotnment, that m ght sound fair to sonebody
who doesn't know anyt hi ng about our
hospitals, but it obviously is not.

What is the justification for that
kind of basis of cut? And how w |l that cut
af fect safety net providers?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  So
the -- as you know, in the past there have
been across-the-board cuts of providers --

with some exclusions, |ike the behavi oral
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heal th providers licensed under Article 31 or
provi ders licensed under Article 32, which we
would follow as well -- that are a standard
percentage. So that has been done in the
past .

You know, those are difficult choices
and decisions made in the context of the
state's revenue picture.

| woul d point out, though, at the sane
time that there are 1 percent
across-the-board cuts, there's also a
substantial investnent in the fiscal year '22
budget, over $900 mllion for financially
di stressed hospitals through a series of
prograns that | know you're famliar with
t hat we know as VAP and VAPAP and VBP QP
that remain funded in the '22 budget.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  And many t hat
are wi ped out in the budget.

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: Wel |, |
think the -- the only -- I think there's one
action in the closeout of the fiscal year '21
budget that is a reduction in the VAPAP

programas we know it for funding that is not
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needed, based on the regul ar neetings and
di scussions that nmy counterparts at the
department have with financially distressed
hospi tal s.

O her than that, | believe all the
funding is in place for those prograns --
again, over $900 million in fiscal year '22.

CHAl RA\OVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Thank - -

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  And
elimnating the Indigent Care Pool for --

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  -- publics.

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Yeah,
t he I ndi gent Care Pool proposal in the
Executive Budget, as you know, doesn't --
still would permt the handful of hospitals
that receive the public distribution to fund
t he nonfederal share with |ocal noney. So
t hose DSH dollars would still be avail abl e,
but it would be federal and | ocal funding.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you.
W'l nove on to the Senate.

| just remind the director and the

commi ssioner just that if there are
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followups in witing sent to a particul ar
guestioner, if they could also be sent to
Senat or Krueger and nyself so that we can
distribute to all of the nenbers on the call.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:
Certainly.

CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEIN: Now to the
Senat e.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: |'m afraid we're
going to find ourselves going over on every
one. Although | have to say the questions
that are being asked are taking ne off the
i st because they're covering ny questions.

But let's now go to our Health ranker,
Senator Gallivan, five m nutes.

Are you there, Senator Gllivan?

SENATOR GALLI VAN.  Thank you,

Madam Chair. And good -- am | unnuted now?

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: You are. You're
having a little rush. |If you take your
pi cture off, your voice m ght sound better.

SENATOR GALLIVAN. Al right, I'lIl try
to do that.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: And let's start
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his five again. Good.

SENATCOR GALLI VAN:  You're able to hear
me?

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Yes.

SENATOR GALLI VAN. Ckay. Thank you,
Madam Chair, and | apol ogi ze for the
technical difficulties in the coverage on ny
end. | know it's been said before, | can't
hel p but note the concern about ensuring that
we have broadband coverage everywhere,
i ncludi ng many of the rural areas

partici pating here today.

Because of tine, | will try to be very
efficient with nmy questions. [|'d be remss
if I didn't say, Comm ssioner, | share the

concern of many of ny col |l eagues and many of
the citizens of the state when it cones to
the public trust and the concern about the
proper or inproper reporting of nursing hone
deat hs, however that cane about. Again, as
not ed before -- not by you, but troubling
nonet hel ess -- that we in the Legislature
multiple tinmes had --

(Audi o dropped.)




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

168

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: W | ost you.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: W | ost you,
yeah.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: W' ve | ost you,
Senator Gallivan. Hym [I'msorry, we're
going to let it go on to the Assenbly.

But when you are back and think you
are back, we will put you right back on.

Assenbl y.

CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEI'N:  Yes, so we go
to Assenbl yman Cahill .

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Thank you,
Chairs. And thank you, Dr. Zucker.

CHAI RAMOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Excuse ne.
He's a chair in ternms of the clock, please.
Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Thank you so
much. Believe it or not, I'll try not to use
that time, Madam Chair.

Dr. Zucker, | have a couple of
guestions for you just generally about your
testinmony. And just reflecting on our |ast
experience together |ast August and the

answers you gave and the followup to that




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

169

that, quite honestly -- we got a very
extensi ve response a few weeks ago, but we
were waiting for a long tine.

So pl ease forgive ne for this, and
accept it in the spirit in which the question
is being asked. To what specific level is
your testinony today directed by, prepared
by, influenced by, limted or otherw se
reflecting direction fromthe Ofice of the
Governor, as opposed to that which you were
prepared to give us here today on your own?

COM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  This is all ny
testimony and prepared by ne.

There's a little bit of an echo --

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: | apol ogi ze for
that. W have a |ot of technical issues
t oday.

So ny next question is, there was a
lag of tine between our |ast round of
guestions to you in our August hearing and
your response. But were you directed by the
O fice of the Governor not to prepare that
response, or was that a decision that you

al so nade in your own office?
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COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: Wl |, as the
Governor said | ast week, right, he said that
there was a void that was created, right, and
that the information should have been --
shoul d have been rel eased sooner. And he
regrets that, and | share that feeling.

And so at this point, you know, | feel
t hat we should be able to nove forward and
continue the conversation forward on that. |
mean, at that point in tinme when you asked ne
in the autumm what was happening, | can tel
you that what was happeni ng from our
perspective and ny perspective was that there
was a pandem c¢ which we continue to fight
today, and there were many issues that were
on ny desk to nove forward, including the
i ssues of the school openings and, you
know -- and we know the list. School
openi ngs, the issues of getting a vaccine
plan in place, the increased testing on the
hol i days. And also the other issue was the
fact that our nunmbers were starting to tick
back up in the autum, and | was a little

concerned about that because of what they
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al ways say, there's a second wave. And we
have seen increasing cases as well.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Doctor, the
nature of mnmy question is because of ny
experience with you personally, ny experience
with your office -- both with you and your
predecessors -- is that of state agencies,
t he Departnent of Health has often been one
of the nore responsive agencies to inquiries
by the State Legislature. And | found it
unusual that we had to wait as long as we did
to get answers to what were essentially basic
and oftentinmes statistical questions. But I
t hank you for your response.

| also -- | know you're going to be
facing a lot of grilling today. | want to
t hank you for being the head doctor in
New York State. This is a nmonunental task.
| would not wish it on my worst eneny. And I
know you didn't sign up for this when you
agreed to be health comm ssioner, but in the
back of your mnd you knew you m ght have to
deal with it. And whether we want to

second- guess you or not, | want to thank you
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for your service in that regard.

| f you don't mnd -- go ahead.
COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: | appreci ate
t hose words very nuch, | really do. Thank
you.
ASSEMBLYMAN CAHILL: I'd like to pivot

to a matter that is of equal concern to ne.
| know it sounds difficult to have sonething
of equal concern to COVID, but this is a
crisis in New York State, and that is the
crisis of mental health. The crisis of
addiction, the crisis of overdose, the crisis
of the loss of the infrastructure of a nental
health service systemin this state, and in
particular in the conmunities | represent
here in the U ster County area.

| "' m maki ng that point because Dutchess
County isn't as bad as U ster County. W got
a double hit in the last 10 years when the
State of New York and Rockland Psych pull ed
out of our county, and then our previous
county executive, now a state adm ni strator
in a different agency, made a decision to

di smantl e our |ocal nmental health system and
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contract it out to an adjoining county.

Then we had another blow -- and you're
aware of this, Dr. Zucker -- when the
Behavi oral Health Unit of Benedictine
Hospital, now Health Alliance of the
Hudson Val |l ey, was shut down in part by your
direction and your request and the request to
the State of New York to address the
potential for a COVID overflow. That
overfl ow never occurred. Those services have
been renoved fromthis county. People have
been placed in extrenely difficult positions
with regard to their nmental health and
stability. This pivotal, inportant part of
our community -- and I"'msure it reflects
conmuni ties across the State of New York --
i S gone.

The Health Alliance of the
Hudson Val | ey and Westchester Medical Center,
t heir managi ng partner, have indicated: Oh,
no, the services are avail abl e el sewhere.
But | can assure you, Doctor, those services
are not the sane. They are not of the sane

quality, they do not neet the sane needs.
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You were very kind in your response,
your very detail ed response. You dedi cated
about a page and a half to this question, and
| appreciate that. |In there you discussed
the Certificate of Need process. And ny
guestion to you is when, in the mddle of
this pandenmi c energency, wll the Departnent
of Health once again enforce existing
Certificates of Need?

And |'m not tal king now about changi ng
t hat process, but addressing the fact that
there is an entity in our conmunity, and
probably conmunities across the state, that
are not adhering to their Certificate of
Need, not adhering to their licensure, and it
appears to nme that there is no enforcenent.

So with that, Doctor, if you can
reflect on that for a few mnutes. And naybe
if we have a couple of mnutes I'll raise a
coupl e of other issues.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Sure. These are
excel l ent points of concern to me. Let ne
start with the Certificate of Need and then

"1l go back to the issues of the nenta




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

175

heal th i ssues, because they tie together.

One of the biggest challenges of this
pandemic is the ability to not only tackle
all the issues of the pandem c but the vast
array of things that the departnment does.
And part of that is the issue of Certificate
of Need. And | agree with you, it's not so
much about new changi ng owner shi ps or
anyt hing of that nature, but just the overall
certificate, we need to nake sure that we're
neeting that.

W are trying to get back into the
groove of nmaking sure that some of those
things that we were doing can be expedited.
The truth is that many -- the vast majority
of the department has been -- their energies
have been directed towards this, and many
people in the departnent have actually been
doi ng double, triple jobs just in order to
make sure that we nove forward on this
pandem c, working literally day and ni ght
every single day of the week. And we can --
that's a | onger conversation

However, | do agree with you about the
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i ssues of mental health, and we need to
tackle this. Long before the pandem c,
Conmi ssioner Sullivan and | had this
conversation about the issues of nental
heal t h.

And when | first cane into this role
sonmeone said to ne, You should pick two
things that are really inportant -- this was
seven years ago -- that you want to focus on.
You can't focus on everything. And the two
that | actually picked was -- one was the
agi ng popul ation in New York, and the other
one was the issue of mental health. Because
| believe those are two of the biggest
chal | enges.

And t he reason peopl e haven't tackled
them the way we should tackle themis because
they are so conplex, so we wanted to nove
forward on that. And now we sit here with a
pandem ¢ where these issues are paranount.
And not only are they paranount in separate
buckets, but they al so overl ap.

| sit there and | think about all the

i ndi viduals who are lonely, elderly, |onely,
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by thenselves and all the nmental health

i ssues at that age, and the kids who are out
of school and the inpact of those kids being
home because of the pandemic. And just

our -- us as a social fabric has been
conprom sed, because we are a society that
wor ks toget her, and when you isol ate peopl e
it becones very difficult.

So we are tackling that. | wll
continue to work with the Ofice of
Mental Health on that issue.

And on the issue of the Certificate of
Need, we have the Public Health and Health
Pl anni ng Council, which goes through the
process of Certificates of Need. And I
usually |1 ook at each one of those, and | felt
Iike ny energies need to directed
el sewhere -- but we will nove forward on
t hat .

Wth regards to the overall situation
wi th maki ng sure hospital care can be there,
we do have the surge-and-flex system which
t he Governor put into place to help for care.

But this is the conplexities of dealing with
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the pandemic. But | assure you |l wote it
down, | assure you | will continue to push
forward on this.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL:  Thanks, Doct or.

| want to catch up, with nmy | ast
m nute here, about two things. And let's --
surprising, surprising, | want to tal k about
sonmething in the budget. The federal
government has provi ded sonme enhanced -- you
don't have to worry about notes. The federal
gover nment has provi ded sonme enhanced
rei nbursenent for behavioral health and
nmental health services that results in a
significant increase in the Medicaid and
possi bly the Medi care paynents for those
servi ces.

WI1l you be recommendi ng that after
the federal noney goes away that the State of
New York pick up that enhanced funding | eve
so that we can begin, once again, to rebuild
mental health services?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Donna, do you
want to touch that?

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: | do need --
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MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: Hi
Assenbl yman Cahill. | hope you can hear ne.

You know, |'d be happy to get back to
you on that question at this point, rather
than to speculate on that. So |I'm happy to
talk directly to your office or to talk
directly to your staff about that and your
t hought s and concerns.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: | appreciate
that. Thank you very mnuch

And panelists, let ne just close by
saying this, that what we have w t nessed over
t he past several weeks, particularly between
t he Executive and the |egislative branch of
government unfortunately is nmerely an exanpl e
of what the attitude is of npbst executive
branch fellows -- people toward the
Legi sl ature.

And | hope that today we can begin to
signal a change in that. And once again, on
behal f of the many peopl e who have recovered,
t hank you for your service on behalf of the
many people who are still being cared for in

New York State. | very nuch appreciate it,
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and | do hope that you take the questions and
comments of ny colleagues in the spirit that
they are intended, for the best of all people
in New York.

Thank you very much

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Thank you.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.

Back to the Senate now.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Do we have Senator Gallivan back?
Let's see.

SENATOR GALLIVAN. | am here. Are you
able to hear nme okay?

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Yes, you seem
much clearer. So please just --

(Overtal k.)

SENATOR GALLIVAN.  And | will -- 1
will take your advice and refrain fromny
photo -- or I'll |eave ny photo up, but
there's a real voice behind that.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER:  Yes, there is.

SENATOR GALLI VAN:  Yes. So thanks
for -- thanks for putting up with ny

technical difficulties. M apol ogies,
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Comm ssioner and Director. Thank you for
bei ng here.

| know that many of ny col | eagues are
going to discuss the nursing home situation
in great detail. |1'd be remiss if | didn't
say that | too share the concern about the
way that nursing honme deaths were reported or
not reported, shall | say, despite the many
guestions of the public and many questions of
the Legislature since |ast year.

| do recogni ze, though, that all of
that was -- was not you, but | share the
concern. And | would certainly hope as we
nove forward that the executive branch can
wor k and commruni cate much better than they
have through this pandem c on the
pandem c-rel ated i ssues with the Legi sl ature.

Havi ng said that, though, | want to
point in the Governor's budget where the
Governor has proposed a nunber of changes to
nursi ng homes. And we know t he
adm ni strati on has been pointing their
fingers, to a certain extent, at nursing

homes and their staff for the lives | ost and
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ot her problens. Included in these proposals
are increased penalties and hei ght ened
enf orcement mechani sns.

The concern that | would have and the
guestion that | have is given the state of
nursi ng homes now, is the Departnent of
Heal t h equi pped to provide proper oversight
of nursing homes?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So that is a
great question. | actually go back to the
i ssue of our inspections and our on-site
surveys during the pandem c.

So we had over 2400 nursing hone
on-site surveys, and we did over a thousand
enforcenents and issued about $1.3 mllion in
fines.

| can tell you fromny experience
during this pandem c of the conversations
that 1've had with nursing homne
adm nistrators and with nmy team and the
i Mmedi ate visits that our team did whenever
there was a question that occurred regarding
a nursing hone and the ability to deliver

care.
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Qobvi ously, as the Governor's budget

has put forth -- and it nentions about these
different areas that we need to address -- we
will end up revving up and havi ng nore

i ndi vi dual s working on these areas. But we
have been able to address the concerns that
have been rai sed over the course of the past
year.

But |ike any other chall enge when you
have a pandem c or anything else, it
uncovered all of the things that need to
improve. And | believe that this will show
that there are things that we need to inprove
both internally and externally to give better
care to those who are residents of nursing
homes or any other adult-care facilities.

SENATOR GALLI VAN:  So the financi al
penalties --

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  And t he noney - -
yeah, sorry, go ahead.

SENATCOR GALLI VAN:  The fi nanci al
penalties can be -- are very steep. And the
nur si ng homes, given the chall enges they face

and the rate cuts over the years, are really
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financially chall enged.

' mconcerned that -- |I'm concerned
that this will financially devastate sone of
t hese nursing homes, especially for sone
m nor violations. And the concernis --

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Ri ght .

SENATOR GALLI VAN  -- under all these
changes, how can we be assured that this is
actually going to inprove the quality of care
for our seniors?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: So that's a
great question. And the issue here is you
don't want to have a violation of sonething
which is mnor end up conprom sing the
nursing home facility and what we're doing to
hel p the residents there.

But if you have soneone who's a bad
actor who really does not operate a nursing
home in the appropriate way, then we need to
change it. |It's in the best interests of the
nursing home residents, it's in the best
interests of healthcare in general and our
society in general.

So that's what we need to npve
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towards. And the Governor has mentioned that
t here should be, you know, 70 percent for
patient-facing services and 40 percent for
staffing -- | nean, all the nunbers are out
there in his budget proposal. But we wll
address this, and we will tackle it and we
will make sure that we don't put a situation
in place that will only create a problemfor
t hose who are residents or for us as a
society to be sure that those who need this
care will get it. So I'm-- 1'm{inaudi bl e}
for it.

SENATOR GALLIVAN. If | may -- if |
may, Conmi ssioner, thank you.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Yeah, sure.

SENATOR GALLIVAN: | look forward to
di scussi ng many, many nore details, because
of the tine.

To switch gears very quickly, | still
think it is pandem c-related. W have a
pandem ¢ now that attacks the body's
respiratory system How on earth can we be
tal ki ng about | egally snoking nmarijuana while

we've got this pandem c here? And there's no
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sci ence out there that says that snoking
marijuana is okay for a person's respiratory
system How can we ensure the safety of the
public?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So | -- there
are studies out there that we have nmentioned
when we were tal king about the issue of
regul ated marijuana, about not having this
given to those who are young and to avoid the
use of marijuana for those who are youth.

The issue also -- and | will turn nore
towards the nedical side of this, because we
have run and I've run the Medical Marijuana
Program whi ch has hel ped, you know, tens of
t housands of people in the state, and |'ve
received letters fromthose who actually have
been able to function and maintain their jobs
and work and have stores because of the
marijuana -- the Medical Marijuana Program
We | ooked at it, so | ama strong supporter
of the Medical Marijuana Program

And | understand the issues of the
respiratory systemand to nmake sure that

inhaling -- inhaling substances are not
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detrinental to them

So -- but | do turn that back towards
the team who are the Ofice of Cannabis
Managenent, which are |ooking at a | ot of
those issues. And | amsure they will sit
and speak to the nedical experts as well
about this.

SENATOR GALLI VAN.  Thank you,
Comm ssioner. My tine is up, but thank you.

CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEIN: W& go to, in
t he Assenbly, Assenblyman Ra now for five
m nutes, as ranker.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you, Chair.

Comm ssi oner, thank you for being
here.

| just want to start quickly by saying
| hope that any answers that are outstanding
after this hearing that need to be provided
are done so in a far nore tinely manner than
was done after |ast August's hearing,
particularly with regard to nursing hones.
If we are to be asked to consider nursing
home reforms in this budget, we need all the

i nfornmati on.
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So | do want to go back, though, to
some of your conversation with Leader Ott.
And | know you said you don't know
M. Hammond fromthe Enpire Center, but
woul d assunme you're famliar with himor
famliar with his work, are you not?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Actual ly, | wll
tell you that | glanced at the paper he put
out because it was -- and | responded to
that, and it was during the preparation for
t hi s budget hearing.

| know that he was a journalist and
now he's working in a think tank. And so
that's the extent of what | can say about
Bi Il Hanmond.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA: Wl |, and obviously
we all know he was the person who nmade the
FO L request that ultimtely caused the data
to be rel eased pursuant to a court order a
coupl e of weeks ago.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: Wl |, the data,
as | said, was going to be provided before
t he hearing, and the nunbers are out.

ASSEVMBLYMAN RA: But it was, | nean,
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provi ded the day that -- by the end of the
day it had to be, pursuant to a court order.
| think it's inmportant that we make that

cl ear.

So just going back to -- you know,
we' re obviously going to agree to di sagree on
some of the pieces of the March 25th order.
But | think when we have this conversation
one of the things that | think gets lost in
translation is really what | think the
guestion is. You know, there's -- the report
you have about 98 percent of the nursing
homes having COVID prior to the order. But
the question really, to ne, is whether the
order made the situation worse by
rei ntroduci ng these patients and whet her the
piece of it that prohibited the nursing hones
fromtesting these patients before they cane
in made the matter worse.

M. Hammond's report, which you said
you glanced at, but | would encourage you to
| ook at nore in depth, seens to show a fairly
solid evidence that there was statistically

significant correlation between the order and
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an increase in nortality within nursing
homes. And | have always found his work,
this one included, to be based on data and
wel | -cited.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Well, | believe
that if he had | ooked at what we showed in
July, on the July 6th presentation that | did
of the fact that the nursing honme deaths were
goi ng down when t he adm ssions were goi ng up
which -- and we | ook at the epidem ol ogy of
it, of the period of time, of the incubation
period, he would realize that that is not the
case.

You know, we keep going back to this
i ssue about the nursing home March 25th
docunment. And it is -- honestly, it's very
troubl i ng because, you know, as a scientist,
as sonebody who | ooks at things, people
forget about the actual way this disease ends
up spreadi ng and what happens and how | ong
one i s contagi ous and what the risk they are
putting to others.

And the fact of the matter is that --

and | want to be respectful of your tine, but
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the fact of the matter is that there is a
wi ndow of time before anyone actually show ng
synpt oms when you're already contagi ous, and
that is for 48 hours.

Then you have a wi ndow of tine -- and
t hi nk about the nursing hone residents, and
|'ve mentioned this before. When soneone is
elderly and they end up in -- get sick and
they're in the nursing home, you don't -- the
first day when they wake up and are not
feeling well, you don't take that 93-year-old
out in the snow and say, |I'mgoing to rush
himto the hospital. A couple of days go by.

So now you're four days into it.
They're in the hospital for -- they don't get
into the hospital one day and then they go
out the next day. W know fromthe report,
fromthe data we showed, and | stand by this
report -- | stood by it in July, | stand by
it now-- that we know that it's in the
comunity, that it is going to end up in the
facility. And we know what ended up
happeni ng, and that was what we had in the

report.
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| nmentioned in ny opening renmarks this

was tragic, but it is true. And just the

facts are -- I"'msorry?

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  I'mgoing to run out
of time. | do want to quickly -- just to the
budget presentation. |If you can el aborate on

ei ther now or provide further information,
there's this proposal for the independent
quality nmonitors. And if you can provide
further information as to what the departnent
saw Wi t hin nursing hones during this pandem c
that, you know, basically that proposal spurs
from |'d appreciate it.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  That goes back
to the on-site surveys and the enforcenents.
But we'll get that to you

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

| believe we have Senator My next.

SENATOR MAY: Geat. Thank you so
much.

And hi, Conmi ssioner.

SENATOR RIVERA: |I'msorry, | would

poi nt out that Senator May is a chair. She
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only got three m nutes.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER: She's not a chair
of today's hearing.

SENATOR RI VERA: Oh, apol ogi es.

CHAl RWOVMAN KRUEGER: She is a chair.
She's an excellent chair of the Aging
Comm ttee, and she got her 10 mi nutes at the
Agi ng Hearing. Sorry, Senator Rivera.

SENATOR MAY: Al right, | have ny
t hree m nutes now.

So, Commi ssioner, | share ny
col | eagues' concerns about obviously the
reporting of nursing home deaths. But just
junpi ng of f of your conments about how the
virus was brought into nursing facilities by
the staff, we heard in our hearing the sane
staffers, working nultiple jobs to nmake ends
nmeet -- many of themlive near the poverty
| evel and haven't been able to protect
t hensel ves fromthe virus. Sone nursing
homes are understaffed, were terribly
understaffed in the spring and so they didn't
have tine to change their PPE properly.

And so a lot of this conmes down to how
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we pay for healthcare in this state. And |'m
j ust wondering what in your budget, because |
can't find it, actually raises wages for our
heal t hcare workers so they don't have to
nmoonl i ght and so we can attract nore people
into this field.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: Wl |, | hear you
on that, and | think that is a critical point
just in general, how do you get nore people
inthe field when there is a way for themto
work in a different area and with a simlar
anount of a salary, which is not as hard as
wor ki ng for those -- in a nursing honme for
residents who require a |l ot of attention.

But the issue of staffing is part of
t he overall goal when the Governor nentions
patient care over profit. And that noney
woul d have gone to profit will go to patient
care. And part of patient care is providing
the appropriate staffing, and part of that is
figuring out how to devel op a system where a
person doesn't end up having to hold down
three jobs in an effort to make ends neet.

And whet her that involves also increasing the
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salary for those who work in these facilities
so that you can get nore people there and

al so have those who are there fee

conpensat ed appropriately. So this is al

part of the whole process of --

SENATOR MAY: Let ne junp in and say
in the budget HVA Part E cuts $22.5 mllion
from worker recruitnment and retention
fundi ng, including personal care, honme health
aides -- who are critical to keeping people
out of nursing homes if they don't want to be
in nursing homes -- and other long-termcare
wor kers.

And |' m wonderi ng how this conceivably
hel ps keep ol der New Yorkers heal thy and
saf e.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So let nme --
yes.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  So
Dr. Zucker, |I'm--

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Donna.

MEDI CAlI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: Hel | o,
Senator. Let ne see if | can address your

guestion. Thank you.
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The worker recruitment and retention
funding is in fact elimnated in the
Executive Budget or reduced in the Executive
Budget. | think it's inportant to keep in
m nd that those funding -- those progranms go
back, you know, several years ago now. |
think it's inportant to keep in mnd that in
the interimthe investnent from Medicaid in
m ni mum wage has been -- it's projected in
'22 to be $3.9 billion.

So | think there's a nunber of noving
factors here yet appreciate, you know,
heari ng your concern. And as Dr. Zucker
al ready said, that the Executive proposal
around requiring a certain percentage of
nursi ng home revenues to be directed to
paying staff, for staff costs, is an
i nportant factor here as well.

SENATOR MAY: Ckay. |'mout of tine,

but 1'Il follow up with some other questions.

Thank you.
CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
Assenbl y.
CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: W go to
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Assenbl yman Schmitt for three m nutes
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHM TT: Thank you.
Comm ssi oner, we need to get our Kkids

back to school. WII| you be issuing updated

gui dance so that the six-foot rule can be
nodi fied for our |ocal school districts who
are having difficulty with that?

COWMWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: Right. W are
working -- | hear you, and we are working on
that to nake sure that we can get all our
children back into the cl assroons.

And regarding the six feet, one of the
federal guidelines was the CDC guidelines; |
know t here's sone di scussi on about
three feet, if there are barriers. And we
are working on that. And the teamis working
on that actually this past week, but |'ve
been di stracted by the budget hearings, but |
prom se you we will get that done.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHM TT: What's the
tinmeline that you woul d expect us to have an
answer ?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: Wl |, hopeful ly

we'll -- let's -- | nean, schools -- you
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know, we want to get these children back into
schools, so | hope we can get this done.
Today's Thursday; let's hope we can figure
out something next week. | can't conmt to a
day, | hate to do that, but | want to focus
on that within the com ng week

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHM TT: Okay. So wthin
a week, then, our -- it will be public for a
school district to be able to --

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: | don't -- |
hate putting a date down because, you know,
you never know, when you start working these
t hi ngs through and then you find out, well,
CDC says this, but there's this other issue
that you hadn't consi der ed.

But it is a high priority on ny
agenda. So maybe after the hearing, you
know, | can regroup with you and then find
out what's the latest fromny team and then
get back to you on a specific date. Does
t hat wor k?

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHM TT: | appreciate you
focusing on it. And certainly the quicker we

can get our students back safely, the better.
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COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: | absol utely

agree. | absolutely agree.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHM TT: M next question

is on vaccine distribution equity. And the
county executives | represent in Orange
County and Rockl and County, the
Hudson Val | ey, have had concerns with their
role that they usually would play but how
t hat' s changed.
In particular, Orange County and sone
Hudson Val |l ey counties have not had a fair
and equitabl e distribution when conpared to
ot her counties in the statew de vaccine
nunber. \Wether you count it by popul ation,
infection rate, it doesn't seemto add up.
Can you expl ain how t hose deci si ons
are made and how we can either get nore
di stribution or how we can get a state
facility into Orange County or the
Hudson Val l ey where there is not a close one

ri ght now?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: Sur e. Sur e. So

et me go through sort of the big picture and

then 1'Il get alittle nore granular on this.
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So the big picture here is that it al
comes down to the supply. Right? So the
federal government tells us how nuch we get,
and then we get it out there. And we've
all ocated now 4.5 mllion. W probably, by
the end of today or so, will be at 4 mllion
t hat have been adm ni stered, 89 percent of
first doses have been adm nistered so far.

So that's the overarching picture.

Then we have our teanms. W have a | ot
of different places where they can get
vacci nes. W have our state-run sites that
are out there.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHM TT: Can we get one
in Orange County or closer?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: | will check and
see where there are, and we'll see -- we keep
i ncreasi ng those sites in nunbers.

But you've got to renenber, if there's
no supply, then what do you do? Now, |
believe that what's going to happen with the
J&) -- well, today's Thursday. Tonorrow, on
Friday, is the EUA, the neeting within the

FDA about the Johnson & Johnson vacci ne.
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Once that gets approved, now you have anot her
influx into the pipeline of vaccine, and that
will nove this forward and then there's nore
supply and there's nore delivery to places,
and | will address the issues of your
constituency as well.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHM TT: Thank you,
Conmi ssi oner .

CHAl RA\OVAN VEI NSTEIN: W go to the
Senat e.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much. Qur next Senator is Brad Hoyl man.

SENATOR HOYLMAN:  Thank you,
Madam Chair. Thank you, Comm ssioner.

| wanted to ask you about the B.1l.526
variant that, as reported this nmorning, is
circulating widely throughout the city,
including nmy district in Lower Manhattan --
and specifically what steps we're taking.
Are you testing for it? This was a report
t hat came from Cal tech

And then finally | wanted to make a
qgui ck pitch for hotel workers -- who cone in

contact with travelers, of course, but unlike
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flight attendants and airline workers and
other frontline staff such as grocery store
wor kers, are not eligible for the vaccine.
Are you | ooking at reexam ning that?

And then finally | would ask,

Comm ssioner, in Manhattan |I'mworking with
your office on trying to get a Manhattan-only
site. W desperately need one. O her

bor oughs have them Javits is a wonderful
facility. | knowit's partly about supply,
but it's also about getting a site online
that is dedicated to Manhattan residents so
when Johnson & Johnson and ot her vaccines are
avai |l abl e, we can be up and runni ng quickly.

Thank you. If you can answer the
guesti on.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Sure, three
parts. |I'mgoing to go to nunber two first,
because we are | ooking at the hotel workers,
and | can get you nore information on that
offline to find out where we are on that.

Regardi ng part three, the
Manhattan-only site, | assume you're

referring back to the fact that we have a
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Bronx site and what el se we can do. And
Javits does have the ability to get nore
peopl e through if we had nore supply.

| was down in Javits several tines
now, and it is amazing how fast and how nuch
you can nove the system and how many peopl e
you can nove through that system So if we
had nore supply, we could double, triple,
guadrupl e the nunber of people, if not nore,
who can go through the systemthere.

SENATOR HOYLMAN: | think you know
that Manhattan residents are conpeting with
non- New York City residents for vaccine slots
there, and that's a problemfor a |ot of us
who are trying to manage seniors and others
who are having technol ogy issues trying to
get an appoi nt nent .

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: Right. So |et
me | ook at that.

SENATOR HOYLMAN:  Thank you.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  But | woul d
hope, like | said, if we could get that site
nore supplies, we could get nore through and

the conpetition won't be as nuch of a




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

204

concern.

Back to your B.1.526 variant. So that
one actually has a nutation in the S477N
spot, and that is the area which identifies
how easily the virus can get into a cell.
That's the sane chal l enge that we have seen
with the South African variant and the
Brazilian variant.

So | heard about this as | was getting
ready for this hearing, and obviously we'll
ook intoit. And that came through the
G SAID data system which is an international
system | ooki ng at variants that are out
t here.

Now, we at Wadsworth are tracki ng and
nmoni toring the genone of sanples that cone
in, so we have now | ooked at, | nean, 6,000,
7,000 sanpl es over the course of the
pandem c, and thousands, maybe 4,000 or so,
since | ate Decenber when | asked themto rev
up the anmount of testing.

So we are |looking, we -- that's how
we've identified the U K variant as a -- two

South African variants, one that we
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identified, one that was identified in
Connecticut but was in New York, and al so
this other variant. So | will get back to
you. But we -- the state is on top of this
issue to nake sure if we see anything that
changes, we're always concerned about it.

And this goes back to the issue of
just vaccines in general. The nore people
that are vaccinated -- this is why | push and
| make nmy pitch for nmore supply fromthe
federal government. The nore you have people
vacci nated, the nore likely we will get to
enough immunity and the likelihood of
devel oping a mutation that will then take
hold in the society will drop.

So there's two reasons for increased
vacci nations, and | push hard and | push for
everyone to get vaccinated. But the main
thing is to get the supply, which goes back
to the first issue | raised. Thanks.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Back to the Assenbly.

Assenbly? CQops, let's see. | can see

t he next person on the Assenbly side --
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CHAl RAMOVAN VEI NSTEI'N:  Yes, |'msorry.

Assenbl yman Ed Braunstein

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Take yoursel f of f
nmute, Ed.

ASSEMBLYMAN BRAUNSTEI N:  Sorry about
that. Thank you. Thank you, Conm ssioner.

First of all, back in August | had
asked that when we finally received the
updat ed nursing hone data that you anend the
July report. And | haven't had a chance to
|l ook at it, but I'm happy to hear that you
did anend the report. And I'minterested in
| ooking at it and seeing if the concl usions
of the report hold true.

One of the things | wanted to ask you
about was | recently had a conversation with
a CEO of a pediatric nursing home, and they
told me that of their staff only 50 percent
of eligible staff have opted to get the
vacci ne. And that nunber was sonewhat
concerning to ne. And | just want to know if
t hose nunbers are typical across the {Zoom
glitch} -- if they're concerning to you and

if it suggests a broader problemof trust in
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t he vacci ne anongst the public that could
cause us potential problens getting to herd
i mmunity.

COWMM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So t hank you for
t hat questi on.

First, | actually do renmenber when you
asked nme that, and | actually made a note to
actually reach out to you after we anended
it, we got tied up. But | do renenber.

So it has been anended and it shows
you the same results that we found before.

So as | say, | stand by the report from July.
| stood by it then, | stand by it now.

Regardi ng the issue you raised, this
is inmportant. Because the healthcare
comunity, we push very hard to get the
heal t hcare comunity inmuni zed. The trust --
this all comes down to trust, it really does.
It comes down to the trust that you have in
t he healthcare system And if your doctors
and your nurses and your health professionals
are getting vaccinated, then the public wll
do that as well

And it also cones down to the trust




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

208

within the community. People trust those who
t hey know. So doctors and health
professionals are a lot of -- you know,
there's a lot of confidence in them So if
they feel they're doing this, then it is
fine. So when you say that 50 percent are
not getting the vaccine -- and then the
public is going to perceive, well, there mnust
be a reason.

The vaccines are safe and effective.
|"ve said that all along. Tonmorrow |l wll be
on a call with nmy clinical advisory
conmittee. After the FDA | ooks at the
Johnson & Johnson, we will go through all the
data. | prom se you that I will make sure

that it is safe and effective. And if the

FDA says it is, which -- and our teamwi ||
also look at it, | have confidence in the FDA
as well, and so --

ASSEMBLYMAN BRAUNSTEI N:  Just
qui ckly -- sorry. | nean, but are we seeing
skeptici smanong the public and is that
potentially a problem --

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Initially --
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(Overtal k.)

ASSEMBLYMAN BRAUNSTEIN: -- herd
immunity when we talk about it. But if only
50 percent of healthcare workers are getting
the vaccine, it's going to be a long tine
before we get to that herd imunity.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Right. But that
may be a pocket, you know, because we have a
| ot nore that are vaccinated in the hospitals
and the staff in the hospitals. So that is
sonmething to | ook at.

But you are correct, if you have | ess
peopl e vacci nated, then you will not devel op
herd imunity. But it will take tinme for
herd i mMmunity to be achi eved on a grand
scale. But the nore people are vaccinated,
the better.

So it comes back to nessaging, it
comes back to naking sure people get out
there. And it also comes back to, obviously,
supply. And that's why | brought up the J&J
and tonmorrow s EUA so that once we get that
done, we'll get nore vaccine in the pipeline.

And | think as tine goes by, nore
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peopl e realize, Wll, nmy nei ghbor who was
vaccinated is fine, you know, and ny friends
or ny cousins, nmy uncle. And then it
devel ops that sort of tipping point
concept -- borrowing from you know,
Mal col m @ adwel | -- which is the concept that
others feel |ike, you know what, if they're
vacci nated and they're fine, 1'Il get
vaccinated too, it's safe and effective.

But | hear your point.

CHAl RA\OVAN VEI NSTEI'N:  Back to the
Senat e.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

And our next Senator is Senator
Tedi sco. Are you there, Jinf

SENATOR TEDI SCO.  Yup.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Ckay.

SENATOR TEDI SCO.  Let ne get the video
up. Am|l up? We're all set?

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: We can hear you,
and now we can see you. So keep going.

SENATOR TEDI SCO.  Ckay, we're all set?

The cl ock starts now.
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CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Ckay.

SENATCR TEDI SCO  Commi ssi oner, on
March 25th of 2020 the Governor put forth an
executive order expediting the placenent of
COVI D-posi tive individuals into nursing
homes. Many New Yorkers, and nost of us as
| egi slators, want to know its true inpact.

At some point in the ensuing weeks | eadi ng up
to a new directive on May 10th, in which the
adm ni stration took a 180-degree turn, saying
all persons would be tested and, if positive,
woul d not be allowed to enter a nursing hone,
a new process to count nursing honme deaths
was i nmplenented to only define residents who
got COVID in a nursing hone and died as a
nursi ng home death. And those who got COVID
in a nursing home and got so sick they had to
be hospitalized would now be defined as a
hospi tal deat h.

Comm ssioner, we were the only state
in the nation which counted nursing hone
deaths in that convoluted way. This is and
was problematic, for obvious reasons.

Fi fteen thousand nursing honme residents
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didn't die because many of them got the virus
in a nursing home and becane so sick that
they were later taken to a hospital and | ost
their lives -- they died because they got the
virus in a nursing home. Let ne repeat that.
They di ed because they got the virus in a
nur si ng hone.

When you withhel d those nunbers and
t ook those who got the virus that went to a
hospital and di ed and conbi ned those with al
t hose who died from COVID, this information
made it inpossible -- not getting it made it
i npossi ble to further come to concl usi ons
about what caused one of the worst disasters
in New York State history.

Those death nunbers took close to
10 nonths to receive and were only nade
public a few weeks ago, on the sane day as
the Attorney Ceneral pulled back the veil of
secrecy fromthis adm nistration and rel eased
a report that said there was a 50 percent
undercount of the total nunmber of those who
got the contagion in a nursing honme and died

and those who got COVID and died in a
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hospi t al

That's the nunber we were seeking,
that total that got the contagion in a
nursi ng home and went to a hospital -- not
conbined with all the other hospital deaths.

Wth these facts, along with
Judge Kinberly O Connor making a judgment on
a lawsuit the Enpire Center and nyself
brought forth to get the real nunbers as
related to lost lives, she deened the
adm ni stration violated the Open Governnent
Law. Let me repeat that. She deened --
separate branch of governnent, a judge --
that you, the Governor, the adm nistration
vi ol ated the Open Governnent Law.

And renenber, in light of the fact
t hat 15,000 of our nobst vul nerabl e popul ation
got this virus in a nursing hone and di ed,
and in light of that research by Bill Hanmond
fromthe Enpire Center, we recently showed
t he Governor's March 25th executive order
t ook upward of 100,000 or nore nursing hone
residents' |ives because COVI D cont agi ous

persons were placed fromhospitals into
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nursi ng hormes.

For close to a year, Commi ssioner, you
and the adm nistration have denied the
March 25t h executive order had any inpact as
to what --

THE MODERATOR: Tinme has expired.

SENATCR TEDI SCO  -- the Governor
defined as a wildfire through dry grass. |
ask you this. At long last, will you and the
Cuono admi nistration admt to your
culpability in these deaths and finally issue
apol ogi es --

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Excuse ne, the
tinme ex --

SENATCR TEDI SCO  -- to the thousands
of famlies inpacted?

CHAI RANOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  Excuse ne,
Senat or, your tinme has expired.

SENATOR TEDISCO  Isn't it tinme that
you and the Governor finally --

THE MODERATOR:  Senator --

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Jim your tine
has expired.

SENATOR TEDI SCO. -- and the famlies
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that lost their |ives?

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  Thank you - -

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Conmmi ssi oner
we're not going to allow you to answer that
t oday.

SENATCR TEDI SCO | wouldn't want to
answer it nyself either, Senator, if |I were
hi m

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Wl |, |'m doing
it based on tine.

So the conmi ssioner is welconme to put
it inwiting to you or to all of us
af terwar ds.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: | will. I wll
respond, because there's a lot of fiction
there and | need to provide the facts. So |
will respond in witing.

And there was no undercount. But we
can provide that in witing.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  That woul d be
very -- it's probably nore hel pful to
Senat or Tedisco to have it in witing anyway,
and all of us to see it.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Thank you.
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CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: So t hank you.

And |I'm sorry, but you went over.

Assenbl y.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN:.  We're going to
go to Assenbl ywonan Rosent hal .

We're just making a slight adjustnent
in the list of Assenbly orders.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL: Thank you
very much

Hel | o, Conmi ssioner. | have a couple
of questi ons.

|'mthe forner chair of the Conmttee
on Al coholismand Drug Abuse, and |'ve being
asking the Department of Health to report the
nunber of overdose deaths for nonths, since
| ast sunmer. And |'ve asked you for those in
prior hearings. | was not provided with the
| egal |y mandat ed report on the DOH website
until an article appeared online. It
shoul dn't take an article to abide by the |aw
mandati ng reporting.

So despite the fact that nei ghboring
states |i ke New Jersey and Connecticut have

rel eased alnost all of their 2020 dat a,




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

217

New York has only rel eased provisional up to
June 2020 just the other day.

I n addition, the data show a decrease
in Quarter 2 of 2020, which would cover the
period of April through June, the peak of the
COVI D surge in New York. W know from
provi ders and activists that that nunber
actually rose, and when they were cri ppl ed
under the weight of increasing overdoses --
yet the data does not reflect that.

How does New York explain the
substanti al decrease in overdose deaths at
t he hei ght of COVI D when providers have told
us that that was the tinme of greatest need?
And how do you nake a budget for the next
year when the facts and data about 2020 are
wWrong?

That's ny first question.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: So the first
part of that, there is data from QOctober to
January that was recently posted, so |
bel i eve you --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL:  Yes,

menti oned t hat .
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COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Yeah, right, and
SO you' ve seen that.

| understand there's been a little bit
of a delay --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL:  {I naudi bl e. }

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  -- and | w |
get back to you about some of the other
nunbers. \What was that?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL: A whol e
year's delay. They were supposed to be up --

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: Onh, it's --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL:  Anyway - -

COW SS| ONER ZUCKER: | under st and.
ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL: -- go on.
COW SS| ONER ZUCKER: | under st and.

W' ve been pretty busy on this, and |
under st and.

But it's not to -- not to decrease the
i mpact and the concerns of opioids, because |
believe they tie very closely to the issue of
the pandemic. And as | said earlier, working
with the other agencies has been really
important in order to address the --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL:  Ckay, what
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about the | ow nunber in the second quarter?
COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So | will try to

get you the answers to the | ow nunbers, why

t hose nunbers are bad. It may be a | ack of
reporting or -- but I will find out for
you --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL: Ckay, it's
i mportant --

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  -- and |'Il get
back to you

ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL: Ckay. MW
next question is OM G has been auditing OIPs
around the state and they uncovered sone
m nor adm nistrative and paperwork errors,
and in one case they were fined $7 mllion
because of administrative errors -- no deceit
or lying -- and they had to close. This is
happening in other facilities across the
st at e.

| did wite a letter; in Cctober |
finally got an answer. However, this -- |
believe OM G and you and the departnment have
a legal and noral duty to consider the inpact

that its audits have on accessibility of
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servi ces.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Donna, do you --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL:  You can --
we can have a further discussion on that.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Yes,
| "' m happy to do that, Assenbl ywonman. |'m not
famliar with the details, but |I'm happy to
talk to OM G directly.

And | think we, you know, do share
your thinking around being certain -- you
know, of course given the seriousness of what
m ght have been found as deficient -- that
access is inmportant as well. So |I'm happy to
have those di scussions with the Medicaid
i nspect or general .

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ROSENTHAL:  Thank you.

CHAl RA\OVAN VEI NSTEIN: W go to the
Senat e now.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Senat or Kevin Thonas.

Are you with us, Kevin?

THE MODERATOR: We're having trouble
heari ng you, Senator. You're unnmuted, but we

don't have any sound from you.
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SENATOR THOMAS: Sorry. The ot her
unmut e button. Can you hear ne now?

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Yes.

SENATOR THOVAS: All right, awesone.

Thank you, Comm ssioner, for being
here, and thank you to Chai rwoman Krueger for
doing this as well.

Comm ssi oner, the decisions regarding
the handling of COVID-19 in nursing homes and
long-termcare facilities have negatively
i npacted the residents and their famlies,
and by that |losing |oved ones. W could
debate and point fingers about who is at
fault all day, but I want to see things
i nprove for the betternent of al
New Yorkers. This virus is not going away
anytinme soon. And even today there's
reporting on another nmutant strain that's
goi ng ar ound.

W need to focus our efforts on how we
can do better for residents of this state,
all right? And the residents of this state
are scared for their |loved ones residing in

nursi ng homes.
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Do you believe that expandi ng fundi ng
and access to the Consuner-Directed Personal
Assi stance Programis a viable alternative
for elderly New Yorkers? And what additiona
resources can we allocate to the programto
al | ow peopl e access to quality care in the
safety of their own homes?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So | -- | agree
that we need to address the care of the
seniors not just in the nursing hones, but
seniors in general.

And | am aware of the issues of the
Personal Assistance Program | know t hat
Donna al so can speak a little bit about this.

But | will tell you that regarding the
| ooking forward -- this is part of not only
what the Governor has said in the budget
about the three areas that | nentioned
earlier -- to save time, | won't reiterate
them -- but also just overall the
departnment's efforts to | ook at how to
provi de care to those who are elderly. And
it's why New York is the first Age-Friendly

State. W' ve worked very hard on this for a
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consi derabl e period of tine and have worked
wi th foundations, groups, advocates and al
the long-termcare conmunity.

Donna, do you want to address any of
t he Personal Assistance Progranf

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Sur e,
Dr. Zucker. And thank you, Senator

| think that | would just quickly add,
bei ng respectful of your tine, that Medicaid
and the departnent remain comritted to the
Personal Care Program and Personal Assistance
Program t hrough the Consumner-Directed
Program

You know, |ast year we -- together
with the Legislature, we enacted into | aw a
series of reforms. Those refornms nade
changes to the programintended to strengthen
them intended to -- we've heard consuners
about things |ike assessnents and how
frequent they are, and we want to continue to
work with you to | ook for opportunities to
ensure that when it's appropriate,
i ndi vidual s can get care at hone.

SENATOR THOMAS: But do you believe
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t hat expanding funding for this program woul d
be an alternative?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  So
we've got -- you know, we see right now,

t hrough the Medicaid program we anticipate
for this upcomi ng fiscal year that the
Personal Care Program alone will grow to over
a billion dollars, about $1.2 billion.

W make it known those programs exi st
and those options exist, and we'll continue
to do that. | nean, certainly. And you
know, so again, we're commtted to working
with you and working with providers to ensure
t hat people, when it's appropriate, are able
to receive either personal care services or
per sonal assistance services at hone.

SENATOR THOMAS: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y?

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: W go to
Assenbl yman Ashby now.

ASSEMBLYMAN ASHBY: Thank you,

Madam Chai r.

Conmmi ssi oner Zucker, | renenber
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speaking with you back in August about the
March 25th order and residents being

di scharged from nursing homes and bei ng abl e
to track them And | appreciate the

foll owup, rmuch later than we woul d have

i ked, to get those nunbers.

But I'mstill -- I"mstill having a
hard ti me understanding the rationale and the
expl anation, | guess, of your understanding
with correlation of the providers comng into
t he nursing homes and that being the chief
cause of the spread of COVID, versus the
residents that were forced to go back to the
nur si ng hone.

| f our providers are taking the
necessary steps to ensure good hygi ene and
all of the requirenments in there, and our
patients being in there as well, | nean,
can't you see this as a potential for disease
spread? | don't understand the -- you being
so adamant that this is not a contributing
factor. Can you el aborate on that?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Sur e.

So let ne take you back in tine a
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little bit. So I think -- this keeps com ng
up, and I want it to be clear, and | want
everyone to understand this. So number one,
let's just | ook at where we were at that
point in tine.

We had predictions and nodel s on
March 23rd, because | renmenber when it cane
t hrough, of 140,000 people going to the
hospital, 37,000 into the ICU. W had
50, 000 hospital beds in the state,
30, 000 hospital beds downstate, and only,
let's say, 5,000 inthe ICU As an ICU
doctor, | can tell you this was a horrific
feeling. I'mtelling you |l sat there when
heard these nunbers, when the nodel was shown
to me, and | actually said to nyself, how are
we going to do this -- with other words in ny
head, but how are we going to do this? And
t he thought of the National Guard standing
there with the bags, squeezing them and then
all the issues of ventilators. So the --

ASSEMBLYMAN ASHBY: Dr. Zucker,
understand -- | understand there was a | ot of

pressure and | understand that there were a
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ot of -- there were a |ot of nunbers there,
but that doesn't change -- that doesn't
change the -- necessarily the fact of the

nunbers comng in of the people who were --

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  But the --

ASSEMBLYMAN ASHBY: -- those positive
with the disease.

COM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  I'mtrying to
say this, but I"'mtrying to explain this to
you - -

ASSEMBLYMAN ASHBY: -- and the
di sease -- and the di sease preval ence. So
| --

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Right, but this
is what's happened, is that I'm--

ASSEMBLYMAN ASHBY: So if you could
try and get to the point, because |I have | ess
than 30 seconds left, please, Dr. Zucker

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: | understand. |
understand. |'m happy to explain it.

But this is what's happened, is that
people are not listening to what the science
is. The fact of the matter is that the --

first of all, it was in the facilities,
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98 percent of the people had it in the
facilities. It came in fromthe community
and was already there, it was there | ong
before we even knew it was spreadi ng anong --

ASSEMBLYMAN ASHBY: And then they were
forced to continue to take these patients,

t hus i ncreasing the nunbers, right?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  -- let ne
explain. But you were not follow ng on the
science on this. I'msorry to be so direct
about this, but the science is what we need
to | ook at.

And | was trying to explain it before
about how | ong sonmebody was cont agi ous and
t hen what period of time, and then the nedi an
anount of tinme that they were in the
hospital. And that by the tine they cane
back, the science is the virus is no
| onger --

ASSEMBLYMAN ASHBY: The science is is
that there were nore people adnmitted with the
di sease, and that contributed to the --

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So then I'm

going to ask you --
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ASSEMBLYMAN ASHBY: -- spread. That's
t he sci ence.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Right, so let ne
throw a question out to you.

THE MODERATOR: Tinme has expired.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  No, | would like
to ask this question, just throw it out.

How do you explain to ne that w thout
anyone com ng back to the nursing hones that
are positive fromCOVID -- even though we
coul d tal k about the science aside -- no one
comng in as visitors, we still have cases in
t he nursing honmes? Not just here in
New York, where we're doing an aggressive job
with testing, but across the nation and
around the world. It comes in through the
comunity.

| nmean, | am happy to sit down at sone
poi nt and go through this in depth and show
you the charts and show you the --

ASSEMBLYMAN ASHBY: |'d be happy to
acknow edge that that's a factor, but you --

THE MODERATOR: Tinme has expired.

ASSEMBLYMAN ASHBY: -- sane token
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acknow edge that the residents going into the
nursi ng homes are al so causing the spread.
COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: | di sagree --
(Overtal k, multiple voices.)
ASSEMBLYMAN ASHBY: That's the crux of
my question and the issue at hand.
CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN:.  We're going to
go back to the Senate now.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: Al right, thank

you.
Let's see, we are on Senator Giffo.
SENATOR CGRI FFO  Can you hear ne, Liz?
CHAl RWOVAN KRUECER:  Yes, we can hear
you.
SENATOR CRI FFO.  Ckay.
CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER:  And now we can
see you.

SENATOR CGRI FFO  Thank you.

Comm ssi oner, as you can see, in
budget hearings the tine constraints, while
under st andabl e, are really not conducive or
beneficial to the necessary interaction to
properly performyours and our

responsibilities. Wen you appeared for
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confirmation, you agreed to nmake yourself
avai l abl e despite tinme denands.

So are you ready here today to conmt
to us and to the nenbers and publicly that
you Wi || appear before committees of the
Legi slature when you're invited to afford a
nor e thorough opportunity to exam ne and
di scuss and answer questions on these health
policies and procedures that affect
New Yor ker s?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: | have al ways
done so. | -- when |'ve been asked --

SENATCR GRI FFG Conmi ssi oner - -
Comm ssi oner, you have not thoroughly done
this. | just want you to say today you w ||
and you're ready to do it. Because when
we' ve had neetings with you, it's been
l[imted -- 30 mnutes, two questions.

WIIl you commt to just being

available to do that? You can see this

frustration. WIIl you be willing and ready
to do that?
COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  |' m al ways

willing to speak with the Legislature. And
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if there was a commtnent on tinme, there was
di scussion -- | renmenber what you're
referring to about the two hours, whatever
period of time that we discussed back in the
sumer -- | assune that's what you're
referring to. And that was the tine --

SENATOR CRIFFO So this is just a yes
or no. Are you willing to do it,
Conmm ssi oner ?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: | said | am
willing to work with the Legislature to
answer the questions.

SENATOR CGRI FFO Because if you're
evasive on this, then you' re not prepared to
do it. Are you going -- will you accept the
invitation to appear?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: | wi Il appear
and speak with the Legislature if asked about
i ssues.

SENATOR CGRI FFO  Thank you. Thank
you. | appreciate it.

Comm ssi oner, the question is on
providing funding to long-termcare

facilities throughout the pandem c. Has that
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come predom nantly fromthe federa
government or have we all ocated resources
fromthe state al so?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Coul d you -- |I'm
trying to understand what your question is.

There's noney that cones from federal
and there's noney that cones fromthe state
for --

SENATCR GRI FFG  Pandemi c-rel at ed
nmoney |i ke CARES, things of that nature, has
all of that been applied? How has it been
appl i ed, and where applied?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: | will -- | need
to get back to you about the specifics of
what proportion of the CARES Act has gone to
where. But | will get that to you

SENATOR CGRI FFO. Okay. And then
specific to the variant, the new vari ant
that's been identified, | know you're
starting to study this. Do you know how it
will affect the efficacy or the existing
t herapeutic treatnents?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So this is --

that's a great question
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And the fact is that we do know t hat
this new variant and how it inpacts patients
is that the virus needs to get into a cell.
The way all those little spike proteins
around there -- things hook onto the cells,
your body's cells, and it gets intoit. And
sonme of these variants are able to make it
nore sticky so they can get into the cell

Once that happens, you end up with a
risk of a nore potent infection in the
i ndividual. And so we don't know yet about
this particular new variant, the B.1.526 that
we were tal king about before, because we're
| earni ng about it.

The virus always nutates, it continues
to mutate. We've seen nmany nutations. It's
just that every once in a while, the nutation
falls within the area that actually affects
how it can get into the cell, which is a
critical issue. The vaccine is designed
agai nst the spi ke protein, because that's
what we're concerned about -- all the
vacci nes are, whether they're the nmessenger

RNA vacci nes, the adenovirus vacci nes, all of
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t hem are designed that way.

So we're going to have nore
information about it. So once |I can have
nore information, |I'mhappy to share it with
you.

SENATOR CGRI FFO  Thank you. We | ook
forward to you appearing with us very soon so
we can have a nore thorough conversati on.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: (Ckay, next we
have the Assenbly.

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: W go to
Assenbl yman Hevesi

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: | think I'm
t here. Conm ssioner, can you hear nme?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: | hear you

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Good. Good
afternoon, sir.

First I want to thank you and the
Heal t h Departnent for all the positive things
t hat you' ve done during the pandem c under a
very difficult tine.

My question will be solely about adult
homes, and | woul d respectfully ask that when

you answer this question, if possible, please
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don't talk to ne about budget-rel ated issues
like revenue. | respectfully believe that

t he Division of Budget has been responsible
for a lot of bad decisions over the |ast
coupl e of years that have hurt people and
actual ly cost taxpayers nore noney.

So here's ny question froma health
perspective. Two prograns, snall amounts of
noney, relatively, in the budget. The first
is $230,000 to the Justice Center, and the
second is the EQUAL program-- and | want to
get this precise -- the Enhancing Quality of
Adult Living Program for $6.5 mllion. And
this is for people with psychiatric
disabilities in adult hones.

My understanding is that the adult
home industry for the | ast 40 years has been
systemcally -- nmaybe not systematically, |
want to be fair -- mstreating residents,
unscrupul ous financial practices, deplorable
conditions. And they're frequently ignoring
t hese people with psychiatric disabilities.

So ny question is the Executive Budget

proposes to cut the 6.5 mllion for the
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EQUAL Program plus the small anount of

noney, the 230,000 to the Justice Center.

And those cuts are for the advocates for

t hese people with psychiatric disabilities.
What is going to happen to those patients now
that we're stripping them of the people who
organi zed them acted as counsel, advised
themof their rights? Wat is going to be
the inmpact for those patients if the
Executi ve Budget cones through?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: Wl |, we want to
be sure that obviously they have the right
counsel and they are represented both from
t he standpoint of their |egal issues but also
fromtheir health issues as well.

So |l wll ook -- | amsure that as we
nove forward we'll nmake sure that if the
progranms that were initially in place to
provi de that service are no longer in
service, that there is a way that the
servi ces can be provided through anot her
program whether it's within the state or
ot her support from other sources of

revenue -- sources of support.
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Now, the -- so that's the 230, 000.

The advanced -- the EQUAL Program that
programalso | will |ook into and get you
some answers about. But nobody wants to have
a situation where any New Yorker is not able
to be -- have the care that they need and
representation that they need. So | wll get
you an answer about that.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: | appreciate
that. Let me just end with saying that |
think it's inportant and I agree with your
assessnent that we cannot |eave this nost
vul nerabl e popul ation, the people with
psychiatric disabilities, to fend for
t hensel ves, particularly at this time when a
| ot of them have been traumatized or even
di ed during the pandem c.

So this is a priority for us; | hope
to make it a priority for you. Thank you.

CHAl RAMOVAN VEI NSTEI'N:  Back to the
Senat e.

THE MODERATOR  You're nuted, Senator.

CHAl R{MOVAN KRUEGER: Let's try ne

wi t hout a nute.
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Senat or Bi aggi .

SENATOR BI AGA : Thank you very much
Madam Chai r.

Thank you for comng here to testify
here today, Conm ssioner Zucker. | have two
guestions, and | just ask that you --
actually, three questions. | just ask you
that you answer them as qui ckly as possible.

So | want to just return to a
provi sion of |ast year's budget that we
di scussed during the sumrer, which is with
regard to Article 30-d of the Public Health
Law, which is also known as the Energency
Di saster Treatnment Prevention Act. Are you
famliar with this section of the | aw?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  1'd have to
check about it. Tell ne alittle bit about
it and I'll tell you exactly -- what's your
guestion regarding it?

SENATOR BIAGA: It's with regard to
t he bl anket immunity that was given
to heal thcare --

COM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Yes, | assune

that's what you're referring to, yeah.
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SENATOR BIAGA : (kay. So Attorney
Ceneral Letitia Janmes, her report discussed
the state's handling of nursing hones, and
when she di scussed that she included this as
one of her reconmendations or one of her
fi ndi ngs.

And so her report found that the
state's blanket immunity policy for nursing
homes may have incentivized themto
prioritize profit over patient and safety.
Do you still support Article 30-d of the
Public Health Law?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  You want to do
one question at a tinme? You want ne to
answer that question first?

| will say that | find this concern
that -- the belief that inmmunity woul d make
heal t hcare workers not provide the
appropriate care actually pretty offensive to
all those who are working so hard on this
pandem c. And | do not believe that inmunity
that was put in there was going to end up
causi ng soneone to sort of say, Well, we'll

just push for profit, we're not going to
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worry about the people that we're caring for.

And | just find that sort of
conpletely false, so -- and | recogni ze
t hat --

THE MODERATOR: One second,
Conmi ssi oner .

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Sorry.

SENATOR BIAGA : You're not answering
the question that | asked you. The question
| asked you was with regard to conpl ete
immunity for stakehol ders, shareholders -- it
has nothing to do with heal thcare
pr of essi onal s.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  1'm saying to
you that the issue is that there are a | ot of
peopl e involved with taking care of people

and addressing the care during this pandem c.

And your -- your concern is that there
is -- that the immunity that was put in place
caused people to provide -- make a profit

over providing care. And I'mtelling you
t hat people who care for individuals, whether
it's the frontline health worker or others,

are not going to do that, because | believe
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they're in the best interests of trying to

take care of those who are sick

And | think that -- | recognize the
chal I enge, | recogni ze there have been
changes. | ask you to renenber the situation

that we were in at that point in tine.

SENATOR BIAGA: ~-- the public that we
all represent. Do you support the corporate
immunity provision in the budget from | ast
year, yes or no?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: | support what
when we did with the immnity at that point
in tinme, yes.

SENATOR BI AGA : You support it right
now at this tinme, on February 25, 20217

COWMM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  You' re breaking
up.

SENATOR BI AGA : Do you support the
provi si on today?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: O the immunity,
we are looking at it at this point in tine.
| go back to the issue of where we were then
and our nunbers where they are today. The

nunbers are now com ng back down; necessary
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changes can be made. At the point where we
were sitting with 140,000 potenti al
hospitalizations, yes, we needed to do things
to make sure that happened.
CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
Assenbl y.
CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: W go to
Assenbl yman Zebrowski, three m nutes.
ASSEMBLYMAN ZEBROWSBKI :  -- Chair
Wei nstein. And good afternoon, Conmm ssioner.
Many of my col |l eagues are asking
guestions about nursing homes, which are
incredibly inportant. W have limted tine,
so I'mgoing to attenpt to ask a few
guestions about the vaccine rollout and
di stri bution.
As you said earlier -- | think one
ot her person tal ked about vaccines, or maybe
two -- but there's no doubt that the biggest
issue is the lack of supply. But that being
said, | have found, and | believe |I speak for
many of mny constituents, that the rollout has
sort of been disjointed. And ny question is

really, can you explain to ne why the state
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chose this type of dispersed systen?

Now, you nentioned it earlier -- |ike
| understand we have state sites. |
understand we have the county health
departnments at tinmes getting it. And |
under stand we have sonme pop-up clinics and
pharmaci es. But the fact remains that al
t hese providers, in ny experience and ny
constituents' in Rockland County, the
appoi ntments pop up and then they're gone. |
mean, it's imrediate, whether it's the county
heal th departnment or the pharnacies or things
like that. The state sites, nany tines you
sign on, there's no appoi ntnents.

So in general, folks sort of have no
i dea when vaccines are com ng, how many are
com ng, where they're comng in, and there's
generalized frustration. Like to get a
vaccine, you literally have to get lucky in
some ways. You have to have the ability to
sort of call many different providers,
navi gate through many different sites. You
have to antici pate when websites are going to

go live and the appointnents are going to
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conme up.

And so, you know, know ng that we knew
there was going to be limted supply, | don't
understand why we didn't set up a system
where there was |ike preregistration,
especially for our seniors that are 75 and
above, or preregistration for essential
wor kers so that appointnment slots could be
all ocated. Wat am | mssing? Like what --
why did, logistically, the state choose this
sort of dispersed systen? | could understand
if we had a huge allotnent -- you know, |et
everybody go down to their pharmacy and go to
different parts in their conmunity.

But when we knew we were going to have
this limted supply, why did we not try for a
nore centralized process that could be
under st andabl e and organi zed for fol ks?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So let ne start
by saying two things. One is that this is --
as the Governor has said, this is one of the
nost conplex things that the nation has ever
done.

{Zoom interruption.}
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COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  What was that ?
| hear some background noi se.

So that's nunmber one. And nunber two,
New York State is doing a phenonenal job
Based on ny conversations with people from
around the nation, they are very inpressed.

Regardi ng the issue that you raise, we
have 13, you know, state-run sites and we've
had over a mllion appointnments that are
registered in the state. And we've given
close to 4 mllion doses already in New York
State. But the issue is that you need to
work with communities, and you al so need to
make sure that -- each community is a little
bit different.

And when we noved this forward, we
were al so | ooking at different vaccines.
Initially the issue was, well, we need to get
this -- and everyone had a reason why they
needed to get a vaccine. W initially said
we want to get this into the nursing hones,
we wanted to get it to the nost vul nerable
i ndi viduals. W worked with the federa

government on that, with a plan that they had
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to get it into the nursing homes. And then
as we opened up further, we were able to get
it into -- provide nore individuals.

W' ve made an incredible effort to
make sure we get this vaccine to all those
who need it as quickly as possible. The
chal l enge here is truly the supply. It
really is. | guarantee you, once J&J cones
out, and if it gets approved, all of a sudden
the nunbers tick up. When Pfizer has nore
vaccine in the supply and Moderna has nore in
the supply line for New York, you're going to
see a |l ot nore.

The Governor's viewon this is |ike
get these sites out there, get them open, and
t hen when there's nore vacci ne, you can junp
and people can get in there and receive their
vacci ne, versus having it, OCkay, here's your
supply and you have no plan in place of where
you're going to put it. That's why we were
trying to nake sure it worked.

But then the issue here is you have to
all ocate. You give sonme to a hospital, you

gi ve sone to the pharnacies, you give sone to
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the sites that we had. The other issue on
this vaccine, and it's worth bringing this
up, is initially the Pfizer vaccine, which
was the first one that was approved, required
a cold storage issue, which limted where it
could go. Then when Mderna canme along with
regul ar refrigeration, that made it a | ot
sinpler. And as we nove forward, they'll be
alittle bit easier.

The issue early on, everyone said,
Wel I, what happened in Decenber, why did it
take so long to nove forward? You have to
remenber it was the end of the cal endar year,
hol i days were then, the hospitals -- sone
peopl e said, Well, the hospitals should have
given nore out. You know, at the end of a
cal endar year, I'mtelling you, as one who's
practiced in hospitals for nany years,
everything sort of -- it's not that it slows
down, it's just that people get short-staffed
alittle bit.

And the heal thcare workers needed to
be the first ones, so we wanted to get it to

t hem because they're the ones who are
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protecting the people who get sick. So we
wanted to be sure that they got it. So
that's why we drove it to the hospitals right
at first. And the nursing homes. That's how
the priority came there. And then as we
opened it up and we opened it up to other
i ndi vi dual s, and nore supply cane in, we've
been able to provide it to nore people. And
now t hose with preexisting conditions wll
have it, and then now we're thinking about
what do we do when J&J cones out.

And we're thinking about that. That's
a one-shot vaccine. How do we address that?
You know, are there certain popul ations
wi thin society that you nmay have a harder
time getting a second shot to? So maybe we
drive it to those individuals. Maybe we
address those who are honebound. Maybe we
address those who are honel ess. You know,
and so we're thinking this out.

And there's an incredible team working
on this, and really dedicated. But New York
is doing a great job on this. | just -- |

just really want to, you know, say that as we
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| ook at the rest of the country. Thank you.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you.

We're going to go back to the Senate
now.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. We're
goi ng to Senator Seri no.

Are you there, Sue? Not quite sure --

SENATOR SERINO  Yup, yup, here we
are. Sorry, ny video wasn't starting. |I'm
SO sorry.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: That' s okay.

SENATCR SERINOG  Hell o, Commi ssi oner.

| " ve asked you at just about every
budget hearing why the state continues to
| eave funding out for Lyme and tick-borne
diseases. | want it stated for the record
that not only is there no new fundi ng for
Lyne this year, but this proposal even cuts
the m nimal $69,000 that typically goes to
your departnent for it, and that's just not
right.

Now t o nursing homes. Cbviously the
guestions | have require a thorough

response -- which you can't give in the three
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mnutes allotted -- so I"'mgoing to put them
all out there and will request a response in
writing.

On April 23, 2020, | sent a letter to
you and the Governor asking you to nove to
create regionalized specialty care centers or
step-down facilities where you woul d
designate certain facilities across the state
as COVID-only nursing homes. | never
recei ved a response.

| al so asked you about it again at the
August 3rd hearing and was told you'll | ook
into it.

| asked again in another letter on
Decenber 1st, when no mention of these
facilities was made i n your announced w nter
pl an. Again, no response.

| had to get ny answer froma report
rel eased as part of the February 10th secret
neeti ng where you say there are 19 of these
facilities across the state, and where you
said, quote: Starting in Novenber, the
department | aunched an effort to establish

COVI D-only nursing homes. Novenber. That's
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over six nmonths after | first proposed the
i dea.

So why did it take so long to take
this commbnsense step? How nmany peopl e have
been treated at these facilities, in what
muni ci palities are they | ocated, and how was
it determ ned where the facilities would be
| ocated and who would be admtted to thenf

Now on to vaccines. The federal
vacci nation program for nursing homes has
ended, and there continues to be new
adm ssions to nursing homes every day. |'ve
heard about residents who are being told they
can't receive the vaccine now in these
facilities. What is the state's plan to
vacci nate residents and staff who m ssed out
on the federal progranf

And nost inportantly, we now have a
situation where sone residents and staff are
vacci nated and others are not. Wat updated
i nfection control procedures are in place to
protect those who have not yet been
vacci nat ed?

And while we're on vaccines, | just
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have to say, for the record, the rollout on
the state | evel has been truly horrendous.

We have no state site in the M d-Hudson
Val l ey, and the fact that New York, one of
the tech capitals of the world, hasn't
established a centralized system for

appoi ntnments defies logic. And that needs to
be a top priority.

Now t he questions that |I'd actually
want you to answer -- and | just want a
sinple yes or no -- are you confident in the
facts you' ve presented thus far today?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Yes.

SENATOR SERINO. Then | see no reason
why you shoul dn't support an independent
investigation to verify them Your testinony
focused on reforms, but how can we tal k about
ref orm when there hasn't been a conprehensive
review of where the state or others really
went wrong?

So will you support an independent
investigation or reviewinto the state's
handling of the COVID crisis in our nursing

homes and residential healthcare facilities?
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COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  There is an
ongoi ng investigation on this issue, and
that's -- I'll leave it at that.

SENATOR SERINO And you'll support

And do you know, did every Health
Depart ment enpl oyee who did on-site
i nspections in these facilities, or entered
for any other reason, get tested first?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Yes.

SENATOR SERI NGO Yes.

CHAI RAWMOVAN KRUEGER:  Sue, you can do
followup with the doctor with asking in
witing, asking himto forward it to us al
in witing, but your tine is up. Thank you.

SENATOR SERINO  Thank you
Chai r woman.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y?

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN:  So we go to the
Assenbly ranker on Health, Assenbl yman Byr ne,
for five m nutes.

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Thank you.

M. Cormmi ssioner and Director, |'m
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going to try to just pose some comments and
guestions, and then all ow you to unpack and
address as many as you can because of ny
[imted time.

| do want to express ny
di sappoi ntnent, frustration and, quite
frankly, anger with the departnent in its
wi t hhol di ng of information fromthis elected
body for so many nonths this past year. And
t he various comments from sonme nenbers of the
Governor's administration fromthat private
nmeeting -- not you, M. Comm ssioner -- but |
find themvery deeply disturbing.

| was |listening to sone of the
comment s before, Conmm ssioner Zucker, and |
just want to follow up. Your coment about
the justification of the March 25th directive
as far as the tine and place that we were in
and the projection nodels, | think a |ot of
us can relate and understand the pressure
that you nust have been under, that we were
all under. But | also recall you justifying
that order by telling us it would -- it was

to protect COVID 19 patients from being
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di scri m nated agai nst, as one of your
justifications.

And agai n, your point about 98 percent
of the nursing homes having COVID already in
it fromstaff or fromother avenues doesn't
real ly address the concerns that
reintroducing it could have caused nore harm

| also want to point out that the word
"“undercount” or "underreporting,” that's
directly taken fromthe AG s report that was
rel eased too. So this isn't stuff that we're
just making up. They're very real concerns.

| want to ask you, M. Comm ssioner,
if in conplying with the DQJ inquiry, if your
office would be willing to share the
conmuni cations and the information that was
shared with them Could they share themwth
the Legislature? W haven't really seen a
real tineline on that.

Senat or Sue Serino nentioned, you
know, the need for step-down facilities. W
have a bill, | have a same-as in the
Assenbly, and | was refreshed to see that the

depart ment announced that there were




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

257

apparently 19 COVID-only nursing homes. But
it also raised the question if that's the
process we're goi ng through now, why didn't
we use the Arny Corps of Engineers, the

West chester County Center, the Javits Center
nore, if we're using COVID 19-only nursing
homes?

Now nore towards the budget, because
this is a budget hearing, sir. You know, the
schedul ed Medi caid drug carve-out has nany
advocates and providers for the 430-b program
very concerned. There's a call from nmany of
us to delay or possibly reverse the decision.
| understand that sonme savings may be
obtai ned fromgreater collective bargaining
power, but again, there's concerns how this
coul d negatively affect providers.

| al so have concerns that if this is
going to happen, and it is eventually,
whether it's delayed or not, is this really
the right tinme to be tal king about repealing
"prescriber prevails" when the departnment has
such a nonunental task ahead?

| | ooked at some of the 30-day
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amendnments. It was nentioned earlier about
some of the drastic increases in penalties in
nursing homes. And | understand, a |lot of us
are enbracing the discussion for nursing hone
reformparticul arly because of what we've al
wi t nessed through this past pandem c. But
removi ng that rectification clause has a | ot
of us concerned because | think when nursing
home operators and facilities want to correct
a situation, nake it better, we should
enbrace that.

And we do -- | have concerns about the
i ncrease, not only for the nursing hones, but
there seens to be a targeted increase in
fines for adult-care facilities, and that's
really where that rectification piece cones
in.

Agai n, | have other concerns about the
budget. Part Q again tal ks about all ow ng
you, comm ssioner, to rel ease all eged
conpl ai nts of professional m sconduct for
doctors. There's concerns about how t hat
coul d negatively affect providers' careers if

things go on the internet.
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And the Indigent Care Pool, that was
brought up earlier by some of ny coll eagues.
It disproportionately affects the safety-net
hospital s and county governnents. | also
represent Westchester County; it affects the
West chester Medi cal Center even nore so,
because | don't believe the county government
contri butes.

And the Adult Cystic Fibrosis
Assi stance Program-- | don't think it's been
nmentioned -- we need to bring that back and
we need to fund that program again.

Wth whatever tinme | have, | would
appreci ate what ever answers you could
provi de.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Sure. | wll
answer a few of them and Donna w || address
t he 340-b program and sonme of the other
i ssues about providers.

On the first issue, I'mgoing to be
pretty quick. Regarding what you nentioned
about the AG this is one of the challenges
see. People read the headline, but they

don't read the report. And the headline says
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yeah, there's an undercount, but if you read
the report, she clarifies that we provided
this information there. So -- and how the
nunbers were provided.

On the issue about the |egal issues,
about sharing information, | direct that back
to my legal teamas to what information can
and cannot be shared. It's not that |'m
trying to be evasive on it, it's the process
that we go through in the departnent, and |I'm
sure you woul d respect that.

Regardi ng the issue of those who have
come into the nursing homes, | would be happy
to explain that even further. | started to
do that before, regarding how this came back
into the nursing homes. And | still throw
out that question as to why is it still in
all these nursing homes across the country,
and it goes back to community spread.

And also | could talk nore about the
science of this, why they were no | onger
contagious and -- but that's for a |onger
di scussi on.

Donna, do you want to touch on a few
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t hings --

CHAI RAMOVAN VEI NSTEI'N: 1" m sorry,
Conmmi ssi oner - -

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Sorry.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN:  -- we're going
to nove on.

| just want to rem nd nenbers that if
you want an answer to your question, you need
to | eave sonme tinme for that answer to happen

But Donna can certainly put in witing
a response.

And we'll go to the Senate.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you - -

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: Be
happy to do that.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

So Commi ssioner, we have 31 nore
peopl e who have signed up to ask you
guestions, and many of us have been sitting
in our chairs since 9:30 this norning. So
|"mgoing to reconmend a five-m nute break
for everyone.

SENATCR RI VERA: Before or after ne,

Li z?
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CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  No, no, we need
to prepare for you. W need the five-mnute
break before you, Gustavo.

Yes, and we will return --

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  That woul d be
very good for our health.

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUECER: -- to the Health
chair to ask his 10 m nutes of questioning.

So everyone, you can go off of Zoom or
just turn off your picture, that's probably
t he best, go do whatever you can do in life
in five mnutes, and then cone back.

Thank you.

(Brief recess taken from1:48 to
1:54 p.m)

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. Hi,
|"m Liz Krueger, chair of the Senate Fi nance
Comm ttee, joined by Hel ene Weinstein, chair
of the Assenbly Ways and Means Commi ttee.

We are partway through the Health
Budget Hearing, and we are continui ng our
guestioning of Dr. Howard Zucker,
commi ssi oner of the Departnent of Health.

And the next |egislator up on deck is
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Qustavo Rivera, chair of the Health
Committee, with a clock for 10 m nutes of
guesti ons.

Thank you, Senator Rivera.

SENATOR RI VERA: Thank you,
Madam Chair. Thank you, Comm ssioner. And
t hank you, Medicaid Director.

| will try to get through as many of
these as | can, and then | wll| probably cone
back for a second round after everybody el se
has fi ni shed.

Now, | skipped the first time when
was cal |l ed upon because | wanted to make sure
that I saw what sonme of the questions were
going to be related to nursing honmes. And |
heard many of ny col | eagues ask very simlar
guestions, and I will just say a couple of
t hi ngs.

First of all, it is very clear that
this adm nistration, whether it's you, sir,
or anybody el se, the Governor or anybody el se
speaking on his behalf, will apparently never
acknow edge that you have done anything

wong. | wll not ask you many of these
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guestions that fol ks have asked you al ready
because you will just repeat what you have
said before, which is that you did the best
that you could, that you' ve made no n st akes.
And it's as though the adm nistration
continues every day to just be perfect and do
not hi ng wr ong.

So since you cannot acknow edge
responsibility and are perfect at bobbing and
weavi ng on that issue, I will not visit it
any further; |I'msure that ny coll eagues will
actually do that.

Nunber two, because we are talking
about health and this is a budget hearing, so
| will definitely get into budget matters --
but because this is a budget hearing |I wanted
to make sure that | state for the record that
particularly related to the cuts that you're
doi ng on Medi caid, these are not savings,
sir, these are cuts.

If we were to tax the wealthy, perhaps
by Investing in Qur New York, we will
absolutely not only be able to close the

budget gap as a whole, be able to not do the
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Medi caid cuts that we are doing, but also be
able to invest, whether it's in our health
system education system transportation, et
cetera. So we need to tax the wealthy to be
able to not have these cuts happening.

And as far as nursing hones, as | said
before, thank you for stealing our ideas,
because we have a couple of bills that we
passed out of the Senate -- and these are
good ideas, |I'mglad that you've borrowed
sone of them stole some of them And we
have nore com ng, and we woul d rat her pass
our bills and have the Governor sign them
than have it done in the budget, since they
are wat ered-down versions of it.

Now t o the budget. Nunber -- the
first thing is let's talk about Medicaid
cuts. | will read froma presentation that

you folks did to our staff yesterday

evening -- | wll repeat, yesterday
evening -- in which one of the presentations
says: "Also solving for the global cap

deficits, the renmining balance of $1.2

billion in fiscal year '21 and $455 mllion
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in fiscal year '22 will be used to provide
General Fund relief.”

Pl ease explain to ne this insane idea,
sir, that you will save -- that the Medicaid
savi ngs, that instead of actually closing the
cuts you will actually provide General Fund
relief. Please explain this to ne.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Donna? | think
Donna's going to handl e that.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR FRESCATORE: | am
H, Senator. And |I'm--

SENATOR RI VERA: Hel | o.

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: Hi .
I"'mfamliar with the PowerPoint that you're
describing and in fact had the opportunity to
talk to your staff and other |egislative
staff as part of that neeting.

So let ne, if I could, just take a
mnute, | want to be m ndful of your tinme --

SENATCR RI VERA: Take 30 seconds.

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Ckay.
And | understand your question.

So, look, the -- there's -- we've had

extraordinary enrollment in Medicaid. Thank
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goodness, right? It was a safety net for so
many.

SENATOR RI VERA: Yes. Still is.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR FRESCATORE: W
expect that by March 31st -- yes, by March
31st of this year we'll have 7.1 mllion
people. It will start to go down a little
bit, hopefully, right, as the Mintenance of
Ef fort goes away. Wiich would nean the
pandem ¢ and the energency period was goi ng
away. So that was --

SENATOR RI VERA:  You're great at
filibustering, Donna. You're very excellent
at that --

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: No, | et
nme tell you the -- let ne --

SENATCR RI VERA: Pl ease.

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: -- tell
you the nunbers, right? So the state will --
t hrough June 2021, the state will receive
$4.5 billion in Enhanced FMAP. Right? W
call it eFMAP

SENATOR RI VERA: Ri ght.

MEDI CAlI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: That's
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after we share with the | ocal governnents.
And 3.2 billion of it will be used to offset
this extraordinary increase in enroll nent.

So the state financial plan will pay for that
increase in enrollnent.

What we tal ked about yesterday is that
there is in fact a second part of this, that
t he Medi caid d obal Cap provides funding to
the State General Fund by, in the end --

SENATOR RI VERA: Wait, wait, wait.
Wait, wait, wait. You' re choosing to use
your savings to provide General Fund relief.
That's what the presentation says.

And ny question to you is --

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Yeah,
and in the end --

SENATOR RI VERA: And ny question --
hold on, hold on, hold on. Hold. The
guestion I wll ask you, not unlike -- for
exanpl e, Senator Serino spoke about one
program about ticks, | forget -- Lyne
di sease, right? That's $69,000 for --

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Yeah,
she did.
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SENATCR RI VERA:  You woul d rat her cut
t hat program and a whol e bunch of other
public health prograns that deal with
controlling disease, that deal with conmunity
i ssues, as opposed to -- you will cut that
rat her than use sone of this to actually
avert sone of those cuts?

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: Wel |, |
was tal ki ng about the Medicaid d obal Cap
and that programthat the Senator was tal king
about is not funded.

But what | was going to say here is
that when it's all said and done here, that
there is a benefit to the gl obal cap of about
$1.2 billion, after all of these different
transacti ons happen.

| understand your question also. |
woul d al so, you know, ask you to -- | guess |
woul d just submit that in the context of the
revenue | oss that the state has had and the
calls you' ve heard for federal funding for
the state, and we step back and | ook at the
budget -- not only the closing of the
Medi caid d obal Cap for the current fiscal
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year '21, but the actions in '22, that the
budget doesn't -- and |I'mtal king about on
the Medicaid side -- the budget doesn't
make -- it doesn't in any way dimnish
eligibility for benefits or benefits.

SENATOR RIVERA: Hold on. W will
certainly have a deeper conversation about
this when I"'mnot tine-limted.

MEDI CAlI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Fair
enough. Fair enough.

SENATOR RI VERA: The reality is, as
you wi Il recognize, that this global cap is
an invention, we can get rid of it. And if
we're tal king about the institutions that are
ill-served by your consistent cuts and your
consi stent austerity during the entire
adm ni stration of the Governor -- during the
entire 11 years there's been nothing but
frigging austerity -- and then you' re saying
that you have a savings that you're instead
going to use to give to the General Fund as
opposed to deal with sone of the institutions
that actually offer Medicaid services to

peopl e around the state. Wi ch is bananas
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and frigging crazy. |If it was another
setting, maybe nmy words woul d be different.

Movi ng on, pharnmacy carve-out. Some
of ny col |l eagues asked about this already.
Now, first of all, I will again inplore you
to do not, to not continue with this,
particularly as it refers to 340-b providers.
Whether it be to FQHCs or Ryan Wite
provi ders or safety-net hospitals, the use
this noney for w aparound services for the
nost vulnerable in our state. And it is
unconsci onabl e that you all are considering a
savings -- and | use that word again in
guot ati on marks, because they be cuts -- to
actually make sure that these institutions
cannot provide those services further.

And the $102 million, because | know
you're going to say that -- the $102 nmillion
is not a permanent anything, because the
Governor can renove it next year and it does
not correspond to the $200 mllion that these
provi ders say are going to be cut fromthem

Coul d you give nme |like a mnute of why

this makes sense?
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MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Yeah, |
think we've | ong worked with you and your
col | eagues on issues of transparency on the
pharmacy benefit, and the carve-out achieves
transparency. And we believe that the
Executive's proposal funds 340-b providers
directly, elimnating really --

SENATCR RI VERA: To the tune of --

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: - -
adm ni strative costs.

SENATOR RI VERA: To the tune of half

of what they --
MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: | think
we should -- | think we -- yeah, |let us cone

back and expl ain some of those nunbers, if
you will, rather than ne using your tine
here, because | think that --

SENATOR RI VERA: That woul d be great.
That woul d be great, particularly because --

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR FRESCATORE: Because
| think -- | think -- right.

SENATCR RI VERA: Wioa, whoa, whoa.
Since you're on the record sayi ng you woul d

provi de the nunbers -- because you fol ks are
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al so fanous for never providing the nmath,
telling us about the nunbers and never
telling us how you got to them

| want to nove to -- there's three
nore issues --

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR FRESCATORE: W' ve
shared those nunbers, Senator. Senator,

t hose cal cul ati ons have been shared many
ti mes over.

SENATOR RIVERA: Geat. | am |l ooking
forward to seeing them

There's a couple nore issues. | wll
definitely use ny second round. But for the
moment | will take advantage of the CDPAP.

We tal ked about this already, right? There's
the process that was into the budget |ast
year with the MRT 2, right? Mny of us voted
agai nst it because we thought it was a bad

i dea then, we thought it was a bad idea.

But the idea of getting -- of actually
scaling down on Fls is a good one. However,
there needs to be a little bit nore
transparency on that process, and we need to

make -- and as far as process of appeal,
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because al though certainly we do not need
400 Fls, there are questions about the
{inaudi bl e} that were ultimtely picked.

| only have one nore mnute. On the
vaccine thing -- and I will come back,
because we need to tal k about the
Essential Plan, but | will do that in ny
second round. For now I'll just say quickly,
on the vaccine -- and this is a further
exanple of what | started with. You al
continue to say, M. Conm ssioner, that you
are doing the best. W are 42nd in the
country. There's 50 states, we're 42nd as
far as getting it to people.

And the rollout has been consistently
evading working with local entities |ike the
City of New York or localities around the
state. And you m ght have eventually gotten
to it, but when you started to roll it out,
it was about the administration creating a
paral |l el system where you all could claim
credit for it and not working along with
localities. Now, you all can say you didn't

do that, but you did. As in you didn't work
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with localities across the state. And that
ultimately does not solve the probl em of
getting nore peopl e vacci nat ed.

So pl ease, the last 20 seconds, just
take this, just sit with this a second, just
breat he and say, you don't get everything
right. Every now and then it is okay to say
that you didn't get everything right. And
per haps working along with your coll eagues,
like us and localities, you would do a little
bit better.

I will conme back for a second round,
Madam Chair. Thank you

CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEIN:  So we will go

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Any response at
all or -- I"'msorry. D d the doctor want to
say anything in response to that |ast
guestion of Gustavo's?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  No, | -- one
second. | hear his concerns. | say what |
sai d before about the vaccines, that this is
a conplex process. But we are working with

the communiti es.
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And | said that, you know, at the
beginning of this it was a -- it was a little
bit of a challenge. W were focused on
certain areas, we were trying to get into the
hospitals, and then we were noving to the
ot her ar eas.

As -- and | would just reiterate, this
is one of the nost difficult challenges the
country has ever faced, to immuni ze an entire
popul ati on of, you know, 250 million-plus
people, so -- 300 mllion people.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

CHAl RAOVAN VWEI NSTEI'N:  Yes, we go to
Assenbl ywoman Reyes, three m nutes.

There you go.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN REYES: Ckay. So | --
nmy col | eagues have asked a | ot of questions,
so | amgoing to be brief and nake the best
use of ny three m nutes.

So the Governor's Executive Budget
cuts the state's Article 6 public health
mat ching fund rates for New York City from

20 percent to 10 percent, while other
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| ocalities have a rate of 36 percent. And
until two years ago, New York City was al so
at the 36 percent rate.

So this further cuts the New York City
public health matching funds. It wll take
around 38 mllion in state public health
mat chi ng fundi ng away from New York Gty --
in the mddle of a historic pandemn c.

Did the New York State Departnent of
Heal t h advi se the Governor's office to cut
public health matching funds from New York
City? And did the New York State Departnent
of Health eval uate what negative inpact this
cut to public health funding would have on
the ability of nei ghborhoods in the Bronx,
Br ookl yn, Queens, Manhattan and Staten Island
to fight COVID-19 and the racial health
di sparities?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So a coupl e of
parts to that question.

Nunber one, we -- we -- | understand
we cut it in New York City, that's what the
budget is proposing. You have to renenber

that New York City does get resources from
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many ot her places, particularly fromthe CDC
and el sewhere. And many other counties in
the state do not.

And as a departnent that is focused on
the entire state, and to nake sure that
everyone gets what they need, | am concerned
with every area. You have the North Country,
you have out west, you have the Southern
Tier. There are nmany areas where there are a
| ot of challenges as well, just |ike New York
City has its challenges. W wanted to be
sure that we could provide the funds to those
counti es.

Regardi ng health equity, | hear you.
| hear you not just in the interests of
New York City, but across this entire state.
This is sonething that we have fought prior
to the pandem c and we continue to fight.

And we saw this, we saw this particularly
during the first part of this pandem c in
March and April downstate -- because that's
where it was concentrated -- where those who
were from communities of color were nore

affected by this.
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And t he Governor has made a conmit nent

to make sure that the vaccines and any ot her

care -- testing, anything else when it cones
to this pandem c -- have been focused on
t hat .

ASSEMBLYWOMAN REYES: |'m runni ng out

of time, and | have anot her question.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Al'l right.
Sorry.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN REYES: We can argue
t hat we can make better decisions to address
the racial and health disparities.

So it's also widely expected that
students will require additional physical and
nment al heal th, behavioral health support from
their schools during and after COVID- 19
Many ot her states have expanded their
school - based Medi caid programs to fund these
types of district services with federa
dol lars. \What steps has New York taken to
noder ni ze our progranf?

And in the sane vein, the global cap
ainms to control state spending on the

Medi caid program Wy does this fixed
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percentage apply to the school - based
progranms, which represent |ess than half of
1 percent of the overall budget, even though
expansion could net schools tens of mllions
of dollars when they need it nost fromthose
f ederal dollars?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Donna, do you
want to touch on the global cap?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Sur e,
| "' m happy to address that.

And | think you know that we have in
New York a school -based health program
Medi cai d covers those services, actually
out si de of our Medicaid managed care rates,
but -- and Medicaid pays those school - based
health centers directly.

W' ve had sone discussion with fol ks
about whether or not the services in schools
coul d be expanded and whet her there's other
ways to claimfederal Medicaid matching
dollars for those services. And we | ook
forward to continuing to have those
di scussions and to | earning from ot her

states. And they've graciously offered to
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col l ect that information, and we'll convene
wi t h them agai n.

On your issue of the gl obal cap, al
state -- generally all state spending on
Medicaid is counted within the gl obal
spendi ng cap under statute as it was enacted,
you know, several years ago.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.

We'll go to the Senate now.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Qur next Senator is Senator Pete
Har ckham from West chester County. And ot her
counties al so, sorry.

SENATOR HARCKHAM  Thank you.

Comm ssi oner, good to see you. Thank
you for being here.

| want to follow up on the overdose
line of questioning a little bit nore. You
know, the data that we conpile is essenti al
to responding in realtine, both
geographically and fiscally. So the fact
that, you know, we're behind New Jersey and
Connecticut to ne does not bode well. To ne,

you know, someone who passes from overdose is




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

282

just as inportant as someone who dies from
COvVID. And we have prioritized the ability
to get daily nunbers for COVID, and yet we
are still nonths behind when it cones to
over dose deat hs.

So one of the things that
epi dem ol ogi sts are recomendi ng i S using
enmergency room syndrom ¢ surveillance as a
new way to predict overdose death, to get at
much nore tinmely nunbers so we can use that
information in the field.

Is this sonmething that your departnent
has | ooked at? And how are you conmtted to
expediting the recordi ng of overdose nunbers?

(Pause.)

THE MODERATOR. We're not hearing you,
Comm ssioner. The m crophone.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  The -- we have
| ooked at this issue and the use of energency
roons for not only tracking nunbers but also
for care

And prior to the pandemic we actually
were working significantly with both the

hospital systens around the area -- and |
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remenber actually being at one of the
neeti ngs downstate about this to figure out
how we can conme up with sonme systemthat is
uni versal that could work across the entire
state to address care of those who arrive in
t he emergency roons, but also to track it.
So | would wel cone the opportunity to
sit down with you and to go through this,
along with nmy team so that we can actually
tackle this a little bit nore. Because this
i ssue of opioids that you raised as well as
your colleague raised is an inmportant issue.
And we have not forgotten that this
was and continues to be one of the nmjor
i ssues that the country is facing at this
point intime. It just happens to be that
t he pandem c seens to have eclipsed nany of
t hese other health issues, but we are focused
on themas well.
SENATOR HARCKHAM  Can | interrupt for
a sec? | just have time for one other
guestion. But thank you. 1'd be happy to
sit down with you and your teamto work on

this. A great step forward.
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| want to follow up on what
Assenbl yman Cahill was asking about -- in his
district, because of the need for surge, the
shut down of behavioral health facilities. In
his case, it was noved out of that county.

In other instances, we're hearing they have
j ust not reopened.

Are you prepared to issue specific
directives to the hospital systens that when
the COVID energency is over, they have X
period of time to reopen their behavioral
heal th beds or face certain sanction?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Let's -- | would
like to -- | wuld Iike to look at that. 1'd
like to get through the surge and fl ex
situation, or the pandem c and the surge and
fl ex approach that we're using.

But | think what we're going to find
is after we get through this, we're going to
be able to figure out a systemthat works
nore efficiently and effectively for the
state, and also to address the behavi oral
heal t h i ssues.

It is -- | have noticed, and |'ve
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spoken with the nental health professionals
both in the state and outside of state
government, about the need to nmake sure these
facilities are available for the residents
within the state. So |I recognize the concern
that you have as well as Senator {sic} Cahil
and many ot her peopl e have had about this.

So we will work on that, prom se.

SENATOR HARCKHAM  And ny time is up.
| would just suggest that the tine to figure
this out is now, not after the pandem c.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: | hear you. |
hear you.

SENATOR HARCKHAM  Thank you.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

CHAl RAOVAN VWEI NSTEI'N:  Yes, we go to
Assenbl yman Bronson.

ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Thank you,
Madam Chai r.

And Conmi ssi oner, thank you for being
here. 1'mgoing to ask two questions. The
first one | hope we can take care of very

gui ckly so we can get to the second.
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And the first one relates to the

Medi caid carve-out. And it's been brought to

my attention that health plans have been
instructed to send letters out to their
beneficiaries stating that the
fee-for-service carve-out for the Medicaid
drug programw || be inplemented starting
May 1st, and that they should send out
notices to the beneficiaries on March 1st.
You know, what's the reasoning for

doi ng this now when we know that we're in

negotiations in the mddle of the budget to

address this issue, and hopefully cone to a

resolution? Wuldn't it be better to wait
for those notices to go out until after we
finalize the budget around April 1st?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Donna, do you
want to --

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  So
again, quickly, 1'l'l junp in and just, |
guess, explain the timng.

And that is that |ast year's budget
enacted a pharnmacy carve-out from Medicaid

managed care that could occur on or after
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April 1st. The notices that you were
mentioning are a federal requirenment whereby
consuners need to be noticed under federal
regul ati ons 30 days in advance of a change in
benefits. So that's the explanation of the
tim ng.

You know, | hear your question, but |
just wanted to explain the timng.

ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Okay. Well, we
need to get this negoti at ed.

I n connection with nursing homes and
in particular famly visitations, | have been
i n communi cation with a nunber of people at
DCOH on a quite regul ar basis since |ast fal
trying to get guidelines for visitation. |
was very hopeful on Friday when the notice
came out, and then on Monday very, very
di sappoi nt ed.

Way, why cannot our famly nenbers
visit nursing homes under the sanme health and
safety protocols as staff nmenbers? They're
doing the sane thing out in the conmunity,
and they conme in. Wiy can't they get in on

t he sane protocol s?
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COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So | hear you on
this. And | amvery enpathetic to the
situation of those who are in nursing hones
and their famlies.

The chal |l enge here is not the state
alone. | open up the guidelines there and I
put themout, do as nuch as | can, but there
are CVS guidelines that we need to adhere to.
So we are -- our hands are sort of in sone
ways tied, that they say that if you' ve had a
case in the nursing home within 14 days, you
can't goin. So we end up with 185, 188 this

week, of nursing honmes that had visitation.

The challenge is that -- the concern
isit is still ending up in the nursing
homes. Right? The cases are still there.

We're testing people twice a week, the staff
we're testing twice a week, right? And so
that is -- but even testing twi ce a week,
even with 50 percent of the nursing hone
staff now i mmuni zed, even with 72 percent,

75 percent of the residents inmunized, we are
still seeing cases.

Now, they've dropped dramatically.
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The nunber of cases have dropped in the

t housand -- | nean, | think it's like a

t housand | ess one week than it was the week
before in the nursing homes, which is great,
because of the vaccinations that have been
adm ni stered.

That is the problem | opened this up
as best as | can, but | still amconfined by
the rules of the federal government as to
what can be done. | wi sh as nmuch as you if
you coul d open up. There are people who have
not seen their relatives in a year. There
are people who -- | understand the nental
health effects of this. | had a grandnot her
in a nursing home years ago, and | renenber
|l eaving her and | felt |like she was so | onely
| eft there al one.

So |l get it, | really get it. And |
wish | could do nore. It's just that |I'm
doing as much as | can to hel p them have
visitors there.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you. To

t he Senat e.
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CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
nmuch.

Senat or Rat h next.

SENATOR RATH. Thank you, Madam Chair.

And t hank you, Conm ssioner Zucker.

| want to expand on the vaccine
di stribution and allocation issue, which has
been tal ked about and several questions have
been asked earlier today. Specifically, |
have two areas of concern that tie right in
with nmy district.

First, currently there are about
1500 pharnmaci es across New York State which
are approved to vacci nate, yet over the
several weeks of the pharnacy rollout, many
of these independent pharnaci es have not
recei ved any vaccines at all, and sone of
t hese i ndependent pharmaci es have cont act ed
me. They have hired staff, they have
nodi fied their facilities, they have
col | aborated wi th pharmacy school s and

medi cal schools to roll out and to be

capabl e, but they're not getting any vaccines

what soever.
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And so |' mwondering how the state
wi |l address this inequitable distribution
anongst our independent pharmacies. And what
is the reasoning or justification that
count| ess pharnaci es across New York State
have been left wi thout allocation despite
bei ng approved as sites to vaccinate?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So -- and this
goes back to that old -- | guess it's an
econonics principle, which is supply and
demand. Right? There's an incredible demand
for the vaccines, and there's just not enough
suppl y.

And so we're sitting there and | --
and we get it out to the pharnmacies. W also
have to get it out to all these other sites,
the hospitals, to the nursing hones. Right?
We have six FEMA sites right now, there's
105, 000 appoi ntnents. W' ve enrolled, you
know, a nunber of appointnents in New York
State; there's over a mllion that we have.

But | hear your question about the
pharmaci es and particularly the independent

pharmacies. | will work on getting an answer
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as to why they have not received it, versus
others. And | will go back to nmy vaccine
teamthat are working on this to get a
speci fic answer for you about it.

SENATOR RATH.  Thank you,
Conmi ssi oner - -

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  But it goes back
to that basic principle of supply and demand.

SENATOR RATH:  -- it will definitely
be appreciated. A witten response wll
definitely be appreci ated, because there are
many of these pharnacies who are |ike, why
are sonme pharmaci es continuously, nonth over
nmont h and week over week, continuing to get
vacci nes and sone have gotten none? And
they're very frustrated and have invested a
| ot of noney.

But | want to go to ny second question
because I know nmy tine is ticking here. So
far the state's primary focus for Phase 1B
vacci nation has been on utilizing mass
vacci nation sites. However, this |eaves
seniors and those in travel as well as

br oadband deserts with significant barriers
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t o vacci ne access.

Is there a plan to aid those counties
with these access barriers, specifically
rural and agricultural counties across
New York State? Do you have a plan for that?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So there's two
parts to the answer to that. W do -- we are
| ooking at that issue in the bigger picture
of getting into the rural areas of the state.

But you bring up the issue of seniors,
and | will bring up the fact that there's
al so the issue of how do you get those who
need to be vacci nated who are at honme and
al one and sonmewhat homebound. So we are
wor king with an organi zation starting in
certain areas of the state right now, and
we'll see how it goes, to be able to get
vacci nes to those who are basically
homebound, because they need to be vacci nated
as wel | .

And soneone will say, well, they're
not goi ng out --

SENATOR RATH.  Thank you,

Conmi ssi oner.
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COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  -- but peopl e
are coming in to see them --

SENATOR RATH: | just want to add,
Comm ssi oner, very quickly, CGenesee, Ol eans
and Wom ng counties have a plan at Genesee
Community College. If | could have a witten
response to a plan for that specific idea for
100, 000 residents, |1'd sure appreciate it.

Thank you, Comm ssioner.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Ckay, got it.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: W go to
Assenbl yman McDonal d.

(Pause.)

THE MODERATOR:. W are asking himto
unmute and start his video, and he has not
done so at this tine, Madam Chair.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: | guess he's not
t here.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Ckay, then we
will go to Assenbl ynmenber Gandol f o.

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCLFG:  Thank you,

Chai r.
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And t hank you for being here with us
t oday, Comm ssi oner.

| just want to | oop back to sonething
one of my col |l eagues was tal ki ng about
before. | thought | heard you close out and
say that you did not believe that the March
25th order had any inpact at all on the
spread of COVID in nursing hones or deaths in
nursi ng hones.

Can you expand on that a little bit?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Sure. And happy
to do so. As |I've nmentioned before to other
menbers of the Legislature, that | can
explain this in a couple of ways. Let ne
just start with the science on this.

Vell, first let me start with what
brought this into the nursing homes. This
goes back to the nursing hone report, it goes
back to the July 6th presentation. It cane
in through inadvertent spread by the staff,
asynptomatic spread, at a tinme when we were
unaware of how this virus spread. That's the
first part.

It was in the nursing hones, it was in
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98 percent of the nursing homes, 98-plus
percent of the nursing hones prior to any
person being readmtted froma hospital to a
nursi ng home. That's nunber two.

Nunber three is the issue of how the
di sease actually is spread and the incubation
periods and at what point is sonmeone
contagious fromthe disease. And | went
through this before, that there's a w ndow of
time prior to when your synptons occur when
you are contagi ous, and then when your
synptons are there, early on you' re the nost
contagious. This is all about viral | oad,
how much - -

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCLFG  Ckay, thank
you, Comm ssi oner.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  -- how sick you
are.

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDOLFO | recall you
said that before.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Ri ght..

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDOLFG: But so what
you're saying is that this order could have

had zero inpact, based on the scientific --
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COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Yes, that is
correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDOLFQO  Zero i npact.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: That is correct.
Coul d there be that random one person that
came in? You know, | can't say for -- you
know, | never like to say something is like
100 percent or zero percent.

But what I'msaying is that there
coul d have been that random person that may
have cone into one nursing hone. But that is
not the case, it was not in the -- this nmeno
was not the driver of nursing hone
fatalities. [It's just not the driver. And
all the data fromthere going forward
supports it, in New York State as well as
around the country and, for that matter,
around the world when you | ook at the
literature

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCOLFG  Ckay, thank
you, Comm ssioner. | just want to clear up
whet her or not it could have at |east had one
case that m ght have cone in.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: (| naudi bl e.)
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ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCLFG:  And | al so want
to -- I know the Governor had a recent press
briefing, he mentioned that he would be fine
wi th making public the data that was turned
over to the DQJ. 1Is -- has there been any
novement on that? Do we have a status on
whet her or not that is being made public,
regarding the --

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: | am aware of a
letter that -- my legal teamdeals with the
DQJ issue. M data team as we know, deals
with nmy data anal ytics issue. These things
are occurring in parallel and while |I nanage
deals with the pandem c and all the issues
that we have been dealing with on that, so.

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCLFO. Ckay, so
there's no tineline there yet. Got it, thank
you.

And a final question. G ven the fact
that we're able to convene the Legislature
al nrost imredi ately via Zoom is there any
public health reason to allow the Governor to
retain his expanded energency powers?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: That's -- that's
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a question that is outside of ny scope, |
will say. [It's above ny pay grade. And so |
| eave that to others to answer.

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCLFQO:  Okay. Thank
you, Comm ssi oner.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very

much.
CHAI RAMOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  Yes.  Senat e?
CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Senat or

Ober acker .

Are you there with us, Senator?

SENATOR OBERACKER:  Yes, | am

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Ch, good. Hell o.

SENATOR OBERACKER: Hello there. And
t hank you so nuch, Madam Chair.

And Conmi ssi oner, thank you too for
taking the tine.

You know, we're one state -- |'ve
heard this throughout the pandem c fromthe
Governor. The rural region | represent was
forced to shut down even when nost of ny
counties had extrenely | ow nunbers of cases,
if any.

Now, with the vaccine being
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distributed, nmy district is conpletely
forgotten. State-run sites are nowhere to be
found. No |onger one state, | guess.

Here's a letter | received today from
a constituent in Bovina Center in Del aware
County that speaks very eloquently to the
situation.

"Dear Senator Oberacker: As of today,
there is no place for people over 65 to get
t he vacci ne anywhere in or near Del aware
County. Pharmaci es are apparently no | onger
getting the vaccine.

"The Del aware County Board of Health,

t hrough the Departnment of Aging, was prom sed
100 vaccines, just to have the delivery
cancel ed. Bassett Hospital to date has held
two clinics with 100 shots avail able for

each, which was booked up in mnutes.

"The only state sites that currently
have availability are restricted to zip codes
none of which -- none of which -- includes
Del awar e County.

"I understand that the limted supply

and the weather are contributing to the
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del ay, but | do not understand why our rural
area is basically being ignored. W have a
very large popul ation of elderly people who
wer e supposed to have priority and have been
virtually cut out of the vaccination program

"Can you |l et me know what you are
doing to secure vaccines for the vul nerable
popul ations in our district, or at |east |et
us know when t he vaccines m ght becone nore
readily avail abl e?"

Comm ssi oner, what am | supposed to
tell my constituents?

COMM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So with regards
to what to tell those who are elderly in your
district, I will say that the focus has been
on those over the age of 65. | understand
your concern that there's not a state-run
site there, and we can | ook into and see
what's the cl osest site.

Sonme of the chall enges that one cones
up agai nst when it comes to rural areas is
there's a distance to travel, and | recognize
that. That's one of the challenges in

upstate New York that we see.
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And then it comes back to, as you said
and |I've said, a supply issue. And so once
we have nore supply, we can get it out there.
Bassett Hospital, |'m happy speak with the
CEO of Bassett and see what else is
transpiring there or have our teamthat's
wor ki ng on vacci nes work on that and see what
things we can do working with Bassett's
outreach. Because | know that they have a
significant outreach into the conmunity.

So |l et ne get back to you on sone of
t hat .

SENATOR OBERACKER:  Conmi ssi oner,
as -- thank you. Thank you.

And as well as a businessman who deal s
with materials nanagenent in nmy conpany, |
woul d make this recommendation. Could the
state just be worrying about procuring
vacci nes? Could we have a plan in place
where we distribute those to the counties?
Al right, we have our counties' health
departnments and enmergency services. From
there, they can be distributed to each and

every one of those fire departnments in these




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

303

towns. And I'mtelling you, it would be a
great way to get shots in the arns.

Thank you.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  And | know - -

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you - -

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Just qui ckly, |
just -- | do know that we're working with the
comunities on this. And let's see where we
are after the end of this weekend when nore
vaccine's out there, assuming J& is approved
and we get to that next step there. So
hopefully that will help increase supply.

SENATOR OBERACKER:  Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: W go back to
Assenbl yman McDonal d, who had an issue with
his video, | believe.

(Pause.)

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Audi 0 now.

ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD: There we go.
Now we' re there.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  There we go.

ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD:  Sorry about
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t hat .

Dr. Zucker, it's good to see you

For the first question, right off the
rope here, you nmention in your witten
statenents about the great work done at
Wadsworth. And both Menmber Fahy and nysel f
and Senator Breslin are concerned that the
funding for Wadsworth was not included in the
proposed budget .

| don't know, do you have anything you
can add to that? W' ve gotten limted
i nformati on on what's happeni ng. But
obvi ously, you know, Wadsworth is very
i mportant not only to New York State but to
the country and it's a najor inpact here to
the Capital Region

COWMWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Sure. So | just
had a conversation with our Budget Director
about this exact issue the other day. The
commtnment is still there, the comm tnent on
the Governor's part and the conmtnment on the
adm nistration's part, to build a new
Wadswor t h Lab.

What we have seen with this pandem c
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is that there is a new way of |ooking at how
we operate a | ab, both the research aspect
and the clinical delivery aspect and all of

t he partnershi ps that we have devel oped over
time. You know, Wadsworth has had many
partnershi ps with conpani es.

So we are nmoving forward on this. The
| ab has been such a critical conponent of
managi ng this pandemc. As | nentioned,
literally a year ago this week the test that
cane out for COVID-19, the first one outside
of CDC, was done at Wadsworth. | will tell
you it was Friday a year ago tonorrow that
t hat happened. And it changed the pace of
how testing was done. And then they al so
work with all the other testing sites in the
nation.

And when -- we were talking earlier
about this genonme sequenci ng and sayi ng,
wel |, how do we know? That's because of
Wadsworth. That's how | heard this norning
about exactly what's going on. There have
been some | abs out there who have said, Al

we have is variant. | renmenber the first UK
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vari ant that they thought they had, they
cal l ed Wadsworth. It wasn't.

So | amso thrilled with our Iab that
we have. But it is still on the plan, we
just need to work it through the right way.

ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD:  Is it stil
committed to the Gty of Al bany?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD:  COkay, that's
i mportant.

Anot her qui ck question, this goes back
to a neeting that you and I and a coupl e of
ot her people were in a couple of weeks ago.
W tal ked about HERDS data and the way it's
reported, we tal ked about SPARCS data and the
way it's reported. One's done by initials
and date of birth, one's done by full nanme
and date of birth, and that added to part of
t he chal | enges of getting accurate
i nformation.

One question | didn't think to ask at
the tinme, but since |I've got you here, is the
department | ooking to rectify that so that we

have the sane information being reported
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going forward, so that way we can accurately
pull information when we need it?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Sure. So as |
nmenti oned before, one of the things that wll
come out of this pandem c, the silver |ining,
is how do we deliver public health -- how do
we deliver care to patients, and al so how
does the public health systemwork. And
there will be major changes as a result of
it.

One of it is to streamine how data
comes in, how we process data, how data
integrates with other data sets and data
pools. So we will address it. W have to be
sure that when we do this that we nmaintain
the patient's privacy. That's what we had --
and not to reiterate this, but when we
started this whole thing, we were getting the
data fromthe HERDS i nformation and we just
wanted initials and age and what ot her
conorbidities because we were trying to
figure out how to manage it and figure out
what was this disease, who was getting it and

how do we manage it. W weren't as
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interested in |like what's their nane and
ot her things, we just wanted to figure out
how to deal with it.

But going forward, this will be one of
the things that will conme out of this. And
some of it -- you know, the MDS systemis a
federal system SPARCS is state, HERDS is
state, the ECLRS systemis our |ab system
So we will work on this and figure out how to
do this.

ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD:  Thank you.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. And
it goes back to Senate.

Senat or Todd Kami nsky.

| know you were with us a m nute ago,
Todd.

SENATOR KAM NSKY: Can -- can you hear
me?

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Yes.

SENATOR KAM NSKY: Thank you.

Good afternoon, Doctor.

There have been numerous troubling

reports in the press and ot her places about
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procurenent fraud that was conmtted upon the
state when trying to get essential supplies

| ast year. And I'mwondering if it's
possi bl e that we can get a full accounting of
what we think was -- of how New York was
defrauded, to what anount, and to what extent
New York is trying to recoup that, and what
steps we can take to nake sure that doesn't
happen goi ng forward.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: W can do
this -- we -- tw parts to this one, al
right? One is we can -- we have been | ooking
at this, we have been | ooking at how to
recoup |l osses. Cbviously that's in the
interest of the state and the citizens, the
resi dents of New York, obviously.

The issue is also that we were in a
situation early on where we were focused on
how do we provide the care that we needed,
and we searched everywhere to try to get the
necessary equi pment -- the ventilators, the
PPE, the testing -- well, the testing we
started doing in the state, but even sone

ot her tests that were out there, new rapid
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tests or other ways to do testing. It was an
unbel i evable tinme early on when we did not
have the information, we did not have the
publ i c know edge.

But | understand the issue about
resources that are spent, taxpayer dollars
that are spent, and to be sure we can recoup
that, and we are working on that. And a |ist
we can get together. | know people have been
working onit, and I'll find out fromny
teans and others within the adm nistration
how we can get that to you

SENATOR KAM NSKY: Ckay, thank you.

And with respect to the nursing hone
guestion, noving forward to where we are
t oday, there have al so recently been reports
that some of the | atest updated findings are
troubling to sone famlies about very | ow
nunbers at nursing homes where a nunber of
people in the community, you know, may all --
(background noi se) -- sonething, you know,
nore than what may have been reported to take
pl ace. For exanple, there was a February

20t h New York Post story about a nursing hone
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inny district that says maybe three -- only
three people -- deaths are attributed to that
nursi ng home, when there are far nore
famlies that know that's the case.

So as we stand here today, can you
gi ve us sone type of assurance or tell us
what famlies should want to know about how
t he new updat ed nunbers shoul d be vi ewed, how
accurate they are, and what you and your
agency can do to make sure that whatever
nunbers are out there are inportant and
accurate. As you know, a |lot of these
famlies -- all of these famlies are
grieving, want to know that the information
is accurate and that they' re obviously being
treated with transparency and honesty, and
some of these nunbers appear to give them
concern.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So t he aspect of
what we do do at this point is obviously we
do the inspections and we take a | ook and see
if there's any -- if soneone said, well,
there was only three deaths in that nursing

home but relatives say there were nmany nore,
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we have these on-site inspections.

And that's why we've done, as |
nmentioned earlier, over 2400, with
enforcements of -- over a thousand
enf orcement s.

But going to your question about going
forward, which is where |I think we should be
| ooki ng -- how do we nove forward, what do we
need to do on this -- so we have put forth
sone of the issues as the Governor has
nmentioned in the budget and |'ve spoken about
before. But also it ties into your question
or Senator MDonal d' s question about the data
alittle bit, I think, about these different
data pools where we get information. And we
are going to try to make sure that noves
snoot her.

The issue -- this brings up this issue
of data and how you | ook at data and how you
verify data. And it is a conplex process.
What you raised is the issue of how to nake
sure that the data is precise. So when we
nove forward, we will get that done.

SENATOR KAM NSKY: Thank you, Doct or.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

313

And just a final question on the

hydr oxychl or oqui ne i ssue, on veterans and
veterans' homes. Can you give a definitive
stat enent about consent within those cases,
pl ease?

COMWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Sure. Sure.

So |l -- and I've heard a | ot about
this. Here's the situation with that. The
doctor-patient relationship is paranount.

And any therapy that's given to a patient has
to get approval by the patient or the
heal t hcare proxy of that patient.

The issue with the hydroxychl oroqui ne
is at the point that it was given, the
hydr oxychl or oqui ne was consi dered a potenti al
therapy. That, along with azithronycin as a

conbi nation, could be a therapy to inprove

out cone. It turned out not to be the case.
There was a concern -- | know peopl e
have thrown this out -- that there are

i ndi vi dual s who may have had, you know, heart
probl enms. Yes, the conbination of those two
may, W th somebody with a certain type of

abnornmality on their EKG in very rare
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i nstances, very rare instances -- and | went
back and | | ooked at the literature a couple
of days ago, looking at this. There's
sonmething called a QT interval, it's part of
that little squiggle on your EKG -- we don't
have to go into the details on that.

But the conbination of those two could
have been a problem But it's extrenely
rare.

It was the doctor-patient
rel ati onship, the decision was nade by the
patient. And then when we realized that
hydr oxychl or oqui ne was not hel pful, we
stopped giving it -- long, actually, before
the federal governnment, the FDA said not to
give it. And we also |ooked at this issue to
be sure that there were no individuals
har med.

So | know this has come up, but this
is one of the those things that | say there
are facts out there, but the people are just
heari ng something and they believe that, and
not the facts.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: | | et you go over
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because that was a public health question.

Thank you very nmuch. Assenbly?

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: W go to
Assenbl ywoman d i ck.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GLI CK: Ckay. They
won't let me start nmy video. Wich is fine
because -- oh, there we go -- because | may
have to cut it off if | can't be heard.

Dr. Zucker, two things. But before
start, let me say that | agree with
Senat or Hoyl man that Manhattanites need at
| east a set-aside -- | don't think we need a
whol e new site. Javits is large. But
somet hing needs to be on the website that
allows for people to click off a Manhattan
zip code so that a set-aside, whether it is
10 percent or 20 percent of the vaccines,
could go to Manhattanites at that center.

| don't think we have to reinvent the
wheel and create a new physical site. |
don't think that's worth the time, noney and
effort.

There is an Article VI1 that woul d

allow for out-of-state practitioners to
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participate in telehealth. 1It's sort of a
license -- a licensure, an interstate
licensure agreenent. Wiich | think is
concerning, since people nmay not know whet her
or not -- you know, New York has very
rigorous |icensure, which nmakes us a pl ace
where people cone. And it is concerning to
think that we woul d be having fol ks doi ng
t el eheal t h whose qualifications mght not be
the sane as our New York State practitioners.

That's number one. And nunber two,
there is an e-prescribed exenpti on change
which | think requires veterinarians to
becone e-prescribers. That mght not be a
problemin nmy district, but in a lot of the
state we have a lot of trouble with
broadband. So on that basis, that could be a
serious problem particularly in rural
conmuni ti es.

But in addition, a lot of folks --
i ke nyself and other pet owners -- don't go
to the | ocal pharmacy, which is nore
expensi ve, but use sonething |ike PetMeds.

So you' re asking consuners to pay nore for
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nmedi cations for their aninmals at a tine when
peopl e are already stressed.

And then the last thing is the
elimnation of the Enpire Cinical Research
| nvestigator Program | don't know how ruch
you're saving, but it does seemto be a snall
anount for what could be a very inportant
thing, especially since we're trying to
support bi omedi cal research

Coul d you address the interstate
| icensure and e-prescribe?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: Let ne see if |
can do this quickly.

So on the issue of telehealth, yes,
recogni ze this is a critically inportant
i ssue overall. And we do want to make sure
there is -- that the physicians who prescribe
or use telehealth are clearly nmeeting the
standards of the state.

The Governor and all of us have been
| ooki ng at ways to strengthen the O fice of
Pr of essi onal Medi cal Conduct, which runs
t hrough ny departnent.

E- prescri bing and the thing regarding
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the exenption, I'mgoing to get back to you
| have to look into that.

Regarding the elimnation of the
i nvestigator program | -- over the years |
have tried, you know, to keep that in the
budget, and we've worked on that. But we are
in a very tight budget year. And | |ooked at
where sone of that -- those investigations
can -- is there other ways for themto
recei ve the fundi ng they need.

This is a tough one. | went through
this the other day thinking about this
{unintelligible} -- well, what else can we
do? So | recognize that's a chall enge.

And the | ast one, the broadband
issue -- just as an aside, this is not the
Department of Health, but | know the Governor
has a strong comm tnent to naki ng sure that
the state has excell ent broadband and that we
can get to every area of the state. That's
obviously a different departnent. But |
know | heard hi m speak about that at one
poi nt .

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GLICK: Well, | know.
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And the Governor says that it's 98 percent
coverage. And | can tell you personally that
when | amupstate, | have to shut off the
video, | can't get connected.

And if you're going to ask
e-prescribers who are vets who are out at
farms dealing with |arge aninmals to get
online to prescribe for their aninal
patients, it's not going to happen.

And there are going to be consequences
that are -- it's a small -- | thinkit's a
ridiculously small anount of nobney, but there
has been sone noney associ ated as a savi ngs.
And | think that that will cost pet owners
much nore than the state will save. |If they
save anyt hi ng.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.
We'll go to the Senate.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much. Qops, sorry, lost ne for a second.

And our next Senator is
Senat or Hel m ng.

SENATOR HELM NG Thank you,

Senat or Krueger.
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Dr. Zucker, thank you for your
testi nony today.

There have been a trenendous nunber of
guestions that have touched on topics that
are very inportant to me -- getting kids back
to school, reuniting | oved ones who are in
nursi ng homes, strengthening nental health
services, and doing a better job of providing
access to the vaccines to people living in
rural comunities.

But | wanted to go back for a nonent
and tal k about the nursing honmes and the
spread of COVID 19 in nursing hones. It
seens to me that the adm nistration
continually points the fingers back to the
nur si ng homes thensel ves, and even soneti nes
to the staff. You talked about it in nicer
| anguage today, using nicer |anguage, calling
it inadvertent spread. But Dr. Zucker, we
all know that there was a | ack of access to
PPE, to tests and so nmuch nore prior to
the -- at the start of the pandem c and
t hr oughout the pandemi c.

But it just -- it makes ne wonder what
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t he heck was DOH i nspecting and eval uati ng?
You tal ked about the nmany inspections that
DCOH was conducting. Well, were you | ooking
to make sure that the facilities had adequate
i nfectious control plans and that protective
equi pnent was in place? Because it doesn't
feel like it to me.

Al so you nentioned, you know, about
going -- where do we go from here, how do we
do a better job, and you keep tal king about
this policy |anguage that is going to be
included in the budget. You're talking about
proposi ng i ncreased penalties and hei ght ened
enf orcenent nechanisns that will really
penal i ze t hese nursing homes and
long-termcare facilities.

And we all know there are bad actors,
and | certainly want those bad actors to be
hel d accountable. But it's just frustrating
to me, because it's ny understanding that not
a single facility was under receivership.

And | don't understand that. It suggests to
me that maybe the departnment is not using --

or could better utilize the tools currently
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avai |l abl e.
And it makes ne wonder, do we need
t hese additional penalties, or does the

departnment really need to step up and do a

better | ob.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So we -- |'m
sorry --

SENATCR HELM NG | want to continue

because staffing is a concern. R ght? W
hear about it all the time. Dr. Zucker,
agai n, when that subject cane up earlier, you
poi nted back to the budget and you tal ked
about how there's patient over profits,
payi ng nurses nore. | think that's great,
don't disagree with it.

But in a report that you issued back
i n August 2020 you identified -- or you had
Cornell and others identify there are nmany
nore i ssues outside of increasing pay. W
have a workforce devel opnent issue. | want
to know what you're doing about it, where is
that outlined, how do we get nore people in
the pipeline? W don't have enough trainers,

right, for some of these RN higher-degree
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progranms. There's just so nuch nore that |
t hi nk needs to be done.

"' mgoing to keep tal king because on
t he i ssue of conmmunication and transparency
t hroughout this pandenmic, as a person who
represents nore than 300,000 people, | have
heard fromyou twi ce. You' ve done two
presentations to the Mnority Conference.
Each tinme you started with a | ong Power Poi nt
and you had linmted availability to us. W
couldn't ask you questi ons.

It's a shame that this type of
conversation has to happen during a public
heari ng on the budget. As a |eader, | don't
under stand why you can't hold infornational
sessions with Denpbcrats and Republicans
al i ke, why we have to be segregated into
these different groups. It's wong. You're
a | eader, you need to get this public health
information out to us so we can share it with
our constituents. It will calma |ot of
peopl e down, right, if we're nore transparent
and we conmuni cate better.

| do want to just -- | don't see the
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clock, but in ny Senate district and

t hroughout New York State we have an issue
with local fire departnents that offer EMS
services where the private service is not
avai l able. They're under a great deal of
strain both financially and froma

recrui tnment perspective -- again, going back
to workforce issues.

Are you aware of this issue? And |
want to know if the departnent is taking any
actions to quantify this problemand to
devel op sone | ong-term solutions. Because
when people are getting sick or -- they don't
have anmbul ance service available to them

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So on sone of
those issues, I'll quickly try to address
them |'mgoing to start with the |ast one,
t he EMS issue.

W are working with the EMS comunity.
Several years ago they raised some of the
i ssues you' ve raised just now from your
district, but also for across the state, to
make sure we inprove the workforce. And |

know that's been a challenge. | can get you
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nore information in witing afterwards.

Regar di ng communi cati ng, yes, we
have -- | have personally comuni cated on
many of these issues through webinars and |'m
happy to continue to do so. Fromthe
st andpoi nt of this pandem c, | don't know how
many tines |I've been out there speaking on
webi nars on many of the different issues that
we have spoken about this norning and
af t ernoon.

On the issue of staffing, yes, the
Governor has put forth -- and this is one of
the key parts of nursing home reform to nake
sure that there is patient care over profit.
And as | said earlier, patient care conmes to
the issue -- goes directly to the issue of
staffing. And there's percentages of how
much is going to go to staffing. | can go
through that. |It's a 40 and -- 70 percent
for patient care and 40 percent to staffing.

But I want to be respectful of tine.

SENATOR HELM NG But our nursing
homes don't have people they could hire. Qur

hospital s don't have --




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

326

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: W' re wor ki ng on
t hat .

And with regards to the PPE, there's
23, 24 mllion PPE that went out there. And
we nmonitor this on a regul ar basis every
single day. But you have to renenber, early
on --

SENATCR HELM NG  You and | tal ked
about this back in August during
the hearing --

CHAI RWOVAN KRUEGER: And you' re goi ng
to continue the conversation, but not right
now because the tinme has been on zero for
you.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Okay. Thank
you.

SENATOR HELM NG Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: W go to
Assenbl yman Jensen, three m nutes.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Thank you very
much, Madam Chair.

Thank you, Dr. Zucker.
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As |'msure you' re aware, there's
currently efforts underway to put into
statute mandatory resident care hours in
nursi ng homes and staffing ratios in
hospitals. DOH s own report fromthis past
August stated that this is going to cost
upwards of $4 billion in increased staffing
costs for hospital systenms and nursing hones.

First of all, nmy first question is:

Do you support these sort of nmandates in
facilities?

Secondarily, is there in this year's
budget a strategy fromthe state to help
these entities with those increased costs,
especially when our not-for-profit nursing
homes are operating on margins of less than 1
percent ?

So those are -- those are ny questions
to start with.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So | -- |
support the need that we have to have nore
staff. | think that a specific ratio -- |
don't think that that's the way to go. But

we need to get nore staffing.
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And as | just mentioned, this was one
of the issues that the Governor has put forth

in the bigger picture of nursing hone

reforns. | support that.
Regardi ng the costs, |I'Il take a | ook
at the budget and see what else -- how el se

to address it. But as you know, this is a
negotiation, right? And so when the budget
negoti ati ons happen, | would turn to all of
you to discuss that with our team when this
is at the table and on the table. 1'm not
gi ven the opportunity to actually sit there,
as you know, in the process of how the budget
takes place. But | certainly support that.
ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: W th respect,
Comm ssi oner, you've certainly stated over
t he past year -- you have a very |large voice
with the Governor. So certainly if you
believe that that is a priority, | would
assume, as you've done with other issues, you
woul d bring that up as sonething that he
shoul d take attention to.
Secondarily, you tal ked about

staffing, that we need nore staffing. | one
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hundred percent agree. So as the |eader of
t he Departnent of Health, what is your plan
to hel p hospitals and nursing hones attract
nore staff, specifically RNs, LPNs and CNAs?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So there's two
parts to that. One is the nursing honme part
and one's the hospital part. They interact,
but I will tell you that the Governor has
made a conmitnment, as | said before, saying
he won't sign the budget unless there's
certain issues of reformin the nursing
homes, and staffing is part of it. So that's
t he one part.

The hospital issue -- well, actually
t he hospital issue and the nursing hone issue
in one way tie together, which is the
prof essional -- the need to increase the
anount of people going into this field and
t he professional growmh and devel oprment t hat
needs to take place. It's not just the
nurses, the RNs, but it's of course the
entire healthcare delivery systemand all of
t hose who are the heal thcare workf orce.

And we need to do that. And we need
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to do that -- sorry. Yes, go ahead.
ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN:  So as a nedica
prof essional, as a leader in the health
field, how would you -- how would you attract
nore CNAs specifically to facilities?
COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: | think what you
need to do is you need to devel op a system
t hat gives you professional growmh and not
have soneone feel that they go into this
job -- and particularly |I could use the
exanpl e of someone who's a hone heal t h ai de.
Right? They go into that job, and then when
a different job beconmes available and it's
gi ving you nore of an increased salary, you
say, well, I'mnot going to do the hone
health aide, I'mgoing to junp to that job
And so you need to devel op a system
where they have nore -- a little bit nore
i ndependence. And |'ve spoken to the hone
heal t hcare agenci es about this specific
thing. And I'mgoing to tell you on a
personal level I'mvery famliar with this,
because ny father was at hone with many hone

ai des who were helping him-- in the dozens,
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over the years. And | said, How do you give
thema little nore i ndependence to nmake

deci sions, the healthcare decisions or
clinical decisions? And | said we need to
devel op a systemthat's nore efficient and
nore effective and keep people there. And
sone were better than others, and we need to
make sure to take those who are better and
put theminto a | eadership role to bring
others in and show that this is a

pr of essi onal devel opnent aspect, not just a,

guote, job that they will then nove to
sonewhere else to -- where there's nore
noney.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN:  Thank you
Conmmi ssi oner .

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: | nean, | guess
the one thing I will add is, you know, I'm --
we're tal king about this situation, but the
fact is that these healthcare workers on the
front lines were the ones who were out there
who were managi ng the pandem ¢ and out there
taking care of people on the front line. And

| applaud themall for what they did.
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And they put their own lives at risk
and their famly's lives at risk because, you
know, if they got sick and they brought it
home, early on when we didn't even know how
to protect people, they may have cost the
lives of others. And perhaps that happened.
Because | know of ny col |l eagues who died from
COVI D who worked in a hospital. So | hear
you.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you,
Conmmi ssi oner .

W're going to go to the Senate now.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much. And the next Senator is Senator Phi
Boyle, fromLong Island, if he's still with
us.

Are you here, Phil? Ah, there you
are.

SENATOR BOYLE: Thank you,

Madam Chair. Thank you

And t hank you, Conmi ssioner.

Comm ssi oner, two quick questions.

One is regarding the March 25th directive. |

was hearing fromconstituents in the days
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i medi ately after that, very concerned, they
had parents in nursing homes and

COVI D-positive patients were brought back
They told ne that the nursing hone officials
had said that they were directed not to

di scri m nate agai nst COVID-positive patients,
and two of them nentioned the Ryan White Act.

And nost peopl e woul d not know what
the Ryan White Act is. | just happen to know
because | worked on Capitol Hill when it was
passed. Obviously H'V and COVID are
contracted very differently.

And so the idea of discrimnating
agai nst COVI D positive patients, did that
come fromyour office? Because it doesn't
seem|like that's a nedical decision. D d
t hat come fromthe CGovernor's office or sone
ot her entity?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: Let's just talk
about this for one second. The guidance said
t hat you cannot deny adm ssion, and that does
not equal you nust accept. And if they felt
that the hospitals -- you know, if the

nursing homes felt that -- they could have
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just said, | cannot accept that patient. So
that just -- we'll put that, you know, just
on the table there so you understand that

i ssue.

The issue of the HHV -- you know, and
| -- 1 -- 1 know the whole history of HV
because, you know, when | was a nedi cal
student, we didn't even know about this. It
was the beginning of HV. And | watched how
there was issues of discrimnation that was
out there over the course of the early days
of HHV and the early years of H V.

So that is sort of the issue about not
discrimnating. |'mnot sure what you've
heard about sort of saying, well, this is
exactly why you want to do this with COVID.
The issue was you can't discrimnate agai nst
sonebody because you can't sort of say, Well,
| don't want the person with COvVID. Because
prior to this pandem c, there were patients
with C. auris, which is a fungal infection
and a |l ot of nursing hones nay have said --
or people said -- | don't want the patient

with C. auris, | don't want something
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spreading in ny facility. And you can't
di scri m nate agai nst people, particularly
when you need to take care of them

And the | aw says, and CMS says it,
that, you know, there's -- you -- and the CDC
says it. And this happened | ong before the
pandem c. These were the rules that were in
pl ace | ong before the pandemic. Wen we put
forth that guidance, we were using the -- we
were using our -- the know edge we had from
our federal partners. And |I've said that
before. And | know peopl e sonetines say,
Well, you're just saying, well, the federal
government said that --

SENATOR BOYLE: Ckay, Doctor, thank
you. | appreciate your answer very nuch.
just want to get another quick question, very
qui ckly.

The CDPAP programis very popul ar
anong ny constituents. Your departnent just
denied a | arge nunber of very qualified
agenci es, and ny constituents are concerned
about it. Wy did you decide to deny and

close the majority, | believe, of the large
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CDPAP agency provi ders?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Donna, do you
want to take that?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Yeabh,
"' m happy to do that quickly.

So not in last year's budget but the
budget before, the departnent was given the
authority to selectively contract with fisca
intermedi aries. There were sone 400 or so in
operation. W issued a conpetitive process.
The applicants were scored against criteria
consistent with state | aw about their
experience, their geographic accessibility,
their ability to -- their cultural and
I i nguistic conpetency, their ability and
their denonstrated record of follow ng rul es
and requirenments, including |abor |aws.

We did that conpetitive process. W
announced the awards on February 11th. | was
asked a question earlier -- there was a
debriefing process for organi zations that
were not selected to -- so that we can --
they can |l earn nore about where their

proposal was viewed as strong and where it
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was vi ewed as not as strong.

Look, there's 139,000 people in the
Consuner-Directed Program This sel ection
gi ves every consuner choice -- in fact, the
choi ce of over 50 FIs in New York City and in
no upstate county will a consunmer have a
choice of less than 24, | believe. So this
sel ection achi eves the objectives and the
requi renents of the state |aw.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you.
We'll go back to the Assenbly now, to
Assenbl yman Ander son

ASSEMBLYMAN ANDERSON:  Thank you,

Chai rwonman Wi nstein, and thank you,
Chai rwonman Krueger.

| have several questions, but | want
to make a comment first. As a new nenber,
we, you know, wanted to question you,

Dr. Zucker, a couple of nonths back, | think
it was Decenber or January, to ask you sone
critically inportant questions around the

i ssues of nursing hones, around the issues of
transparency overall during the COVID 19

response.
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Unfortunately, you were very evasive
and you did not answer a |ot of our
guestions, and we were |eft off that cal
wi th many questions unanswered. But |'m
going to try ny best to get as many questions
ininm little two mnutes that | have left,
in maki ng up for that neeting we m ssed.

There's a lot of -- there was a | ack
of coordination, lack of transparency wth
t he nursing home response. And | do want to
ask, going forward, do you support a safe
staffing ratio for many of our nursing homes
and hospitals that were overl oaded during the
hei ght of the COVID 19 pandem c | ast year?
That's nmy first question.

The second question is in the
Executi ve Budget proposal there are
significant hospital reductions that are
bei ng proposed by the Executive. |'msure
that you and the Executive had a di scussion
about sone of these proposals. But one
that's going to be particularly hurtful and
hurtful obviously in the context of COvVID 19

and the response that we've had to do around
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COVID- 19, is the VAPAP reduction, $99 nillion
in reductions to VAPAP, which provides
critical, critical financial support to our
safety-net hospitals in Black and brown
comunities, like the one | have in ny
district, St. John's Hospital, which now
bel i eve your department is requiring themto
reduce their bed size, even though they've
recei ved t housands of patients during the

hei ght of COVID- 19

In fact, we received the first
COVI D- 19-positive patient in all of Queens at
St. John's Hospital. Now we're proposing
addi tional cuts on that infrastructure, which
| think is incredible.

But it also speaks to ny third
guestion, which is the root of why COVID 19
was so pervasive in Black and brown
comunities, is because your agency | acked
the ability to address health inequities.
Your zip code should not determ ne your
quality of life or health outconmes. But the
reality is if you live in Far Rockaway, if

you live in Jamaica, if you live in the
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Sout h Bronx and you have those zip codes --
and some part of Brooklyn as well -- if you
have those zip codes, it determ nes your
heal t h out cones.

So | want to know, in ny third
guestion, what is your agency going to do
to --

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  Better | eave
sone tinme, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN ANDERSON: |'ve got
30 seconds. | have 30 seconds.

(Laughter; overtal k.)

ASSEMBLYMAN ANDERSON:  And my third
guestion --

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Okay, he's not
going to have tine to answer --

ASSEMBLYMAN ANDERSON:  Right. And ny
third question, really quickly, what do you

plan to do to address health inequity in

{i naudi bl e}.
COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So |'Ill answer
t hat . First, | would take i ssue on the issue

that the departnent has not focused on health

inequities. This has been one of the high
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priorities of the departnent all al ong.

The issue of COVID being increased in
t he Bl ack and brown communities, | concur
wi th what you say. And we've | ooked at that.
|"ve said all along that these health
inequities will be addressed, because they've
been -- you know, they have been uncovered
even further.

It's not just the Departnent of
Health. This is an issue of a societal issue
that needs to address it. So we will tackle
it fromour front, fromthe Departnent of
Heal th and from governnent, at |east state
government. And that's one issue.

So | -- you can -- you have nmy word on
that. And we've been working on this for a
long tine, on health inequities in many
di fferent areas.

On safe staffing, |I've already
answered that question regardi ng what the
Governor's going to -- how to address that
with regards to the nursing hones.

Wth regard to the 99 mllion on

VAPAP, Donna, do you want to tackle that one?
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MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Yeah, |
think I would just quickly say, being
respectful of tinme, that, you know, as | said
before, we worked -- the departnent and our
col | eagues wor ked, you know, with all of the
hospitals and facilities that are essenti al
and in need of immedi ate cash assi stance.

And the reduction in the budget
actually is a funding that was avail abl e but
is not needed, for a nunmber of different
reasons. So that's what it is. There's a
comm tment for VAPAP in the federal fisca
year ' 22 budget.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.

So we're going to nove on to the
Senat e now.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Ckay. Thank you

very rmuch
And our next Senator is Senator -- oh,
excuse ne. | believe it is Senator Brouk.

Yes, it is Senator Brouk.
Are you with us, Sanra?
SENATOR BROUK: |'m here.
CHAIl R\OVAN KRUECER: Hi .
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SENATOR BROUK: Can you hear ne, all?
kay, we did it. Thank you so much,
Chai r wonen.

| "' m happy to be asking these questions
today. | want to start quickly by just
having it on the record, in addition to how
many ot her people have said it today -- |
think it's illogical and unconsci onabl e t hat
we are sitting in a global health pandem c
and that there is even a question of cutting
much- needed funding for healthcare. But
that's not what we're going to go into today,
because | could fill a book with my thoughts
about maki ng cuts when there are dire needs.

| want to tal k about sonmething that is
really affecting the community here in
Rochester, and that is the changes to the
340B program | want to tell you what that
nmeans for the Rochester area. That's going
to affect nine Federally Qualified Health
Centers. They serve 140,000 patients. 1In a
relatively small city, that is a lot. They
will lose a mininumof $11.5 million in

much- needed fundi ng necessary to function.
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These are clinics |ike Jordan Health,
TrilliumHealth -- which is a Ryan Wite
clinic -- and our safety-net hospitals

t hrough University of Rochester and
Rochest er Regi onal Heal t h.

|"mreceiving emails, |'mreceiving
call's. Just now | received an emi
begging -- fromthe CEO of one of these
organi zations literally begging ne to help
stop this, because these are the fol ks who
are feeding, housing, giving transportation
to lowincone famlies, comunities of color,
and people living with HHV -- all of whomare
t he fol ks who have had di sproportionately
negati ve effects because of COVID-19. And at
this time we are going to nake their |ives
harder and nake it harder to get the care
t hey need.

So ny question is howis this the
right time to nove forward with cuts like
this that will so negatively affect our
communi ti es?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Donna, do you

want to address the 340B?
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MEDI CAlI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Yeah,
certainly. So, you know, we touched on this
just slightly before.

So we -- | think we understand and we
appreciate -- |'ve talked to many FQHCs, many
340B providers over the course of the | ast
12 nonths, since the pharmacy carve-out was
enacted, and we understand and we appreciate
t he very val uabl e servi ces.

The question is under the current way
that 340B is funded -- it's by excess
rei mbursenent fromthe managed care pl ans
over and above the cost of prescription
drugs, from which some report that 50 percent
of that excess is taken by third-party
admnistrators. |It's not because the FQHC is
doi ng anything wong; they need to get the
prescription to one of their patients.

So the Executive's approach is
different. It says let's be transparent
about how nuch Medi cai d pays for drugs, and
let's set up direct funding to go to the
Federally Qualified Health Centers, the Ryan

White 340B providers, and others that are
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provi di ng these services. As opposed to
having it in these very opaque kind of
phar macy rei mbursenent structures that --

SENATOR BROUK: Donna - -

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: - -
qguite honestly, the federal governnent's
| ooking at as wel | .

SENATOR BROUK: Let ne finish really
quickly. Sorry, | didn't nmean to interrupt
you, but tine is running out.

But | just -- the answer |'m | ooking
for here is howit's helpful to these
providers to not have it. Like before, they
had a nore direct paynment -- now those
savi ngs are going through the state. And so
that is | think -- that does not make | ogi cal
sense when fol ks are saying that they need
t hat noney and that not having that noney and
that the reinbursenment fund that's set up in
this proposal will not fully make -- fill
t hat hol e.

And | know I"mout of tinme. So if you
wanted to follow up on witten, that's fine.

Thank you.
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MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: We' | |
do that.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  You have many
peopl e aski ng about that program Donna. So
anything in witing that hel ps us see the
argurment that | don't think we're seeing is
fine. Thank you.

Assenbl y.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ywonan
Mller.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN M LLER:  Hi. Can you
hear ne?

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N Yes, M ssy.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN M LLER:  Okay. Thank
you very much, Chairs.

And hello, Dr. Zucker.

You know, |'mjust going to ask ny
guestions up front, and in case there's not
enough time I"'mgoing to ask you up front to
pl ease reply to any of ny questions
afterwards, either by email or if we can
actually ever have a conversation, | would
appreci ate that.

First, | hear you say repeatedly that
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you're very happy to continue the
conversation, to have a conversation, but |
don't know if you realize how hard it is to
actual ly have a conversation with you. 1've

tried very hard several tinmes and sent you

emails and | don't even get a response. |If |
really need a direct response, |I'll contact
Erin or -- but it is very difficult to reach
you.

That being said, |'mjust going to ask
my questions. W've talked a little bit
about CDPAP and a | ot of ny coll eagues have
asked sone of the questions, but I'm
curious -- the process of awarding the
remai ning 68 Fls, as Chairman CGottfried had
alluded to, it seened a little simlar to the
medi cal marijuana sel ection process of RGCs.

It just doesn't seemthat the ones -- the
conpani es that have a history of wage and
hour violations or Medicaid fraud, sone don't
have the financial means to carry payroll,
t hose were awarded the contracts, but not
sonme of the Fls that have been, you know,

serving the CDPAP popul ation for so nany
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years successful ly.

So |'"mcurious, you know, what that
actual process was. It doesn't seemto be
very transparent.

" m al so asking the intended goal of
the fiscal intermediary authorization process
was to ensure the departnent has a record of
overseeing those qualified FI providers. But
the Legi sl ature never authorized or directed
t he Departnent of Health to reduce the nunber
of FIs so significantly. And | have a | ot of
concerns that that drastic reduction wll
cause sonme kind of a bottleneck as
everybody's trying to streanline their -- you
know, the closed FIs into the remaining FIs.

And t he peopl e who woul d suffer woul d
be those not getting their services because
their aides aren't registered yet or the
paperwork isn't conplete.

So those are two concerns | have.

Then last -- well, two nore. On COVID, as
far as reopeni ng schools, reopening
busi nesses, can you define what is an

acceptable risk of transm ssion for school s
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and busi nesses, and what nitigation
strategies will acconplish that? Because we
really do need to get our kids back in school
five days a week, all of them

And then lastly, we've tal ked about --
everybody's asked about the turnover rate.
It's extrenely high, especially in hone care
agencies. Wiy are we cutting by 50 percent
t he home care worker recruitnment and
retention funds? This nore than ever is now
when we need to recruit nore help.

So those are nmy questions. | see |'ve
used up ny time, so | would appreciate a
response directly by enmail or phone. Thank
you.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Okay, we will do
t hat .

CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEI'N: Yes. And
Dr. Zucker, if you could share that with
Senat or Krueger and nyself, we'll make sure
t he other nmenbers have access to that.

Senat or Krueger.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

You may need a few speechwiters to
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hel p you get all of this done in a reasonable
time period.

Next up is -- oh, he's been very
patient all day -- CGeorge Borrello, Senator
Ceorge Borrello.

SENATOR BORRELLO  Thank you so rmnuch,
Chair Krueger. Thank you so nuch.
appreciate it.

Dr. Zucker, thank you for being here.
| want to follow up on the small business
situation. The hospitality industry has been
devastated by this pandem c and the | ockdowns
have been unfortunately far worse. By your
own data -- which |I'm questioning to begin
with -- your own data, only 1.4 percent of
i nfections are comng fromrestaurants, and
yet these | ockdowns and restrictions
cont i nue.

Just as we thought we were kind of
getting out of the woods, you rel eased
i nformati on on gui dance on special events,
things |ike weddings. And at a weddi ng you
cannot have people that are unrelated sitting

at the same table, according to the
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Depart ment of Health gui dance that we
received. However, at a restaurant, you can
have 10 unrel ated people sitting at the sane
t abl e.

What science are you relying on to
determ ne that people at a weddi ng have to be
related but not at a restaurant? That's ny
first question.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So part of
this -- you have to | ook at the guidance --
let me see if | can explain sonme of this to
you on the restaurants and the way things are
set up.

The environmental issues cone into
play as to why we -- the speed at which we're
opening different facilities and restaurants
particularly, particularly downstate. |'m
just going to bring up some points which |'ve
heard that you basically have put a |ight
on --

SENATOR BORRELLO: Well, and | have a
real basic question. How are 10 people
sitting at a table in a restaurant different

than 10 people sitting at a weddi ng? Wi ch,
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by the way, could be the sane restaurant.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: Wl |, at a
weddi ng of 500 people, let's say, or 300
peopl e that are interacting, you have a | ot
nore interactions anong a | ot of different
people there. R ght? And so you run the
risk of a significant problem

| will just personally tell you a year
ago in January, up in New Rochelle before
this all began, | was at a wedding with 500,
600 people and | saw the anmount of
interaction that people had at that point in
time, and | said to nyself, Imagine if this
COVID i ssue was just one nonth later -- or
t he weddi ng was just one nonth later, the
anount of interaction you would have had with
all those different people.

So that's the difference, right?

SENATOR BORRELLO  Right, but I'mjust

saying it's not -- they're limted to
150 people, first of all, so it doesn't nake
any difference. And | apologize, | don't

mean to cut you off, but |I have a short

period of tine.
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Here's ny other question. M wfe and
| both had COVID. And luckily we recovered,
but we spoke with contact tracers. The
contact tracers said -- asked us, you know,
do you know where you contracted COvVID, and
we said no. And then they said, Wll, have
you been at restaurants? Yes. Have you been
in stores? Yes.

My question is, how can your contact
tracer data be accurate when you don't have a
category for "unknown"? | have to believe
t hat nost peopl e cannot pinpoint the point at
whi ch they actually contracted COVID, yet
your data -- and there is no option for
contact tracers to hit "unknown." How do you
justify this data, which you're using to
determne the Iife and death of businesses
ri ght now, when you don't have an actual
category for "unknown?"

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: Wl |, we've
reached 85 to 90 percent of people. W' ve
done about 840, 000 contacts, so sonewhere in
that range. W have about 8,000 or so

contact tracers.
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This is the hard part of contact
tracing; you have to sort of try to get as
much information as you can as quickly as you
can, and you have to try to track the
i ndi vi dual s who are positive or
i ndividuals -- better to say individuals who
have been exposed, to be sure that they're
not positive.

SENATOR BORRELLO  So data -- the
contact tracers are just guessing, is really
what you're saying, that they don't --

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  No, they're not
guessi ng.

THE MODERATOR:  Ti ne.

(Overtal k.)

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  No, they're

doing --

SENATCR BORRELLO. But there is no
"unknown." \What about -- | did -- | don't
know where | got nmy -- where |I contracted

that, and that wasn't an option for the
contact tracers. | knowny tine is up, but
that's a serious consideration.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Ri ght, but the
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contact -- right, but I will say that that
contact tracing and what we have done is what
has hel ped prevent the spread of this

di sease.

| nean, it is just -- these are just
straightforward public health neasures that
are put into place. The nasks, the hand
washi ng, right, the distance -- the social
di stanci ng, the contact tracing, the
vacci nations, these are just the standard
things we do to make sure we prevent this
pandem ¢ from spreading in New York and
el sewhere, for that matter. So --

SENATOR BORRELLO: Wth all due
respect, sir, we have nore people in the
hospital with COVID right now than Fl orida,
with none of those restrictions. So | have
to question the science on this.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  1'mgoing to
take issue with that. But okay.

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: W go to
Assenbl yman Abi nanti .

ASSEMBLYMAN ABI NANTI:  |' m unnut ed, |

guess? There we go.
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Thank you very nuch, Comm ssioner, for
j 0oi ni ng us today.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN ABI NANTI:  Unfortunately
there's been no nmention of one very
vul nerabl e group of people, people with
disabilities. As of this week, the nunbers
|"ve seen, of the 34,500 people who lived in
OPWDD residential settings, 6,716 tested
positive and 538 died from COVID-19. That's
and 19.4 percent infection rate, and a 1.6
fatality rate -- double the state's
transm ssion and six tines the fatality rate
of the state.

Nunber one, on April 10, 2020, a state
directive to OPWDD providers -- al nost
identical to the March nursing hone
directive -- requires return of COVID 19
patients fromthe hospital to OPWDD
residential settings and prohibits their
bei ng tested before return.

How do you defend that this directive
is still effective and has not been nodified?

Number two, on Novenber 10, 2020,
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there was a state directive to OPWD

provi ders, unique to OPWDD, that all ows

di rect support staff exposed to a confirned
COVID-19 case to go to work so long as they
guar anti ne when they're not at work.

In light of the fact that over 11, 600
staff in OPWDD direct-care prograns have
contracted COVID-19, how do you defend that
this directive is still effective and has not
been nodified?

And nunber three, the nunbers that |
was given conme fromthe state. This is about
t hose who got COVID-19 in certified
resi dences. Do these nunbers include those
who died in hospitals, or just those who died
in residences?

So ny three questions are why are we
still requiring direct return of COVID
patients to OPWDD residences? Wiy are we
al | owi ng exposed staff to go into those
residences? And lastly, are these nunbers
actually accurate or do we have the sane
probl em we had with nursing homes?

COWMM SSI ONER ZUCKER: A coupl e of
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t hi ngs.

The first thing is that | didn't catch
all the percentages, and I will go back and
|l ook at them But this is a congregate
setting. This is one of the chall enges we've
had with congregate settings and di sease
spread, whether it's the nursing hones,
col | ege --

ASSEMBLYMAN ABI NANTI :  Yes, but you
your sel f, Comm ssioner, said that the
congregate settings are getting it from
staff.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Yes, so let ne
finish. Right.

ASSEMBLYMAN ABI NANTI:  So why are you
all owi ng staff that has been exposed to go
into the congregate settings?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: Let me -- let ne
finish. Part of this is OPW\DD. You need to
direct it to the comm ssioner of OPWD --

ASSEMBLYMAN ABI NANTI: | did, and they
said talk to the health comm ssioner. They
said all of this conmes fromthe Departnent of

Heal t h.
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COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Number two, the
issue with OPWDD, all those settings, they
have becone a priority for vaccinations so
t hat we can make sure that the residents
there are protected and no | onger at risk.

The issue of testing, |I'd be happy to
follow up on that, but the testing that we
have provided for nursing honmes we provide
for other facilities, and that will hopefully
decrease the spread. But as --

ASSEMBLYMAN ABI NANTI:  The directive
still in effect specifically says that they

cannot test.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Well, | will get
back to you on the details after | | ook at
the directive. | want to go through that
first.

But as | said, fromthe -- the key

points that | have is yes, a congregate
setting, and yes, vaccine is a priority in
that setting to make sure that doesn't becone
a problem

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN:  We'll go now to

t he Senat e.
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CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Qur next speaker will be Senator Julia
Sal azar .

SENATOR SALAZAR: Thank you. Thank
you, Comm ssioner and Deputy Comm ssi oner,
for joining us today.

| want to ask about the -- really what
t he Executive Budget is doing to keep
safety-net hospitals operational during a
ti me when we need themthe nost. The
Medi cai d spendi ng cap, |owered rei nmbursenent
rates, the Executive Budget's threats of
addi tional Medicaid cuts across the board
means that hospitals who treat nostly
| ow-i nconme patients and |ike hospitals in ny
own district are under financial strain.

And | just want to know what exactly
is the Executive Budget doing to keep these
safety-net hospitals operational right now?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: This is an
enornmous i ssue. The safety-net hospitals
across the state were challenged prior to the
pandem c. Since the pandem c, obviously --

particul arly upstate when we cut back on
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el ective surgery and they didn't have cases,
so they were stressed even further. So we
recogni ze that.

We're working with our team the
Ofice of Primary Care and Health Systens
Managenent, to figure out how we can nake
sure they have the resources to continue to
provide the care to their comunities. This
is a chall enge.

Regardi ng the cap, the global cap --
because that ties into this as well, | think
that Donna will address sonme of that. But we
are | ooking at these issues of how
hospitals across the state that were
chal | enged over the course of the |ast year
can neet their needs.

Donna, do you want to address the --

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Sur e.
Thank you, Dr. Zucker.

And speaking for the Medicaid program
| can tell you this is, you know, a concern
that we share as well and we work very
closely with our colleagues and Dr. Zucker

here in the departnent because we understand
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that Medicaid plays an inportant role in the
financial viability of those very needed
hospital s, and other providers as well.

So we talked a little bit earlier
about a series of programs, including the
Vital Access Safety Net Provider Program
whi ch supports projects for facilities that
are selected due to their financial condition
and the role they play in serving
New Yorkers. We tal ked about VAPAP a bit,
including that commtnment as well as the
Val ue Based Paynent Quality Incentive
Program

The budget in '22 includes about
$900 mllion in funding to support those
hospitals. Right? That's over and above
rei nbursenent for Medicaid.

There's al so, you know, a proposal
that we haven't quite touched on and that is
for our Essential Plan here in New York
About 880, 000 people as of this norning
recei ve coverage through that program W've
recogni zed that, you know, those provider

rei mbursenent assunptions have not been
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changed since the programwas first
i mpl enented in 2016.

And so we anticipate, as far as part
of the state plan here, that an additional
$420 million will be invested in provider
rei nmbursenent for both inpatient and
out patient services. Al so helping those
hospitals that are serving those -- you know,
that's a huge program by anybody's standard,
you know, 880, 000 peopl e.

Those are just a few of the
initiatives, and we're happy, you know, to
have further conversation about any of those
programs in nore detail

SENATOR SALAZAR: Al right.
Unfortunately I"mout of tinme. Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

Assenbl y.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Assenbl ywonan
Hunt er, pl ease.

You need to pull her; she needs to
| eave for conference. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN HUNTER:  Very good,
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t hank you. Thank you, Chair Wi nstein.
appreciate it.

This is relative to the consuner
directed. And | don't know who wants to
answer. | know there was a coupl e of
guestions about this.

But et me just lay out specifically
i n Onondaga County, there's over 350,000
resi dents, and not one FI was awarded in our
entire county. So many of the organi zati ons,
the not-for-profits that have provided this
crucial service to many of our nost
vul nerable -- some of our | argest
organi zati ons, some of our organi zati ons who
deal with refugees and new Anmeri cans who
speak the | anguage of those who have cone
here, were not awarded.

And so | heard what you said about,
you know, the award process, and apparently
there's supposed to be sone sort of review
after this. But | literally have Fls in
Rockl and County who are supposed to be now
the FIs who are supposed to provide services

i n Onondaga County.
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So | can't imagine -- | have
not-for-profits, you know, calling my office
trying to figure out what happened,
| ongst andi ng organi zati ons who have been
providing this service for years and years
and years. And we're in a situation now
where not one single provider was given an
award to provi de Consumer Directed F
services in one of the Big 5 counti es.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: So |
don't know the specifics of Onondaga, but |
will certainly look into it.

What the RFO al |l owed was actually
col | aborating partners that m ght be |ocal.
The idea there was that rather than have
every organi zation use funding, for exanple,
to process payroll or to check workers' conp,
that there would be one | ead organi zation
that woul d performthose admnistrative
services, and they woul d have col | aborati ng
partners on the ground | ocally.

So |l will be happy to | ook into your
concerns about Onondaga.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN HUNTER: Pl ease.
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| can understand the coll aboration.
And there has been an abuse with FIs.
admt that there are organizations that
shoul d not be delivering this consuner, you
know, programm ng. But these |ongstandi ng
organi zati ons should be the | eads and shoul d
have ot her organi zations subbing to them

So | amcritical, you know, asking if
you could please take a look at this. It
makes no sense and it nakes no sense to not
have a | ead organi zation to sub even to the
rest in a county as |arge as m ne.

MEDI CAlI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: 1" 11
| ook into that.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN HUNTER:  Thank you.

CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEI'N: Thanks.

Back to the Senate.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER:  Thanks.

Do we have Senator Stec with us still?

SENATOR STEC.  Yes.
CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Hel | o,
Senat or St ec.
SENATOR STEC. Hello, how are you?
CHAIl R\MOVAN KRUECER: Al l right.
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Wl cone.

SENATOR STEC: All right, thank you
very rmuch

Comm ssi oner, Doctor, thank you very
much for your testinony today. | understand
it's been a | ong day.

And |'ve been paying attention and
listening to the questions, so if | could
just briefly start with a statenent. |
just -- in listening to ny coll eagues and ny
own personal observation, | want to say that
your departnent's unresponsiveness to the
Legi slature in our communi cations has been
unaccept abl e and frankly troubling.

And |'m al so personally troubled, as |
know a | ot of ny coll eagues are, about what
apparently has been a partisan kind of
comuni cation as far as having neetings with
one side of the aisle and not with the other.
W're all in this together. And certainly ny
constituents want to be involved in the
di scussions as to what's going on as well.

So with that said, | do have one

guestion that |'ve got to ask, and frankly
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|"m surprised that no one's asked it yet.
Early on, to previous questions about sending
COVI D-positive patients back into nursing
homes, you stated that COVID was al ready
| argely present in these hones from ot her
sources, like in your exanple with staff.

So | just want to understand, in
layman's ternms, if there's one roomwth
50 people in it and one of those 50 people
has COVID, and then there's another room of
50 people and 20 of those peopl e have COVI D,
are you saying that you woul d expect the two
roons to have the sanme infection rates?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: | think that,
you know, you're asking a question wthout ny
knowi ng nore of the details of those -- of
the scenarios. So if you have --

SENATOR STEC. Al l other things being
equal, Doctor. Al other things being equal,
one in 50 and 20 in 50, they woul d have the
sane infection rate?

COWMM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  But how are you
defining infection rate? |If the -- if you're

saying --
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SENATOR STEC. Well, let ne rephrase
it. Wuld you --

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  One out of 50,
2 percent have it. Twenty out of 50,

40 percent have. R ght? Right, | get what
you're saying. That's how many peopl e have
it.

SENATCR STEC: Now, which room woul d
you rather be in? Let nme ask it that way.
What room woul d you rather be in? Wuld you
rat her have your parent or grandparent in the
roomw th one out of 50 or 20 out of 507

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  It's a
hypot heti cal questi on.

SENATOR STEC. It's a very rea
guestion, Doctor.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: Wl |, no, | see
where your reasoning is going here. You're
going to say, well, if there's only one
person who has it in the whole facility.

But the bottomline is that it's in
the facility. And it's in the facility with
one person or nore. And it's not a fair

guestion to ask whether, you know, the room
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had 20 people in there versus one person in
t here, because the disease is there. The
disease is already in the facility.

And so if | were in that room and one
person -- | walk into a roomw th one person
with COVID, |I'd be as concerned as if
wal ked into a roomw th 20 people with COVID
Because it's already there.

| nmean, | understand what your -- what
your point is.

SENATOR STEC. Right? | nean one --
well, all right.

Well, with that said, do you have a
list of nursing hones that foll owed the
directive from March 25th that accepted
nursing -- COVID-positive patients? Do you
have a |ist of those?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: | don't have it
off the top of nmy head, but | do have a I|ist.

SENATCR STEC: [1'd like to see that
list, please.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Sur e.

SENATOR STEC. And al so, do you know

how many COVI D-positive patients were
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accepted at each of these facilities? |If you
don't have that off the top of your head,
would like that as well.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: | can get that.
| can get that.

SENATOR STEC. Al right. | see ny
time is up. | have nore, but I'll continue
to listen. Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y?

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Thank you. Now
we go to Assenbl ywonan N ou.

ASSEMBLYWOVMAN NI QU:  Hello. Thank you

for being here. Thank you for putting nme up,

Helene. | just -- | don't knowif | can see
what was happening. But | just wanted to
say, you know, |I'm seeing in our budget cut

after cut after cut after cut of our
heal t hcare budget and our heal thcare safety
net, and it's very, very concerning. This is
one of the things that | just wanted to echo
a lot of my colleagues on. What Sanra said
isreally, really true, our Senator Brouk

from upstate New York.
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You know, the answer was the
Essential Plan, which is one of the only
t hi ngs that was proposed for funding -- and
that was really concerning because we don't
even know if it's even an all owabl e use under
federal law. And this paynent goes directly
to the healthcare plans rather than to

provi ders, and then we don't even know what

guarantees there are that providers will ever
see this nmoney. So | just wanted to put that
out there.

Al so, many of ny coll eagues actually
submitted nenos and requests for FOL
requests, and not one has gotten a response.
Do you conmt to cover -- to actually hand
over all the comrunications that happened
wi th hospitals' and nursing honmes' | obbyists
regardi ng the corporate legal inmunity?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So regardi ng
FO L requests, we respond to the FOL
requests. W get an unbelievabl e anount of
requests every day. | don't have the exact
nunber; | had it last year, and that was

prior to the pandenic
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There is -- so if there's information
that we can rel ease, we do release it.
Soneti mes you have FO L requests that have
t housands and t housands of pages to them |'m
not exaggerating here, and we have a team
that has to address it. And so we do nove
forward
ASSEMBLYWOVAN NI QU:  Yeah, | nean,
just like -- you understand |ike we've been
waiting for areally, really long tineg,
nmean i ncl udi ng our Healthcare chair has been
waiting for a very, very long tinme on sone
information that is really necessary for the
Legislature to be able to conduct its work.
MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: I f |
could add as well to your first questions --
ASSEMBLYWOMAN NI QU: | actually want ed
to continue to ask a couple of other
guestions. So do we -- because | have
limted time. Do we know how many
COVI D-positive patients were actually
adm tted to nursing homes during that
March 25t h order period.
COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Like | said, we
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can get you that information. That was asked
bef ore.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN NI QU:  Yeah, okay --
COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  But | -- can
clarify this? You were saying how many
COVI D-positive patients were adnmitted to
nursing homes. Now -- and this is a very
i nportant point -- whether soneone is
COVI D-positive does not nmean they are
cont agi ous.
ASSEMBLYWOVAN NI QU:  Ckay.
COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  And | wil |
reiterate this, you know, over and over.
ASSEMBLYWOVAN NI QU: | under st and.
COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  No, | really
want to nmake sure of this point because it's
important. The test that measures COVID
neasures dead virus. You can wal k around for
weeks with a COVID positive test. It does
not mean that you are contagi ous.
So sayi ng that someone went back to a
nursi ng home and they had a COVI D-positive
test does not nean that they are contagi ous.

And in fact when we | ooked at this
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i nformati on and when | was trying to go

t hrough this before about how | ong soneone
was in the hospital and the incubation period
and their initial synmptonms, you will find

t hat people were already past their

i nfectious period, and the viral load is nuch
hi gher earlier on. And | think that's an

i nportant point.

And this is where the issues of fact
get lost when there's a narrative out there
which is just not true. And | don't nean to
be so harsh about this, but it is inportant,
when it cones to science, to make sure it's
correct.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN NI QU:  Ckay, so |I'm
really glad that | was able to all ocate sone
of ny tinme to that inportant PSA. But | just
wanted to al so ask the chai rwoman if
could -- | apologize to ny coll eagues,
because | really did want to get to ny next
guestion and I wasn't able to.

CHAI RWOVAN WEI NSTEI'N: Ask your
guesti on.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN NI QU:  Ckay, great,
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t hank you.

How nmuch does each COVID pati ent
actually get reinbursed in Medicare in a
nur si ng home, and how much hi gher is that
conpared to a regul ar nursing hone resident
who is reinbursed via Medicaid? Because |
want to just -- you know, | feel |ike we need
to have that answer very clearly because, you
know, I'mstarting to feel, with all of these
answers, that there's a clear financial
notive behind every single decision that this
adm ni stration has made.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Wth regards to
rei nbursenent, maybe Donna can answer that.

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Yeabh,
|"d like to suggest may we circle back to
your question, because the Medicare
rei nbursenent, as you know, is not for
custodial care, it's for skilled care in a
nursing facility. So it is a different |evel
of care.

But we're happy to talk nore or hear
nor e about your question.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN NI QU:  Yeah, | would
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really like to get that information. And if

you could just get that for ne, that would be

great, because otherw se --

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: There's

very different criteria, is ny point, about
when Medi care pays for a nursing care stay.
It's not custodial care, it's care that's
generally rehabilitative, it includes
t her api es, and Medi care pays nore than
Medi caid for that reason al one.
ASSEMBLYWOVAN NI QU:  Ckay. | just
feel like there are sone differences also in
just the financial incentives that folks are
getting different kinds of care with
di fferent kinds of financial notives behind
them and we probably need a full oversight
heari ng ASAP.
CHAI RMWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you. So
now we' || go back and go to the Senate.
CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
Senator O Mara. Oh, excuse ne.
Senat or Ritchie was supposed to go before
Senat or O Mar a.

So hello, Senator Ritchie.
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SENATOR RITCH E: Hi, Senator Krueger.
Thank you.

Comm ssi oner, ny questions are pretty
much the sanme two questions | have asked year
after year during the budget hearings. And
you know that | represent a very rural area.
We have some econom ¢ chall enges. A |ot of
the patients that are in our hospitals and
our nursing hones are Medicaid. And | |ook
at the Governor's conprehensive plan on the
nursi ng hormes, and we all woul d agree we want
to do whatever we can to inprove patient
care. But if there's no funds behind it, |
don't know how this is going to happen.

As it is, we've had several nursing
homes in ny district that have closed. CQur
bi ggest nursing hone, as your staff well
knows -- we've called nmultiple tinmes -- is on
the brink of closing its doors. So wthout
an increase in the Medicaid rei nmbursenent
rate, | don't know how they can stay open,
| et al one inplenment any changes as far as
staffing and new patient care.

And along with that, the other
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guestion | ask every year is we are so
short-staffed on nedical professionals,
especially nurses. W have two SUNY school s
that | plead every year is there any way we
can try to find some way to boost the
enrol I ment and help the situation, and it's
gotten worse in the pandenic

So | guess ny question is how do we
acconplish this goal of better care, keep our
nursi ng homes and hospitals open, if we're
not going to | ook at upping the Medicaid
rei mbursenent? And what can DOH and the
state really do this tine to help with the
short-staffing issue with regards to doctors
and nurses?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: (Muted.) On the
second question, we are addressing this issue
of staffing. This goes back to what | was
saying earlier, that we need to | ook at how
we address the professional devel opnent for
heal th professionals, both in urban but
particularly in rural areas.

This is a conversation |I've had al so

wi th our SUNY system | eadership as well,
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particularly the nursing schools that they
have, as well as their medical schools, on
how do you get people out there.

So we will continue to do this.

t hink the pandem ¢ has given all of us -- has
reenergi zed us to nake sure that the
heal t hcare professionals across the state are
there and available, and | don't even need to
go through all the different specialties.

Regar di ng the rei nbursenent, Donna,
did you want to address the Medi cai d nunber
for the hospital chall enges?

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Yeah, |
think on the Medicaid nursing hone -- | mean,
| cannot speak to any one nursing home or
facility's, you know, rates in particular,
you know, today. Happy to talk about that
separately.

But, you know, | think that as
respects the nursing home initiatives and the
accountability and the patients over profit
in the 30-day amendnents to the
Executive Budget, we -- you know, we believe

t hat based, you know, on past reporting that
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there are many nursing honmes that already are
at the levels that are required, the

40 percent on resident-facing care and the

70 percent on patient care.

And we' |l know nore about that as tine
goes on. That has an inplenentation -- an
effective date of January 1, 2022, as you
know, and it anticipates regul ations.

SENATOR RI TCHI E:  Thank you.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: (Okay. Assenbly?

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Yes, we have
Assenbl yman Perry next.

ASSEMBLYMAN PERRY: Thank you, ny
col | eague. And good evening to the team from
t he Departnent of Health.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Not eveni ng yet.

ASSEMBLYMAN PERRY: Some of ny
col | eagues rai sed questi ons about the CDPAP
program and t he whol e new i npl enentati on of
this programthat is supposed to be reducing
costs.

So Dr. Zucker, 1'd just like to ask
you that | think it's -- that the program was

i npl enented as a cost-saving nechani sm and
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it becane nmuch nore used than anticipated or
expected, and the costs soared. So you want
to reduce the cost of this programthat so
many i ndi vidual fam|ies depend on.

Many of the providers who participated
over the last couple of years have conpl ai ned
that the process under this new programis
bei ng i npl enented and the screening and
reviewi ng of these applications was very
ad hoc, so a lot of -- there's a claim of
arbitrary and capricious action and behavi or
on the part of the conpany that was picked to
do this review. There are conpani es that
were provided -- that were sel ected who
submitted al nost exactly the sane
submi ssion -- of conpani es who got conpared
to those who didn't get.

| think there's a need for a real,
real clear, transparent review of all of
t hose applications. | was alarmed to | earn
frommy colleague just now that there are
counties where not even a single provider
within the county was selected. That is

out r ageous.
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It seens sonething is definitely wong
with the whol e process and that it was rushed
or it was not done by people who had the
ability and the know edge and the systemin
place to do this review and make it fair and
transparent, and so that people who are
eligible and qualified to do the job are
sel ect ed.

So | would Iike to hear fromyou if
you Wi ll review this program before you
implenent it. Because the conplaints and the
probl em are outrageously large and it's not
going to reduce the cost of this programif
so nmuch noney is going to a contracted
conpany just to administer it, noney that
coul d be used to provide the program

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Just --
if I could address that.

First, | want to be clear that for the
Consuner Directed Programthe departnent has
and continues to support consumner-directed
care. There is no cut to the |evel of
service here, so consuners don't |ose hours.

| also want to clarify that there was
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no contractor that reviewed these
applications. These applications to becone a
fiscal internediary were revi ewed by DOH
staff. | just want that to be clear on the
record.

The process is in its first stage.
W' ve nade conditional awards. The next step
is to do any debriefings asked for, and nmany
parties already asked for them W talked
about that earlier.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you.

You know, this question has been asked
a nunber of tines and you've given the sane
answers. So |I'mgoing to ask ny col | eagues
to pay nore attention when you speak so that
they don't reask the sanme questions.

So we're going to go on to the Senate.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Fai r enough.
Fai r enough. Good point, Hel ene.

Now it's Senator O Mara, ranker on
Fi nance.

SENATOR O MARA: Thank you, Senator

Thank you for being with us today,

Comm ssi oner, the many hours you're spendi ng
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with us. | do appreciate your tine.

| do have some questions for you, but
al so sone concerns about nmany of your
comments today about being -- wanting to be
open and transparent and have a dial ogue with
the Legi slature when all of your actions
speak to anything but that.

Your department waited until |ast
evening to brief our staffs on $1.6 billion
in Medicaid cuts. W've had no tine to
review and respond to this proposal and
what's out there. You tell us that after --
stonewal | ing the Legislature for over six
nmont hs on information requests, that finally
when you're ordered to turn it over -- and
that the Enpire Center, that was requesting
t hose records, issued a report a week ago,
yet you haven't taken the tinme to really | ook
at that except you know enough to deny that
what ever he's reporting is not accurate.

You stonewal | ed the Legislature on
records, you stonewalled the Enpire Center on
records. And -- but in every one of -- and

t hen you' ve used the DQJ investigation as an
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excuse for not providing records. Yet in
every one of your deferrals of responding to
the FOL request, and in any court argunents
over the lawsuit on that, you never raised

t he Departnent of Justice investigation as a
reason for that delay. So nothing' s really
ringing true here.

But | have a question for you. Who on
t he second floor -- and you know what | nean
by the second floor, the Governor's office
and his top aides -- who did you have
di scussions with over that six-or-seven-nonth
peri od about del aying the rel ease of the
records to either the Legislature or to the
Enpire Center?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: Wl |, as the
Governor has said, you know, |ast week, that
a void was created and that the information
shoul d have been rel eased sooner. And he
regrets that, and | share his feeling on --
feelings about that.

SENATOR O MARA:  Commi ssi oner, whose
decision was it not to release the records?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: | -- | -- | said
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to you -- well, as |I've said, that the

informati on shoul d have been rel eased sooner,

which is what the Governor said. But the --
SENATCR O MARA:  Conmi ssi oner, whose

decision was it to not release the records?
COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  The details and

the specifics of how this cane to pass are

t he subj ect of an ongoing investigation. And

when a full determ nation has been nade

and -- it will be released to the public

about this process.

However, at the present tine --
SENATCR O MARA:  Conmi ssi oner - -
commi ssi oner, have you received any subpoenas
fromthe New York State Assenbly or the New

York State Senate in regards to the nursing
home i nvestigati on?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  The
department -- the legal issues that are dealt
with the legal departnment. And if we get a
letter or a request --

SENATOR O MARA: Have -- you would
know i f you recei ved subpoenas fromthe State

Legi sl ature requesting records related to
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this. Have you or have you not?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  The -- at this
point intinme, like |I said, any of these
i ssues that deal with the legislation of --
or fromthe Legislature, that deals with the
| egal departnment. And | leave it for themto
process that.

SENATOR O MARA: Has the Departnent of
Heal th or the Governor's office, the State of
New Yor k, responded to the DQJ federal
request for information from August or
Cct ober of last year?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So thi s goes
back to the issue about the DQJ letter,
right? And as | said, that nmy -- |'maware
of the letter and | have said that the --
just like ny data teamdeals with the data
anal ytics, nmy legal teamdeals with these
i ssues of any of the letters that -- that
cone in. So |l --

SENATOR O MARA: So you don't know
whet her your | egal team has responded to the
federal requests?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  There is a
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| etter that went back, right, for -- from--
to DAJ and --

SENATOR O MARA:  Wien will we be
provided with that letter?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  There is a

process here. There is a process. And | am

sure that you respect the process that an

i nvestigation is ongoing, and that | am not
going to be disrespectful of a process that
i nvol ves any kind of federal inquiry, any
inquiry. So --

SENATOR O MARA: Have you -- have you
recei ved a subpoena to testify before any
grand jury?

COMM SSI ONER ZUCKER: 1" m goi ng back
to the same issue, that I'"msaying there's a

federal inquiry process that's going on

and -- that | hope that you, as well, wll
respect as much as | will. And that if

that -- when that process goes forward, then
| will coment. But right nowthis is an

i nvestigation that our legal teamwil|
addr ess.

SENATOR O MARA: My tinme is up. But
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find virtually everything you' ve said here
today to be totally without credibility.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  |'m sorry to
hear that.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Al'l right. Thank
you. Assenbly.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN:.  We're going to
go -- yes -- to Assenbl yman Jacobson

ASSEMBLYMAN JACOBSON:  All right. Do
you hear ne now?

CHAl RWOVAN WVEI NSTEI' N: Yes.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: | hear you

ASSEMBLYMAN JACOBSON:  Thank you.
Thank you, Madam Chair. And thank you
Dr. Zucker, for your public service and
testi nmony today.

| wish to address the disastrous
vacci nation process in the state with noving
vacci nation sites and an inconsistent,
confusing and difficult appointnment process.

First, I"madvocating for the state to
establ i sh permanent vaccination sites in the
two cities | represent, Newburgh and

Poughkeepsi e.
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Second, I'mcalling on the state to
sinplify the existing sign-up process, which
can at best be described as haphazard and
frustrating.

Last nmonth | called for this permanent
site. Shortly after that, the state
established a pop-up site at the
Newbur gh Arnory and anot her at Beul ah Bapti st
Church in the Gty of Poughkeepsie. Pop-up
sites are well and good, but residents need
reliability and consistency. W did it for
early voting; we can do it for vaccines.

The cities of Newburgh and
Poughkeepsi e are two of the hardest-hit areas
in the Hudson Valley, if not the state.
Newburgh's infection rate is 8.4 percent,
while the state is at 3.34 percent positivity
rate. Establishing permanent vaccination
sites in these cities would go a long way to
addr essi ng the Newburgh m crocluster and hel p
the many Bl ack and Latino residents of both
cities who have been disproportionately
i npacted by COVI D 19.

Now t o address the issue of vacci ne
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sign-ups. Currently eligible New Yorkers in
search of an appointnment face a hodgepodge of
constantly changi ng rul es and gui del i nes.
Peopl e sign on the state site, and they think
that will be enough. Then they're told they
may sign up on the state website, their hone
county's website, and on the website of every
near by pharnmacy that m ght be fortunate
enough to receive a snmall allotnment of the
vacci ne.

O course | recogni ze the nost
fundanment al probl em had been the nationw de
shortage of the vaccines. However, now we
have a new adm ni stration in Washi ngton and
the Biden adm nistration is doing its job by
accel erating vaccine production. W nust get
ready and reformthe sign-up process now.

Currently appointnments to get a
vaccine are filled within m nutes of being
announced, and eligible residents find
t hensel ves unabl e to nake an appoi nt ment,
whil e additional categories continue to be
added to the list of those eligible. Wile

we are waiting for the vaccine availability
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to catch up with need, which will be soon, we
need to set up a user-friendly system where
eligible residents can sign up either by
phone, w thout endless wait times, or online
and receive an alert when an appointnent is
avai l abl e within a reasonabl e geographic
radius. We need one-stop shopping -- sign up
once, and you will be assigned once a

vacci nati on appoi nt nent becones avail abl e.
It's just commpn sense to do it that way.

Al so, assisted living facilities and
seni or housi ng should be treated |Iike nursing
homes and have pharmaci es or heal t hcare
provi ders go to these residences and
adm ni ster the vaccines. These residents are
generally not nobile, nor conputer-savvy, and
need the vaccines to cone to them

Thank you for your pronpt attention to
t hese pressing matters.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Thank you.

Thank you. W do have, just as an aside, we
have a hundred comunity pop-up sites, we
have 33 sites in NYCHA housi ng, we have six

FEMA sites --
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ASSEMBLYMAN JACOBSON: W need
per manent sites.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  -- |i ke Yankee
St adi um -- what ?

ASSEMBLYMAN JACOBSON: W need
per manent sites so that people know where to
go. And if you have a pop-up site, if you
don't get it in the first 30 seconds, you
can't get an appoi ntnent.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: W' re wor ki ng on
that. We'Ill address it with our team But |
just want you to know, we have over four --
probably by the end of today or tonorrow,

4 mllion people who have been vacci nated who
have been allocated for -- or adm nistered,
shoul d say. And we are noving forward on
this. | hear your concerns. | recognize
them W will continue to work to achieve
the goals that you and all of us --

ASSEMBLYMAN JACOBSON: W need a
si npl e process.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Assenbl ynman, we
have to nove on to the Senate.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
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Ch, | think we're up to ne. H . So,
so many questions have been asked, and |
don't want to repeat anything. But | just
want to phrase sonething maybe slightly
different to clarify.

So we have this global cap nany people
have been tal ki ng about, and we've been
tal king about it for a year. And when it
went into effect -- was it 2011, 2012? Do
you renenber, Donna? Wat was the nunber of
peopl e on Medi caid when we put the global cap
into effect?

MVEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Far

fewer. | don't have an exact nunber,
Senat or .

CHAIl R\MOVAN KRUECER: Wl I, | think it
was about 4 mllion. | could be wong. And
you said we're now going -- we're going to
hit 7 mllion.

So a global cap, if it was a
[imtation on how nuch noney per person in
the program would actually conceivably be
justified because you're trying to limt

growh in the program per person
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But we've al nost doubl ed the Medicaid
program | think, since we started the gl obal
cap. And so to namke the argunment that you're
not doing harmto people's healthcare when
you keep trying to reduce, reduce, reduce the

overall cost of the programthat is now

heal thcare for 7 mllion people instead of
4 mllion people, it's just an inpossible
scenario. It doesn't matter how many tines

we go back and | ook at the nunbers and ask
you for the data -- you just can't provide
heal th insurance for 7 mllion people on a
| oner cost fromwhat you started off on for
4 mllion people, and you shouldn't be
trying.

So it's not a question, it's a
statenent that we really just need to go back
and establish the rational definition for
what a global cap is, and then ask whether we
shoul d be having one at this point in tinme.

Particul arly because not only do we
know we're in the mddle of a world pandem c,
but we've also got nore federal Medicaid

funds coming in than likely we will ever see
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again, and we should be using them not just
to help the people who need it now, but to do
all those other things you' ve tal ked about
today that we all want you to do, which is to
rebuild the public health systemin al
62 counties of the state.

We used to pride ourselves on having
an amazing public health system and |'ve
wat ched it be taken apart. And we hear from
counties -- and smaller counties in upstate
New York and ot her counties throughout the
state have things they used to be able to do
they no | onger have staff to do. And so why
would it surprise us if our nursing homes
were actually in terrible shape | ong before
t he pandemic hit then? W had statistics
showi ng that we had a huge problemw th
nur si ng homes bei ng understaffed and a hi gher
rate of illness than nost national nursing
homes, and a correl ati on between all ow ng
for-profits to have taken over the markets
versus the traditional nodel of
comuni ty- based nursing hones.

And we knew all this was happening,
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and yet it just -- we couldn't get our arns
around it. And you want to get your arnmns
around it, and | believe both of you do. But
we're not giving you a systemthat's going to
| et you unless we actually are funding it
appropriately.

And so |'mnot even going to ask you a
guestion, |'ve just already said what | want
to say, that we really have to be honest
about what we've done to our public health
system what price we're paying for it.
Because one of the prices we've paid for
it -- whoever wants to point fingers at
anyone, that's not really ny style -- is we
had a rmuch higher death rate in our state
fromthe pandem c than other states did.

Now, granted, we got it earlier before
everybody | earned their |lessons. But if we
had had a better public health systemin
pl ace, the personnel in place, functioning
nursi ng homes, distribution of healthcare
beyond gi ant hospitals -- somewhere al ong the
line today people tal ked about CONs. It's a

huge issue, fromny perspective, that we
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continue, despite endl ess conversations about
hospital healthcare is the nbst expensive
heal t hcare, we should be careful and focused
about maki ng sure we have fair distribution
of hospitals statew de, not sone places with
one hospital for five counties and ot her

pl aces with too many hospitals.

And | personally cone fromthe one
area of the state that has the | argest nunber
of hospital beds per patient of anywhere in
the state, and | don't understand why. |
don't think it's good for healthcare. |
don't think it's good for fair and equitable
di stribution of healthcare. And | think we
need a CON system where we get to tell big
private hospitals: W don't need anot her one
of you over here. W could use three of you
down the road, three of you up there, but we
don't really need another one in the East 60s
or the East 70s on Manhattan I sl and.

So | just hope that because of all of
the nightrmares we're living through -- and we
all are, you nore than anyone, people who

work in your agency and cone in every day and
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know what they're facing. And thank you to
all the people who aren't here at DOH who are
trying to get things done every day with a
| ot of angry people at themand a | ot of
angry legislators at them-- who are angry at
t hem

| hope we learn fromthis the | essons
of what we coul d have done right to avoid
sonme of it, what we can do better because we
have survived or will ultimately survive
this. And be -- you know, just be the State
of New York we al ways knew we could be. And
| have to say on health policy we used to
have a nuch stronger system W just did.
Qur public health systemwas better. W
friendly I nsurance chair here, when he was
pl eading with you about the issues for mnental
heal th servi ces and substance abuse services
at the county levels all over the state --
yes, of course we have to do that. That's
what we shoul d be investing our healthcare
noney in, and in preventive services.

So with that, | do -- | usually don't

even tal k that nmuch at these hearings, | just
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direct. But |'ve done ny rant, and thank you
for your service.

And back to you, Hel ene.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ywonan
Sol ages.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN SOLAGES: And thank you
to -- | appreciate the endurance of the
chairs. And thank you, Comm ssioner, for
this opportunity.

| just agree with ny col |l eagues on
transparency and conmuni cati on and al so the
i nportance of a permanent vaccine site in
suburban and rural communities. | think that
woul d be a great effort, especially to
target, you know, underserved conmunities.

However, | want to discuss the crisis
of maternal nortality and norbidity, because
we know that wonen are twice as likely to die
from conplications of pregnancy and birth
than their nothers were a generation ago.

So I"'mstill waiting on comunication
about the Doula Pilot Programin New York
State. | am a sponsor of the legislation

t hat expands Medi cai d coverage for the Doul a
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Pilot Program | was excited in June of 2019
when your adm nistration announced that they
were going to do a pilot program However
|"ve seen that there's been very little
effort made. Last year | asked you the sane
guestion; it was said "I'mgoing to get back
to you," and | haven't received a response.

So what is the status of that progranf

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  We will -- | am
sorry | didn't get back to you about that. |
do renenber the question |ast year, and then
it was shortly -- well, it was when this al
began, so -- and we haven't --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SOLAGES: Yeah. So
won't hold it against you, but -- but today's
a new year, so.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Al'l right.

Well, it's a newyear, and | will get back to
you on it.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SOLAGES: Mm Um - -

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: | don't -- |
have to get the data on that. But | don't
have it right at the top of my head.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SCOLAGES: | hear from
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the doulas, it's not going well.

You know -- you know, we say that we
care about maternal nortality and norbidity,
but in this budget we nake a 20 percent cut
to Nurse-Famly Partnerships, and there's
deeper cuts to that programas well.

So, you know, what is the goal? Are
we trying to inprove -- sorry, are we trying
to inprove maternal and child health and
reduce maternal births? Because by cutting
Nurse-fam |y Partnerships, we're not sending
t hat si gnal

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  No, it's -- as
you know, it's a nmajor commtnment of ours to
address the maternal nortality issue. It was
years ago, when we did the tour around the
state. And we have identified programs to
address this and have had -- our WMaternal
Mortality Advisory council was | ooking at
this, and we do have the doul a programthat
we have been addressing in the past.

| know that this was sonething which
was supposed to get back to you about.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SOLAGES: Yeah, so it's
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two for two.

So I"'mgoing to nove on to the public
heal t h wor kf orce outside of New York City.

We know t hat public health -- our departnents
of health have been reduced about one-third
bet ween 2011 and 2018.

So, you know, is the Departnent of
Heal t h | ooking to strengthen the public
health infrastructure in New York State by
i ncreasi ng funding through Article VI? |Is
that something that you guys are interested
i n doi ng?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: Wl |, we are
trying to strengthen the public health force.

| f you' re asking whether by not giving
funds to the |l ocal conmmunities -- is that
what you're inplying? |1'mnot sure --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SOLACES: Yes, yes,
that's why |I'minplying.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: Wl |, we are
trying -- right, and we are | ooking at the
budget and there are a | ot of chall enges.

There was a question previously

regardi ng New York City and what to do, and |
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nmenti oned the reasons for the cuts there.
And we are trying to figure out other ways to
provi de the public health services that are
needed in the community. W work closely
with all of the communities, and we have been
wor king with them through this pandem c as
wel | .

It is atight budget. W'Ill see what
we can do and continue to work with them

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SOLACES: Because our
departments of health have been doing a great
job locally throughout COVID and, you know,
they really need to be supported.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  And we recogni ze
t hat .

CHAl RAMOVAN VEI NSTEI'N:  Back to the
Senat e.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: W have the
second round for Senator Rivera.

SENATOR RI VERA: |' m back.

Three things. First, Essential Plan.
In your testinony you said that the -- and
"1l actually read the quote: "The budget

will elimnate nonthly paynents for over




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

407

400, 000 New Yorkers," which I'mvery --
that's a good thing. So how do you plan to
cover that elimnation of prem uns, by the
way ?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Donna, do you
know t hat ?

MEDI CAlI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Yeah,
the federal rules around the Benefit Trust
Fund, where the state receives 95 percent of
the tax credits, allows for two things:
Services and reduction in consuner costs.
This is reduction in consumer costs. We wll
i ncrease --

SENATOR RI VERA: (kay. Gotcha. So
the trust fund -- so it's the trust fund.
How big is it right now? How big is --

MEDI CAlI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: The
bal ance in the trust fund that we expect at
the end of this fiscal year is 4.5 billion.

SENATOR RI VERA:  Four-point-five
billion.

VEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Yeah.

SENATOR RI VERA: | asked the question

because | want to nmake sure that we nove
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t hrough these. So why -- so that's -- but |
believe, by the way, that that's a good
thing. However, why are you only elimnating
nmedi cal prem uns and not the $30 vision and
dental premumfor patients? |Is there a
particul ar reason why you chose not to do
t hat one?

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: Wel |, |
t hi nk what we saw was that -- during COVID
was that the $20 premiumfor the nedical care
was causi ng sonme people not to be able to
continue it, or not want to continue it.

And we also, in addition to this
prem um hel pi ng exi sting consuners, the
400, 000, we also believe it drives about
100, 000 new enrol | ees.

SENATOR RIVERA: | would certainly --
| would certainly hope that we use that --
that we use that noney nore expansively, nore
expansi vely and extensively, because it's
there and we should certainly use it.

But | want to nove on to safety nets,
and actually Liz Krueger -- if Liz Krueger

was a basketball player, like basically she
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woul d be |ike that was the biggest of slam
dunks, it's like she flew over a car, because
it's like -- it was absolutely on point.

Now, the Covernor, it is true, has
been consistent in the nessage, at |east,
that there are inportant safety-net
hospitals. You folks certainly did that
here. But so if you are -- so if you are
indeed, if the admnistration is so conmtted
to safety-net hospitals, then how do you
rationalize the proposed cuts to the ICP for
public hospital s?

MEDI CAlI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: | think
the -- for the four or so hospitals that
woul d be affected, the state funding would
not be available. But under the DSH caps,
the funding could still be received with
| ocal dollars, if there was an --

(Overtal k.)

SENATOR RI VERA: So basically you're
putting the onus on counties. Right?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: |t
was -- it's the state share savings, yes.

SENATOR RI VERA: So --
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MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  And,
you know, those -- as | understand it --

SENATOR RI VERA:  -- hold on --

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR FRESCATORE: Sorry.

SENATOR RI VERA: Go ahead, go ahead.

I"mgoing to let you finish that one. Go

ahead.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR FRESCATORE:  |'m
just getting a little feedback, |I'm sorry,
Senat or .

So -- go ahead. | think |I've answered

t he question, yes.

SENATOR RI VERA: (kay. So because --
the thing is that |I'm concerned about you
putting this on counties. Because given the
ongoing fiscal strains in counties, | mnean,
should it be on the counties to nake up the
difference to protect these hospitals? |'m
concer ned about that.

So instead of cutting safety nets that

have been essential -- and they're called
essential for a reason, right -- why don't we
protect then? | mean, this is actually

sonmething I'd |ike to ask both of you,
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particularly the comm ssioner. So do you
believe that we should be raising revenue to
be able to avoid deep cuts to safety-net
hospitals -- (ongoing audi o feedback) --
during this -- don't tell me that the

f eedback' s com ng now when |' m aski ng about
revenue.

CHAl RWOMAN KRUEGER:  Senator Gal |i van,
go on nute.

(Laughter.)

SENATCR RI VERA:  Conmi ssi oner ?

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Are you stil
t here, Commi ssioner?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Yeah, but the
guestion | | ost because of the feedback. Can
you - -

SENATOR RI VERA: Yeah, | figured. Let
nme just --

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Repeat the
guesti on.

SENATOR RIVERA: |'m going to need
t hose 15 seconds back.

The question is would you, to avoid

deep cuts to safety nets that you say that
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you want to protect so much, would you --
woul d you say that we need to raise revenues?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  That woul d be

one -- that would be one option, | guess, we
could tackle that. I'mtrying to figure out
how - -

SENATOR RIVERA: Well, I"'mgoing to --
if you were a legislator, | would sign you on

to the entire package of Invest in Qur
New Yor k.

But this is the last point | want to
make, because | only five mnutes. And |

have a coupl e of other colleagues that were

giving me questions, | just couldn't get to
t hem

But listen, the -- as far as the
gl obal cap, | just want to underline this.
nmean, the purpose of it, which -- it's
arbitrary, and we all recognize that -- is to
regul ate spending on Medicaid. 1In the |ast
fiscal year, the programfaced $2.2 billion

in cuts. And this budget proposal today cuts
wel | beyond what is deemed necessary for the

gl obal cap nmeasure. | nean, you told us
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yoursel f that you had savi ngs here.

So if public health is the priority,
as you stated, Comm ssioner -- and Donna as
well -- and given that 5.4 is nmade avail abl e
t hrough the Enhanced FMAP, a portion of which
is also -- and as | said, it's just bananas
to me that it's being used for CGeneral Fund
relief -- why should Medicaid providers take
a deeper cut so this adm nistration can use
Medi cai d funds for whatever purpose they see
fit?

And I'"mgoing to | eave that question
hangi ng because that's going to be an
underlying thing in this whole conversation
about the budget. Just still kind of crazy
to ne.

Madam Chair, that's ny time in a
second round.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you,
Senat or .

| believe the Senate is done, Hel ene.
And so just take us hone, the Assenbly.

CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEI'N: Ckay. Wwell, |

know Assenbl yman CGottfried needs to go to




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

414

conference, so why don't we have himdo his

second now. |I'mnot sure if he's going to
wait till this portion of the hearing ends.
And then we'll go back, we still have about

si x nmenbers.

Assenbl yman Gottfried.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Ckay, thank
you. So | have a fewthings. [|'mnot sure
| "' m phrasing them as questions, but just
maybe you can send me responses.

Earlier in the day | asked the
superi nt endent of Insurance, you're using
420 million fromthe Essential Plan Trust
Fund for sonething called rate enhancenents.
|"mnot quite sure what they are. But, |
said, federal |aw says that the trust fund
can only be used to reduce the prem unms and
cost-sharing of or provide eligible
individuals. And | said, how does rate
enhancenents cone in under that?

| f you have a | egal opinion handy that
explains that, do not send it to nme --
because oh, ny goodness, that woul d be

attorney-client privilege. So instead, why
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don't you just wite ne a nmeno. Because
attorney-client privilege doesn't stop you
fromwiting me a meno explaining in sone
detail legally how that's kosher.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR FRESCATORE: May |
answer that as a non-attorney?

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Maybe let me
finish just because of the clock.

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Ckay.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  The
commi ssioner | think said that "W support
t he Consuner Directed Progranmt -- and, Donna,
it may have been you who said "No one will
| ose services."

well, first of all, for years the
department has been trying everything it can
imagine to elimnate the Consunmer Directed
Program So don't tell people you support
it, nunber one.

And nunber two, the reason you're
trying to get rid of a whole |ot of highly
qualified fiscal internmediaries is so that
you can nore tightly control the program so

t hat people do | ose services, because the
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fiscal internediaries will know that if they
don't run a ship that denies people services,
they'Il |ose out on the next round of RFP

The conmmi ssioner | think early on said
inrelation to hydrochloroquil {sic} that the
doctor-patient relationship is paranmount. W
may rem nd the executive chanber of that when
we're in budget negotiations about your
proposal to elimnate prescriber prevails.

The last thing to note is many tines
today you've said -- and I'msure you'll say
it many nore times -- "We'l|l get back to

you. This is ny 34th budget hearing as
chair of the Health Conmttee. 1've heard

t hat statenent any nunber of tinmes. | don't
know i f anybody has ever gotten back to us,
certainly virtually never before we were --
had to be done doi ng the budget.

So it kind of feels, and I'm doing a
lot of literary references today, it kind of
feels like Lucy and Charlie Brown and the
f oot bal | .

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR FRESCATORE: Can we

respond in the time that renains,
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Assenbl yman?

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Sure. Sure.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR FRESCATORE: So on
the provider reinbursenment, | just -- | want
to be clear about what it is. So when the
Essential Plan was set up, we needed to nake
some assunptions about how nuch a health plan
woul d pay providers to be able to retain a
network. Right?

The assunption for the popul ation that
we' re tal king about here was Medicaid plus
20 percent. What this investnent does is it
brings that reinbursenment rate closer to
commerci al insurance rates, so as to nake
certain we preserve access.

We believe -- and we can send you your
meno, but we believe that that is an
appropriate use of the trust fund noney
because it is services. |It's paying nore
t han, you know, a hundred -- instead of $100,
payi ng a hundred and -- you know, or $120,
payi ng $130 for service. Qur thinking is it
woul d apply to both inpatient and outpatient.

And you know, as we've talked | think
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over the years, that the assunption about
provi der reinmbursenent is really inportant to
t he access i ssue.

On CDPAPs, we're not trying to
elimnate the program W had a | ot of
di scussi on about the fiscal intermediary. |
take away fromthis --

THE MODERATOR. We're getting feedback
fromthe conm ssioner.

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: | take
away, you know, fromthis conversation today
that there are concerns about the process
that was used to select the fisca
intermedi ari es.

W are in step one of that process.

It nowwi |l go through any debriefings. |If
there's protests with the Conptroller's

of fice, then each and every offerer is

subj ect to a vendor responsibility, which is
part of the state contracting process. And
we -- you know, | hear your concerns today
about geography, hear your concerns about,
you know, your perceptions of who the good

FIs are and who the bad Fls are.
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One of the benefits of this process,
when it's all said and done, is we will have
gual ity neasures and netrics going forward so
we can see and judge the kinds of service --
the quality of the service these consuners
are receiving.

So thank you for letting ne answer.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRIED:  So just to be
cl ear, doctors and hospitals who treat
noder at e-i ncone patients on the Essenti al
Plan, they get a rate increase. Doctors and
hospital s who treat poor people on Medicaid
get a Medicaid cut.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR FRESCATORE: So - -

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  Just to be --
make sure | heard you right.

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: Wl |,
how t he rei nbursement has been structured is
t hose individual s who woul d ot herwi se have
been in the Medicaid program are reinbursed
at the Medicaid -- reinbursenent is at the
Medicaid rate

For those who woul d have been in
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gualified health plans had we not adopted the
Basi ¢ Health Program and we woul d have had
comercial rates, was where that increnent
was.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRIED:  So there's a
rational e, you say, but the bottomline is
noder at e-i ncone people, their doctors get
paid -- will be paid better tonorrow than
they are today. Doctors who treat poor
people will be paid worse tonorrow than they
are today.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  No,
there's -- not worse. That reinbursenent --
ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED: Wl 1, 1
percent worse. They're going to have a

1 percent cut.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: |'m
sorry, the 1 percent does not apply to the
Essential Pl an.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED: | know t hat.
It applies to Medicaid. Doctors treating
Medi caid patients will be paid 1 percent
| ess. Doctors treating noderate-incone

peopl e on the Essential Plan will be paid
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sonme percentage nore.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR FRESCATORE: So | --
we will send you the Essential Plan
expl anation so that you have it, but | wanted
to be able to at | east explain what that
rei nbursenent was and -- as background today.

ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRI ED:  And when do
you think you m ght have that ready to send
to me?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  You
know, our folks start working on it tonorrow.
And - -

CHAI RAMOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  Ckay, and --
nmean, that needs to be sent to
Senat or Krueger and nyself al so.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Yes,
absolutely. Absolutely. Thank you.

CHAl RA\OVAN VEI NSTEI' N Ckay. We're
going to nove on. Thank you.

We're going to go to Assenbl ywonan
Bi chotte Hernel yn.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BI CHOTTE HERMELYN
Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Conm ssioner

and everyone for being here.
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| just have -- | have a list of
things, so I'll just tal k about ny concerns
and you can answer. So first, | do want to

t hank ny col | eague for nentioning and
addressing the maternal nortality issues and
the doula. So certainly I would like to be
one who would |i ke to know t he update on that
i ssue.

And for the record, | do join ny
col | eagues around transparency,
accountability and reporting of the nursing
home deaths and everything that's happening
t here.

The budget proposed to limt Medicaid
rei mbursenent to include only staffing costs
related to contractual arrangenents that
conply with regulatory requirenents. Qur
state's seniors have been disproportionately
affected by this pandem c, and we've seen
firsthand, through a | oved one, how hard the
virus can hit elders. And |I'mjust wondering
how can we be considering any cuts to
Medi cai d during a gl obal pandem c, especially

| ow-i ncome and margi nal communities that were




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

423

hit the hardest.

The second question is the budget
proposes to require PPEs through state
contracts of over 50,000 be produced in --
you know, to be produced made in the U S.
The head of the agency nmaking the purchase
can wai ve this requirenment under
circunstances related to cost, public
interest, availability and tim ng.

During case increases, we saw doctors
suffering from PPE shortages. How can we
ensure that our supplies always neet our
demand? Also, | know there were some issues
around MABEs being |left out of the
procurenent process. |'mvery interested in
knowi ng that because, again, MABES, their
conmunities are the ones that were hit the
har dest .

Tel ehealth is very inportant. | want
to thank you for expanding that. But |
haven't seen anythi ng about | anguage access.
My nother is elderly; | know everything about
a |l ot of managed |long-term care and Medicaid

and Medicare. And she uses a flip phone, so
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| have to be on three-way to speak to the
doctor and her because there's a | anguage
access issue.

So | definitely want to see if there's
anybody who's translating, you know, in her
| anguage and ot her people's | anguages --

Hai ti an Creol e, Spanish, Russian, Polish.

| just want to say that | am
supportive of repealing the Medicaid d obal
Spending Cap. |I'min support of a safe
staffing ratio to increase -- we need to
address that for nursing hones and hospitals.
Access to coverage for immgrants, who are
currently ineligible. And | also agree with
my Senator in ternms of raising revenue,
Invest in Qur New York to ensure that our
safety-net hospitals are covered.

Lastly, under managed | ong-term care,
| am concerned about the home care workforce
recruitment and retention. And | think nore
than ever we need to nmake sure that we
i nvest, because hone care workers are needed
drastically. Thank you -- desperately.

Thank you.
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CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you.

To the extent that there are sone
guestions there, we appreciate the responses
sent to Senator Krueger and nyself.

Next we go to Assenbl ywonan Byr nes.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BYRNES: Are we there?
Hang on. Hang on. Are we up?

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  There you are.
Go ahead.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BYRNES: All right,

t hank you very nmuch. | want to thank you
Madam Chair, and Dr. Zucker for being here
t oday.

And | want to note, first of all, that
earlier, Dr. Zucker, there were sone
statenents you made when chatting with other
Assenbl ymenbers, and | just want to put
something into the record. "This prelimnary
data for the 62 facilities, in time periods
not ed above, suggest that COVID-19 resident
deat hs associated with nursing honmes in
New York State appeared to be undercounted by
DCOH by approxi mately 50 percent.™

Wth deepest regard, sir, that was not
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t he headline, that was the conclusion of the
Attorney Ceneral report. Wat | really would
like to go and chat about right now, however,
is going back to what M. Cottfried tal ked
about many hours ago, and that is the CDPAP
program and the fact that it's being reduced
to 68 agenci es.

The reason | want to talk about it is
because it does appear to be elimnating a
really inmportant programin the Gty of
Rochester comunity, All-Anerican Home Care,
a fantastic business.

When they received the application
recently they were told that after it was
filled out there would be a debriefing, they
woul d be given strengths, weaknesses, a
score, and an opportunity to protest should
they disagree with the finding. After the
application was filled out, then they
received a score but no strengths, no
weaknesses. They had five days to protest,
but nothing to protest from because no
i nformation.

So, Dr. Zucker, what | would really
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like to know, sir, is when you have a
conpany, good conpany, that is given a report
with no strengths and weaknesses to even
attenpt to protest from are you going to be
extendi ng the deadline, that five day
deadline to protest, so that they have a fair
and reasonabl e opportunity and due process
right to be heard on their business?
Qobviously you can't protest a score wthout
knowi ng how the score was even devel oped.

Dr. Zucker?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So | think that
everyone shoul d have due process. So I'd
like to look at this -- the information
further. | don't want to nmake a comment on
somet hing which I don't have all the facts.
| have your facts of what you' ve presented,
but 1'd like to take a |l ook at all the
information. But | ama big supporter of
maki ng sure that everyone has an opportunity
to be heard.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BYRNES: Would you -- if
this is -- what I'msaying is true, would you

extend the deadline to protest?
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COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: | need to --

VEDI CAlI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE: So | et
me -- let me, if | can, Dr. Zucker, junp in
because | think I've touched on this before.
And that is that hearing concerns, you're
right, any offer that was told that their
proposal was not accepted first got a letter
of fering a debriefing and sonme basic
information with an invitation for themto
come back and | earn now. W are now getting
t hose requests, we are handling and
processi ng those requests.

As to the five days, | don't know when
that clock starts counting, but I will go
back and take a look at it. | would agree
that until there's an opportunity for an
of ferer to hear about what their strengths
and weaknesses were, in the judgnent of the
departnment, they should not have to file a
pr ot est .

That protest, by the way, is with the
Comptroller's office. | will go back and
|l ook at the timng of that. | appreciate you

rai sing that point, which was not raised
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earlier, about the five days.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BYRNES: | can provide
you the information on the name of the
conpany.

MEDI CAlI D DI RECTOR FRESCATORE:  Yeah.
| nmean, it would apply, the requirenent is
across all of the offerers. So | appreciate
you telling me the conpany, but it's not
needed for us to | ook at that.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BYRNES: Thank you,
ma' am

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you.

Assenbl yman Norri s.

ASSEMBLYMAN NORRI S:  Thank you,
Madam Chair. And thank you, Conm ssioner,
for the opportunity to speak.

| first want to just thank you and
your team | live in Lockport, New York.
represent Lockport and eastern Niagara
County. And your team has been very, very
hel pful with our |ocal hospital, and
certainly during these trying tines. And
they will be going to a nodified facility in

time, and I would just hope that you will
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continue to provide the assistance, and your
team because we are very grateful for that.

The rural areas all throughout
New York State, but particularly here, it's
very, very inportant for a hospital systemin
this new hub, it's going to be very
important. So | thank the departnent for
t hat .

Regardi ng the trust that you've tal ked
about, and the openness, | just want to
remnd you that it's very, very inportant as
we nove forward, when we're dealing certainly
with the public, that the trust and the
openness fromyou in particular is done.
Because as we're dealing with the
vacci nations, which quite frankly has been a
di saster in ternms of the rollout -- and |
understand the supply issue that you' ve
rai sed, but also we need to get our schools
open and we need to get our businesses fully
operational as we deal with this pandenic

So | just encourage you to please cone
back. |'ve sat through all of your testinony

today, and | appreciate the testinony, but
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there are nmany nore issues that need to be
addr essed.

And | would like to just ask, for
clarification purposes -- in terns of COVID
deat hs, one COVID death is too many. W
heart breaks for everyone who | ost sonmeone
because of COvVID. But could you provide
clarification to me and ny constituents?
Because |'ve asked in three letters to you
how a COVID-19 death is classified and how is
it exactly determined. 1Is it the death
certificate that is used? And is it the
consequences or the mmjor cause used under
those criteria?

And secondly, in ternms of the
vaccination rollout, I would like to just
i mplore you to please sinplify the process.
My office and ny constituents are extrenely
frustrated. Cbviously it's difficult for
themto get appointnents. They're spending
hours and hours, and | inplore you and the
adm nistration to nmake this process
streanlined as we nove forward, to provide

that credibility to ensure that our residents
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are vaccinated in due tinme when the supply
comes and we have a plan to do that.

And particul arly using our businesses
as nobile sites, go right to the businesses,
if you can, to nmake sure -- many people
enpl oyed, hundreds of people -- and also into
our doctor's offices. Wen can we expect the
vacci nations into our doctor's offices?

Thank you very much for your tineg,

Dr. Zucker.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Thank you.

And we are working to get it into
doctor's offices, and we're working to roll
out the vaccination plan across the -- nore
aggressively. | nmean, we're pretty darn
aggressive right now. The issue comes back
to what | said originally, which is this is a
suppl y- and- dermand i ssue. And hopeful |y when
we have nore vaccine, we will be able to get
it out. | hear you on that.

| agree with you that any death from
COvVID or, for that matter, fromanything is
al ways tragic and affects a lot of famlies.

| know that your tinme is out, and |I'm not
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sure whether the chair wants nme to respond.
| can give you sone --

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Why don't you
respond in witing. W've kept you here so
| ong, and we still have --

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Ckay. Ckay,
fine.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  -- four-plus
nmenbers to ask questions.

ASSEMBLYMAN NORRIS: | would Iike a
witten response to that. | would really
appreciate a witten response to the
guesti on.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN:  We' || get

witten responses for all of these questions.

We're giving the conm ssioner a | ot of
homewor k.

Assenbl ywoman Hyndman.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN HYNDVAN:  Thank you,
Chai r Wi nst ei n.

|"mgoing to give the comm ssioner
some nore honework. Sorry about that.

My -- | have a couple of questions on

a different tack. See, |'m an advocate for
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sickle cell, as it greatly affects
African-American communities. And a |ot of
the CBGCs have told ne that there's a delay in
accessing funds for sickle cell. And ny
guestion, what could be causing that delay
and what can we do to streanline it, as
sickle cell patients during this pandem c are
obviously greatly affected because their

i mmune systemis severely conprom sed.

That's nmy first question.

My second question is |I'man advocate
for wastewater testing, which has shown
surprising results of detecting pandemc
spi kes in tests that have been done by
Syracuse University. |Is there any nove by
the Departnent of Health to put this on a
statewi de | evel so with pandemcs in the
future we could test wastewater?

And the last part | have is
St. Alban's Veterans Nursing Hone is in ny
district. And as you know, Bl acks and
Latinos are very hesitant to take the
vacci ne. W have mass testing next door in a

fell ow Assenbl ynenber's district, but there's
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really sone problens in nmessaging. And
what's happened, a | ot of people are | ooking
at that story fromthe city and sayi ng, Wy
would | get testing if people are
experimenting again on African- Anrericans?
Even though St. Al ban's Veterans Nursing Home
isn't predomnantly African-Anericans, it's
veterans. But still a very vul nerable
popul ati on.

So if anything, we are trying to do
mass marketing to get people to get the
vacci nations, but it's -- definitely people

are very hesitant. So anything you could

provide in a way that -- |'d appreciate it.
And those are ny questions. |'d appreciate
if I could get a response -- not now, but

definitely through the chairs. Thank you
COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  You' re wel cone.
| can answer those quickly right now
First issue on the access to funds, yes,
sickle cell disease is sonething we have been
very focused on. And you are absolutely
correct, there is a risk of those who have

sickle cell disease that they're at risk of
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clot and sickle cell crises. And with this
di sease, | can see howit's easily
exacerbated. And it is one of the reasons
that we need to nmake sure that all those who
have sickle cell are vaccinat ed.

On the wastewater issue, we actually
are looking at this and we have | ooked at
this across the state. It is a very good
point that you raise; that is a way to pick
this up earlier. 1It's also a way to pick up
a lot of things earlier. And so we have been
doing that, and | have ny environnmental team
wor ki ng on that.

On the issue of the veterans hones, no
one i s experinmenting on anyone. Please, if
you can -- | carry that nessage out there,
and if you can please carry that nmessage out
for me as well, that would be great.

The -- we -- it goes back to what we
said before, and | know we' ve spoken about
this already, about trust. And | really
woul d ask that everyone carry the nmessage the
vaccine is safe, it's effective, the nore

peopl e vacci nated, the sooner we'll get
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t hrough t his whol e pandem c

But no one is experinenting on anyone.
| know this is sonething which has surfaced
and there's this hesitancy and worry, but |
pl ease wi sh that you would bring that nessage
back to your community as well.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN HYNDVAN:  Thank you.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.

W' re going to go to Assenbl ywonan
Seawr i ght .

ASSEMBLYWOVMAN SEAWRI GHT:  Thank you,
Chai rwoman. | know it's been a | ong day, and
t hank you, Comm ssioner. | just have three
really, really quick questions.

|"mgetting reports fromresidents at
Col er Hospital, a long-termcare facility on
Roosevelt Island in ny district, that staff
are refusing to be vaccinated. |Is there or
are there any guidelines fromthe state that
we can mandate an education program for staff
in nursing homes to help dispel the nyths
about the vaccine? That's nunber one.

Nunmber two, should New York State

termnate its flagship extranural nedica
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research program during this nost chall enging
pandem ¢ when nedi cal research is arguably
nore inmportant now than in generations?

And then third, Asphalt Geen. | just
want to echo what Senator Hoyl man said
earlier about a dedicated site in Manhattan
for Manhattan residents. Asphalt Geen, a
| arge nonprofit facility in Manhattan, has
offered to be a vaccine site, and ny staff
spent many hours frustrated but hel ping
el derly senior citizens in ny district sign
up for vaccination appointnments. Just today
| received feedback that on 135th Street
peopl e waited over four hours in line to get
t he second shot and over two hours in line to
get the first dose. Many of these were
senior citizens with wal kers and canes, ready
to give up and just |leave. And so nore has
to be done.

And so those are ny three questions.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So on the first
one, thank you. On the first one, about
better education material, we do a | ot of

webi nar s. | can do nore, | can address that,
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| can get ny staff to do that as well. |
understand that staff not getting vaccinated
is a big issue.

And we can't sort of mandate things

the way we did with flu because this is stil

an experimental -- it's still a, you know --
| wouldn't say experinental. |It's still not
been formally approved. [t's an energency-

use authorization. So it's EUA, so you can't
get -- put something in place fromthe
government for something that's in an

ener gency-use aut horization. Let ne make
sure that I'mclear on that. That's nunber
one.

Number two, on the extranural research
funding, there are other sources of where one
can get funding. And we are just, as | said,
in a tight budget. And we |ook at all of
these things -- and believe ne, ny heart goes
out to this, as a scientist doctor, one who's
done research, you know, | |ooked at them and
| said, This is a little tough. And you take
t hat pause, and you say, well, what el se can

we do? And those are sone of the tough




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

440

deci sions you have to make. And |
understand -- believe nme, | understand the
benefit of scientific research.

And then nunber three, | hear you
about the Manhattan issue. | heard sone of
your col | eagues nention about naybe using the
Javits Center when we have nobre vacci nes
primarily for the Manhattan residents. Let
me see what we can do. | heard Senator
Hoyl man's point as well. That's sonething |
can bring back to the team

And actually one nore point which ties
tothis, which is the issue of the elderly.
We have a programthat we have devel oped and
we're working on to get those who are sort of
nor e honebound to be able to get their
vacci ne at home. Because we don't want --
it's still winter, it's going to be winter
for a couple nore weeks -- the sooner the
better for it to end. But we really don't
want peopl e going out. And other people,
even it it's sumrer or spring, it doesn't
matter, they can't really get out.

So we're trying to figure out a way to
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get them vaccinated as well. So we're
working on all of this, and we'll nove
forward for you.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN SEAWRI GHT:  Thank you,
Doct or .

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ynman
Pal mesano. Phil?

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO  Yes. Thank
you, Comm ssioner. Just a couple of quick
guestions, hopefully.

And there's a lot of talk about
comuni cation and partnership, and al ong
those lines ny first question is, why are our
counties not being notified and getting the
i nformati on on how many vaccines are actually
bei ng shipped into their counties, whether at
a hospital, nursing home, pharmacy,
et cetera?

Why not share those details with the
counties to |l et them know where they are,
whi ch | ocations, how many total ? Because
woul dn't that help them be better able to
communi cate and effectively take care of the

residents in their conmmunities?
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COW SSI ONER ZUCKER: | think the
information is getting there, but let ne find
out for you what the catch is. | know we're
wor ki ng very closely with the local -- the
counties and we're in constant contact with
the county | eadership as well as the | ocal
heal th departnments. So there should be that
conmuni cati on

| f there's sone daylight between
there, let me see what we coul d do.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANG:  That woul d be
hel pful .

Rel ative to state distribution sites,
you know, being fromthe Southern Tier, you
know, we have -- you know, in the rural areas
where sone of our residents are an hour-plus
away from Bi nghanton or Rochester, you know,
there's sone concerns in rural areas, | know
some of the other people nentioned that,
about getting limted access.

| knowit's just a supply and demand
i ssue, but why -- what are you working to do
totry to help ensure fairness in that? Wy

not allow our counties to be nore
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participating in that process as far as the
state distribution sites?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  And that's what
| was saying, we're working with the | oca
health departnments. And I'Il find out,
particularly in your area that you represent,
as to which counties specifically and what
has transpired.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO  That woul d be
great. Because even if it would be |ike
nobil e units or have set up different
transportation units, things like that, to
provi de that access.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: W actual ly
spoke about that, at one point, about the
nmobil e unit issue. So these are things that
have been in the m x.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO  Great .

One other question is relative to
residency limtations, why are residency
l[imtations in place at New York City sites
but no such residency or regional-type
residency requirenments at like the upstate

poi nts of distribution?
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Because, you know, |'ve heard stories
where -- and | can understand why --
residents from New York City com ng and
traveling upstate and taking up slots that
are at sonme of these upstate facilities. |
understand why. |f you have vacci ne
avai lability, you're going to take that.

But if there's restrictions on access
to the New York City sites, why not have
simlar regional restrictions on the upstate
sites, which have limted access?

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So we have been
tracking that issue. And I'lIl have to sort
out what the -- and | understand what you're
saying as to sort of nake sure it's focused
on the region where sonebody is presently --
or is aresident. Let nme look into that.

But we do track that. W do track
t hese nunbers, actually, as to where soneone

is getting the vaccine and which county,

whet her they're traveling also. So generally

it's the percentage that are in each region
is very high. So if there's sonething in a

particul ar region where it's dropped down,
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then we should figure out specifically what's

happening in that specific part of the state.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO  Thank you
Conmi ssi oner .

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you.

| think we're going to go back to the
Senate. W have a new Senate entry.

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: We do, thank you
very rmuch. We have Senator Jereny Cooney
from Rochester.

Al t hough just to answer as a New York
City resident, we go |ooking for vaccines
everywhere. The only place we've ever found
them are Pl attsburgh, which is a really,
really long trip fromNew York City, just
saying. Unless you represent Plattsburgh.
But | think that m ght be the only place
you'll run into city people in search of
vacci nes upst at e.

Jereny Cooney.

SENATOR COONEY: Thank you,

Madam Chair. You're welcone to come up to
Pot sdam and Syracuse. There's other places

t 00.
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CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Ch, Pot sdam
right. Potsdam soneti nes.

(Laughter.)

SENATCOR COONEY: \Well, Conm ssioner,
t hank you for hanging in there with us today.

| represent the 56th Senate District,
which is in Monroe County, the greater
Rochester area. | want to thank you for
hel ping us get this FEMA site in ny district,
the former Kodak Hawkeye Plant. This is
obvi ously targeting a nunber of zip codes
specifically within our Black and brown
comunities, which are represented in ny
district.

And it's been a challenge to try to
get people ready to go in and get an
appoi ntment before March 3rd. | know t hat
your teamis working very hard. Certainly ny
office and the other state |legislators are
wor ki ng very hard. M question to you, and
my ask for your consideration, is that we
possi bly extend the exclusive period for
i ndi viduals who are qualified to neet

these -- to receive these vaccinations in
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these zip codes by an additional week so that
we can get nore of this underserved
popul ati on vacci nat ed.

In my district | represent the Town of
Bri ghton. Over 22 percent of Brighton has
received the vaccine that's eligible. It's
under 10 percent, sonetinmes under 5 percent
in the urban portions of ny district. So
we're trying to make sure that there's equity
and fairness. | understand that you get
that. So hopefully you'll be able to
consi der this request.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: | hear you
Thank you.

CHAI RAMOVAN VEI NSTEI'N:  So now we go
back to Assenbl yman Sal ka.

ASSEMBLYMAN SALKA: Got to get ny
vi deo goi ng here. kay.

Comm ssi oner, thank you very nuch for
your time today. |It's been a long day, |I'm
sure. But being a physician, you know what
| ong days are all about.

| would like to discuss the cut, the

20 percent cut in the CPH the Committee for
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Physician Health. W know that our providers
now, from physicians, nurses, therapists and
lab staff -- it runs the ganut of people that
are providing services that are in our health
institutions, but the physician has al ways
been the teamleader, if you will. And we
notice that there was a 20 percent cut in a
programor -- that in fact provides support
services for physicians.

And | just would |ike to know what the
justification is for that. And | would urge
you to reconsider that, only because we
understand that as inportant as physicians
are now, nore inportant than ever in
provi di ng the heal thcare needs for our
comunity with the pandemc, this is
something that | would find that woul d be
damagi ng to the quality of care that we can
gi ve.

Physicians are -- especially in
upstate New York -- are very hard to cone by.
Recruiting physicians, especially specialists
in rural hospitals, where | was on staff for

a nunber of years, is extrenely difficult.
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So | would urge you to reconsider that cut.
And as a matter of fact, it would be great if
t hat program coul d even be propped up a bit
in such challenging tines.

The other issue that | did want to
bring up, and I want to concur and do sone
addi ti onal | obbying, is the vaccine rollout.
Back in January | did send a letter to your
of fice and the Governor's office suggesting
t hat maybe a hotline could be set up for our
seniors. Because as we know, a |lot of them
aren't really conputer literate. And for
themto be able to use their |andlines, or
maybe if they do have a cell phone, it becones
alittle bit easier.

So | would urge you to at |east |ook
at the possibility of setting up sonme kind of
better |ine of comunication so that our
seni ors can nake the appoint ments.

And | voice a lot of frustration, too,
of ny constituents that have attenpted to
reach out to whatever respective lines are
out there, only to be placed on hold for 15,

20 mnutes, and then the |ine goes dead.
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So we've got some work to do on our
vaccine rollout and our setting up of
appoi nt nent s.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  So two things.

One is sonme of those 20 percent cuts
may |likely be restored, we could tal k about
that. So that's a positive.

And there is a hotline. W do have a
hotline, I just don't have the nunber off the
top of my head. But there is a hotline.

ASSEMBLYMAN SALKA: For seniors
excl usivel y.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Onh, you're
interested exclusively -- | think that's our
overall hotline. But --

ASSEMBLYMAN SALKA: They're having a
tough tinme with it.

COWMM SSI ONER ZUCKER: | know t hey are.
| know t hey are.

ASSEMBLYMAN SALKA: They are. And
t hey need the vaccine nore than ever. And
some of themare in near panic when they cal
our office.

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER:  That's why we're
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trying to figure out what are other ways to
get them vaccinated and to work with the
community to get those who are eligible to be
vacci nated, particularly those, you're right,
who don't use a snartphone or the internet.

ASSEMBLYMAN SALKA: Thank you,
Conmi ssi oner .

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.

So actually it's hard to believe that
| have a question that nobody asked. |
assumed sonebody woul d have.

So actually you had had a conversation
wi th Assenbl ywonman Seawright, | think it was
nmenti oned a few other tinmes, about trying to
come up with a plan for how we can vacci nate
homebound -- primarily honebound el derly.

And ny question relates to one that |'ve

rai sed previously with the Governor's office,
particularly because | have a district that
has a | ot of elderly residents.

A lot of -- a nunber of the fol ks who
are honmebound are qualified -- are eligible
because of their age. O now because of

conorbidities, but they were age-eligible.
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But they don't have paid aides who are
eligible to get vaccines even if they are not
age-eligible, but they have famly nenbers
who are bel ow the age of 65 and don't have
other health issues that allow themto
qual i fy.

And there is a |ot of concern anongst
these -- the famly nmenbers that not only are
their -- the person they' re taking care of
who' s honebound not havi ng a vacci ne, but
t hey thenselves can't get a vaccine and are
fearful of what happens if they becone ill

So, you know, | would hope that
there's sone plan to | ook to expand to
caregivers. | believe that Massachusetts was
doi ng that, that soneone who was living with
soneone who was honebound.

And then the other issue | just want

to raise since there's been so nuch tal k

about vaccines -- and clearly the supply is
limted, and that's recognized. | happen to
represent three -- parts of three zip codes

i n southern Brooklyn that according to the

city's seven-day rolling zip code average are
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nunber 2 with 12.95 percent positivity as of
today, the fifth one, and then the seventh
one, with 12.37 percent positivity. Again,
these are nostly elderly individuals that are
constantly calling ny office.

W're a transit desert, and there
isn't a site that's available. | actually
have two zip codes that are eligible -- a
portion of two zip codes that are now
eligible at Medgar Evers, and peopl e have
been calling there. But | would just urge
t hat when -- as vacci nes becone nore
avai |l abl e, or even before that, to try and
focus on a site in southern Brooklyn.

And | just wonder if you coul d address
t he question, Comm ssioner, about the famly
caregivers and when they m ght be eligible.

COW SSI ONER ZUCKER:  Sure. So
that -- we actually were speaking about this
for a period of time. And | hear you.
hear you.

One of the things is that when we open
this up to preexisting conditions, we feel

this opens up a very |arge popul ati on of
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i ndi vi dual s, including many people who are
caregivers to those who are elderly. But
there is still going to be that pool of

i ndi vi dual s who -- maybe the grandchild,
perfectly healthy, caring for the grandparent
and doesn't fall into that mx. And so we
wer e havi ng some conversati ons about that,
and I will bring it back to the teamto see
what we can do.

But this is not sonething that hasn't
crossed our plate fromjust our discussions
internally about this issue of how do you
make sure that person doesn't bring it in and
expose sonmeone who's elderly. And that is
al so part of the reason we do want to get
t hose who are honmebound vacci nated as qui ckly
as possible, to give themprotection so that
they're not at risk.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.

So there are no nore questions from
the Assenbly. So before -- well, | guess it
probably is close to dinnertine. W're going
to send it back to Senator Krueger. Thank

you, Comm ssioner, for being here and for the
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wor k you and your team have been doi ng al
al ong.

So Senat or Krueger?

THE MODERATOR  You're nuted, Senator.

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER: | did get texted
one nore question, so just for you to either
respond to quickly or to put in your witten
responses.

So we're all operating under a
decl aration of a statew de enmergency from
COvVID. Who deci des when the energency is
over? 1Is that you or soneone else? And is
there an anti ci pated date?

COWM SSI ONER ZUCKER: | think that's a
di scussion that I will have with the chanber.
My ability to provide the public health
information to the Governor's teamis going
to be put into that mx

Ri ght now | would say that we need to
see what happens with these variants. CQur
nunbers are com ng down, everything is
| ooking really in a positive direction. W
went up, as we know, in the spring and we

went through that. [In the sumrer we were
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down, then we picked back up. And now we're

com ng back down. The nunbers | ook good.
The nore vaccination we get out, the

less likely we're going to have a variant.

If we don't have a variant that causes a

probl em or an increased risk of disease

spread and/or an increase in the case

fatality rate, or just overall illness,
severity of illness, then | think we're in
the right direction. | hate making any

predictions, and so | don't want to predict
when that will be, but we will continue to do
what we need to do.

| will say that we need to maintain
t he good public health practices that we
have, which is obviously the social
di stanci ng, the masks, and to wash your
hands. | started this whol e pandem c
di scussing that early on when we realized the
benefits of masks, and that's where we are
ri ght now.

And do | -- | would just want to say
that we're going to get through this. W'l|

get through this pandemic, we'll get to the
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other side. | do feel that in many ways this
is like other things in other times in

hi story, that things define a generation. So

that World War |1, the Depression, the civil
rights novenent, they all just define a
generation. This will define a generation.

But | really feel what the nost
important thing for us to do is to stay
t oget her and to recogni ze the whole humanity
factor involved here and that we all need to
not -- to trust each other and to recogni ze
t hat conpassion, integrity and courage and
just being together as a society is hel pful.

And | think this virus has really just
caused significant problens for all of us.
We're not used to being separate from each
ot her, and the human condition has been
affected. And the virus doesn't care about
weal th or prestige or power or fane or
fortune anything, it just hits everyone.

But the best way, | feel, is to
improve -- to get through this is to realize
we touch tonorrow the best by hel pi ng each

ot her today. And we'll get there. And
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whatever | can do as the head of the
departrment, | will do. 1've heard all vyour
concerns. | wll address them And we wl|
keep pushing forward. And this is not easy.
It's not easy for any of us. And | w sh
everyone their health and safety and the best
to their famlies.

And | say to all those who lost their
relatives, | feel for them | feel for them
| feel for the loss to them to their
famlies. It's very hard. And | wi sh you --
| wish you well and | wi sh you strength in
getting through the difficult tine.

So thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you bot h
for being with us today.

And since we have 48 nore people
signed up to testify before us, we are going
to stay together except for perhaps the two
of you. But if you want to keep soneone
listening, everyone's issues will also be
i ssues for the departnment. So with that,

t hank you both very rmuch for all of your tine

wi th us today.
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And I"'mgoing to call up our |ast
government testifier, Erin Ives, acting
i nspector general, New York State O fice of
t he Medi caid I nspector General.

And |' m seei ng whet her he has popped
up in a box anywhere. Are you with us? So
you t hought we'd never be done. Ch, okay.

Oh, hello. | keep referring to you by
t he wong gender. | apol ogi ze.

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR | VES:

That's okay. There was a little typo, so
"Il use it as ny alias for testinony today.

CHAI RWOVAN KRUEGER: Now you' ve out ed
yourself, you're here with us, wel cone.

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR | VES:  Thank
you.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: We're going to
set the clock at 10 m nutes and | et everybody
listen or review your testinony, which is
avai lable to all of us on the conputer
screen. (kay.

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR | VES:  Thank
you. Good afternoon, Chairwoman Krueger,

Chai rwoman Wi nstein, distinguished nenbers
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of the Senate Finance and Assenbly Ways and
Means committees, and Health Commttee chairs
Senat or Rivera and Assenbl ynan Gottfried. |
appreciate this opportunity to share with you
the activities and initiatives of the Ofice
of the Medicaid I nspector Ceneral.

The ongoi ng COVI D-19 pandem ¢ has
i npacted every facet of the healthcare
delivery system business and econom c
sectors, and the daily |lives of each and
every Anmerican. Wthout question, New York's
heal th providers continue to face
unprecedented chal | enges during this public
heal t h emer gency.

Like all health providers and state
and | ocal agencies, OM G quickly adapted its
processes to ensure continuation of the
agency's critical work. At the sane tine,
OM G recogni zed the unrelenting stressors
COVI D i nposed upon the provider community.

To that end, throughout the pandem ¢ OM G has
wor ked cl osely with individual providers,
associ ati ons and ot her stakeholders to share

i nformation, establish nmutually agreed upon
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time franes and practices related to audit
processes, and address issues and concerns
resulting fromthis new health care delivery
system | andscape.

Specifically, to protect the health
and safety of OM G staff and the provider
comunity, our audits have been conducted
remotely; information and docunentation are
comuni cat ed and shared el ectronically.
Further, in addition to these audit activity
nodi fications, OM G has equi pped staff with
t he resources needed to renotely perform
agency functions.

| am al so proud of the many OM G st af f
who stepped up to the chall enge and
vol unteered their tine to support various
critical initiatives to battle the pandenc
and hel p New Yorkers during these
unprecedented tines. These efforts, while
critical to protecting health and safety
during the current crisis, will serve the
agency and the state well going forward and
reflect the Governor's conmtnent that

New York build back better.
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Thr oughout the pandem c, these efforts
resulted in OM G achieving two key
objectives: First, protect the integrity of
t he Medi caid program and second, naintain
open conmuni cations and understanding with
program st akehol ders to avoi d i nposi ng
unnecessary burdens on a health care delivery
system under siege by the COVID virus and
ensure that, nost inportantly, New Yorkers'
access to health care services is sustained
to the best extent possible.

These col | aborative efforts have
enabled OM G to both deliver on its m ssion
to protect the integrity of the Medicaid
program whi |l e supporting the provider
comunity's unwavering conmtnment to deliver
heal th care services under the nost dire
ci rcumst ances.

For exanple, prelimnary 2020
cal endar-year figures for the agency's cost
savi ngs and Medi caid recoveries are estinated
at nore than $2.9 billion. Breaking that
down, OM G s proactive cost-avoi dance

nmeasures al one delivered estimted savi ngs of
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nore than $2.4 billion. OM G recoveries --
including audits, third-party liability, and
investigations -- total nore than

$558 m | lion.

Thr oughout 2020, OM G al so conti nued
to focus on nanaged-care-rel ated program
integrity initiatives. For exanple, OM G s
vari ous mat ch-based audits and data anal yses
efforts resulted in 419 finalized audits with
nore than $159 mllion in recoveries.

As part of its collaborative effort to
protect the Medicaid program OM G continues
to work closely with nanaged care
organi zations and their special investigation
units to address network provider fraud,
wast e, and abuse.

Al so, through legislation enacted in
2019 designed to hold MCOs accountabl e for
the programintegrity obligations outlined in
their contract with the state, OM G in 2020
continued reviews of each of New York's
15 mai nstream MCOs to assess their conpliance
wi th contractual standards that prevent

fraud, waste or abuse.
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In addition to the nminstream pl ans,
OM Gw Il review managed | ong-termcare
pl ans' conpliance with contractual standards.
These nanaged-care reviews constitute an
essential conponent of OM G s program
integrity efforts in the nanaged-care arena.

Also OM G in collaboration with its
si ster agenci es and numerous stakehol ders,
continues to play a critical role in
i mpl enmenting MRT || initiatives designed to
enhance accountability and oversight while
i mprovi ng access to high-quality healthcare
servi ces.

Rooti ng out fraud, waste and abuse in
the Medicaid programis central to OMG s
work. To that end, the agency maintains
strong partnerships with | aw enforcenent and
agencies at the local, state and federal
levels. OMGinvestigators, auditors, data
anal ysts, and other |icensed heal thcare
prof essionals work closely with agency
partners to help identify and hold
account abl e those who seek to exploit the

Medi cai d program for personal gain.
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For exanple, in 2020 OM G wor ked
closely with the New York City Speci al
Narcotics Prosecutor and other |aw
enforcenent partners in a joint investigative
effort that led to the arrests of a
Manhat t an- based psychiatrist and a nedi cal
assistant for their alleged roles in selling
prescriptions for addictive controlled
substances drugs -- with no legitimte
medi cal purpose -- for cash. The
i nvestigation revealed a blatant disregard of
both the heal thcare professionals' oaths to
do no harmas well as the rule of |aw

OMGw il continue to work with its
| aw enforcenent and government partners to
hold fully accountabl e those who jeopardi ze
the health and safety of the nost vul nerable
New Yorkers by attenpting to defraud the
Medi cai d program

Now nore than ever, OM G s
conprehensi ve Medicaid programintegrity
efforts serve to help sustain New York’s
heal t hcare delivery system Qur office | ooks

forward to continuing our work with
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provi ders, stakehol ders, and our partners at
every level to overcone the chall enges before
us and to seize renewed opportunities to
enhance Medicaid programintegrity today and
t onor r ow,

Thank you, and |I'm pl eased to address
any questions you nay have.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

And let's see -- we have hands up, but
| want to make sure | doubl e-check with our
chairs. Senator Rivera, do you have any
guestions for --

SENATCR RI VERA: Good for the nonent,
Madam

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECER:  Fine. Then |I'm
going to nove to Senator Harckham who | know
had his hand up first.

Are you there, Pete?

SENATOR HARCKHAM  Yeah, |'m just
trying to unnute and start my video. There
we go. Thank you very nuch, Madam Chair

| nspector, thank you so nuch. Good to

see you, even though ny screen is bl ocked,
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but -- there we go. Thank you very mnuch
Thank you for your testinony.

| want to tal k about -- you spoke
about wanting to avoid unnecessary burdens in
your investigations and their outcone. And I
think we can all agree that we want to weed
out fraud and abuse. But | want to talk
about audits of opioid treatnent providers.
There was one in New York City that found
$400 in adm nistrative fraud, ended up with
over a $7 mllion penalty. They ended up
closing their doors. Fifteen-hundred
nmedi cati on-assi sted-treatnent patients | ost
t hose slots.

Anot her ongoi ng i nvestigation in
Western New York, simlar thing -- $800 in
adm ni strative issues that led to about a
$4 mllion price tag. And that is going to
be cl osi ng, another 1500 nedi cati on-assi st ed-
treatment slots.

W're in the mdst of an opioid death
crisis. Do you think that's good public
policy that when there's no blatant fraud or

abuse or theft from New York State, to be
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endi ng 3, 000 nedi cati on- assi st ed-treat nent
slots when it's nearly inpossible to start
new sl ot s?

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR | VES:
Senat or, thank you for the question.

To start, we do recognize the vita
services these prograns provide. And we do
recogni ze, particularly right now, with the
health crisis and the opioid crisis, how
i nportant those services are.

| do want to clarify. OMGis not
responsi bl e for closing prograns. W do
performthese audits. W think they perform
acritical function in terns of just
reviewi ng and naki ng sure that the prograns
are nmeeting the necessary requirenments as
outlined by the federal governnment. And part
of why we do these audits, and a very
i mportant reason, is if we don't test to make
sure that the prograns are neeting the
federal requirenents, the federal governnent
can conme in thenmsel ves and performthese
audits, which jeopardi zes the funding right

at its base for providing these services.
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So we do recognize this. W have
heard the concerns that were raised. W also
work on a case-by-case basis with each of the
auditees. | amfamliar with the audit
you' re speaking of in Wstern New York, and
we are in comunication with that provider
group at this point.

But I do want to stress how inportant
we see these prograns to be, and working with
t hese providers on a case-by-case basis on
each of these audits.

SENATOR HARCKHAM  Well, | woul d just
say -- and thank you for that. But is there
no discussion internally that if we fine
t hese people $7 mllion, they're going to
close their door? | nean, aren't there ways
to have admi nistrative sanctions and policies
put in place -- probation, sonething to keep
t he doors open so that we're not risking 1500
people's |ives?

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR | VES:  Yes.
And obviously that is a big concern. W
woul d never want to risk anyone's safety.

That woul d be contrary to our m ssion right
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at its heart.

W do work hand in hand, like | said,
wi th our partner agencies to |look at that and
are constantly reviewing policies to see
where we may need to meke inprovenents. But
| would Iike to stress we work with each
auditee individually on their audits. W do
have opportunities available for -- if
provi ders are having financial hardship, they
can go through a process with our agency.

But al so throughout the audit process we
stress comuni cation and getting as nuch
docunentation as we can to support the
services that they're providing to make sure
that it is in line with programrequirenents.

SENATOR HARCKHAM  Well, that's ny
time. 1'dlike to follow up offline. Thank
you, |nvesti gator.

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR | VES:  Thank
you.

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUEGER:  Assenbl y?

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Yes, we have
Assenbl yman Byrne, the ranker on Health,

five m nutes.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

471

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Yes, thank you.
And | don't think I'Il have to use the whole
five minutes, which |I'msure ny coll eagues
wi || appreciate.

And | just want to say, you know,
t hank you for your work. Again, as you said
earlier, obviously we do want to elinmnate as
much fraud, waste and abuse as we possibly
can. And | understand your efforts to ensure
Medicaid integrity. And that doesn't stop
obvi ously, throughout the course of this
pandem ¢, and in many ways your audit work is
even nore inportant now than ever.

Yet | have heard from various home
care providers that sonme of the OM G
audits are being approached as if we're not
living in this crazy COVID world. And when
audi tors can sonetines show up unannounced,
some providers aren't always prepared to
accommobdat e a new i nflux of people arriving
on-site, given all the various soci al
di stanci ng policies and pandenic
restrictions. And in some cases it's been

shared with me that audit teanms have
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expectations for in-person interviews with
provi der managers who are justifiably working
renmotely.

So what is OM G doing to try to nmake
this audit process nore flexible, considering
the situation that we're all living in? And
consi dering the discussions that you may have
heard earlier about expanding tel ehealth, |
woul d ask if that's, you know, possibly one
t echnol ogy and resource that we could use to
try to address sone of these concerns.

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR | VES:  Thank
you. We -- {audio glitch}. \When the
pandem c started, we went to renote and
equi pped our staff with resources to work
remotely. We have been perform ng our audit
activities renotely. W have not been going
on sites. So, Assenblyman, if there are
specific exanples, let's please connect so
that I can talk to you about that.

But we have done this renotely
specifically to nake sure that we maintain
health and safety of the providers, of the

i ndi vidual s that they're serving, and of our
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staff. So we have conmuni cations either
t hrough Webex, we accept docunentation
el ectronically.

And al so understandi ng that, you know,
t he focus needs to be on the care of the
beneficiaries. W have been working to nake
sure if there needs to be flexibility in
terms of time franes for responses, if we
need to do things kind of pieceneal and work
with themto get responses. W have been
trying to be as flexible as we can to make
sure that we conme to sone nutually agreeabl e
time franmes and how we' re conducting our
audi ts.

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Thank you, ma' am

And as far as the specifics, | wll
follow up with your office. So if there is
any sort of m scomrunication, we can have
t hat addressed. And | do thank you for your
time and your testinony here this late
af ternoon, early evening.

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR | VES:  Thank
you.

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Thank you. W
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go to the Senate.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: | see Senat or
Rachel May with her hand up

SENATOR MAY: Right. H . Thank you
for testifying here. Okay, | got ny video
goi ng.

Just one quick question. Wen we did
our hearings |ast summer about nursing hones,
one thing we heard over and over was that the
fine structure was such that the operators
just built it into their operating budgets
and it didn't actually change their behavior.

And |' m wonderi ng, what input do you
have into the levels of fines? And do you
think they are at the |evel where they do
di scourage the kinds of behavior that we want
to be di scouragi ng?

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR | VES:  Thank
you.

To clarify, OM G perforns program
integrity oversight in the nursing hones.
However, we are limted to |ooking at the
rei nbursenent rates, the cost reports, and

the Medicaid funds that are going into the
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nursing homes. So our audits really do focus
on the cost-base funds that are going into
the nursing homes. So | would feel out of
pl ace responding to the fines.
SENATOR MAY: Al right. Thank you.
ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR | VES:  Thank

you.
CHAl R\MOVAN KRUEGER:  Assenbl y?
CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: W& have no one
else. 1 think they used up all their energy

with Dr. Zucker.

CHAIl R\MOVAN KRUECER: | think they did
too. Although |I do have one question for
Erin, to follow up from Senat or Harckham s
guesti ons.

So if -- you really got me on $400 in
fines for adm nistrative errors. 1Is
$8 mllion actually the increased fines that
you put on top of that fromthe State of
New Yor k? How could that be the math? Even
t hough you don't know what the provider is
and | don't know what that provider is. How
could a $400 penalty translate to an

$8 million fine?
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ACTI NG MEDI CAID I NSPECTOR I VES:  So to
clarify, because | do think it's inportant
term nol ogy. W do audit agai nst
over paynents, identified overpaynents. So
paynents that were already nade to a provider
that show up in the claimns.

For these audits we review the clains.
And | think you' ve heard us talk before, we
use extrapol ation -- sanpling and
extrapol ation. So what we do is take a
sanpl e of clains and apply, especially at
this late hour, very conplicated mat hematica
pr ocedur es.

But it does -- it's statistically
valid. It takes the clains and it reviews
across. So the $400 that they're referring
to may be for one claim but that one error
may show up across multiple clainms in our
audit, which is howit gets raised up to the
anounts that you're hearing.

We have been using this nethodol ogy
for years across nultiple categories of
services. |It's also used at the federa

government for the O G audits that are
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conducted. And part of our reasoning for
doing the audits this way -- | know when you
see the end dollar amount, it may have a
shock value. But understand that by | ooking
at that and using that statistically valid
sanple, we're also trying to reduce the
adm ni strative burden on providers.

W take 100 clainms, |ook at them
Where we identify an error, we do project it
out. So that is how you do get to the
mat hemati cal totals

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  And so in this
storyline you are offering, would that
presumably nmean the error you found was
peopl e who were not eligible for Medicaid
coverage of whatever the service was, so when
you extrapol ate out you're basically claw ng
back every dollar that went into the program
for that patient or that universal patient
you think were wongly eval uated as
Medi cai d-el i gi bl e?

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR | VES:
Correct, that can be one exanple that could

go across nultiple clains for different
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beneficiaries. So it could be a m stake, as
you point out, across nultiple clains.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  And so there were
two exanpl es that Senator Harckham gave you.
| nean, are these everywhere in the state?
How nmany per year of this kind of storyline
are you seei ng?

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR I VES:  In
terms of specifically for the opioid
treat ment ?

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Yeah, we'l | stick
with that.

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR | VES:  Ckay.
W' ve conducted fewer than 15 audits.

And | will tell you that actually, of
the audits we' ve conducted, we finalized five
and they're posted on our website. The
majority of themhave had little to no
fi ndi ngs.

So what we are seeing is that there
are providers who are doing it correctly.
There are providers who are neeting all the
programrequirenments. W're pleased to see

that and want to see that. But we do have to
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focus on those who nay have issues in their

prograns that we do nake sure we protect the

f undi ng.

| think it's been a thene throughout
the day -- |'ve been |istening throughout the
day -- to nmake sure that the resources we do

have in the programare protected. So that's
where our audits conme into play.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: And is it your
experience that with this kind of audit where
you're finding errors that may total quite a
bit of noney, that there's fraud invol ved or
j ust sonebody didn't know how to run their
program correctly and was maki ng approval s
that didn't fit the category of eligibility
for the Medicaid progranf

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR I VES:  I' 11
speak to the audits we've conducted. W have
not seen fraud. It does |look |like there were
some program i ssues, which was why it
remai ned as an audit and ended up with the
fi ndi ngs.

| think, as you' re aware when we've

expressed over the years our mssion, if we
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do identify fraud, we do nake appropriate
referrals to | aw enforcenent or to the M-CU.

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUECER:  And when OM G was
started years ago, | started asking this
guestion every year, so I'mgoing to ask it
now. There are sone people who believe when
you say Medicaid fraud you' re tal ki ng about
poor people intentionally fraudulently
ripping off the Medicaid program

But is that still true that that is
not the universe of people that OM G is
finding against, that it's very hard to
commt individual Medicaid fraud to your own
advant age?

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTCOR | VES: W do
find that providers -- unfortunately, there
are many out there who do take advantage of
t he Medi caid popul ation. They will use many
different schenmes to benefit fromwhat is
supposed to be these funds going to and
services provided to the Medicaid popul ati on.

So yes, Senator, you're correct.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  All right, that

you can't really pull off Medicaid fraud
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wi t hout provider participation |eading the
way. Did | say that correctly?

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR | VES:  Yes.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Al right, thank
you. Thank you for your tinme today.

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR | VES:  Thank
you.

CHAI R\MOVAN KRUEGER: Anyone el se junp
in while we were having that dial ogue and
need us?

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: No.  No.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Nope? Then we
are going to let you go to continue your day
or your work. Thank you very much for your
work for the State of New York.

ACTI NG MEDI CAI D | NSPECTOR | VES:  Thank
you for your tine.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Al'l right. For
t hose of you who have been hangi ng out hopi ng
we woul d soneday get to the nongovernnenta
representatives, we are at that point.

So you are set up in panels. So |
will read out the full panel of people. Then

you will each get three minutes to testify.
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Then anyone who wi shes to ask questions --
agai n, hand up, the best way to get Hel ene or
my attention, and you have three mnutes to
ask the entire panel your questions.

So not unlike the earlier part of the
day, if you really want a nore detail ed
answer, you m ght be saying, Don't answer ne
now, | would Iike your followup with ne.
And | suggest that all of our panelists wll
be willing to do followup with you

Al so we have all of your testinony,
panelists, and can read that. So pl ease
don't feel a need or even try to read us your
testinmony, because if you're fast enough to
read your entire testinony in 3 mnutes, you
are a very good speed reader, but we won't
know what you're saying anyway. So it would
be preferable if you each bullet-point your
key issues fromyour testinony. Count on us
as legislators to have |learned to read. And
again, we can follow up with you afterwards,
because this all becones |ike speed-dating,
and we're starting this portion at 5:15 in

the afternoon on the |ast day of hearings.
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So thank you for putting up with us.

And the first panel: The Heal thcare
Associ ati on of New York State, Bea G ause;

t he American Coll ege of (b-Gyns -- excuse ne,
obstretians -- | can't even do this. |

al ways say ob-gyn because it's easier --

Dr. Camlle Clare; the New York Society of
Physi ci an Assi stants, Maureen Regan; the
director of the Greater New York Hospital
Associ ation, David Rich; and the Visiting
Nurse Service of New York, Hany Abdel aal

And we'll just start with Heal thcare
Associ ati on of New York

M5. GRAUSE: Thank you, Chairnman
Krueger -- Chai rwoman Krueger. Good
afternoon -- or good evening, alnost --

CHAl RMOVAN KRUECER: Al nost .

M5. GRAUSE: -- Chairs Krueger,
Weinstein, Rivera and Cottfried and comm ttee
menbers. M nanme is Bea G ause, president of
HANYS, representing not-for-profit hospitals,
heal th systenms, and post-acute-care providers
across New York State.

We thank you for your continued
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support. HANYS and our nenbers appreciate
the difficult state fiscal situation
However, COVID- 19 al so created unparallel ed
fiscal challenges for our nenbers. Qur
menbers showed up, they worked tirelessly
toget her to coordi nate response efforts and
ensure the highest |evel of public and
patient safety. W spent billions of dollars
to increase capacity, buy supplies and

equi pnent at hi gher-than-usual prices, and
bring in additional staff as needed. And al
this was done while, for much of that tine,
el ective surgeries were cancel ed.

A Kaufnman, Hall analysis that we
conducted for HANYS estimated that over the
period of this year, a little nore than one
year, hospitals across the state will have
suffered a 20-to-25-billion-dollar loss in
revenue. That's about 30 percent of their
revenue. On top of that, that doesn't count
the $2 billion in recurring reductions from
| ast year's budget.

So in review of this year's budget, we

urge you to consider our five principles for
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recommendations. First, do no harm | think
that's obvious. Second, reject cuts, any
cuts to Medicaid. Medicaid currently, we
estimate, pays about 67 cents on the dollar.
Third, strengthen healthcare. And
particularly, as was discussed earlier today,
t he tel enedi ci ne and nanaged- care changes.
Fourth, fix harnful policies such as 340B and
t he indi gent care pool, as has been

di scussed. And finally, support new
investments. W urge the Legislature to
support the investnments that are included in
t he Executive Budget.

Just a couple of quick things. Again,
reject the budget's 1 percent
across-the-board cut to the Medicaid program
Adopt our proposal, HANYS proposal, to
create a short-termglide path to the newy
adopt ed i ndi gent care pool funding nodel, and
reject this year's proposal to elimnate
state support of the public indigent care
pool .

Del ay i npl enentation of the damagi ng

proposal for the 340B drug pricing program




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

486

We support the increased prem uns for the
Essential Health Plan. Enact sensible
managed- care reforns, including

cl assification of pay-and-pursue policies.

We support the enactnent of telehealth
paynent parity. Encourage -- make sure that
for-profit health insurers achieve the state
budget's Medi cai d spending goals while
securing justified conmmunity reinvestnments.

And finally inprove rei nbursenent for
New York's struggling not-for-profit nursing
hones, to ensure that resident care and staff
are not shortchanged.

Thi s pandenmi ¢ has proven tinme and
agai n that our nonprofit hospitals, health
systens, post-acute-care providers and their
frontline and support staff, are there for
all New Yorkers 24/7. And in that context, |
want to support Dr. Zucker's March 25th
directive.

As he has stated, the first reason is
because the science is absolutely there, and
it's supported by the science. And the

second reason i s because of the context. CQur
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hospitals were in urgent |ife-and-death
situations, and we believe that the directive
saved lives at the hospital |evel.

In closing, HANYS is conmtted to
working with you to ensure that the
hi ghest-quality care is accessible and
af fordable to New Yorkers. And we thank you
again for your support.

Thi s concl udes ny testinony.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Dr. Care?

DR. CLARE: (Good eveni ng, or
afternoon. MW nane is Dr. Camlle Oare, and
" man obstetrician and gynecol ogi st, and |
serve as the chair of the Anerican Coll ege of
bstetricians and Gynecol ogists -- yes, it is
a nmouthful -- ACOG District II.

Thank you for this opportunity to
provi de testinmony on the proposed Executive
Budget. W really greatly appreciate the
Legi slature's work over the past several
years to support a variety of naterna
nortality prevention initiatives and for

enacting legislation to i nprove New York's
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mat ernal nortality review process through the
creation of the Maternal Mrtality Review
Boar d.

This review board is critical to
identifying the causes and contributing
factors in maternal deaths, to address the
di sparities -- as we know, Black wonen are
three to four tinmes nore likely to die of a
pregnancy-rel ated death than white wonen --
and inportantly, to develop and i npl enment
actionabl e strategies for prevention.

The review board is active in its
wor k, and we urge the Legislature to ensure
that this work is supported and conti nues.

Secondly, we ask that the Legislature
i ncl ude $250,000 in general operating funds
for the Safe Mdtherhood Initiative. Funding
for this programis typically added by the
Legi sl ature during the budget process.

ACOG s Safe Mdtherhood Initiative works with
obstetrical teams across the state to devel op
and i nplement clinical bundles that outline
st andar di zed approaches for managi ng

obstetrical emergencies associated with
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mat ernal nortality and norbidity.

Funding is necessary to be responsive
to recommendations fromthe Maternal
Mortality Review Board and ensure providers
across the state can learn fromthe reviews,
i mpl enent actionabl e strategies for
prevention, allow SM to continue hospital
i npl enent ati on support, enhance safety
bundl es with a specific focus on health
equity and respectful care, and develop a
cardi ac bundl e.

We ask you to ensure changes to
telehealth that prioritize health equity and
access. As a practicing OB-GYN, telehealth
is an extrenely inportant and useful tool to
me to contact patients during the pandem c.

We next ask you to reject physician
di sci plinary process changes whi ch woul d
di sregard essential due process protections
when a conplaint is filed against a physician
to the Ofice of Professional Medical
Conduct. The conmi ssioner already has
authority to take summary action prior to the

concl usi on of disciplinary hearings.
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Finally, we ask you to reject the
proposed Excess Medical Liability Program
changes whi ch woul d require physicians who
are already experiencing | osses due to the
pandem c to pay 50 percent of the cost of
excess nedi cal mal practice insurance, which
is acritical programfor high-risk
speci alties.

We appreciate the Legislature standing
wi th the physician community, particularly
during this extrenely difficult tine. Please
consider us a continued resource on wonen's
heal thcare in the future. | really
appreciate the opportunity to nmeet with you
all, and am happy to answer any questions
that you may have. Thank you very much

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Maur een.

M5. REGAN. CGood evening. Thank you
very rmuch for the opportunity to present
before this commttee.

The pandemc that we are currently
wor ki ng our way through has shed light on the

PA profession and our ability to treat
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patients of every age in every clinical

di scipline and in every healthcare setting,
i ncl udi ng hone care, school health, nental
heal t h, and occupational nedicine. W care
for those who are critically ill and those
seeking primary and preventative care via
brick-and-nortar facilities or tel enedicine.

Heal t h system CEGs, COCs and CM3s

across the state turn to PAs to hel p manage a

significant surge volunme of patients in the
clinical and the adm nistrative space. One
CMO stated he didn't really appreciate the
i mpact of PAs, coll eagues he has worked with
for many years, and that PAs are an
i nval uabl e sol uti on based on their education
in nmedicine, their clinical and procedural
training, and their flexibility. He stated:
"You are the cross between a stemcell and a
3D printer.™

Qur ability to be able to respond at
this level was primarily due to the action of
t he executive order setting aside the need
for a PA to have a supervising physician.

|'"d like to speak to the inpact of PAs
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across the state over the past year.

Speaking with the CEO and CM O at Urban
Health Center, an entity that sponsors
multiple federally qualified health centers
in the Bronx and Queens, taking care of sone
of our nost vul nerabl e popul ati ons, they nust
rely on PAs to staff their primary and
specialty care clinics. They cannot hire
physi ci ans, and when they do, the turnover is
significant.

The | eadership of this federally
gqualified health center is extrenely
frustrated that PAs are not recogni zed by
New York State Medi caid nanaged care as
practitioners.

Executives who support Medicaid
managed care plans are also frustrated that
this barrier exists, as their enrollees
experience significant delays in getting
heal t hcare appoi nt nents.

PAs need to be recogni zed by New York
St ate Medi caid managed care and be able to
have their own panels. PAs are doing the

work and are addressing the inequity.
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Patients need to be able to find PAs to
reduce delays in care, which are forcing
i ncreased costs and ot her detrinental

ef fects.

St akehol ders cannot objectively see
the inmpact of the work PAs are doing. There
needs to be objective validation when
enpl oyers | ook for workforce and care node
solutions. Al insurance entities in
New York State need to enroll PAs as
practitioners in their plans.

Transparency in who is providing care
to our patients is inperative. Qur
pol i cymakers and our healthcare delivery
systens rely on it. The federal governnent
supports direct billing for PAs. | encourage
New York State to do the sane.

Nort hwel | Health has used a PAto
gui de their enployee health, their entire
heal t hcare delivery system At Noyes
Hospital in Finger Lakes, a cardiol ogy PA
wi th energency nmanagenent experience was able
to transition to run a COVID testing center.

In Western New York, the general physician PC
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devel oped a tel ehealth nodel run by their
physi ci an | eadership along with a PA. PAs in
Central New York have been able to do the
sanme for patients who woul d not have access
to care.

Thi s pandenmi ¢ has | aid bare nmany
barriers and opportunities to healthcare in
New York State. Wth the support of the
Legi slature, we | ook forward to addressing
and setting aside adm nistrative barriers.
This is not a scope-of-practice issue, nor is
it atraining issue. It's an inperative to
establish equitable care.

Wth all due respect to our val uable
physi ci an, pharmacy and nursi ng col | eagues,

t he PA profession has not been nmentioned once
in any di scussion today, despite being nanmed
t he nunber-one profession by U S. News &
Wrld Report in 2021. W need to change

t hat .

PAs are often not included in
heal t hcare | anguage and/or bill |anguage,
| eaving true intent up to interpretation --

and nore often, msinterpretation -- creating
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confusion and del ays. W cannot |eave this
up to randominterpretation of HR
departnments, recruiters, EMR vendors or
practi ce nmanagers.

| ask our legislative colleagues to
pl ease reach out to us, as we are a huge
resource for the interpretation of the
trai ning and scope of PA practice. W
wel come the engagenent. Pl ease be sure to
transparently include PAs in guidance and
bill |anguage pertaining to the delivery of
heal thcare that fall w thin our education,
trai ning and scope. Qur public's health and
our fiscal health depend on it.

Thank you.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Next, David Rich.

MR. RICH  Thank you.

Last year was like no other. Qur

hospital s mounted the | argest nobilization of
heal t hcare resources in the nation's history.

We nourn every patient that died. But we are

al so proud of the brave wonmen and nen in our

institutions who cared for and safely
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di scharged 145, 000 patients since February.
They pi oneered innovations that have been
replicated around the world. They used
resources no hospitals had ever been asked to
use before. They saved thousands of |ives,
and we owe them a huge debt of gratitude.

But all of this cane at great
enotional and financial cost. Hospital
financials tanked in 2020, fromthe doubl e
whammy of reduced use and increased costs.
Wt hout the dollars secured by
Senat or Schuner, our hospitals woul d have
fallen off a financial cliff. But we're not
out of the woods. New Yorkers are not using
hospital services as they did before.
| npatient use is down 16 percent and ER use
is down 34 percent.

There's not going to be any nore
hospital relief from Congress, so we need you
to do three things, respectfully.

One, provide new funding for
hospitals. For 13 years, hospitals have
effectively not received an increase in their

Medicaid rates. That's why we have dozens of
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hospitals on a closure watch list. State
funding fromthe new COVID relief bill should
be used to wi pe out cuts and increase

Medi cai d rates.

Two, rein in the abusive practices of
for-profit insurance conpani es, who nmade huge
profits during the pandem c, collecting
prem unms while nost hospital services were
shut down. W urge you to revisit one of the
reforns that wasn't enacted | ast year, known

as "pay and pursue,” which would require
i nsurance conpanies to actually pay for care
delivered to their enrollees.

And three, don't inpose costly
mandat es that woul d put hospitals in an even
wor se financial position. This includes
staffing-ratio legislation that we all know
woul d cost hospitals and nursing hones
$4 billion.

Wth regard to nursing honmes, let ne
be clear: W support reasonabl e and funded
reforns. W represent not-for-profit nursing

homes, which are the gold standard for

|l ong-termcare, but that gold standard is




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

498

rapi dly disappearing. W're losing 5 percent
of our not-for-profit homes per year. This
is a mtter of great concern, and we urge you
to conduct a thorough exam nation of this
phenonenon.

For nursing homes, we need you to
increase Medicaid rates. And we are al so
interested in a proposal that would require
homes to dedicate 70 percent of their revenue
to direct resident care. W want to be sure,
t hough, that the m ssions of not-for-profit
and public nursing hones are protected in the
process.

Finally, | would draw your attention
to an essay published yesterday by the five
CEGCs of the largest voluntary hospital
systens in the state. They point to
scientific studies fromacross the gl obe that
have found that COVID patients are nost
infectious early in their illness and are
very unlikely to still be infectious or
cont agi ous when they are discharged fromthe
hospital. It would greatly benefit the

di scussi on about hospital discharges if we
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all becone acquainted with the science of the
i nfecti ousness of COVID- 19

Thank you so much for your support,
and thank you for your consideration. And
| "' m happy to take any questi ons.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

And | ast on this panel, fromthe
Visiting Nurse Service of New York, Hany --
l"msorry, I"mgoing to just --

DR. ABDELAAL: That's okay, don't
worry about it.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Say it for ne
once so | can try and get it right.

DR. ABDELAAL: Sure. Thank you for
the opportunity to testify. | amDr. Hany
Abdel aal , and not from the HANYS associ ati on.
| " m president of VNSNY CHO CE Heal th Pl ans,
whi ch includes the | argest non-for-profit
managed long termcare plan as well as a plan
that integrates Medicaid and Medicare
services for dually eligibles.

I'malso the chair of New York's
Nonprofit Managed Long Term Care Coalition,

and that is the capacity in which | am
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speaki ng to you today.

Qur plans hel p over 130,000 frail and
el derly New Yorkers stay in their hones
i nstead of having to go into nursing hones.
Thi s i ncludes hel ping our menbers with their
basic needs. And | want everyone to focus on
this; this is nmoving fromplace to place,
bat hing, toileting, eating, socializing, and
going to the doctor. Wthout us, these basic
functi ons woul d not happen.

CHO CE Long Term Care Pl an serves over
24,000 nmenbers, and | want you to hear about
t he denographics: 73 percent are fenal e,
75 percent are a race other than white. The
average age is 75. The average incone is
under $900. And nost of our nenbers have
nore than five chronic conditions. And nost
of them speak one of 20 prinmary |anguages
other than English. So this is the nost
vul nerabl e residents in our comunity.

During the public health energency,
CHO CE, like other MLTC pl ans, was there for
our nmenbers. W nmade sure our nost

vul nerabl e nenbers had support despite the




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

501

ai de shortage. W made sure that nenbers who
wer e food-insecure had enough to eat. W
provi ded counseling and supported isol ated
menbers, and we sent over a mllion nmasks to
our menbers during the PPE shortage.

So today |I'm going to focus our
comments on the quality incentive funding
that the Executive Budget elimnates. This
has been an incredibly valuable tool to align
M.TCs and our providers to inprove quality of
care for the managed | ong-termcare
popul ation. These funds really fund
incentive paynents, create predictive nodels,
provide realtinme patient |evel performance
data to our providers, and they educate and
train care nanagers.

And the result of that is it works.
Over the last four years the Quality
| ncentive Program has hel ped us inprove
out cones for our nmenbers on virtually every
nmeasure -- that's reducing ER visits,
hospitalizations, serious falls, and
i ncl udi ng vacci nati on.

So the Executive Budget elim nates
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this quality incentive pool, and this is
essentially a quality disincentive. Not only
does this fly in the face of over two decades
of health policy, it seriously undern nes the
quality infrastructure that M.TC pl ans have
built and hurts the hone care agencies that
are using val ue-based paynents to enhance
their operations while paying hone health
ai des who put thensel ves out there every day
during this crisis to serve our nost
vul ner abl e nenbers.

Since well before the pandem c
gqual ity plans and providers were partners
with New York State to address these health
di sparities and ensure the popul ati on renai ns
home. W urge the Legislature to restore the
qual ity fundi ng pool and nake the pool
permanent in statute to support
| ong-termcare services for tens of thousands
of disabled and frail New Yorkers.

Thank you for your tine, and thank you
for supporting us.

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you al

very rmuch
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| know that Gustavo R vera had a

guestion or two.

SENATOCR RIVERA: | do, and it will be
brief.

Hel | o, everyone. GCkay, so | have a
few -- obviously, hopefully you fol ks were

tuned in during the marathon session that we
just had, and so | wanted to ask a coupl e of
guestions. Certainly you all expressed in
di fferent ways the concerns that you have
about the Medicaid cuts. So | wanted to
ask -- and |'ve asked sonme of you when you've
conme and net with ne, and some ot her
organi zations as well, but | want to do so
publicly as well, related to the raising of
nore revenue in the State of New York and how
essential it is, particularly as it relates
to maki ng sure that when it cones to
education, to healthcare and to other basic
services, that we do not nake those cuts,
that we actually get nore revenue.

Does anyone want to take this
opportunity on behal f of their organization

to actually say how essential nore revenue by
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taxing the wealthy would be? This is your
opportunity.

M5. REGAN. Senator Rivera, if | may.

SENATCR RI VERA: Pl ease.

M5. REGAN. There are 25 PA prograns
in New York State, including in urban, rura
and suburban areas, many hosted by SUNY and
CUNY institutions. A very young, qualified
wor kf orce. Many of your constituents are
struggling with workforce solutions --

SENATOR RI VERA:  Yes, nma'am

M5. REGAN. -- the problem across the
state. And the ability to re-channel sone of
t hose funds into those educati onal
opportunities to solve workforce issues is
significant.

SENATOR RI VERA: So you woul d say that
havi ng nore revenue to be able to provide, in
this particular sense, in the prograns you're
tal king about, to be able to train nore folks
t hat could be new to the workforce, the
heal t hcare wor kforce, you woul d be supportive
of that.

MS5. REGAN: Yes. There are over
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18,000 licensed PAs currently in New York
State. State Ed is handling about 1500
licenses a year. And that represents about a
30 percent increase in the past five years.

SENATCR RI VERA: So nore revenue woul d
hel p that happen.

M5. REGAN. That's right. There's a
huge demand for people to go into the PA
pr of essi on.

SENATOR RI VERA: Cot cha.

| "' m guessing the other fol ks are not
going to take the bait.

M5. GRAUSE: Senat or ?

SENATOR RI VERA:  Yes, nma'am

M5. GRAUSE: W don't have a position
on how you raise revenue, but certainly nore
revenue for healthcare is something that we
woul d support. But we don't have a position
on how you raise that. That's --

SENATOR RI VERA: | woul d ask you, as |
have privately, to please go back to your
menber shi p and devel op a position,
particularly during the budget negoti ati ons.

Greater New York, same thing. Get your
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nmenbers to get on board to please, let's tax
t he weal t hy, because the fol ks who you serve,
the Medicaid patients that you serve al
across the state are the ones that are

suf fering because of these cuts. And we need
to actually assuage sonme of those cuts.

Also, | just wanted to get people's
opinion on the global cap. There is a bill
that I have to actually get rid of it.
have nade the argunent many tinmes that it is
an -- it was an invention, there's no
guestion about that. And whether it's a
useful invention -- the adm nistration
continues to insist that it is, | continue to
insist that it is not.

Does anybody want to take a public
position on the global cap during this
nmoment ?

MR RICH Yes, Senator, | wll.

We have a | ot of concerns about the
fact that the global cap has really not
changed since it went into effect in 2011
Last year, as part of the MRT 2 process, a

| ot of the MRT nenbers tal ked about it.
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The administration al so tal ked about
at | east maki ng adjustnments. Because as
Senat or Krueger pointed out before, when you
have so rmuch enroll ment growth, that crowds
out everything else. It crowds out the
ability to do inportant investnents
el sewhere. It's why providers have not had
an inflation increase in 13 years -- well, in
nine years, but they haven't had since |onger
t han t hat.

So we woul d very much support, at the
very least, reformng it. W haven't taken a
position on actually getting rid of it
al t oget her.

SENATOR RIVERA: So this is another
one where | would ask you to go back to your
menber shi ps and consi der that anpbngst your
boar d.

Anybody el se want to take a position
on this?

M5. CRAUSE: We will. We'Ill consider
it, Senator. There definitely are chall enges
with it. But it's conplicated, as you know.

SENATOR RI VERA: Ch, certainly it is
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conplicated. But certainly | believe it's
necessary to at the very least reformit, and
at the nost get rid of it, which is why I
have a bill.

Anybody el se? W' ve just got
50 seconds. If not, it's okay.

Doctor, Dr. Clare, thank you for
bringing up all the concerns that you have
about maternal nortality. It is
incredibly -- I'll give you the |ast
40 seconds to just tell us alittle bit nore
about how inportant it is to nmake sure we get
it right in this budget.

DR CLARE: Yeah, | think in
particul ar fundi ng the Safe Mot herhood
Initiative would really be key, because we
want to inplenent some of those clinical
bundl e strategi es that we' ve devel oped, and
t he recommendati ons that have conme fromthe
Mat ernal Mortality Revi ew Board.

So | think that's really one of the
nost inmportant things | can really advocate
for. That would include $250,000 to really

fund this initiative. W know the good work
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it has done. New York State was ranked 46th
in the country, now we're ranked 23rd. W
have nore work to do.

Definitely we know t hat hospital s have
reported that SM has really directed their
impact, their ability to inprove patient
care. So thanks for your tine.

SENATOR RIVERA: M tinme is done.

That $250, 000, we would be able to have it if
we taxed the wealthy.

Thank you, Madam Chair. Back to you.

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you,

Senat or Custavo Rivera.

Hel ene, Assenbly?

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Yes, we have a
number of nmenbers. We'll start with
Assenbl yman Ra.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you, Chair.

Thank you all for your testinony --

CHAI RAOVAN VEEI NSTEIN:  It's just three
m nutes -- excuse ne, it's just three m nutes
for the panel. Yeah.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you all.

And a special thank you to all of your
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menbers, both institutionally and personally,
for their work over the |ast al nost year now.
It's certainly been a challenging tinme for
everybody in the healthcare field and, you
know, really answering the call in
unprecedent ed circunst ances.

| just wanted to -- and | think this
woul d be particularly for HANYS and G eater
New York Hospitals to talk a little bit nore
about sone of the nursing honme reforns? And
in particular it was nmentioned regarding the
revenue restrictions that are proposed.

W' ve seen these types of things in
t he past, you know, with not-for-profits and
things like that, and one of the things we' ve
seen is that perhaps costs that are
considered to be one thing or another by a
particul ar sector versus what they're
considered by the state may not al ways match
up, and it causes sone issues.

So -- and | know you nentioned, you
know, it not -- it being sonething that could
particularly clash with nmaking sure that

not-for-profit and public entities can conply
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with their mssions. So if you could
el aborate with regard to that a little bit
about things we need to keep in m nd when
crafting that proposal.

MR. RICH  Sure, absolutely. Thank
you, Assenbl yman

We represent only not-for-profit and
public nursing homes. And for the nost part,
they do spend nore on direct resident care
and staffing than their for-profit
counterparts do. And so we prefer this kind
of proposal nuch nore than staffing ratios,
for instance, mandatory staffing rati os.

What we would |ike to make sure,
t hough, is we've seen there are sone nursing
homes that do not -- who have very different
cost structures, like specialty nursing
homes, pediatric nursing hones, those who
serve H'V and AIDS, continuing care
retirement communities and others who may
need to be exenpted altogether fromit.

We'd want to make sure that when
you' re | ooking at what cost centers you're

including froma cost report, they really are
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what we woul d view as things that enhance
resident care and patient care. And that's
sort of where some of the details cone in

But for the nost part, for the
not-for-profit and public community, it's a
better proposal than the ratio bill, for
i nst ance.

M5. GRAUSE: Yeah, | think David's got
that right. The devil is in the details.

And for not-for-profit nursing hones, the
vast majority of their budget goes to direct
patient care in the formof salaries for
caregi vers.

So | think just making sure that
there's clarity around the expenses and what
woul d be counted in is critically inportant.
But we think, again, making sure that the
dollars go to patient care is really the nost
i nportant part of that.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

| think -- well, for me for the
Senate, just follow ng up on those questions,

do you think we can put the genie back in the




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

513

bottl e and reverse ourselves and no | onger
allow for-profit nursing hones in New York
State? Do you think if we get the fornul as
right that not-for-profit providers will cone
back into this universe?

MR RICH You know, | think -- oh, go

ahead, |I'msorry.

M5. GRAUSE: | guess | would have to
say if you want to -- | think it's a noney
guestion. | think if you want to have

services in the state, you have to cover the
cost of those services.

So | think it boils down to making
sure that you can have not-for-profit nursing
homes that can actually have a nargin,
because w thout the margin, no m ssion.

MR RICH Yeah. And | think as we
nmenti oned before, given the fact that nursing
homes are often 90 percent Medicaid, and the
Medi cai d program has really underfunded them
| think that's why we're seeing the
not-for-profits who do have hi gher cost
structures because they do spend nore on

residents' care and on, you know, other
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t hings that cost nore.

W see them bought up by the
for-profits, and that's because the
for-profits, once they buy themup, really
cut back on a ot of the things that the
not-for-profits were spending on in order to
fulfill their m ssion.

So it's really a function, as Bea
said, of the Medicaid rates. And they've got
to be inproved if we're going to turn this
around.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  And | think
that's a |l esson for us also when we're
wal ki ng into the new world of tel emedicine.

| think that we've all seen during
COVI D how val uabl e expanded tel enmedi ci ne
options can be, particularly in areas that
are geographically distant from|arge nunbers
of doctors and nedical centers.

But there also seens to be a push for
for-profit telenedicine, and nmy gut is to be
very hesitant of that. Has anybody | ooked at
the differences between for-profit

t el enedi ci ne and renmai ning in our
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not-for-profit nodel here in New York?

MR RICH | have not, but we wll
certainly look at that, absolutely.

DR CLARE: | would just like to add
that, you know, really paynment parity is
really key for tel emedicine services for al
payers. And al so coverage for audio-only
opti ons.

You know, | take care of patients that
are in a safety-net hospital systemand so
therefore really allowing for those options.
It really was invaluable for me as an OB- GYN
in the height of the pandem c al nost a year
ago to really have access to ny patients. So
really payment parity is super-key, and
coverage for audio-only would really help
t hese servi ces.

MR RICH W absolutely agree with
t he paynment parity conment. Thank you
Doct or .

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Al t hough we're not going to tell wonen, W're
not comng to help you deliver your baby

anynore, you just -- we'll walk you through
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on the computer, right?

DR CLARE: Well, that's for the
out patient services. W know for inpatient
services they always have to conme in. But
for outpatient services, prenatal care, we
know that's super inportant to ensure those
good out cones and reduce nmaternal nortality,
S0, you know - -

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: That's just ny
bad sense of hunor.

(Laughter, overtal k.)

DR CLARE: | got it, I got it. No
Worri es.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: | 'd better stop
before I do nore damage.

Assenbl y.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ynman
Cahi I I.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Thank you so
much.

And if | had ny pots and pans here,
|"d be banging themfor the people that work
for you to thank you for everything that

you' ve done over the past year.
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| just sent a nmessage to one of the
people in the Departnent of Health that while
Dr. Zucker was testifying, the one and only
COVID patient at the Health Alliance of the
Hudson Val l ey was rel eased, and it was ny
brother-in-law. So this is a good sign, not
only that ny brother-in-law got out, but that
there was only one patient there today.
That's terrific news.

Now, Ms. Grause and | had had an
opportunity on Monday to talk at |ength about
a variety of different issues. One of the
things | said to her, and | think our group
kind of msinterpreted ny reporting for
advocacy -- although I will say | ama
supporter of the idea -- | do believe that
this Legislature is of a mnd to consider
seriously staffing ratio bills.

And | would just urge you, as people
who represent a very inportant industry, to
start to think in terns of how you want to
contribute to that dial ogue instead of
t hi nki ng about how you can resist it.

Because if it happens, it happens. 1'd
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rat her have you be part of the solution than
have it be something that was inposed upon
you.

MR RICH W would agree with you.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Greater New York
has mentioned the finances of COVID for the
hospital systens and the nursing hone systens
in our state. You had | ower adm ssions at
t he emergency room you had fewer surgica
procedures -- two of the |last remaining
profit centers for our hospitals. And profit
is the wong word. Two of the |ast areas of
hospital services that make nore noney than
t hey cost.

MR RICH Mmnhmm

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: And then you al so
nmenti oned that there were increased costs
associated with COVID as a result of al
t his.

Do you feel that you can recover from
this with one-shot extraordi nary hel p? And
can we get back on track to where we were --
let's change that. Can we get back on track

to finally reaching a point of a path toward
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per manent sol vency for our healthcare
institutions?

M5. GRAUSE: It's going to take a
while. It's certainly going to take a while.
There are a | ot of noving parts.

Frankly, many hospitals have not seen

the cases cone back in terns of their

outpatient surgery. | think the prices are
still high for PPE. The requirenents to
war ehouse PPE still exist. So it's going to

take a while.
And | think telemedicine will help in
sone areas, but | think it will still be a
chal | enge revenue-w se for other providers.
MR RICH Yeah, and it's a very big
concern froma public health standpoint too.
| nmean, having only 64 percent of the
people in the ER that you used to have --
we' ve al ways wanted to have fewer people in
the ER, but if it's just because they're not
com ng and getting healthcare, then that's
really a problem
But | think especially for our

safety-net institutions, those Medicaid
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rates -- sonme increase in Medicaid rates is
so inportant. W keep having like bailouts
and Band- Aids for themyear after year after
year. W really just need to take care of
the revenue structure in one fell swoop.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: So ny cl ock was
set for three mnutes instead of five, but
let me just be very brief and --

CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEIN: It's three
m nut es.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: It's supposed to
be.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Okay. So very,
very quickly, thank you for your conments on
nmedi cal mal practice, excess nedica
mal practice. Very inportant.

| would urge you all to start thinking
about trying to forrmulate a group to
reconsi der how we deliver healthcare in
New York. W have to get off the triage and
get on a real plan.

So thank you very nuch. W'IlI| be
| ooki ng at everything, and hopefully we'll be

doing the right thing by you through this
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budget .

MR. RICH  Thank you.

M5. GRAUSE: Al ways happy to do that.

DR. ABDELAAL: Thank you.

CHAI R\MOVAN KRUEGER:  Hel ene, you have
anot her hand.

CHAI RAOVAN VEI NSTEI' N: Anot her t wo.

Assenbl yman Byr ne.

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Thank you. And |
want to thank you again for all your
testinmony and just sticking through the
entire hearing. [It's much appreciated.

A coupl e of questions and conments.
One, Maureen, you're right, we should be
t al ki ng about physician assistants nore. And
my wi fe would agree.

You nentioned in your testinony about
many New York State websites incorrectly |ist
PAs as registered rather than |isted.
woul d be curious as to what specific
websites. | don't expect you to get that to
me now, but perhaps that's sonething that our
committee and we can do, whether it's witing

directly to the state agency or through
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legislation. But | would be interested in
t hat .

| also wanted to just say thank you
again for your comrents, all of you for the
nost part, on the opposition to the
elimnation of the Indigent Care Pool for
public hospitals. | tried to nmention it
earlier, but Westchester Medical Center is
just outside ny district, but it's in one of
the counties | represent, and | believe that
they' re even nore disproportionately nore
i npacted fromthat elimnation because the
county does not contribute |ike sone of the
ot her public hospitals.

Al so heard sone of your concerns about
the shift fromthe 340B retail pharmacy
benefit, from Medicaid managed care to fee
for service. | appreciate that.

And | wanted to just -- you know,
after my cooments if there's anything you
want to el aborate on, | woul d appreciate that
and give you that opportunity.

The sane thing with, again, just like

the I nsurance chair, about the Excess Medi cal
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Mal practice I nsurance Program | appreciate
your conments.

As far as the nursing hones, the
30-day anendnents, that was nore of a
specific question | had. Some of these
penal ti es are substantial increases from what
is current. And | know there's been
proposals in the past from sone nenbers in
the Health Committee -- | think the chair.
And | tend to think that these types of
policies and di scussions should be separate
fromthe budget, not in the budget.

They seemto be pretty significant in
ajunmp. And I'd like to ask if you had any
comments or questions on that. And if
there's anything el se you wanted to add, by
all means pl ease do.

MR. RICH  Assenbl yman, on the
financial penalties, they're very big
increases. And they're not just for nursing
homes, those are for all providers, so
hospital s and other providers as well.

So we are very concerned about that.

| nmean, you know, we already feel like the
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fines are sufficient. And we don't want to
see them i ncreased.

MS. GRAUSE: Yeah, | don't think fines
are helpful in terns of operation or, nost
inmportantly, in ternms of an inprovenent.

| think you raised a | ot of issues,
Assenbl yman, and we are al ways happy to cone
inand talk to you in nore detail. There's a
| ot of detail there. There's also a |ot of
rel ati onship between many of the Medicaid
i ssues and sone of the proposals in the
budget. We're happy to talk to you about
t hat .

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Thank you. And |
guess ny point on the fines is if we're going
to have those discussions, | don't think it
should be in the budget. | think it's too
easy for things to get packed in. And if we
want to debate that, we should do it
separately and include all the stakehol ders,

i ncl udi ng you fol ks.

So thank you.

M5. GRAUSE: We would agree with that.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ynman
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Jensen.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Thank you very
much, Madam Chair.

Just want to get back into the
staffing conversation again. So really for
our hospitals and our nursing hones, what do
you guys see as really the nursing needs that
you're seeing fromyour nenbers on a daily
basis, whether it's RNs, LPNs, CNAs? \Mere
do you see the biggest need?

And when you're | ooking at those
staffing needs, do you think that flexible,
evi dence- based, data-driven nodels wll
really be preferable to adapt to what patient
resi dent needs are on a day-to-day basis,
rat her than sonething that's nandated across
the board for every facility across the
state?

M5. GRAUSE: Assenblyman, | coul dn't
agree with you nore. | think the pandem c
has denonstrated the need for flexibility.

And | think if you have seen one
staffing nodel in a hospital, you've seen one

staffing nodel. There are big differences
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bet ween | arge academ ¢ nedi cal centers and
how they are able to staff, and a snall
critical -access hospital.

And so | think having that flexibility
to make decisions locally -- and al so,

staffing needs vary according to the

acuteness of the patient. |1'ma registered
nurse nyself, and a hospital -- a patient's
needs may change minute by mnute. 1In a

nursi ng home, the patient's needs are nuch
nore stable. And so there are vast
di f f erences.

So | think that allow ng those -- the
deci si on-maki ng to happen within the facility
is really the nost appropriate. And the
pandem ¢ showed t hat.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: | apol ogi ze for
t he background noise on ny end. |I'mat the
di nner table with nmy 2-year-old, so |
apol ogi ze.

M5. GRAUSE: Lucky you.

DR CLARE: W |ove coworkers. So we
| ove coworkers.

(Laughter.)
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ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Does anybody el se

want -- David, did you have any thoughts

MR RICH Sure, no. Thank you, and
t hank you for your conments on this issue
earlier today.

Totally agree with Bea. And | think,
you know, as | nentioned on the nursing hone
side, we would prefer the kind of approach
that the 70 percent -- the requirenent to
spend 70 percent on direct resident care, we
much prefer that to inflexible ratios that
are in the bill

You know, to Chair Cahill's coment
before, we would definitely want to be part
of a solution. 1In the past, unfortunately,
the only option out there has been the bill
that, you know, DOH and Cornell told us al
| ast August would cost $4 billion for
hospital s and nursing honmes and require us to
hire 70,000 new people. So we clearly can't
pass that.

But we definitely would want -- we are

very willing to have conversations, and |
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bel i eve sonme are actually happening even as
we speak. So we would like to be part of a
sol uti on.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: I n the 10 seconds
| have, just a yes -- so do you really see
t he need not just for RNs, but the LPNs and
CNA positions across the board are really
what are needed for our health systemright
now?

MR RICH Ch, absolutely. W need
all of them

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Thank you very
much.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

MR. RICH And PAs.

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: W go to
Assenbl yman Pal nesano.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO  Thank you

Appr eci ate you bei ng here and what you
do.

This is nore directed towards HANYS
and the G eater New York Hospital
Association. Particularly |I know the

comments were brought up during your initial
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comment s about the Indigent Care Pool. And |
just wondered if you could elaborate a little
bit nore on that fromthe perspective -- are
you concerned about counties having to have
an increased burden with the renoval of the
state's share of the Indigent Care Pool and
the overall inpact this could have on county
property taxpayers, on your healthcare
facilities, and the delivery of healthcare in
general ? Just anything you could el aborate
on that.

Because | know that's sonething that
has a | ot of concern, especially I always
worry about cost shifts to counties and
property taxpayers and how that m ght
i npact -- any thoughts you m ght have on that
pr oposal ?

M5. GRAUSE: Sure. Certainly. |
think there are a couple of noving parts.

We agree with you on the renoval of
the state support for the public |Indigent
Care Pool. And I think we al so have a
proposal that would snmooth out the changes

year to year for the providers who receive
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t hose I ndigent Care Pool funds, so that the
burden of loss is evened out over tine.

So we agree with you on that part, but
we al so have the concern about the providers.

MR RICH Yeah. And | would totally
agree. And, you know, as | believe it was
Assenbl yman Byrne mentioned before, different
counties have been supporting their public
hospitals in different ways. |n Wstchester,
the county doesn't really put in the |ocal
share. The hospital itself is financing
that. Erie County deals with it differently,
and Nassau County deals with it differently.
The SUNYs, they don't have a taxing ability
to put up the state share that woul d be taken
away fromthem

So we really, really would urge you to
reject that cut, both because of the inpact
on counties -- who, by the way, need relief
al so and not new costs shifted to them And
it's not clear they'd even be able to pick up
the slack even if they were able to -- or
that they would be willing to. They've got

other priorities as well.
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So we think it's a -- we think it's an
ill-advised cut.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO. Thank you very
much.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Anyone el se,
Assenbl y?

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: We' re done.

But | think you have someone now,
Senat or Seri no.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Ch, hel l o, Sue
Serino popped up.

Senat or Sue Seri no.

(Pause.)

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Turn on your
speaker .

SENATOR SERINO  Sorry. Darn buttons.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

And t hank you so nuch for being here.

You know, a big part of our
conversation today was we were tal king about
bol stering staffing. So how do we inprove
t he workforce pipeline, whether it's CNAs,
RNs, PAs, doctors, what have you? Do you

have reconmendati ons for bol stering the
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heal t hcare workforce so the staffing
shortages aren't as common as they are today?

M5. GRAUSE: Thank you, Senator.

There are a ot of things that are
already in place, and | think it certainly
takes tine. | think the legislation for a
Bachel or of Science in Nursing in 10 is one.

| think career |adders starting early
in schools. It's actually quite a conpl ex
area. But, you know, kids -- when | was in
hi gh school, you know, you could be a teacher
or a nurse. |'mdating nyself, but that --
you know, those were the choices, and | chose
nursing. But kids, young boys and girls have
lots and lots of different career choices.
And | think starting early and maki ng sure
t hat ki ds understand the wonderful rewards
and career paths for people who choose
heal thcare is sonething that we have to do a
| ot nore of.

But there's many nore ideas. But yes,
we would love to talk to you about a | ot of
our ideas around that.

SENATOR SERI NO | would love to do
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that. | love going into the schools, and |
think we really have to start in mddle
school, right? By the tine high school rolls
around - -

M5. GRAUSE: It's too late.

SENATOR SERINO. -- it's too late

Yeah, so I'd love to continue this
conversation. And thanks again for being
here today.

M5. CGRAUSE: O course.

M5. REGAN. | think the challenge as
it relates to PAs, as | nmentioned, is to
ensure that PAs are included in regul ations,
gui dance, statutes, bills. W're often |eft
out, and if people don't see us, they assune
t hat PAs cannot provide the function.

A perfect exanple is when the DOH set
out the vaccination gui dance, PAs were not
mentioned in it. Doctors, nurses were.
Clearly, by our license, we can. | spent
many a day in Nassau County with the
commi ssi oner of health in Nassau County,
volunteering tine to give out the vaccines.

But we had to get clarification fromthe
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Depart ment of Health because if we were not
specifically listed, they assunmed that we're
not providing the care.

It's very, very difficult to get that
redirected once that initial guidance has
been rolled out. So it's inperative, again,
on bill |anguage, any kind of DOH gui dance,
that PAs are explicitly included. W have
licenses to practice just |ike our physician
col | eagues, we report to the Board of
Medi ci ne, we get disciplined by the OPMC.

But we're often -- we're often left out of
t hat | anguage.

M5. GRAUSE: That's a good point.

SENATOR SERINO It's hel pful. Thank
you.

CHAl RA\OVAN VEI NSTEIN: Al'l right.

Anyone el se here tonight? Nope.
We're going to thank the panel for staying
with us. Well, you didn't really have to
stay with us. W used to make you cone to
Al bany; now you just turn on Hol |l ywood
Squares at the right tine.

But indeed, thank you very nuch for
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being with us and for sharing your opinion
with us.

DR. CLARE: Thank you very rmuch

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

And our next panel --

M5. REGAN. Thank you, Chairwonan
Krueger and Chai rwoman Wi nst ei n.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Qur next panel is 1199SEIU, Mlly
Silva (sic); the Consuner Directed Personal
Assi st ance Associ ation of New York State,
Bryan O Mal |l ey; the Hone Care Associ ation of
New York State, Alyssa Lovelace; and the
New York State Council for Comrunity Behavi or
and Heal t hcare, Lauri Col e.

And again, you've all submtted
testinmony. You're not going to try to read
it, because you only have three mnutes. And
then we will ask the panel any questions we
wi sh to ask. And know that we all have your
full testinony and people can definitely
follow up with you after this hearing this
eveni ng.

So our first speaker is Mdlly Silva.
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M5. SILVA. CGood afternoon. M nane
is actually MIly Silva.

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Excuse ne.

MS. SILVA: | serve as an executive
vi ce president of 1199SEIU United Heal t hcare
Wrkers East. And we are submitting witten
testimony on behal f of the 300,000 heal t hcare
workers that we represent in the State of
New Yor k.

And so | want to focus ny renmarks
specifically on the need for nursing homne
reform At 1199SEIU we represent over
65, 000 nursing home workers in 343 nursing
homes across the state, providing the
hands-on care that residents need to thrive.

There are a few points that | want to
be able to bring to the group today. Nunber
one is that even before this pandem c, our
menbers were increasingly concerned about the
conditions that they were experiencing at the
nursi ng homes, where we saw owners who have
chosen to increase their profits rather than
invest in the staff needed to provide the

hours of residents' care that our seniors
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need at the facilities.

During the pandem c, the crisis becane
exponentially worse. It |ooked |ike the
failure to provide personal protective
equi pnent, it |ooked |ike workers who were
bei ng pressured to return to work despite
being ill and al so, at tines, having the
chal l enge of being in a situation where they
weren't receiving the sick-1eave tine that
t hey needed in order to be able to recover
during their quarantine leave. And it also
included a failure to guarantee that nursing
homes were using appropriate infection
control measures.

Qur nmenbers' experiences and a
conparison with other states nake it
abundantly cl ear that serious reformof the
i ndustry is needed. A few key points.

New York ranks worse than 38 others in
t he nunber of hours per day of hands-on care
that residents receive -- and, not
coincidentally, is one of only 12 states
wi t hout any mninmum state standards for hours

of care. Directly related to that, we have
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one of the worst rates of pressure ulcers in
hi gh-ri sk, |ong-stay residents.

Even as care suffers, too many nursing
home owners are extracting profit fromthese
homes. The average spend on resident care is
just 65 percent of overall revenue, with
35 percent being spent on staffing. And
because these are averages, let's be m ndful
that there are | arge groups of nursing hones
who are spendi ng even | ess.

Rai sing the floor and requiring that
homes spend a m ni num of 40 percent on
staffing and a total of 70 percent on
resident care -- again, as a mninmm-- wll
shift approximately $500 m|lion that can go
towards resident care. And these are dollars
that are already in the system

And this kind of a m nimum standard
will also target the bad actors. Over
70 percent of New York's nonprofit nursing
homes al ready neet these standards, but only
20 percent of for-profits do. Taxpayer
dol | ars shoul d be spent where they matter, on

resi dent care.
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I"mclosing with we want to thank the
Senat e for passing S4336A, which would
achi eve that goal. Urgent reform nust be
addressed in the budget, especially as it
concerns how Medicaid dollars are spent. W
want to thank Governor Cuono for including it
in his 30-day budget anendnments, and we
believe that the additional proposals nade by
Governor Cuono regarding limts on profits,
the issue of related party transactions,

i ncreased transparency and reporting, and the
appoi ntment of tenporary receivers are the
ki nds of reforms that we need.

So we urge you as legislators to seize
this nmoment and change the nursing hone
systemso that it is one where we are putting
patient care first over profits.

Thank you for the opportunity to
addr ess you.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.

Now Bryan O Mall ey.

MR. O MALLEY: Hi . Good evening. |'m
Bryan O Mal | ey, executive director of the

Consuner Directed Personal Assistance
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Associ ati on of New York State, or CDPAANYS.
And on behal f of the 139,000 peopl e who use
CDPA and the fiscal internediaries that serve
them thank you for the opportunity to
testify and thank you for everyone's strong
support of CDPA, both today and over the | ast
several years.

The nounting death toll from nursing
homes is receiving a lot of attention, but
t he shocking statistics are obscuring a nore
basic fact. This pandemc didn't create
these conditions, it nerely placed a
spotlight on them and nmade t hem wor se.

W have to take steps to protect those
i n nursing homes, but we can't stop there.
We have to shift the focus of care to the
community, because it doesn't take an expert
to know that the best way to avoid dying in a
nursing home is not to enter one to begin
with.

To do this, we have to address
New York's worst-in-the-nation hone care
wor kforce crisis. W nust pass the Fair Pay

for Hone Care, which will require that the
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state and plans fully fund a honme care wage
equal to at |east $22.50 an hour. According
to the PHI hone care workers, who are
primarily wonmen of color, earn an average
annual salary of just $22,000 a year. That's
$8,000 less than the full-tine fast food
enpl oyees upstate. The wage is so bad that
over half of workers nust rely on Medicaid
and ot her benefits to survive.

And according to a new report fromthe
CUNY School of Labor and Urban Studies,
Fair Pay for Hone Care woul d be the nost
successful econoni c devel opnent initiative in
decades. They estimate that investing in
Fair Pay for Hone Care woul d generate
i ncreased revenue and savi ngs of
$7.6 billion. They further estimate that it
woul d create 20,000 new hone care jobs a year
for over a decade. And because these fol ks
will spend their noney on food, housing and
ot her necessities, there will be significant
econonm ¢ spillover supporting |ocal
busi nesses ravaged by the econonic coll apse

and generating yet another 17,500 jobs per
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year.

There's no better way to "build back
better” from COvVID. Passing Fair Pay for
Hone Care, we can sinultaneously address the
failures of the long-termcare system
institutional bias, a home care workforce
shortage, |ongstanding racial and
gender - based i nequity, and struggling | ocal
busi nesses and economi es.

We al so have to address the reason for
the cuts over the past decade and repeal the
Medi caid G obal Cap that rations healthcare
and di sproportionately inpacts seniors and
t he di sabled. The global cap is why the
state made the choice to cut $2.2 billion
fromour Medicaid programat the sane tine
that we were starting a once-in-a-century
pandem c. No policy over the past decade has
been nore responsible for furthering the
state's institutional bias.

And we don't just have to repeal the
cap, we have to repeal the home care and CDPA
eligibility cuts that resulted fromit,

particularly the discrimnatory activity of
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daily living requirenments and the overly
bureaucratic enablist {?} assessnent
provi si ons passed | ast year, both of which
di squalify those in need fromreceiving hone
care or CDPA while still allowing themto go
to a nursing hone and jeopardi ze hundreds of
mllions in federal funding.

In closing, and finally, we urge you
to pass the Invest in Qur New York project
package. Budget cuts, regardl ess of where
they are located in the budget, inpact the
sanme people. W cannot ask disabl ed fol ks or
anyone to choose between their Medicaid,
education, housing or food.

Thank you for granting ne the
opportunity to testify.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.

| appreciate people staying, but I
just really encourage people to |look at the
clock. We're approaching the ninth hour of
t he hearing, and we have nore than --
probably 35 witnesses left. So -- don't get
so excited, Gustavo.

SENATOR RI VERA: | gotta keep --
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gotta stay, | gotta stay here, | gotta stay
here.

(Laughter.)

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN:  So Hone Care
Associ ati on of New York State -- oh,

Senat or Krueger is back. Home Care
Associ ati on of New York State.

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUECER: Great. Thank
you.

M5. LOVELACE: Hi. [|'mAlyssa
Lovelace. I'mthe director for public policy
and advocacy with the Home Care Associ ati on.
Thank you so much for having nme here today.

HCA, we represent hone care agenci es,
hospi ce providers, managed | ong-termcare
pl ans, wai ver prograns, allied health, HMOs
and ot her provider types |ocated across the
st at e.

First and forenost, we ask the
Legislature to reject the Executive's budget
proposal s that woul d reduce any Medicaid for
home- and comruni ty-based care.

Specifically, the 1 percent across-the-board

cut to Medicaid providers. That includes
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home care and hospice funding, which is
actually a 2 percent cut for us given the
cuts we're already seeing. Cuts to nanaged
| ong-term care plan prem uns and the
elimnation of the $150 mllion quality
fundi ng, which was previously nentioned by
t he VNSNY.

The CGovernor also called for a
50 percent reduction for hone care and
hospi ce workforce recruitnment and retention
wage benefit funds. These funds actually
hel p enpl oy our workforce. Earlier today it
was stated that perhaps we can do w t hout
t hese funds by our Medicaid director. They
seem | i ke pennies, but to these providers
they're not. They help with paynent.

W need to nake it |less hard for our
agencies to retain their workforce,
especi ally now, considering home health aide
enpl oynment i ncreased by 79 percent statew de
bet ween 2014 and 2020.

What woul d al so help the state

wor kf orce is the expansion of telehealth. W

request that the Executive's telehealth
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provi sion is anended to include healthcare
flexibility within tel ehealth, and include
guardrails for coordination, quality and
prevention of | oophol es.

W'd like to see the Legislature
provi de financial stability for home care,
hospi ce and pl ans, and nake some investnents
in the industry by ensuring the Departnent of
Health carries out its obligation to update
and rai se the episodic, fee for service, and
m ni mum wage Medicaid rates for honme care,
directing a fair share of federal and state
COVID-19 relief to home care and hospice
provi ders, and meki ng the cost of PPE and
rel ated safety protocols ongoi ng conponents
of the state's heal thcare rei nbursenent
system I n 2020 hone care agenci es al one saw
a 136 percent increase in PPE expenses.

And finally, we ask that the
Legi sl ature consider HCA s "New York Hone
Care First" nodel. This would provide
COVID-19 relief neasures for conmunity-based
care and stable Medicaid financing, and a

supportive regulatory structure that provides
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critical flexibilities for operations, care
delivery, and efficiency while protecting
quality and the integrity of care and support
for workforce retention, preparedness and
sufficient capacity to neet patient care and
demand.

W need to ensure that our hone care
agenci es and hospice providers are taken care
of at the end of the day. They are really
doing God's work in the field. They are
hel pi ng the nost vul nerabl e popul ati ons at
home, and there are hundreds of exanples
wi thin how we col | aborate along with
di fferent hospital systenms and comunity
partners. And |I'm happy to talk offline and
share nore of these stories and sol utions
with you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Next, Lauri Cole.

M5. COLE: Good afternoon -- actually,
good evening. |I'mlLauri Cole. [I'mthe
executive director of the New York State
Council for Community Behavi oral Heal t hcare.

W are a statew de nenbershi p associ ation
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representing nmental health and substance
abuse providers across New York

"' m here today to ask your assistance.
The behavi oral health systemis really
hangi ng by a thread. W' ve been ravaged by
t hree concurrent public health disasters with
t he opioid epidemc, increasing rates of
suicide, and COVID-19. New York famlies and
communities are devastated. The system of
care designed to provide prevention,
treatment and rehabilitative options is
sorely underfunded and in crisis. The demand
for our services far outpaces our ability to
respond. And every data point indicates it's
going to get worse.

There should be no cuts to nental
heal th and substance use di sorder addiction
systens of care. Instead, we're proposing
smart investnents. This year we have
requests that would return resources that
bel ong to our systemof care to include a
set-aside of funds fromthe state's
heal t hcare transformati on fund account,

consi stent with Assenbl yman Gottfried and
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Senator Rivera's bills A264 and S2531; a
request that all state aid funding w thholds
be restored; and that the state honor its
commtments to reinvest savings from our
system back into it.

Behavi oral health services were
transitioned to managed care in 2015. The
| aw and policy of the state is clear:
Managed care savings fromour system go back
to the system of care.

Before we transitioned, stakehol ders
were very concerned about noney being
si phoned out of the system by plans for their
profits. W spent countless hours working in
col |l aboration with the state on | anguage to
ensure state gui dance and docunents to
include -- to ensure transparency in the
process and for nmanaged care savings to
accrue to the systemof care fromwhich it
cane.

At that time there was anpl e evidence
inliterature and historical context for us
to have concerns about the siphoning off of

funds once we transitioned to Medicaid
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managed care. W saw it comng, we put in
saf equards, but the state has again |left the
chi cken coop open for the foxes.

To date we haven't received a single
docunent of substance in response to four
FOL requests we filed in the early fall,

t hrough counsel seeking information that
shoul d be readily available if the state was
hol di ng the health plans accountabl e for
nmeeti ng behavioral health expenditure targets
and nedical |oss ratios established as part
of the transition. Qur witten testinony
goes into great detail about this.

However, the questions we have renain.
What is the state hiding? Could it be that
the state allowed the plans to retain funds
t hat were supposed to be returned back to the
system of care? W are calling for a ful
accounting of the managed care savings from
our systemof care, as well as the shortfalls
i n behavi oral health expenditures by the
Medi caid health plans. And we are asking for
your help to ensure that these funds are

properly invested back for essenti al
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behavi oral health services needed now nore
t han ever.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Anyone, questions? Then -- oh,
Assenbly, | see a hand up on your side.

CHAI RAMOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  Yes, we now
have Kevin Byrne for three m nutes.

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Yup, sorry about
that. Just trying to junp to it.

Thanks again for your testinony. The
guestions are nore directed towards Al yssa
fromthe Hone Care Association. |'mnot sure
if you were follow ng along with our
guestions earlier. | asked sonething of our
i nspector general, OM G regarding audits
during the pandem c and howit's affected
sone of the on-site assessnents.

And | was curious if you had -- if you
were following along, if you had any conments
to share, if there's any specific know edge
that you may have or insights from sone of
your menbers.

M5. LOVELACE: Yes, certainly. Thank
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you, Assenbl ynenber.

When | heard that response it seened
very vague to me, because as an associ ation
representative we hear fromthe providers on
a daily basis. And | can tell you right now
| heard fromone just yesterday or the day
before, and they said that they're on their
tenth survey of the year. And we're in a
pandemi c. So, | mean, that seens a little
ridiculous to ne.

Do | understand why we're having
surveys? O course | do. Can they be
perhaps a little bit nore streanlined given
our circunstances? Absolutely. W need to
make it easier for these providers, again,
not harder.

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: | understand that.
| was a little surprised because it nmade it
sound |i ke everyone was renote and they
weren't doing in-person surveys, which was
not my understanding. So | thank you for
your additional clarification, and we'll have
to follow up with the inspector general

Thank you.
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M5. LOVELACE: Certainly. Thank you
so nuch.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. Thank
you, everyone, for being with us this
af t er noon/ eveni ng.

W will nove on to our next panel. W
have Beth Finkel, state director of AARP
New York; Talya Schwartz, president,
Metro Plus Health Plan; Janes d yne,
Leadi ngAge New York; Heidi Siegfried,
director of health policy for ClDNY,
Center for Independence of the D sabl ed,
New Yor k; and Dougl as Hovey, CEO of
| ndependent Living, Inc.

W'l start with Beth Finkel.

M5. FINKEL: Hi. Thank you so nuch.
Good eveni ng, everyone. Thank you so nuch to
Senat or Krueger and Assenbl ymenber Wi nstein
and nenbers of the commttee.

| just want to start off centering us
on the nunmbers, which | think you' re well
aware of. But in New York State, according
to the CDC, 95 percent of the COVID 19 deaths

were people 50 and ol der -- 95 percent of the
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deat hs, 50 and ol der. Wich is why what
we're tal king about today is so inportant.

This year's budget really has to
prioritize struggling ol der New Yorkers.
There's been sone really fatal, literally
fatal flaws that have been highlighted in our
| ong-termcare system putting vul nerable
nursi ng home residents' health, safety and
staff really in a terrible position. The
loss of life of over 15,000 New Yorkers from
nursi ng homes has just been terrible. And it
just shows you what has conme before but, if
we don't do something now, what is going to
continue to happen in generations going
forward

AARP has a five-point plan. |'m going
to hit the highlights of it for you

One is quality of care. W reconmrend
that all nursing hones be required to spend
nore resources on direct care, along with
i ncreasi ng nursing honme staff |evels and
working to ensure strict conpliance with
i nfectious di sease controls, including

i ncreasing staffing for the Long Term Care
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Onbudsman Program

AARP strongly recomrends that the
state add $5 mllion to the Long Term Care
Onbudsman Program which currently has a
funding level of 1.19 mllion. W need to
hire and train nore professional staff. W
know that during this pandem c, because |ong
term onbudsnmen for the nost parts were
vol unteers and ol der people who coul d not go
into the system that whol e |evel of
over si ght was m ssi ng.

Retroactive repeal of legal immunity.
| know that's come up with a |ot of other
testinonies before mne. W just need to
stop shielding long-termcare facilities for
any negligent care. Famlies have to have
recour se.

Transparency. AARP recomends
codi fying the requirenent of daily reporting
of data on fatalities and infectious rates
anong both residents but also staff.

Hone- and community-based servi ces.
We need $27 mllion nore in honme- and

comuni ty-based services so we can keep
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peopl e out of nursing homes and institutions,
whi ch cost nore noney every way you think
about it, and it's not what ol der people nor
their famlies want for them

Visitation; this has been hit before.
We need to ensure long-termcare facilities
are providing safe in-home facilitative
virtual visitation.

W need to expand tel ehealth.

And | just want to thank you -- oh, ny
God, | didit, 3 seconds to go. | thank you
all. Mre details in nmy testinony. But nine
hours and counting, cheers to all of you for
doing this. Can't thank you enough for the
wonder ful advocates that you all are.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Ckay, next is Talya Schwart z.

DR. SCHWARTZ: Good evening, and thank
you for the opportunity to testify today on
behal f of the Coalition of New York State
Public Health Pl ans.

|"mDr. Talya Schwartz, president and
CEO of Metro Plus Health Plan, a wholly owned

subsidiary of Health + Hospitals. W serve
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over 120,000 Medicaid beneficiaries in New
York City, with nost of our beneficiaries
identifying thensel ves as mnorities.

I'"d like to talk to you today about
the elimnation of the Medicaid quality
i ncentive bonus in the Executive Budget.
This step is in direct opposition of New York
State's goal to reduce inequity and
di sparities in healthcare, which is the very
m ssi on of our plan.

For many years Metro Plus Health and
ot her plans have been commtted to cl osing
gaps in the care of the underserved
popul ati on, and we have been successful in
doing so. This was possible due to the
i nvestnments we nmade in people who specialize
in quality inmprovenent nmethods so that the
i mprovenents actually stick, in nethodol ogy,
in data, and ongoi ng col |l aboration, including
financial incentives, with our provider
partners.

The majority of the quality incentive
funds we receive fromthe state are

distributed to top-performng providers to
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sustain and continue incentivizing good
quality of care for our nenbers. And we have
good evidence that this foundation, that was
built over many years, has paid off. 1In the
past four years our quality work has led to
over 10,000 nore breast cancer and col orectal
cancer screenings. Over 6,000 nore nenbers

i mproved control of their diabetes. And over
1700 additional new nons received post-partum
care.

These are just a few exanples as to
why this funding nmatters. W applied the
quality incentive funds in a variety of
effective ways. Since the popul ation we
serve often cannot find tinme to take care of
t hensel ves, we bring the care to them Cur
nmenbers can get health screenings, denta
care, immunizations and nore in their
conmuni ti es.

We hol d between 50 and 70 conmunity
events a year. W incentivize our nmenbers to
take care of their health through a nenber
rewar ds program whi ch doesn't just push

people to get a checkup and track their steps
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and get flu vaccines, but this program was
critical to support our nost vul nerable
menbers when we sent 10, 000 boxes of food and
PPE at the height of the pandem c.

We | aunched a di abetic peer program
mat chi ng people with controll ed diabetes to
people with uncontrolled diabetes. This
programresulted in a 30 percent increase of
better control. To nake the programreally
wor k, we needed to al so address food and
housi ng i nsecurities, transportation for
al nrost 19 percent of the participants, and
problenms with taking nmedications for over
one-third of the participants, in which case
we assisted with hone delivered nedications,
pill packs, and calling doctors to order
refills.

CGetting neani ngful inprovenents takes
i nvest ment of resources.

In closing, we cannot afford to ignore
that the popul ations served by this quality
funding are at the highest risk. And as we
have cone to | earn through the recent

pandem c, the entire healthcare systemw ||
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suffer if their heal thcare needs are not
addressed. | urge you to restore the quality
fundi ng pool and protect it by including
statutory | anguage to make the quality pool
permanent in the budget bills.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

And next we have Janes d yne,

Leadi ngAge New Yor k

Turn your speaker on.

MR. CLYNE: Yup, thank you

| represent over 400 |ong-termcare
provi ders across New York State, the ful
conti nuum of care -- nursing honmes, assisted
living, home care, managed | ong-termcare
pl ans, and housi ng for the elderly.

Over the next 10 years, the over-65
and over-85 popul ation of New York State is
going to grow by 40 percent, yet the state
has conpletely failed to invest in services
for seniors. Over 65 percent of the
not-for-profit and county homes, heading into
t he pandem c, were already | osing noney, and

67 percent of the CHHAs in New York State
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wer e | osi ng noney headi ng i nto COVI D

The Medi cai d rei nbursenent rate for
nursing homes is the worst in the country
when you conpare expenses to rei nmbursenent.
There's a |l oss of $64 a day for serving
Medi caid recipients in nursing hones. That's
because the state has not provided a
cost-of-living increase in 12 years, and at
the sane tinme has done a billion dollars
worth of budget cuts in long-termcare over
the last three budgets, tw ce the anmount of
any other area in Mdicaid.

At the sanme tine, the state has failed
to invest in long-termcare services, either
t hrough the Transition Grant Program or the
Medi cai d DSRI P program the federal waiver.
In the case of the transition program only
10 percent of the funds have gone to
|l ong-termcare. And as far as the DSRI P
program only 2 percent of the funds have
gone to long-termcare -- even though
| ong-term care nmakes up 42 percent of the
state's Medi caid budget cap.

Since 2014, 50 county and
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not-for-profit nursing hones have been sol d,
13 have cl osed, and 30 assisted living
progranms have al so cl osed.

The systemwas fragile going into
COvVID. The state nade the nmatter worse by
doing a hal f-percent Medicaid cut in April.
So in the mddle of a pandemic, the state did
a cut to the largest funder of services in
nursi ng homes and one of the | argest funders
in home care

The providers faced enornmous costs,
whet her it was PPE, testing, or staffing.
These costs have not been reinbursed. The
federal governnment did provide sone aid, and
we thank them for that, but the federal aid
for nursing homes covered roughly one-third
of the increased costs as a result of COVID.

So we had a fragile systemhit by a
pandem ¢ that both the federal governnent,
CDC and the state were unprepared for, and
the long-termcare system has faced the
consequences of that.

Thank you for the opportunity, and |I'd

be happy to answer any questi ons.
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CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

And our next is Heidi Siegfried,

Cl DNY.

M5. SIEGFRIED: H . |I'mthe health
policy director at Center for |ndependence of
the Disabled in New York. And we were
founded in 1978. Qur mission is to serve
people with all types of disabilities, so
that would be nobility inmpairnments but al so
peopl e who are deaf and hard of hearing,
blind and | ow vi si on.

And the idea is that we want to nake
sure that people have the services and
supports necessary to remai n i ndependent in
the community, and also the policies to help
peopl e renai n i ndependent in the comunity
and not be going into institutions like
nursi ng homes, like psychiatric centers, like
pri sons.

So we have al ways supported the
New York Health Act. | haven't heard anyone
mention that yet today. But that would be

the gold standard for us in terms of having
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heal t h cover age.

But the second thing that's at the top
of our list is the Medicaid d obal Cap
W' ve been traveling up to Al bany to oppose
this for many years now because we really did
see that, you know, it operated to really cut
down on the services that are necessary for
us to remain i ndependent in the community.

So these cuts were not carried out by
t he Governor or the Legislature, they were
carried out by managed | ong-termcare
conpani es. \Wich was that we sinultaneously
requi red people who were dual-eligibles to
get their care through nanaged | ong-termcare
conpani es, and hours of home care that was
necessary to avoid going into institutions
were cut.

The only way to keep those hours was
to use the due process systemto request a
fair hearing, and of course it's very
i mportant to have consuner assistance funding
to help people with these fair hearings
because they woul dn't be able to exercise

their rights without it.
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The ot her consuner assistance that's
very inportant to us that -- it does cone
t hrough the Aging Committee, but the
Long Term Care QOrbuds Program W operate
the Long Term Care Qrbuds Program for
New York City, and we've been requesting an
increase in our funding for many years. And

now that | hear that Beth is requesting

5mllion, | think we will too. W had
nostly been asking for 3 mllion all these
years.

But, you know, the state and the city
conptroll er have both conme out with reports
expl ai ni ng how underfunded it is: New York's
at the bottomof the heap in terns of putting
inits owm funds for the program And we
woul d actually need 23 nore full-tinme
staff -- this is what the conptroller found
in New York Gty -- just to be fully staffed
at what has been recomended | ong ago by what
used to be the Institute on Medicine.

| do want to say that we do support
the Fair Pay for Hone Care canpaign that

Bryan nentioned, and al so the innovation fund
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totry to help have a workforce for when we
get those hours restored. W have to have
people to staff them Sonetines we just find
that there isn't people to staff them

And we do support the revenue, yes --

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. You
ran out of time, so I'mjust going to cut you
of f there, okay?

M5. SI EG-FRI ED:  Sure.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

And our last testifier on this panel
i s Dougl as Hovey, |ndependent Living, Inc.

MR. HOVEY: Well, good evening. And
it's great to see ny coll eague from New York
City, Heidi Siegfried. N ce to see you
Hei di .

My nanme is Doug Hovey. |'mthe
presi dent and CEO of | ndependent Living,
| ncor por at ed.

W' re also, |like CIDNY, a consumer-run
cross-disability service organization. W're
a nenber of the New York Association on

| ndependent Living, which consists of
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41 | ndependent Living Centers throughout
New York State. Much of our work is
dedi cated to advocating for the
| ong-term care needs of older adults and
people with disabilities. | also serve as a
menber on CDPAANYS -- you heard from Bryan
earlier -- and also the Mdst Integrated
Setti ng Coordinating Council.

We know there are a nunber of
| ong-termcare options. However, the one
that seens to dom nate nost thinking and
pl anni ng processes continues to be pl acenent
i n nursing homes, based on the
institutionally biased belief that congregate
care facilities are the safest choice. These
assunpti ons have been deeply chall enged as
t housands of our nursing honme residents
needl essly lost their lives to COVID 19. The
i npacts of these deaths are inmeasurable.

|"mgoing to get right to the point
and tell you, it's tine to plan for the
phased elimnation or system c closure of
nursing homes -- in a planned fashion, one

that protects the interests of nursing hone
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residents, but also ultimately protects
peopl e who are faced with nursing hone
pl acenent .

Most of you know even the
best - operated nursing hone is not a good
place to be. | don't think any one of us
signs up to be in a nursing honme. W have
the capacity to support people in the
community. W need to build up our conmunity
infrastructure so that we can continue to
hel p people to age in place with dignity and
respect, |ike they deserve.

Several |egislators asked
Comm ssi oner Zucker today if the DOH can
ensure inprovenents in the quality of care
for nursing home residents. Let's be clear.
Gover nment does not have the power to contro
nursi ng homes. They never have. They never
will. It would take an act of God or sone
mracle to change the outcones for nursing
home patients and to stop the high incidence
of infection, including urinary tract
i nfections, respiratory infections, skin

br eakdown i nt o decubitus ul cers, influenza,
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gastroenteritis, sepsis, and now COVID- 19 and
its evolving strains, right, all endemc to
institutional congregate care settings.

By design, congregate care
institutions are a recipe for depression,
nment al and physical illness, and premature
death. W're in the 21st year of the
21st century. It's time to call for the
phased elimnation and create a better
col | aboration between state and | ocal
governments and a better coordination of care
at the local |evel.

We can do this. W can support people
to remain in the conmunity, to age in place.
There are great progranms that are avail able
that can help do this. W just have to give
nore attention to them

And ny tinme is up.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Your time is up.
Thank you very much

MR. HOVEY: Thank you.

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUECER: | see the hand of
Rachel WMay.

SENATOR MAY: Yes, thank you.
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And M. Hovey, | hope you will end up

bei ng on the Rei magi ning Long Term Care Task

Force if the bill gets passed and signed into
| aw.

MR HOVEY: |'d be honored to. Thank
you.

SENATOR MAY: | have two questions for

several of you. One of themis about getting
people off the waiting list for hone care
servi ces.

Two years ago the Ofice for the Aging
put $15 million in the budget to do that, and
they also clainmed it would save $34 mllion
in Medicaid costs by keepi ng peopl e out of
nursing homes. This year you're telling ne
and |'madvocating for that 27 mllion to get
people off the newwaiting list, but | don't
have a nunber and |I'm wondering if anybody
can estimate what it will save in actual
Medi caid costs to the state, how nany peopl e
m ght be likely to stay out of nursing hones
and, you know, save noney for the state that
way.

M5. FINKEL: Senator, | will just say
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| know | owe you that nunber. You asked ne
for it, and I"'mworking on it.

SENATOR MAY:  Ckay.

M5. FINKEL: -- you put ne on the spot
and I'Il give it to you -- great. But if
not --

(Unintelligible cross-talk.)

SENATOR MAY: | don't nmean to put you
on the spot. | want to go on record, | want

to go on record that we are tal ki ng about
savings. This is an investnent that pays
of f.
MS. FINKEL: Absolutely. Thank you.
SENATOR MAY: And ny ot her question
was about the fiscal internediary process.
So | represent Syracuse. Central
New York has sone great organi zations that
have been acting as fiscal internediaries for
quite a while. They fill really inportant
ni ches in our continuumof care in our
regi on, and none of themwas selected to be a
fiscal internediary in the |atest
conpetition. And I'mwondering if any of you

has concerns about that process, if you feel
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like the results are going to be okay and we
shoul d just nove on, or if it is worth
fighting about those results.

MR HOVEY: | think there are a |ot of
peopl e who are concerned about the process,
the RFO sel ection process. But | think also
we' re concerned about the radical change,
that 80 percent of the providers have been
elimnated. Which, you know, if you do the
mat h, about 60, 000 people or nore, 60,000 to
70, 000 people are going to be looking for a
new fiscal internediary. So there's going to
be this massive attenpt to try to ranp up
t hese existing 68 prograns and ratchet down
cl ose to 300 prograrns.

That's a massive undertaking. And if
you talk to any of the experts, consultants
inthis type of transformation, they' Il tel
you it takes 36 nmonths mnimumto do this
effectively without massive disruption to the
popul ati on.

SENATOR MAY: Thank you very nuch

And t hanks for sticking it out so

| ong.
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t here?

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUECER:  Hel ene?

CHAl RWOVAN WVEI NSTEI' N: Yes.

Assenbl ywoman M I | er.

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Mel i ssa, are you

ASSEMBLYWOVAN M LLER:  Yup, |'m here.
CHAl RWOMAN VEI NSTEI N There she i s.
ASSEMBLYWOVAN M LLER:  |' m j ust

waiting for the video to go on.

aski ng,

You know, what Senator May was j ust

| have significant concerns over the

sanme issue. They did sonmewhat of a sinmlar

nove with the managed care -- you know, the

Medi cai d service coordi nati on agencies into

CCGs.

And every -- you know, all the

consuners were prom sed the sun and t he noon

and the stars, and the transition was so

chaotic, there were just way too many

providers -- way too many consuners for the

agenci es that were now CCOs. You know, they

went from | don't even know, thousands to |

think seven CCOs. So | have significant

concerns.

Are you concerned that you're going to
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have consuners that will be w thout care?

MR. HOVEY: | think we should be very
concerned about the transition in such a
short period of time, there's no question
about that. It's a big, big restructure, a
massi ve restructuring of a | arge systemt hat
serves -- Bryan said 139, 000 peopl e receive
services. That's a | ot of people.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN M LLER:  So
successful ly.

MR. HOVEY: Right. So if you take
80 percent of the providers, you know, you
can theoretically say 80 percent of that
130, 000 are going to be | ooking for a new
provi der to get connected so that they don't
have a disruption in their services. And
t hese are services that obviously you know
that hel p people get out of bed in the
norning to get bathed and get showered and
get their neals nade.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN M LLER:  And the
alternative is when they can't get that care,
the state can't seemto grasp that

i nadvertently it becomes way nore expensive
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for them when these consuners now wind up in
skilled care facilities or nursing homes
because they cannot get the care in the
comunity that this provides.

So -- well, thank you very nuch for
all that you're doing. And | hope and pray
that we can help with this and di ssuade sone
of those changes from bei ng made.

MR. HOVEY: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

And | see Senator Sue Serino's hand
up.

SENATOR SERI NO  Thank you
Madam Chai r.

And | would just like to start off by
sayi ng thank you to all of you for all of
your great work and your great advocacy.

And | know it's late, but |I have a
qgui ck question for Jim Jim in your
testimony you nmentioned that the nedi cal
nodel adult day heal t hcare prograns have not
been permitted to reopen since March of | ast

year. And | think it's an inportant service

for countless New Yorkers -- not just for the




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

576

program attendees, but also for the
caregivers who get inportant respite using
the prograns. But it's often overl ooked.

So can you speak of it, Jim or anyone
el se who would like to weigh in, to the
i mpact of that policy and those cl osures?

MR CLYNE: It has been a burden on
the fam lies who have had to take care of
their | oved ones at honme. Oten these are
peopl e with advanced nedi cal conditions,
which is why they are in the adult day health
program So you're conpletely on target.

It's positive for the beneficiaries to
be able to cone sonewhere, to be able to see
ot her people. And it's inportant for the
famlies to be able to take a break of
provi di ng 24- hour care.

And we believe that we can open the
progranms, be safe, be effective, especially
now wi th vaccine that's available. As a
matter of fact, if they had included the
adult day people into the vaccination program
with their parent nursing hones, they woul d

all be vaccinated now. Which is sonmething we
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had advocated for but were not taken up on
t hat .

SENATOR SERINO That's a really good
point too, Jim because | was just going to
mention that. That woul d have been great,
right, to have these nedically fragile people
vacci nated there. So yeah, thank you. And
hopefully we can all keep on -- we've been
advocating, and we can all keep on advocati ng
for themto reopen again.

Thank you.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Hel ene, | think
you have a few Assenbl ynenbers.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ynman
Jensen.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN:  Thank you
Madam Chai r.

This question is for Jim W
certainly a lot of tines today tal ked about
needed i ncreased staffing. So you could just
tell us alittle bit about sonme of the
struggl es that your nmenbers face -- whether
they' re nursing honmes, assisted |iving,

i ndependent living, whatever it may be --
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some of the struggles that your nenbers are
seeing in hiring staff, recruiting staff.

And not just nursing staff, but really
activities staffing, housekeepers, kitchen
staff, things of that nature. Were are you
really seeing the need, and what do they have
to struggle with to get those people in the
bui | di ng and wor ki ng?

MR. CLYNE: Well, the staffing problem
for ny menbers is across the board, as you
just pointed out, every job title you
ment i oned.

Qobviously it's particularly tough
recruiting RNs because we're conpeting with
hospitals, in many cases, which pay better.
And you have to renmenber that the financial
situation for ny menbers was fragile to begin
with, and then add the increased costs of PPE
and testing on top of that. It's just been a
struggle to recruit and retain staff.
Particularly, again, for the -- | think the
undeserved bad press about nursing homes, the
wor kers who worked in the nursing hones

t hrough this pandem c are heroes, and they
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shoul d be appl auded just |ike the hospital

wor kers were. And instead, you know, they're
bei ng made t he scapegoat, which is really
conpletely unfair.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Are you seei ng,
of your nenbers nore nursing home-rel at ed
that have specialty units, whether they're
pediatric units, respiratory units -- are you
seeing | ess of those being open or being
retai ned because it's harder to get
respiratory therapists or practitioners that
can actually -- are well-versed in that
practice area wanting to work in a
| ong-termcare setting as opposed to a
hospital setting?

MR. CLYNE: No. Wat happens is
menbers struggle along and they have to, they
end up in many cases having to go to
contracting out for services, which are nore
expensive. They'd like to hire, in many
cases, hire their own staff, but sonetines
you have to go and contract out. W al ways
staff to be able to provide the services.

The one place where there's a huge
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problemis in hone care, where people
upstate, they sinply can't get -- they're
aut hori zed for hours, and they can't get
caregivers to cone in. And that's a huge
pr obl em upst at e.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN:  So is there a
drop-off that if you go to hiring from an
agency or you're bringing in outside care
staff, is there a drop-off in the |evel of
care because they don't have an association
with that specific facility?

MR CLYNE: | don't want to say
there's a drop-off in the | evel of care, but
certainly there are sonme academ ¢ studies
t hat show that the retention of staff in
nursing homes is better for the long-term
care because they sinply know the residents
better, they know what their conditions are.

It's the sane in home care too. |If
you can keep a consistent staff person in the
home, it's better, regardl ess of the service.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Thank you, Jim
Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
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Any -- | see one nore. Two nore.
SENATOR RIVERA: |I'm here, actually.
CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Ch, |'m sorry.
Qustavo Rivera, Senator Healthcare.
SENATOR RI VERA: Thank you.
| don't know how many fol ks are stil
tuned in, but I want to make sure that | give
an opportunity to all of you, considering the
fol ks you serve, everything that you point --
and | don't need the 10 minutes. | wll --
CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: You only get
three. It's only three m nutes anyway.
Three m nutes to tal k about the
Heal t h budget .
(Laughter.)
SENATCR RI VERA:  Yes, | know. | know.
So | want to give you all an
opportunity, particularly considering the
fol ks that you serve, all the issues that you
nmenti oned around the popul ations that you
care so nuch about.
The question is an open question, and
it isto all of you who would like to answer

it. Wat difference would it make, for the
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popul ati ons that you serve and the issues
that you describe, for the New York Health
Act to becone | aw? Anybody can take that.

M5. SIEGFRIED: Well, | nmean, | said
that we supported the New York Health Act,
and especially now that it has |ong-term
care.

But the reason is not -- you know,
nost other health advocates will tell you
about the renmaining uninsured or the prem uns
and copays. And for us, it's really just
that it would be so wonderful to have the
sanme health insurance for your whole life not
to constantly be proving disability and
recertifying and falling out of your
cover age.

And it would be great if it was
accountable to a denocratic process once
we' re successful in restoring the bal ance of
power in New York

SENATOR RI VERA:  Anybody el se want to
chime in?

MR. CLYNE: W support universal

coverage. Qur concern is the state right now
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is the worst payer in the country for

|l ong-termcare. So putting themin charge of
paying for long-termcare for everybody

rai ses sone concerns.

So unl ess there's sone protections to
guar ant ee rei mbursenent -- again, New York
is the single worst payer in the country for
expenses to rei nmbursenent.

SENATOR RI VERA: And really -- enough,
M. Cyne, there is -- thank you for bringing
it up. There is actually |anguage in the
bill that specifically says that the rates to
be established by the board of the New York
Heal th Act, the New York Health Act Board,
woul d actually -- would have to correspond to
the cost of care. Wich is actually
sonet hi ng that does not exist anywhere in | aw
anywhere el se.

So it would be in statute that the
rates to be established would have to
correspond to the cost of care. So there you
go.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: There you go.

SENATOR RI VERA:  Anybody el se? | just
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want to nmake sure | give people the
opportunity.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. See,
Hel ene, it was healthcare, it just wasn't the
Governor's --

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  That's great.
That's great.

We have two Assenbl ynenbers. Wio wll
also be brief, I'msure.

Assenbl yman Kevin Byrne first.

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Thank you.

First, allowne to just agree with

Hei di as far as asserting equal bal ance of

power and having the Legislature -- |I'm
assumng that you're intending -- as a
coequal branch of governnment. | like that,

even though | do have a slightly different
take on the New York Health Act.

| do want to nmake at |east a statenent
for Jim Leadi ngAge and your nenbers, as well
as a lot of the other folks we're probably
going to hear fromlater that represent adult

care facilities, nursing hones. W' ve heard
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a lot about this is a hot topic, and it
really is sad that it's beconme this politica
issue. | know a |l ot of us have been talking
about this because we care deeply about the
policies that we put forth as a state and we
want to nmake sure that we have sound policy
that protects our residents, our fellow
nei ghbors and New Yorkers. And we have, at
| east speaking for nyself, a |ot of
frustration with the Departnment of Health and
t he Governor's adm nistration

But | don't want that to be turned to
maki ng certain, you know, industries and good
peopl e into scapegoats. W do have
front-line workers in these adult care
facilities. And | want to thank you for what
your menbers have done. They should get a
parade, |ike every other healthcare worker.
And | just wanted to make that statenent, if
not hi ng el se.

And far as the question, Jim to you,
t hese 30-day anmendnents, |'m sure you can
el aborate a little bit on some of your

concerns. | think anytinme we have these
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ki nds of conversations about i ncreased

penalties -- these are really, really
significant penalties -- this discussion
shoul d be separate fromthe budget. | don't

think it's appropriate to include.

And on adult care facilities, this
removal of the rectification clause that's
been brought forth, | have a | ot of concerns
about that.

So, Jim | wanted to ask you if you
had any ot her coments that you would like to
el aborate with the rest of ny tine.

MR CLYNE: | just want to -- that's a
good point. The penalties are really over
t he top.

And if you tal k to anybody, nobody
thinks that the Health Department is slack in
their regulation. | just had a nenber cal
me today, they had their ninth infection
control survey. No problenms have been found,
but their ninth survey since the start of the
pandemic. | mean, it begins to get alittle
ridicul ous.

And on the adult care facility side,
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you have to | ook at those penalties. Those
are per day penalties that they've enacted.
So the penalties on nursing honmes are
different than the penalties on assisted
living and adult care facilities. These are
actual ly even nore draconian than they | ook
i ke at first blush.

So the problemis not a probl em of
regul ation, the problemis a probl em of
supporting providers in what they need with
resources, with PPE, and with good advice on
how to care for people.

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Thank you, Jim |
appreci ate your conments and your testinony.
And t hank you to everybody el se as well.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. Ckay.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.
Assenbl yman Pal nesano -- right, you don't
have -- | don't see another Senator.

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  No, |'m just
| ooki ng for an Assenbly -- oh, there he is.

CHAl RWOVAN WVEI NSTEI' N: Yes.

Assenbl ynenber Pal mesano.

MR, HOVEY: You' re on mute.
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ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO.  Sorry about
that. H, my question is for M. Cyne this
eveni ng.

M. Cyne, | want to tal k about the
transition fromlong-term Medi caid managed
care to the fee-for-service nodel
particularly for our nursing hones. It's ny
under st andi ng from conversations that |'ve
had that the fee-for-service nodel works
better for some, while the Medicaid managed
care nodel works better for others.

And I'Il give you an exanple in ny
district. |1 had a facility that negoti ated
fair rates with the managed care conpany
whi ch they thought were fair and proper, but
now they were required to transition to a
fee-for-service nodel. And what that did is
it's cost thema half a mllion dollars a
year in reinbursenents

And you couple that with the 1 percent
reducti on and other cuts, plus other pending
actions that are being tal ked about with the
Legi slature and the costs they've had during

the pandemic, it's really kind of a recipe
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for a devastating inpact on a small rural
facility -- and concerns relative to other
facilities and their |ong-term sol vency.

So ny first question for you is do you
have any data show ng how this has i npacted
your different facilities, your nenbers --
good, bad or indifferent, the overall inpact
that's going to have on thenf

MR. CLYNE: The overall inpact was
positive to go away from managed care because
of delays in paynent.

But there are rural facilities that
are key providers in their area who were able
to negoti ate additional funds from managed
care prograns. W would hope that the state
woul d take that into account as they | ook at
the rate-setting system

If they want to keep -- if the state
wants to keep not-for-profit and county
providers in the system they need to do
sonmet hing about the rates. |If they don't,
you're going to end up with a systemthat's
going to be predom nantly or al nost

exclusively for-profit. | nean, it already
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is predominantly, but that's the way it's
goi ng.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO  That's what
was going to get at.

Wuldn't it have been better, if we're

going to nove to that fee-for-service nodel

which if it works well for sonme -- wouldn't
it have been better and nore -- {Zoom
interruption} -- to include a hold-harm ess

provision in that process so those facilities
that were able to negotiate better, fairer
rates were not being penalized for being able
to do that?

And so do you see any opportunity for
that to be revisited? Have you had
conversations with the State Departnent of
Heal t h or Budget al ong those |ines, |ooking
at that as we nove forward?

Because | just think that would be a
wi ser thing to do, instead of having those
institutions out there, like the one in ny
district, that again lost half a mllion
dol | ars because of this change that they were

required to go along with, when they worked
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the process and had a fairer reinbursenent?

MR. CLYNE: Yeah, we have a coupl e of
menbers who are talking with the departnent
right now, |ooking at the Vital Access
Program as a way to supplenent their rate and
maybe nove to a transition

In rural areas, a lot of times it's
t he nursing honme which is in many cases a
vertically integrated provider providing hone
care and housing, they're the only ones
avai lable to really do care managenent with
boots on the ground.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO  All right,
thanks. 1'd love to have a future discussion
with you on that issue. Thanks for what
you' re doing and your --

MR CLYNE: Love to do it.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANC: -- service to
our communities. Thank you.

M5. FINKEL: Is it okay if | just
answer the question that Senator My asked
about the savings? Can | just real quick
answer that?

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Ckay.
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MS. FINKEL: So she asked what the
savings would be on the $27 mllion increase
to home- and community-based services. It
woul d be $60 mIlion would be saved by an
i nvestment of $27 mllion.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Did you get that, Rachel? Wre you
listening?

SENATCR RI VERA: Rachel had to | eave.

CHAl RWOVMAN KRUEGER:  She had to | eave.

Ckay, we'll nake sure she gets that
i nformation. Thank you, Beth.

SENATOR RI VERA: Marriage mai nt enance,
apparently.

CHAl R\OVAN KRUECGER:  Ah.

Thank you all very nmuch for being with
us this evening. Appreciate it.

And we're going to nove on to the next
panel , which will be New York Associ ation of
County Health O ficials, Sarah Ravenhal | ;
New York Heal th Pl an Associ ation
Eric Linzer; Medical Society of the State of
New Yor k, Bonni e Litvack; and New York State

Associ ati on of Health Care Providers,
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Kat hy Febr ai o.

Hel | o, everyone. Who's up first?
Sarah is up first. Are you here?

MS. RAVENHALL: Hello. |'m here.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: Great. \Wel cone.

M5. RAVENHALL: Thank you.

Senat or Rivera, Assenblynenber
CGottfried, Senator Krueger, Assenbl ynenber
Wi nstein and esteened conmm ttee nenbers,

t hank you for this opportunity to present the
state budget priorities of New York's

58 | ocal health departnments. | know you
share ny pride in the thousands of public
heal t h professionals who have continuously
put thenselves in harmis way to respond to

t he pandem c. They have net this chall enge
wi t h profound courage, inexhaustible

comm tment, and unrival ed experti se.

They are now fully engaged i n vacci ne
adm ni stration, even as they fulfil
i nnuer abl e ot her public health
responsibilities. 1've never been nore
proud, hunbl ed and honored to represent them

This year we respectfully request the
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following in response to the Executive's
proposed budget :

Restoration of proposed cuts to
Article 6, state aid in New York City, and
restoration of categorical public health
f undi ng.

| ncorporation of health positive
revenue produci ng proposals with revenue
earmarked for public health. These proposals
are detailed in our full testinony docunent.

An invitation to provide input into
t he regul ated adul t-use cannabi s policy being
proposed by the state and Legislature. |If
enacted, | ocal health departnments will be
tasked with provision of community education
and dedi cated funding will be needed.

New York State continues to confront a
growi ng nunber of nonunental public health
chal l enges. | n 2018, vaping-related |ung
illness; 2019, a nmssive neasl es out break;
and in 2020, the first global pandemc in
recent history. All these events coincide
wi th ongoi ng public health issues such as

i ncreased rates of sexually transmtted
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i nfection, hepatitis A outbreaks, opioid
overdose and deaths; suicide fatalities;
children with el evated blood | ead | evel s, and
ot hers.

Year after year we see decreasing
appropriations proposed within the Article 6
funding line for our |ocal health departnents
due to adm nistrative actions, the | ocal
property tax cap, and in sone cases cuts in
rei mbursenent, such as the one proposed in
New York City.

Local health departnments have not
received an increase in core public health
aid in nore than six years. Instead, state
budget appropriations for public health
spendi ng have been either flat-funded or
reduced. We're experiencing the greatest
public health disaster in a century. If we
fail now to recognize that public health
support nust be increased, then we're already
surrendering to the next public health
t hreat .

We ask you, New York's respected

| awmakers, to reinvest resources into the
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public health infrastructure in New York
St at e.

These facts leave ne with two
i mportant questions. Wy has the Executive
proposed profound cuts to public health in
the mdst of a public health crisis? M
second question, which I direct to al
New York State policymakers, is what do you
need fromus to help you effectively and
appropriately resource our local public
heal th infrastructure?

Thank you for your |eadership and the
opportunity to present today.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Next, Eric Linzer.

MR. LINZER: Thank you.

On behal f of our 28 nmenber health
plans and the 8 mllion individuals who they
provi de coverage for, appreciate the
opportunity to offer testinony this evening.

Throughout the current pandem c, the
heal th and wel | - bei ng of New Yorkers has been
t he nunber-one priority of our menber health

plans. W're proud of the work that they've
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done to protect patients, support the
delivery system and assist enpl oyers.

This has included elimnating
cost-sharing for COVID 19 testing and
treatnment, as well as for telehealth
services, providing financial support to the
delivery system extending prem um grace
periods for consunmers and snall busi nesses,
and working with the state and | ocal public
health authorities and the delivery systemto
provide information to residents about the
COVI D- 19 vaccine and that they'll receive the
vacci ne at no cost.

G ven the current public health
crisis, we are concerned about the
significant cuts to the Medicaid program
particularly the cuts to the health plans
that the Governor's budget has proposed,
totaling nmore than $1.5 billion. This
includes a reduction that the state has
described as reflecting the reduction in
utilization that took place in the second
guarter of last year. However, what this

fails to acknow edge is that that was for




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

598

just one quarter and nerely del ayed the
delivery of care until the latter half of
2020 and into 2021, as plans have experienced
a return to normal and increased utilization
beginning in the third quarter of |ast year.

Further, we're concerned about the
cuts that Dr. Schwartz had nentioned on the
| ast panel, having to do with the
managed-care Quality Incentive Program And
really this begs the question of, you know,
are these cuts necessary, as well as the size
and scope of these cuts.

It's an open question, considering
that the federal governnment has recently
announced it's extendi ng the Enhanced FMAP
fundi ng t hrough June of next year, but the
Governor's proposal has only counted on the
enhanced fundi ng through June of this year.

When you consider that, coupled with
t he additional increases in Enhanced FMAP
that's being considered in Washi ngton, D.C.
and other additional federal aid to the
states that New York is expected to receive,

we think that these cuts are unwarranted and
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unnecessary, and we would urge the
Legislature to ensure that as part of the
budget process any Enhanced FMAP goes to
where it belongs, which is back to Medicaid
to of fset these proposed cuts.

In addition, we remain concerned and
opposed to the adm nistration's plan to
transition the Medicaid pharmacy benefit from
managed care to fee-for-service. W don't
think that it's going to generate the savings
and will actually cost the state noney. More
inmportantly, it's going to adversely affect
the quality of care for mllions of Medicaid
enrol |l ees, particularly those with chronic
heal th conditions and who rely on their care
to be integrated and coordi nated across the
conti nuum

We do support the Governor's proposal
to elimnate the $20 nonthly prem umfor the
Essential Plan. W al so support the
Governor's budget proposal to allow for
multi-state Iicensure for telehealth
services, and creating an interstate

| i censure program
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So with that, | appreciate the
opportunity to testify and | ook forward to
answering any questi ons.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

And our next speaker -- oops, | |ost
my little chart, sorry. Excuse nme. After
Eric Linzer is Bonnie Litvack, Medical
Soci ety of the State of New York.

DR. LITVACK: Thank you very nuch for
the opportunity to testify. | amDr. Bonnie
Litvack, and | am president of the Medical
Soci ety of the State of New York, which
reports over 20,000 physicians across every
specialty and in every region of the state.

Qur nmenbers have been serving on the
front lines through the pandem c, putting
their health and their famlies' health at
ri sk because of their dedication to serving
their patients. W are enthused by the
steady progress New York is making in
i ncreasi ng the nunber of those vaccinated and
t he steady decrease in new COVID cases. W

continue to work with the adm nistration to
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pronote the inportance to our patients of
receiving the vaccine, as well as advocating
for community physicians to receive doses to
i mmuni ze their patients.

We, though, have nmany concerns with
t he proposed state budget. There are sone
positive aspects, such as state l|icensing of
pharmacy benefit managers and a proposal to
i ncrease the supply of personal protective
equi pnent, but on bal ance, the adverse
proposal s outwei gh the positives.

We're certainly hopeful that the
federal COVID percentage will elimnate the
need for significant cuts, but we share the
concerns expressed earlier by Assenbl yman
Cahill, Assenbl yman Byrne and ot hers, about
t he inmpact of the proposal that would require
17,000 physicians in the Excess Liability
| nsurance Programto bear 50 percent of the
cost of these policies.

The program has al ways served as a
critical conprom se to address the
significant healthcare systeminplications of

New York's excessive liability costs that far
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exceed any other state. Yet this one budget
proposal would foist thousands of dollars of
new costs on physicians, and even tens of

t housands of dollars when their patient

visits and their revenues are down. Many

physicians will sinply be unable to afford
this, will forgo the coverage and/or | eave
t he state.

We're al so concerned, as Assenbl ynan
Sal ka nmentioned, about the $200,000 cut to
MESNY's Committee for Physician Health. It's
acritically inportant programthat's funded
t hrough physician registration. It assists
physi ci ans suffering fromnental illness and
substance abuse, and it's a highly successful
programthat's nore inportant than ever in
this time of COVID.

We al so strongly urge you to reject
Article VIl proposals that we believe are
very count erproductive and would -- such as
proposal s that woul d grant the Conm ssioner
of Health w de discretion to disclose
conpl ai nts about physicians to the public

wi t hout adequate due process. That has the
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potential to unfairly destroy physician
reputations in the communities they served.

W' re al so concerned with the
proposals to significantly expand the scope
of big box pharmacy chains to provide
heal t hcare services w thout physician
coordi nati on.

W have identified several other
concerns in our witten testinony, and |'m
happy to answer any questions for you. Thank
you again for the opportunity to testify.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

And our last testifier for this panel,
New York State Association of Health Care
Provi ders, Kathy Febraio.

M5. FEBRAIO Thank you. | am Kathy
Febrai o, president of the New York State
Associ ation of Health Care Providers,
representing home care across the State of
New Yor k.

| thank you for the opportunity to
testify and to update you on the state of the
home care industry as it continues to provide

safe and econonical care during the pandem c
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while we are sinultaneously responding to
significant policy changes.

The experience of the |last year has
clearly shown it is essential to invest in
and to protect the economc viability of the
home care industry in order to ensure
individuals with disabilities, those with
chronic illness, and el derly popul ations
continue to have access to services that
allow themto remain in the confort and
safety of their honmes. Patients do better at
hone.

It is not the time to add nore
upheaval and uncertainty to the industry, as
the state has charted its course to do --
whi ch the recently announced CDPAP contract
awar ds has highlighted. Extensive state
regul ati ons and policy changes crushed the
i ndustry by creating conpl etely avoi dabl e
turmoil, chaos, gaps in care, and barriers to
servi ce.

Hone care needs your support. W are
asking you to elimnate the | anguage enacted

in |last year's budget that created the com ng
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LHCSA RFO. This is going to play out just
i ke the CDPAP RFO.

We ask you to reinburse providers for
the increased cost of personal protective
equi pnent and COVI D-rel ated expenses. W
t hank you for your support of Bill S2543 and
Al179. However, M.TC plans are receiving
COVID-rel ated rate reductions for decreased
utilization, and they are passing that
reduction to home care providers begi nning
March 1, to defray the inpact to the plans --
this while home care has experienced
drastically increased costs for services.

M.TCs will imedi ately share the
burden of reduction and fail to reinburse
actual expenses. Unfortunately, this is the
nor m

We ask you to reject the 1 percent
across-the-board Medicaid cut, to elimnate
t he Medi caid d obal Spending Cap, and reject
the Governor's cut in recruitnment and
retention funding.

We ask that you allocate at | east

25 percent of the Heal thcare Transformation
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Fund to home- and conmmunity-based services,
and to require managed-care organi zations to
directly pass through m ni mumwage funding to
t heir providers.

W ask for the elimnation of the
requi renent for an unnecessary independently
audi ted financial statenent for wage parity
reporting. W ask to nake permanent the
nursi ng home transition and diversion and TBI
wai ver prograns from managed care. And we
ask, if there is any federal funding to be
had, that you ensure that New York State
passes it on to the front-1ine providers.

Thank you.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Any questions fromany of ny
col | eagues?

CHAl RA\OVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: W have
Assenbl yman Ra who would like to ask a
guesti on.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Certainly.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA: Thank you, Chairs.

Good eveni ng, everybody. | just

wanted to follow up with Dr. Litvack
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regarding -- she went into this a little bit
with the excess nedical nal practice proposal.
And, you know, we had a little conversation
about this with the insurance superintendent
earlier today, who basically provided, you
know, little detail other than to say that
she felt that the nedical mal practice nmarket
had stabilized and, you know, that she didn't
think this was going to be that disruptive of
a proposal.

| would tend to disagree, and | see
you certainly do. And you seemto have
pretty detail ed nunbers in your testinony.
So I"mjust wondering if you can el aborate
nore on your methodol ogy in those nunbers and
really the inpact that it would have on costs
of sonething that is already, you know, a big
probl emin New York State.

DR LITVACK: Yes. So thank you for
aski ng those questi ons.

Yes, this is a huge problemif it goes
t hrough as proposed. This really would
af fect our comunity physicians, those in

i ndependent practice, those that are not in
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sel f-funded enpl oyer plans. And these
practices are running on very thin margins as
we speak right now. They have had to dea
with the increased cost of the personal
protective equi pnent. They've had to dea

wi th the decreased nunmber of patients,
decreased nunbers of procedures, and in
addition to having had their offices cl osed
for periods of tine.

This, as | said, would add thousands
and sonetines tens of thousands, depending on
whi ch part of the state you're in and, you
know, which specialty you're in.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Well, thank you --
sorry, go ahead.

DR LITVACK: That's okay. And
prem uns right now are still way too high
W have the nunbers; we can share those with
you from MM C and others. But our costs,
you know, far exceed any other state in the
country.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  And as you point out,
if last year was a bad tine to adopt this

proposal, then this year is a really bad tine
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to adopt this proposal. So thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Any ot her menbers wanting to ask
guestions?

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Yes, we
actual ly have Assenbl yman Byrne al so, and
t hen Assenbl yman Pal mesano

Assenbl yman Byr ne.

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Yes, thank you,
Chai r.

And ditto to the comments nade by ny
coll eague M. Ra. | conpletely agree that if
it was bad | ast year, it's even worse now.
And we're hopefully getting a | ot of federal
relief, which will nake a | ot of these
decisions a little bit easier for us.

My foll owup question was -- | tried
to mention it with the comm ssioner, but
quite frankly we don't have enough time when
we're trying to go through these budget
hearings. And it's about Part Qin | believe
the Health and Mental Hygi ene Budget. And
this is directed nore for Bonnie,

Dr. Litvack.
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It's the section that would allow the
comi ssioner to report professional
m sconduct, allegations of m sconduct, and
wi t hout due process. Now, we've already
passed legislation | think in recent years
about people have to -- physicians have to
post a notice now, which sone people didn't
i ke, about the O fice of Professional
M sconduct {sic}. But noww're -- this is
really a step nuch further where they're
| ooking to have the conm ssioner release this
information. M understanding is if there's
an i mm nent danger, if there's something |ike
that, they already have that option. But if
you start distributing information about a
physician -- like | have a real concern that
this could ruin sonmeone's career when it's an
al l egation and they haven't had their due
process yet.

Can you el aborate on this a little
bit? It seenms to be a perennial issue. At
least | think it was brought up |ast year,
and we're going at it again this year. And

hopefully we can get it taken out. But | was
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j ust hopi ng you could el aborate on that
agai n.

DR LITVACK: Sure, |'m happy to.

So this issue is exactly as you' ve
descri bed. The Medical Society is absolutely
committed to the safety of the public. And
t he comm ssioner already does have the
authority to renove sonebody -- their ability
to practice right now This goes beyond t hat
and allows themto renove sonebody before
t hey' ve had any due process.

And when you | ook at our system our
OPMC, the Ofice of Professional Medical
Conduct, system for adjudicating these
i ssues, of the claims, 97 to 98 percent of
them are dism ssed wi t hout any charges being
filed and without any action being taken.

And with that being the case, this would do a
tremendous amount of harmif these were made
publi c before the physician actually had an
ability to defend thensel ves agai nst this.

And so this would be a very harnfu
thing that would elimnate due process for

physi ci ans.
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ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Thank you, Doctor.

And | think we all know that once
something's on the internet, it's on the
internet forever, so it's very hard to repair
t he danage once it's been done.

And again, | would say in a simlar
vein to what we said before, if it was a bad
idea last year, | think it's a bad idea this
year. W' re asking our physicians and
heal t hcare workers to do so nuch. | don't
think this would be an appropriate change.

But thank you.

DR, LITVACK: And thank you for
rejecting it last year, and hopefully you'l
reject it again this year.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ynman
Pal mesano.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO. Yes, thank you
very rmuch

My question is for Sarah.

Sarah, there's been much di scussion
during these hearings around the state's
proposal in the budget to elimnate the

$139 mllion of the state's share for the
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| ndi gent Care Pool. You know, nyself and a
nunber of ny col | eagues al ways worry about,
when we see things |ike that, about cost
shifts, possible mandates or unfunded
mandates to our county governnents.

| know it was discussed, | think with
sone of the comments that were nade, that
West chest er doesn't participate. Do you know
what counties are contributing or not
contributing, and if so, how much? | nean,
ri ght now obviously counties are forced to
contribute to the distressed fund, | think
it -- 1 can't renenber the anount of it, of
$250 m | lion.

You know, do we know how much our
counties are participating right now, or not
participating, and to what anmount? | nean,
obvi ously our counties are struggling
financially right now You know, this
mandate, if they had to pick up nore or do
contribute nore, it would be certainly
difficult for themto handle. And certainly
t hat woul d have an overall inpact on our

delivery of our healthcare systemand quality
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care.

So do you have any thoughts on that or
comments on that proposal and how to -- what
you know?

M5. RAVENHALL: Thank you for that
guestion. | don't have those nunbers off the
top of nmy head. | can circle back and work
on getting those for you, and perhaps work
with the Association of Counties to find sone
of that data for you.

But you're bringing up a really good
point. W're seeing continual shifts from
state funding to, you know, locality funding,
pi cking up the share of certain services.

One of the services that we're | ooking
at is rabies funding, which was conpletely
elimnated fromthe proposed Executive
Budget. This is a public health issue, and
it's essentially being elimnated fromthe
budget. Anybody who is exposed to rabies
needs -- there needs to be a public health
intervention. And so we're really concerned
about seeing sonme of these cost shifts to

| ocalities when they are struggling so rnuch.
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So | appreciate that thought, and I
can get back with you

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO | note that in
| ast year's budget, and | think this year's
budget again has -- | think it's
$250 mllion. | think it's 200 mllion for
the city and $50 million for the other
counties for distressed hospitals.

And that's an assessnment that's com ng
of f the county's books already right now.

M5. RAVENHALL: Right.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO  That's anot her
thing that we're all worried about.

So thank you very nuch. And thanks
for what you do.

M5. RAVENHALL: Thank you. You too.

CHAIl R\MOVAN KRUEGER:  So, Hel ene, |
just have nore a recomendation to
Dr. Litvack, who's the doctor fromthe
Medi cal Society of New York, that |'m going
to ask you to please read the City and State
article that came out yesterday, "New York
Doctors Get Away Wth Sexual M sconduct."”

And it's a fairly scathing report on
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the O fice of Professional -- whatever the
of fice stands for within the Departnent of
Educati on, and how they don't ever find
anyone guilty of anything. And it's an
exposé with a bunch of previous workers
comng forward to say that.

Now, | actually have a bill on nmaking
it nore restrictive --

(Zoominterruption.)

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: | ' m sorry?
Soneone el se i s tal king.

-- that you really need to | ook into
maki ng sure that this office is functioning
correctly. Because | knowit's a very snall
nunber of doctors who are both unqualified to
be perform ng nedicine or otherw se very bad
people. But when we don't have a systemin
pl ace that peopl e have confidence in that
they will actually penalize the people who
shoul d be prevented fromcontinuing to
provi de medi ci ne or who shoul d be st opped
from doi ng bad behaviors, it makes us al
| ook terrible.

And so that is why | have the bill
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because it turns out tracking doctors with --
who are being found guilty in court of sexual
assault and still letting themcontinue their
work in their private offices or even in
hospitals in New York State, and then years
|ater, GCh, | ook, we caught them again. Oh,
| ook, we've caught them again. That's not
okay.

So | don't know that | agree with what
t he Governor is proposing in his budget this
year, but I'mtelling you -- |I'murging you,
as the medi cal community, get behind
reasonabl e standards for investigations and
make sure they're taken seriously, because
t hese hurt -- when these stories cone out,
they hurt you. And 99 percent of you would
never be involved in these things, but if
you' re supposedly part of a peer review
system and you never catch any of your peers
except the behaviors are going on, it's a
serious problem

So that's ny recomendati on to you.

Wth that, anyone else? Gkay. Then

we're going to nove on to the next panel.
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Thank you all very nuch for being here with
us tonight and testifying.

And our next panel is Health People,
Chris Norwood; Community Heal t hcare
Associ ati on of New York State, Rose Duhan
and Cal |l en-Lorde Comrunity Health Center,
Wendy St arKk.

Good eveni ng, everyone or anyone. And

let's start with Chris Norwood, if you're
here. 1Is Chris here? | don't think so.

Ckay, how about Rose. Rose, are you
her e?

M5. DUHAN: | am here, thank you

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER: Let's start with
you, thank you

M5. DUHAN. Thank you to the chairs
and the nenbers who have persevered for
hangi ng through this late night session. |
appreciate all of your dedication.

| "' m Rose Duhan, CEO of the Comrunity

Heal t hcare Association of New York State. On

behal f of New York State's 70 comrunity
health centers, caring for 2.3 mllion

New Yorkers, |'mhere to express our grave
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concerns about the pharnmacy benefit carve-out
from Medi cai d nanaged care to
fee-for-service, which will elimnate access
to the 340B program

The 340B program al | ows covered
saf ety-net heal thcare providers, including
community health centers, to purchase
pharmaceuti cal drugs at reduced costs.
Community health centers reinvest the savings
into initiatives that expand access to care,
particularly for the uninsured and
underi nsur ed.

New York's conmunity health centers
provi de care to about one-third of al
uni nsured individuals in New York State.
340B enabl es patients to receive free or
| ow- cost drugs and support services such as
i ntensive outreach to those who have been
i sol ated during the pandem c, including
foll owup needed for chronic disease
managemnment and ensuring children do not fal
behi nd in immnizations.

340B savings have nade it possible for

health centers to quickly pivot to




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

620

vacci nation activities, outreach and patient
educati on, maki ng sure people cone back for
second doses, and standi ng up vaccination
events for communities of color and in rural
parts of the state.

Health centers are grateful to have
recei ved vaccine allocations, and 340B makes
it possible to vaccinate conmunities nost at
ri sk from COVI D 19.

The proposed change will result in
enorrmous financial |osses, programatic
reductions, and staff cuts for inpacted
provi ders. Perhaps what is nost devastating
is that the carve-out will have the biggest
negati ve i nmpact on the health outcones of the
state's sickest and poorest comrunities, the
very patients hit hardest by COvVID 19

Community health centers are testing
and vaccinating patients in their conmunities
and are able to do so because of 340B. This
carve-out will have devastating and | asting
effects on the healthcare safety net at a
ti me when Bl ack, brown and poor conmunity

menbers and their providers can |east afford
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In the recent economc crisis we have
seen growth in Medicaid enrollnent and in
uni nsured popul ati ons that benefit fromthe
servi ces nmade possible by this program The
Executive has proposed creating a funding
pool of $102 million. This proposed funding
is woeful ly i nadequate given the nassive
| osses the carve-out would cause, and
unreliable as a long-term sol ution for
sustainability, as any pool created by the
state is subject to future budget cuts and
del ayed distributions for purposes of state
cash nmanagenent .

We have | earned today that DOH is
nmoving forward with notifying Medicaid
participants that the carve-out will take
effect May 1st, underm ning your ability to
negotiate a solution. It is unacceptable
t hat New York woul d nove forward with this
carve-out during the nost significant public
health crisis in nodern history. W urge the
Legislature to reverse this policy.

Thank you. |'m happy to take any
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guestions and give you back 25 seconds.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

And do we have Wendy Stark, from
Cal | en- Lor de?

M5. STARK: Yes, |I'mhere. Thank you
so nuch.

Thank you so nmuch to the chairs and
t he nenbers of the conmittee and for doing
this all-day marathon. W really appreciate
it.

So Cal |l en-Lorde Conmunity Heal th
Center is one of the 70 community health
centers Rose just spoke about. W are in
Manhattan, the Bronx, and Brooklyn. But I
can al nost guarantee you that we serve
sonmebody in your district, because we have
patients comng to us fromall over the state
because we are what's called a nagnet health
center. W have a particular mssion, to
serve LGBTQ conmunities and people living
with HV, and so we draw people that are much
nor e geographi cally diverse than sonme of our

col | eagues.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

623

| don't know how else to say this,
ot her than | am beggi ng you -- Senator Brouk
said earlier today in the hearing that she
got a nmessage froma CEO of an organi zation
in her district who would be inpacted al so by
t he Medi caid pharnmacy carve-out in ways that
are existentially threatening. And |I'm here
tonight to tell you this is not being
hyperbolic, this is going to destroy the
safety net at the worst possible tinme in
history, right at this nonent.

W serve people who are -- one-third
of our patients are uninsured. One-quarter
of our patients are people living with H V.
One-third of our patients are peopl e of
transgender or nonbi nary experience. Over
hal f of our patients are people of color.
Many of our patients live at or below the
poverty line. This is not the tine to hurt
our state's safety net.

We have been providing prinmary care
t hroughout. We provided nedical staffing in
a hotel for folks who woul d otherw se be

living in the New York City shelter system
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who had COVI D, near the beginning of the
pandem c. Qur staff are exhausted. Many of
t hose staff's salaries, our nurses, our
front-line folks, our lab techs, our doctors,
our PAs, our nurse practitioners, they have
been at this with little to no time off since
March. Their salaries, nmany of them are
pai d through the revenues that come out of
this program This was an intentional way to
support the safety net.

And there is a 340B reinvestnent fund
that's been proposed, as Rose nentioned,
which is neant to help offset the revenue
| osses that this would cause. | would argue
that this is a mcro version of the globa
cap. And we ask you to reject it, as well as
t he carve-out overall, and of course reject
the global cap. It is foundationally the
wrong approach to our state's Medicaid
program

There is a delay bill on the table
from Assenbl ynmenber CGottfried and
Senator Rivera -- it is Al1671A and S2520 --

to have the community health centers and HV
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speci al needs plans, have the carve-out piece
del ayed until April of 2024.

There are other solutions to this. W
can find a solution to the PBM transparency
issue. We are on the sane side about this.
This is not the way to do it.

Thank you so nuch for your time and
attention.

(Pause.)

SENATCR RI VERA: You're on nute, Liz.
You're on nute.

CHAl R{MOVAN KRUEGER: |'m sorry. | was
sayi ng, except no one could hear ne, that |
believe Chris Norwood has now joi ned us.

M5, NORWOCOD: Yes. Qops --

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER:  You ready?

M5. NORWOOD: Thank you very nuch.
am Chri s Norwood, executive director of
Heal t h People, which is entirely a peer-I|ed
heal t h educati on and di sease prevention
organi zation in the South Bronx.

There's a nmjor reason New York State
had the nost COVID deaths in the nation. It

i s because the New York State Departnent of
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Heal t h absolutely refuses to have any
coherent plan to either prevent chronic
di sease or hel p peopl e who have chronic
di sease achi eve the good sel f-mnagenent that
still protects their health and does not
| eave themthis vulnerable to any virus or
vari ant that cones al ong.

| will start with diabetes. In the
first surge of COVID in the spring of 2020,
di abet es deaths in New York City increased by
a staggering 356 percent, the nost in the
nati on, and state di abetes deaths outside
New York City increased the nost of any
st at e.

| nt ernati onal studies, however, soon
made cl ear that these deaths, along with
serious conplications like heart, |lung and
kidney injury, were nainly occurring in
peopl e with di abetes whose bl ood sugar was in
poor control.

At the tinme, ny organization,
Heal t h Peopl e, was providing the only
comunity di abetes sel f-managenment programin

t he South Bronx, teaching thousands of people
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wi th di abetes how to | ower their bl ood sugar
and achi eve good control. The state

conpl etely destroyed and defunded this vital
comunity self-care initiative just as it
beconme cl ear that blood sugar control was
vital to survival during COVID.

New York has 2 mllion people with
di abetes, sone 600,000 on Medicaid. To this
day, despite what should be the | esson of
unprecedent ed di abetes deaths, the State
Department of Health still refuses to support
a single self-care community-based initiative
for diabetes or, for that matter, for any
ot her chroni c di sease anywhere in New York
St at e.

The Di abetes Sel f-managenent Program
we were providing, which | believe other
people try and work with, is well-proven to
reduce bl ood sugar, weight, depression and
mul ti pl e di abetes conplications. It slashes
new cases of ki dney di sease by 90 percent the
first year after people participate, which
nmeans it al so sl ashes the nunber of

New Yorkers who will be chained to dialysis.
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Most inportant, comrunities thenselves
can take the lead in this kind of |ife-saving
education. W entirely trained people from
the South Bronx wth diabetes and
pre-di abetes to deliver this.

| really urge the Legislature --
you' ve heard over and over how things that
prevent and save noney are the first to go.

It is so senseless. And hopefully you wll

| ook at these |ife-saving progranms and
assure, with any noney that conmes from

Washi ngton, it will be used to truly build
heal th, and that at least 250 million wll be
devoted to comunity-1led chronic disease

prevention and self-care prograns across the

st at e.
CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
M5. NORWOOD: Thank you very rmuch
CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you al
very rmuch

Al right, do | see any hands up?

Qustavo Rivera, Health chair

SENATOR RIVERA: It will be brief.
Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
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Thank you all for being here. Thank
you for remai ning here, particularly because
it is so inmportant what you're bringing to
the table. You represent fol ks all across
the state that -- | want to talk particularly
about the 340B program W tal ked about the
delay bill that | encourage ny coll eagues to
get on. And we certainly need to push back
on the Governor in a real way about this.

| want you to specifically make the
connection about how the flexibility of this
program has allowed different -- whether it's
you, Wendy, at Callen-Lorde, or any of your
menbers at CHCANYS -- tal k about the
flexibility of this programand the fact that
the savings that are utilized to actually
invest in care for the people that you serve,
and how the proposal fromthe Governor --
conpare the two, whether you think that one
woul d be -- that this programthat -- the
proposed, you know, 100 mllion, 102 mllion
fromthe Governor would conpare to what you
get now fromthe federal program as far as

flexibility.
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M5. STARK: It's hard to say the nath.
Cal | en-Lorde al one stands to | ose $12 million
a year fromthis change, and | don't --

SENATOR RI VERA: So what's your
total -- what's your total --

M5. STARK: N nety-five mllion.

SENATCR RIVERA: So it's a chunk, a
chunk.

M5. STARK: Yeah, it's a big chunk.

So right now |l use this noney to pay
for nurses, for exanple, who provide nursing
triage to patients who are calling and sayi ng
"Should | go to the energency roon? |'m
having this synptom" W are keepi ng peopl e
literally out of the enmergency roons by
payi ng for these nurses, as one exanpl e.

Ri ght ?

We have case nanagers who are hel pi ng
peopl e with housing support, all kinds of
t hi ngs.

And so, again, | do the analogy to the
gl obal cap. |If we have a certain anmount of
noney every year that stays stagnant and that

we have to fight for it every year, we cannot
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be as flexible or do planning around it. How
can you hire staff based on a pool of funding
t hat changes year over year and that shrinks
year over year, and how --

SENATOR RI VERA: O that m ght not
exist. O that m ght not exist next year.

M5. STARK: Exactly. Exactly.

H V. W have done so well in this
state around getting the nunber of new
i nfections down and getting people virally
suppressed. So many of our patients are
people living with HHV. W put all Kkinds of
support services around that with this noney.
These are why these nunbers are good. The
whol e HI 'V services systemin this state is
going to have a really drastic change to our
revenues if this happens.

SENATOR Rl VERA:  CHCANYS?

M5. DUHAN: Yeah, and | woul d say that
this pandenmic has really denonstrated the
necessity for the flexibility of these funds.

We -- you know, health centers were
told on the Thursday before Christnas that

t hey woul d be receiving hundreds of doses of
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t he vacci ne on Monday, and health centers
were able to get staff ready, they were able
to schedul e vaccine, they were able to put
extra people on the phones because they were
all of a sudden flooded with calls fromthe
community: "Can | get the vacci ne?"

They have to do scheduling, they have
to have people who can be there to be there
at the vaccination events. So this is really
somet hi ng where health centers -- there was
no extra funding that was comng in to make
it possible to turn around and stand up these
events where -- in the conmunities where we
know peopl e have been nost adversely inpacted
by the pandem c

Soit's really --

SENATCR RI VERA:  Senate and
Assenbl ynmenbers that are still on, get on our
bill, get on Dick's bill, get on ny bill so
we can make sure that we stop this, please.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Any Assenbl ynmenbers, Hel ene?

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN:  No, we are
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ready to nove on

Thank you for being here.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Al right, thank
you all very nmuch for comng. W're covered
very broadly during the earlier parts of the
hearing. So thank you very much

Next up, Panel F. And |I've |earned
sonme people were working off an ol der version
of the testinony list, so sorry, but now
we're on Panel F for the correct version.
Enpire Center for Public Policy, Bil
Hanmond; Consuner Reports, Chuck Bell;

New York State Area Health Education System
Lei shia Smal | wood; and Center for Health

Qut cones and Policy Research at the

Uni versity of Pennsyl vani a, Linda A ken.

Are you with us, Bill? Gkay. Good
evening. You get to start.

| can't hear you; turn your mc on.

MR. HAMMOND: All right.

Good evening. Thanks for the
opportunity to testify.

This year has taught us a painfu

| esson about the inportance of public health
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infrastructure. The places in the world that
had the strongest infrastructure were able to
respond quickly and effectively to the
pandem c, and they kept their loss of life
and econom c disruption to a mninmm
Unfortunately, the United States and New York
were not anong those pl aces.

Public health is one part of
New York's health systemthat has suffered
reductions in funding unlike any other. |
will give you an exanple. The Wadsworth
Center, our world-renowned public health
| aboratory, over the past 10 years it has
| ost 40 percent of its publicly reported
fundi ng and about two-thirds of its staff.

Now -- and other functions in the
Heal t h Departnent have seen simlar dramatic
reductions. There's a caveat, is that we
have sonething called the Health Research
| ncorporated. It's a kind of off-the-books
part of the Health Departnent, and there are
often jobs and noney that's kind of stashed
there. | would argue that the

Health Departnent, if it wants a really full
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view of the public health system it needs
transparency into HRI

Wth respect to Medicaid, the picture
actually is quite different. This is a
programthat's been growing rapidly. This
year alone, its overall funding is projected
to be up $4 billion, or 5 percent. That's
about twice the rate of inflation.

The structural inbalance in that
program that existed before the pandemc is
still there, it hasn't really been fully
addressed, and we are sustaining this
unsust ai nabl e funding with tenporary federal
aid. And when that tenporary federal aid
goes away, as it inevitably will, we're going
to have a hole that's that much bigger to
fill and that much nore painful to deal with

Wth respect to nursing hones, until
just a couple of weeks ago, on February 10t h,
when the court ordered the Health Depart nment
to turn over the data, it was really
i mpossi bl e for people outside the Health
Departnment to do any kind of in-depth

anal ysis of policies around nursing hones,
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i ncludi ng the March 25t h gui dance.

Using the data that the Enpire Center
obt ai ned, we were able to find a
statistically significant correlation between
t he adm ssions of coronavirus-positive
patients into nursing honmes and hi gher death
rates in those nursing honmes. |It's on the
order of several hundred additional deaths.
So it doesn't explain the entire situation in
nursi ng homes, but it was a contributing
factor.

And this is one snmall part of what
shoul d be a larger in-depth investigation
into the pandem c, so that we can figure out
what went wrong and prepare ourselves so that
it never happens again.

Thank you for I|istening.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
nmuch.

And next is Charles Bell, program
di rector, Consumer Reports.

MR. BELL: Madam Chairs Krueger and
Weinstein, Chairs Cottfried and R vera,

Breslin and Cahill, menbers of the commttee,
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t hank you for your stam na and perseverance
and i ndefatigable commtnent to healthcare
denocr acy.

So Consuner Reports enthusiastically
joins with Health Care for Al New York,
who's com ng behind me on Panel G to urge
the Assenbly and Senate to pl ease adopt the
| anguage in the Patient Medical Debt
Protection Act in both one-house bills.

This act woul d provi de conmopn-sense
protections to protect patients agai nst
nmedi cal debt and unfair billing practices, to
| essen the interest rate for nedical debts,
and to avoid surprise billing. So we urge
t hat adopti on.

Nunber two, the COVI D-19 pandem c has
brought home to all of us how a previously
unknown di sease can wreak havoc, not just on
our lives in New York but worldw de. And so
a key lesson of that is that we need to
prioritize public neasures for emerging
threats and exercise strategic foresight.

So in New York State we believe -- and

many of our coalition partners, such as
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NYPI RG and Center for Food Safety -- that we
shoul d work together to protect the continued
ef fectiveness of nmedically inportant
antibiotics like tetracycline and anpicillin
by cl anpi ng down on their routine overuse and
i nappropriate use in both healthcare settings
and farm ng.

And it's an astonishing fact that
two-thirds of the medically inportant
antibiotics that we rely on in the
United States are given not to people, but
adm ni stered to food aninmals -- not because
the food aninals are sick, but to prevent
t hem from becom ng sick because they're
living in overcrowded and unsanitary
condi ti ons.

So in 2018 the New York State
Department of Health worked on this report
(showi ng), the Stop Antibiotic Resistance
Roadmap pl an, which was a great first step.
And fromthat report we have | earned that
58 percent of 175 hospitals said they had an
antibiotic stewardship program which is very

i nportant, and we conmend them But that
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al so neans that 73 hospitals did not, and so
t hat needs fol |l ow up.

And the plan al so acknow edged t hat
agricultural overuse is a significant issue
in New York State, but they did not put into
pl ace restrictive neasures, a binding plan or
atimetable to get it under control

So for that reason, we urge you to
incorporate into the state budget |anguage
t he Conbating Antim crobial Resistance Act,
sponsored by Assenbl ynenber Linda Rosent ha
and Senator Kavanagh, which woul d prohibit
the use of nmedically inportant antibiotics in
f ood- producing animals for the routine
pur poses of disease prevention.

We need New York State, as part of its
budgetary activities and its operating
practices, to inplenment a Stop Antibiotic
Roadnmap that actually solves the problemfor
bot h heal thcare settings and for farm ng, and
prevents the next pandemic. Fully 24 percent
of our infections cones fromthe food that we
eat and our farmaninmals. So we have to

treat both sides of the equation.
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Anti biotics are |life-saving drugs.
It's our civic and public health obligation
to protect them Thank you very mnuch

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

Next we have Leishia Snall wood,

New York State Area Health Education System

M5. SMALLWOOD: Thank you, Madam
Chairs Krueger and Weinstein, Senator Rivera,
and the joint conmttee for hearing ny
testinmony tonight.

Founded in 1998, New York State AHEC
Systemis a health workforce training
initiative federally funded to provide
education, training, and conmunity services
to each and every county throughout New York
State. Qur network ains to address the
health disparities in nedically underserved
areas and increase diversity in the
heal t hcare wor kf orce throughout New York
St at e.

We know t he inportance of having
heal t hcare professionals be representative of

t he popul ation they serve, especially in
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nmedi cal | y di sadvant aged areas. W support
this objective by recruiting health

prof essi ons students from di verse
backgrounds, with enphasis on mnorities, to
expand their formalized training through
exposure to the health issues in the

under served conmunities, to attract their
interest in working in these conmunities
after graduation.

We believe in the "grow our own" nodel
and providing health career exposure pipeline
services for youth, putting themin hospital
and clinical settings to cultivate their
interest in the various health professions.

We provide clinical rotations and
i nternships for future providers in both
urban and rural settings to better understand
t hose patient popul ations.

We connect heal th professions graduate
students to nedically underserved vacanci es
in the conmunities and pronote debt reduction
i ncentive prograns for MJC practice.

We provide continuing education

wor kshops and trainings for our current
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heal t hcare providers on critical topics in
t he heal thcare industry.

W facilitate opioid prevention and
education prograns for high schools,
col |l eges, and the community. W coordinate
MAT trainings, facilitate Narcan trainings
for both high school and coll ege students.

We support maternal health through our
Doul a Project to provide education and
support services to wonen, especially
mnorities, to help reduce and prevent
chi | dhood births and deat hs.

We support nental health as a partner
wi th Project TEACH, funded through the Ofice
of Mental Health to pronote education,
services and trainings provided to PCPs
across the state in the rapid nental health
di agnosis and treatnment for children and
adol escent s.

During this pandem c we provide COVID
wor kshop series to current health professions
students entering the workforce, to educate
themon topics like trauma-inforned care and

the effects of COVID 19, and proper PPE
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utilization.

We do community education, going door
to door in neighborhoods with high infection
rat es, handi ng out CDC guidelines for COVID
safety.

We have a focus on working with
organi zations to track nenbers to fill open
positions. As we know, it's going to be
exacer bated through this COVID, post-COVID
We know there's going to be service gaps and
shortages. And we are |ooking to help be on
the frontline to replenish and be a cruci al
provi der to working with those organi zati ons
to identify workers that we've lost in the
pandem ¢ t hrough sickness and fear.

Thi s pandeni ¢ has provi ded many
chal l enges to our network which limt our
ability to work in an in-person environnment
wi th our students and conmunity partners.
AHEC adapted to this chall enge and devel oped
a robust virtual platformto continue our
progranmm ng and services.

Wth our previous 20-year funding

history with the state, we are seeking a
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restoration of $2.2 mllion in funding to
continue to support the work and services
t hat AHEC provi des, but which nany of our
educational partners and students cone to
rely on greatly.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much. And our |ast speaker is Linda Aiken,
prof essor and director, Center for Health
Qut cones and Policy Research, University of
Pennsyl vani a.

PROFESSOR Al KEN:  Thank you so nuch.

| am Professor Linda A ken fromthe
Uni versity of Pennsylvania Center for Health
Qut cones and Policy Research and the Leonard
Davis Institute of Health Econom cs.

My remarks today are a brief summary
of findings fromour independent study
related to pending |legislation, the
Safe Staffing for Quality Care Act, with
regard to hospital staffing. More details
are available in three peer-revi ened
scientific publications in prom nent nedi cal

journal s.
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I n January and February of 2020, right
before COVID, we conducted original research
on nurse staffing, surveying nurses from
116 acute-care general hospitals in New York
State. We linked these findings on staffing
| evels to the clinical outconmes of
418,000 Medicare patients treated in these
same hospitals.

| s hospital nurse staffing in the
state a problemthat should be addressed?
And we concl ude yes. W found that
patient-to-nurse staffing ratios in adult
nmedi cal and surgical units varied w dely and
unjustifiably across hospitals, from
hospi tal s where nurses took care of four
patients each to hospitals where nurses took
care of alnobst 11 patients each. Renenber,
this was before COVID and not counting | CU
staf fing.

These greatly varying ratios have
prevent abl e negati ve consequences for
New York State residents. Qur findings show
that every one patient increase in

patient-to-nurse ratios is associated with a
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13 percent increase in risk-adjusted hospital
death rates, and simlarly in significant
increases in length of stay and readm ssi ons.

So is the proposed legislation likely
to i nprove patient outcomes and resource
efficiency in New York State hospitals? And
we conclude yes. W estimated that were all
New York State hospitals staffed at the
4:1 ratio proposed in the pending
| egi sl ation, nore than 4,370 deaths woul d
have been avoi ded just anong el derly Medicare
patients. Many nore deat hs woul d have been
avoided if all patients were counted.

Savings of a mninmmof $720 nmillion
woul d have been achi eved because of avoi ded
days of hospital care, and those savings
coul d be reinvested in enploying nore nurses.

So in sumary, the inmense variation
in patient-to-nurse ratios across hospitals
in New York State results in significant
nunbers of avoi dabl e deat hs and unnecessary
expenditures. Qur study shows that setting
reasonabl e m ni nrum standards for safe

hospital nurse staffing statewide is feasible




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

647

and in the public's interest.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

Any questions frommy col |l eagues?

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl yman Ra
has a questi on.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Certai nly.

SENATCR RIVERA: Ra first, that's
fine. Ra can go first, | can go second.

CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEIN: Ch.  Ckay.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you, Chair.

Good evening. | just had a quick
guestion for M. Hamond.

You're a popul ar guy today. There was
a question to the extent people knew you and
everything else, but |'msure you heard
earlier, either directly or indirectly, that
Comm ssi oner Zucker spoke about -- basically,
| mean, he stated in alnobst certain terns
t hat he believed there was zero additional
deaths as a result of the March 25th order.
He |l eft open the possibility that maybe there

coul d be one, because he didn't want to say,
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you know, never. But he said there wasn't
any.

So | was just wondering if you had any
t hought s on t hose statenents.

MR HAMVOND: | nean, | guess | would
wonder what his basis is for saying that.

Hi s departnent published a report in
July which made the case that it wasn't
responsi ble for all of the deaths and it
wasn't responsible for the peak of deaths,
but it didn't actually address the question
of whether it was a contributing factor.

| nmean, the kind of analysis that ny
col | eague lan Kingsbury and | did was kind of
an obvious way of getting at that question.
And it didn't appear like the
Heal t h Departnent had done that kind of
anal ysis. They have nuch better data than we
do, and so if they did, it would probably be
a nore accurate assessnent.

And so either they did the analysis
and didn't like the results or they didn't do
it at all. And so | don't think you can -- |

don't know what the basis is for his
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stat enent about that.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  And, | nean, | would
agree. And certainly, as you've said, you
know, not having the underlying data to
utilize until recently made it hard for
anybody to do any independent | ook at this.

Sol do -- 1'd be remiss if | didn't
t hank you and the Enpire Center for your
persi stence in obtaining that data, because
despite the conm ssioner's representations
that it would have been provided for this
budget hearing, | don't believe for a second
we woul d have seen the information if they
weren't forced to do so by a court.

So thank you for that and for your
good work on the issue.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER: Custavo Rivera.

You' re nut ed.

SENATOR RI VERA:  Here we go. Yup, |
gotcha. Thank you so rmuch, Madam Chair.

M. Bell, first of all, good evening.
And good evening to everybody el se,
obviously. But | wanted for you to talk a

little bit nore -- I'mvery thankful of your
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plug for the Patient Medical Debt Protection
Act. And the -- the -- if you could talk a
little bit nore about the concerns that you
have, based on your experience, your deep
know edge about consumers and how consumers
are affected by nedi cal debt.

And | will -- so if you could tell us
alittle bit nore about why you think it's so
inmportant to pass it in the State of
New York. Because | know you nmentioned it in
passing in the mddle of all the other
t hi ngs.

Go ahead.

MR BELL: Onh, sure, sure.

So Community Service Society has done
an excellent job docunenting sonme of the
actions, legal actions that have been carried
out against patients in New York State. But
essentially there have been over 50, 000
| awsuits agai nst patients for hospital-based
nmedi cal debts in the last five years in
New York State.

And we are just |ike super-concerned

that during a pandem c where it's hard for
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people to keep well, people absolutely may
need nedical care. And it's their right,
it's their absolute right to get it. W want
people to be able to get nedical care in the
US wth full dignity and respect.

And so while we want to elimnate the
financial barriers on the front end, we don't
want the surprise financial gotchas on the
back end. And too often, you know, consumers
are basically running a maze.

And so within this bill, which we
wor ked on with your enpl oyee and our dear
friend in the Senate, Kristin Sinclair --

SENATOR RI VERA:  Yes, you did.

MR BELL: Yeah, who did a fantastic
job -- we put together several neasures that
we think that really would inprove the
pati ent experience of care and sinplify
nmedi cal billing, which would al so be probably
a boon for both our providers and our health
payers.

We don't want people to be |leaving the
hospital with financial stress and ot her

psychol ogi cal conplications that come with
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that. And these -- one of the nmeasures is to
say to hospitals, Could you please create a
sinplified nmedical billing systemso we can
get one bill for a hospital visit instead of
30 bills and 30 different explanation of
benefit forns.

There has to be a way in the
United States that we could sinplify the
adm nistration of billing. New York Health
absolutely is one way that we could do that.
| personally amlike a huge --

SENATCR RIVERA: | look forward to
working with you on this. | only have
30 seconds --

(Overtal k.)

MR. BELL: W need to nake it sinpler
for the patients. And then also
standardi zing the charity assistance is very
i mportant --

SENATOR RI VERA: -- work with you to
pass it --

MR. BELL: There are other things in
there we need to get done.

SENATOR RI VERA: | need ny | ast
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15 seconds to say, Bill --

MR HAMMOND: Yes, sir?

SENATOR RIVERA: | don't know if this
is worth anything, sir, but | sure know who
you are.

(Laughter.)

SENATOR RIVERA: And | also -- |
also -- | will say this for the record, |
respect your work i mensely. And just like
you were thanked before by Assenbl ynenber Ra,
t hank you so much for continuing to do the
work relentlessly on this to make sure that
we got to the truth. So --

MR. HAMMOND: Thank you, Senator.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Any ot her Assenbl ynenber ?

CHAl RA\OVAN VEI NSTEI'N: No, but |
bel i eve you have anot her Senat or.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: Wl |, we have ne.
Wio el se do we have?

CHAI RANOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: | see Sue
Serino's hand rai sed.

CHAIl R\MOVAN KRUECER:  Oh, hel | o.

didn't see you in the darkness, excuse ne.
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Sue Serino, please go first.

SENATOR SERI NO  Thank you
Madam Chai r.

And Bill and everybody, thank you so
many for all of your hard work. Geatly
appreciate it.

And Bill, you' ve been very clear
about -- over the last four nonths about the
need to use everything that we' ve | earned
during this tine to ensure the state is
better prepared to act in the future. You' ve
poi nted out that that's actually the reason
that data is so inportant when we're talking
about these health issues, because that data
is what actually inforns policies and nakes
all the difference between sort of spinning
our wheel s versus maki ng effective changes.

So with that in mnd, nmy question is
for everyone on this panel. Based on what
you know today, what can the state do
today -- starting with this budget, |
guess -- to be better prepared to act with
this current pandemc still raging, and in

the face of any future pandem c, maybe to be
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better prepared for the current pandem c too?
We know t he nunbers are still concerning and
we' re seeing the changing strands as wel|.

So that's open to everybody.

MR HAMVOND: | would -- ny first
recomrendati on woul d be to conduct an
i nvestigation, make it as independent as
possi bl e, make it as in-depth as possible.
And that way it would kind of start with a
| ot nore transparency about what happened.

| nean, we had to engage in a
nmont hs-1ong court battle to get one data set
out of what woul d probably be hundreds if not
t housands of data sets. So we would need the
cooperation fromthe Cuono adm nistration to
get to the bottom of things.

But you can't really -- | nean, ny
testi mony was about -- inplied that we need
to invest in our public health
infrastructure. But we don't really know
what part of that infrastructure to invest in
until we have a better understandi ng of what
happened. It's very easy to get caught up in

narratives and theories about, you know, was
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it Italian tourists or was it the subway
or -- you know, there are different theories
about why New York was hit so hard.

| think we really ought to try and
understand nore definitively what the bottom
i ne was.

SENATOR SERINO  Thank you, Bill.

PROFESSOR AIKEN: |'Il add there, if |
could, on the nurse staffing issue.

The title of one of our papers is
"Chronic Hospital Nurse Understaffing Meets
COvVID-19." And this is exactly the situation
in New York State. And New York City has the
worst staffing in the state. And New York
City of course is a gateway city for all
ki nds of conmuni cabl e di seases coning in
t hrough the three airports.

So it's already well known that
New York City and New York State has
substandard nurse staffing in their hospitals
conpared to other states. This is an
exanple. Patients and hospitals in New York
get three hours fewer RN hours per day than

patients in California. This is a lot of
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nursi ng care.

So, you know, the evidence is clear.
If we want to be better prepared for a surge
in the future, we need to fix what's going on
in normal circunstances.

SENATOR SERINO  Yup, thank you. |
agr ee.

CHAl RWOVMAN KRUEGER:  Prof essor, | have
a followup for you

First off, thank you for being here
toni ght, because |I think it does highlight
t he val ue of actually doing research and
finding out what's happeni ng.

So you just said California offers
three hours nore of nursing per day than
New York City. Do they spend that nuch nore
on healthcare than we do per person? M
under standi ng was they didn't.

PROFESSOR Al KEN:  No, they don't. And
t hey have a nmandate -- of course, everybody
probably knows California has a simlar
mandate to what's being proposed in New York

It was an unfunded mandate. The

hospitals were able to neet the mandate
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wi t hout any cl osures, and the safety-net
hospitals in particular inproved their
staffing dramatically. So it touched on al
of the things -- very positive results from
Cal i fornia.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much for that.

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: W& have -- oh,

"' m sorry.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Sorry. | was
just going to say: Bill, yes, thank you for
your worK.

Sonetime you're going to explain to ne
why you agree with ne conpletely on the
i mportance of expanding our public health
system but you basically have a problemw th
Medi cai d, which is ensuring that we have
funding for al nost every New Yorker to
actually now have health insurance. So --
but not tonight, because we only have three
mnutes. But we'll sit and we'll tal k about
t hat .

And Chuck Bell, | swear, we kept

fixing the surprise bills. Ddn't we get
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that bill done last year? Wy does it
keep -- it's like a whack-a-nole, it keeps
com ng back

MR. BELL: Well, we have an

extrenely --
CHAl RWMOMAN KRUEGER:  -- the Cahil
guy, yeah.

MR. BELL: Yeah. W have an extrenely
conpl ex system

But the particular thing that the fix
that the Patient Medical Debt Protection Act
woul d nake woul d be to clarify the issue that
when you get incorrect provider directory
information, that you relied on the
provi der's assurance that he or she
partici pates in your healthcare network, or
you relied on the insurance conpany directory
and it turned out to be incorrect, that the
patient would be fully protected from
surprise billing in that circumnmstance.

And that is emnently fair. W're
aski ng consuners to do a lot of work to
consult those directories and go to

i n-network providers, and then when they
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follow all the rules, they should not be
penal i zed for doing that.

So it's very straightforward. | don't
t hi nk anyone really di sagrees --

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Ri ght .

MR BELL: -- that the fix should be
made, except it becones a cl ash between
different interest groups.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER:  Just i ke | ast
year's story. Ckay, thank you very much

Sorry, Helene, | kept cutting you off.

CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEIN: | was j ust

going to say we have a nunber of

Assenbl ymenbers, so we'll start first with
Kevin Cahill.
ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: | will be very

brief, thank you very much

Senat or Krueger, yes, there are stil
a fewlittle things we have to do to tinker
with the surprise billing law. But al so
there's a significant anount that we have to
do with nedical debt. And we're going to
both work on both of those things.

| will just take a few nonments, not to
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ask any questions but to thank each and every
one of you panelists, and rem nd you that
this is the just the beginning of the part
where we need you nost. You are people who
anal yze probl ens and then give us good,
substantive analysis that allows us to plan
for the future.

And we can't really always do that in
the mddle of the crisis, but |I honestly feel
that we are on the way out of this crisis,
and this is exactly the time where we have to
exam ne every aspect of it and try to nake
sure we do it better so that the next tine
things are not as bad as this tine.

So | thank each and every one of you
for not only your testinony, but for your
good work along the way. And Bill Hamrond,
you're ny favorite guy to always di sagree
wi th except for those occasional tines when
we agree, so -- and this happens to be one of
them Thank you.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you.

So Kevin Byrne?

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Chair, just a
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gui ck question before we start. Everyone

gets what, one round, on these panelists,

right?
CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Yes.  Yes.
ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Ckay, thank you.
CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Three m nut es.
ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Three m nutes,

t hank you.

So I"'mgoing to just go to Bil
Hanmond. And | have three questions, so |'l
try to be efficient with nmy tine.

One, our state's Medicai d budget,
$82.9 billion -- that's the federal, state,
| ocal share. |It's going to extend the
Medi caid G obal Cap. |Is that still
effective, do you think, in controlling any
sort of costs in our state budget?

MR HAMMOND: It's a lot |ess
effective, because it's been -- it's been
riddled with | oophol es and exceptions. And
it's been kind of disregarded. The nonthly
reports have stopped. The Governor's never
actually enforced it.

| think it would have been useful a
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coupl e of years ago to contain the deficit
t hat was devel opi ng before it got too |arge.

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE:  Under st ood.

| also want to thank you and the
Enpire Center, Bill, for all your work this
past year on many issues. But | think it's
shocking that | could find nore information
about nursing hone data on the Enpire
Center's website than the Departnent of
Heal th's website.

And it's alarmng to nme that the
Department of Health continues to conflate
total state nunmbers with nursing hone
resi dent nunmbers. And to nmy know edge, the
July report that's conmmonly referenced by the
Department of Health defending the March 25th
directive, in nmany cases they didn't use
st at ewi de nunbers. They used nursing hone
resi dent nunbers, just not those that died in
a hospital

Wul d that be correct?

MR. HAMMOND: That's correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: So | think they

understand the difference and they just seem
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to be spinning the story now.

A | ast question, since | think
everyone just gets one question, | get the
| ast word here. The New York so-called
Heal t h Act was brought up a couple of tines
and | have concerns about the | ower
rei nbursenent rates; you know, when the
public sector costs the state increased
t axes, you know, the effects on quality care.

Do you have any -- you can use the
rest of ny time to maybe, you know, offer
your opinions on what that would do and why
perhaps this is not the tinme to take on such
a costly programin New York

MR. HAMVOND: Well, it would be
enormously expensive. It would require tax
i ncreases beyond anything that's been
proposed even in the current Legislature.

But also | think it's kind of mssing
the point. | nmean, | know that there are
certain ways in which a single-payer system
m ght have hel ped during the crisis. But the
public health systemis the part that would

have prevented the crisis, or would have
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m nim zed the crisis.

The -- the public health systemis the
one that woul d have nmade it unnecessary for
people to go to the hospital in the first
pl ace, and woul d have nmade it unnecessary for
us to shut down visitation in nursing hones.

It's --

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: A unified vaccine
di stribution would probably make sense, but
not -- | don't think you need a single payer
for that. But | just wanted to chine in on
that point. | think that would have been
hel pful too, to your point.

Thank you. That was -- | know M. --
that Chai rman Rivera has had some very nice
wor ds about you, and | just figured |I'd drop
that in since he already asked his question.

Thank you.

(Laughter.)

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  Ckay. W go to
Assenbl yman Jensen, who naybe has sone nice
things to say about Bill Hammond.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN:  You know what ? |

have nice -- | do have sonething to say,
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Bill. Not a question. But | do notice that
you're the only panelist today, only wtness
who has a bookcase without Bill Cinton's

My Life onit. So that is sonething | did
noti ce.

But nmy question is actually for
Prof essor Ai ken. And forgive nme, | haven't
read your -- UPenn's research on the safe
staffing bill, but | just want to ask you a
coupl e of quick questions about your
resear ch.

So | ooking at -- review ng your data,
so you nentioned that New York City sees the
nost troubl esone staffing levels. 1Is there
any nmerit, based on the nunbers between
upstate and downstate, to maybe doing a
phased-in approach starting with New York
City and then noving towards the rest of the
state on that sort of nodel?

Secondarily, the question is did your
research ook at -- to increase the staffing
nunbers and the ratios, about the
avai lability of nurses, RNs, the rest of the

nursing care teans, and the availability of
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t hose staff nmenbers to reach those mandat ed
ratios in the hospitals in New York?

PROFESSOR Al KEN:  Yes. Well, let
me -- thank you for those questions. Let ne
take the last one first, on the issue of
whet her New Yor k has enough nurses.

And this is a comopn reason why states
consider staffing ratios but don't adopt
them And there's a |lot of msinformation
about the supply of nurses.

So New York State has substantially
nore nurses per popul ation than, for exanple,
California that has already passed such
| egislation. So for exanple, in New York
State there are al nost 19 nurses per
1,000 population. And in California, they
only have 11 nurses per 1,000 popul ation. So
there are sufficient nurses in New York
St at e.

Moreover, there are 34 other states
t hat have adopted the nursing |icensure
conpact, which allows for nmulti-state
licensure. Now, New York State hasn't

adopted that and so the Governor had to, in
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hi s energency powers, waive that requirenent
during the pandemi c. That wouldn't be
necessary if New York State went along with
the other 34 states and passed that
| egi sl ation.

We are graduati ng now 170, 000 new
nurses conmng into the workforce every year
in our country. | know earlier today there

was sone di scussion about increasing the

supply. W really have quite a robust supply

of nurses in the U S

On the issue of the phase-in, | think

certainly New York Gty is of concern because

of the comuni cabl e di sease threat posed by
the airports in New York City. But | don't
know that | think necessarily phasing it in
by region would be the way to go. | think
giving hospitals a period of tinme to get
ready for it and not pass it imediately on
t hem woul d be a better thing, but to pass it
st at ewi de.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Ckay. | think
| -- | have nore questions, but |'ve run out

of tinme. So thank you.
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CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you.

Senat or Krueger, | think we're
finished with this panel.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: W are fini shed
with this panel. Thank you very nmuch. | was
just looking at a neno that came in.

Thank you all for being with us and
for rem nding us of the value of doing
research and real -1ife experience inpacting
where we go next in New York State.

And the next panel will be rmade up of
Amanda Dunker, Health Care for Al New York;
El i sabeth Benjanmi n, vice president of health
initiatives, Community Service Society of
New Yor k; Lara Kassel, coalition coordinator,
Medi caid Matters New York; Louise Cohen, CEQ
Pri mary Care Devel opnent Corporation; and
Ant hony Feliciano, Comm ssion on the Public's
Heal th System

Hel | o, everyone. And | hope you're
all there. W'IIl just call out your nanme and
see if you pop up to talk.

Amanda Dunker .

M5. DUNKER: Hi. Thank you for the




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

670

opportunity to testify tonight. I'm
testifying on behalf of the Health Care for
Al'l New York Coalition, which represents over
170 nmenber organi zati ons statew de, and we
wor k on ensuring that New Yorkers have health
coverage and have access to affordable,

gual ity heal thcare.

| am going to | eave nedical debt for
t he next speaker and highlight four other
budget issues related to healthy equity in ny
t esti nony.

New York's health policies
systematically underfund care for | owincone
and even noderate-income New Yorkers. Years
of this neans that surviving COVID-19 cones
down to your wealth or your race for many
New Yorkers. So first is that New York has
failed to ensure that everyone has health
i nsurance. There are no coverage expansi ons
proposed in this budget.

One solution would be to enact the
New York Health Act. That would cover
everyone. It would elimnate differences in

provi ders' financial stability based on the
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weal th of their patients.

At a mnimm the budget shoul d expand
Essential Plan coverage to imm grants who are
i ncome-eligible and have had COVID- 19 but are
excl uded because of their inmgration status.
| Mm gration status is still one of the
bi ggest barriers to coverage in New York
It's -- 20 percent of people who are without
U.S. citizenship in New York are uninsured,
conpared to 5 percent of the general
popul ati on.

Expandi ng coverage for themthrough
t he Essential Plan would make an enor nous
di fference for sonme of the hardest-hit
communities in New York State, and it would
ensure that the hospitals who care for people
in those communities receive revenue for that
care.

Second, public hospitals should not be
excl uded fromreceiving |Indigent Care Pool
funds. The purpose of the Indigent Care Pool
is to support hospitals that care for people
who are enrolled in Medicaid or are

uni nsured. Public hospitals serve far nore
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of those patients than New York's private
hospitals, and they should not | ose access to
| ndi gent Care Pool funds.

New York has to ultimtely change how
i ndi gent care pool funding is distributed.

I f New York had chosen to use those funds
exclusively for safety-net hospitals over the
past 20 years, they would have received over
$13 billion nore in funding.

Third, safety-net providers should be
protected from across-the-board Medicaid rate
cuts. New York State | aw categorizes
hospital s who serve the nost uninsured or
Medi cai d- covered patients as enhanced
safety-net providers. Those hospitals should
be protected fromrate cuts.

There are big differences in payer m x
at hospitals across New York, so Medicaid
hospitals -- hospitals that serve nore
Medi caid patients -- obviously are hurt rmnuch
nore by these across-the-board Medicaid cuts.
Sonme hospitals only have 2 percent of their
patients covered by Medicaid. There's others

where it's up to 80 percent.
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The Medicaid d obal Cap that triggered
t hose cuts should be repeal ed. The fact that
New York is cutting rates for hospitals in
the mdst of a health and econom c crisis of
this scale, and is specifically targeting
hospitals that serve the nost affected
communities with those cuts, is a perfect
illustration of what is wong with the
Medi cai d d obal Cap.

Finally, I would Iike to point out
that the majority of people hospitalized for
COVID-19 are still hospitalized in New York
City, and reductions in state funding for
public health prograns that only apply to
New York City are inconsistent with what
public health data is telling us to do.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Next we have Elisabeth Benjam n,
Community Service Society of New York

M5. BENJAM N.  Thank you.

First of all, you know, big shout-out
to you, Chairwoman Krueger, Chairwoman

Wei nstein, Chairman Gustavo Rivera,
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Chairman Cahill. You all are lions, you
know, as Chuck Bell said -- | nean, just
hangi ng in there and hearing true denocracy
happen. And thank you for your service and
for your service to the public of New York
St at e.

| really want to speak about three
things. First of all, of course, we support
everything at the Community Service Society
t hat Amanda Dunker just spoke about on behal f
of Health Care for All New York. But I'd
like to focus on the Essential Plan, the
Pati ent Medical Debt Protection Act, and
consumer assi stance prograns.

In ternms of the Essential Plan, the
Affordabl e Care Act gives us the noney to
fund the Essential Plan. And it's called the
Basic Health Plan in the Affordable Care Act;
we renaned it the Essential Plan. And we
have a $4.5 billion surplus, thanks to the
federal governnment, in our Essential Plan
trust fund, as Donna Frescatore testified
t oday.

Now, great news that the Cuono
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adm nistration is trying to get rid of the
$20 prem um for medical benefits. But the
Affordable Care Act is extrenely clear: The
surplus of the trust fund should only be
spent on inproving benefits or reducing
prem uns for the beneficiaries.

| nstead, the Cuonp admi nistration is
suggesting to spend $650 mllion on a -- what
do they call it? -- some kind of programfor
the insurance carriers, and a $450 mllion
rate hike for the providers. Now, at the
same tinme they're saying we should still
require beneficiaries to spend $30 to cover
their vision and dental.

The first and forenpost thing we shoul d
do, under the Affordable Care Act, is get rid
of that $30 prem um for vision and dental for
Essential Plan beneficiaries. These people
are bel ow 200 percent of poverty; they don't
have an extra $30 a nonth to pay for vision
and dental. That's $150 milli on.

What you do with the remai ning surplus
after that is another question that |l

| eave for another day. But number one, we
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shoul d be getting rid of that stupid vision
and dental premum $30 per nenber per

nonth -- $150 million. And then -- you know,
and we have plenty of noney, we have

$4.5 billion.

Second, we really think that it's tine
to level the playing field between the
patients and the industry. Medical billing
is a nightmare in New York State. You know,
we have one gentleman that went in for a
ki dney stone; he came out with 28 different
bills. That's not okay. One visit, one
bill. You go into the hospital, you should
cone out with one consolidated bill that
expl ai ns what's goi ng on.

Nunber two, our -- people are being
sued -- oh, ny gosh, |I'malready out of tine.
Fifty thousand peopl e have been sued, over
5,000 peopl e during the pandemc. W have to
get rid of this 9 percent interest rate for
peopl e in judgnents.

And | ast but not |east, thank you for
your support for the consuner assistance

progranms. |1'Il take questions. |'msorry, |
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ran out of tine.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Ckay. That's al
right. W're going to continue on before we
t ake questi ons.

Lara Kassel, Medicaid Matters
New Yor k.

M5. KASSEL: Good evening. Thanks
very much

| am Lara Kassel, |'mthe coordi nator
of Medicaid Matters New York. W are the
statewi de coalition representing consuner
interests in Medicaid.

Thank you so rmuch for being here at
this late hour. Thank you so nuch to your
staff. | would be remiss if | did not thank
themas well. W can't see them but thank
you so much, staff.

And | would also be remss, | feel, if
| woul d not nmake the suggestion that perhaps
a hearing this long be broken up into nore
t han one day, that perhaps you do the
government officials in one day and the rest
of us on the next day. Just a suggestion for

next year.
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"' mgoing to nove through as quickly
as possible, in particular because sonme of ny
ot her coll eagues on this very panel have
t ouched on, or will -- are about to touch on,
| believe, sone of the sane issues.

You know, we are very pleased, for
i nstance, about the elimnation of the
Essential Plan premuns, but let's go further
t han that and use sone of the trust fund
noney to elimnate the dental and vision
prem umns.

W are very pleased that this budget
does not include direct cuts to eligibility
for prograns, |ike previous years. Last
year's budget restricted eligibility for
home- based care through the Managed Long- Term
Care Program W would be nuch happier if
this budget went even further. It doesn't do
any cuts; let's nake it go further by
repealing last year's eligibility program
changes.

Wth those things said, this budget
really fails to hel p New York get closer to

where we need to be as it relates to health
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equity and pronoting a systemthat enphasizes
comuni ty-based services. W need this
budget to invest in the home care workforce.
Medi caid Matters supports the Fair Pay for
Hone Care Canpaign and the restoration of the
Home Care Recruitnment and Retention Fund.

We al so need this budget to protect
safety-net providers -- comunity health
centers that rely on the 340B program
essential safety-net hospitals. W need
hospitals that nmeet the definition of
essential safety net not to be cut by
across-the-board cuts. And we need public
hospitals to receive |Indigent Care Pool
hospital charity care funding. They are the
ones that provide nmuch nore services to
peopl e who are | owincone, uninsured, people
on Medicaid; they should be the ones to get
the allocation fromthe charity care funding.

What this brings ne to in ny
15 seconds is that we nust repeal the
Medi caid d obal Cap. None of these
investnments will be possible with the cap in

pl ace.
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And with the | ast few seconds, |
really want to urge folks to consider
restoring funding for adult home residents.
The fundi ng for advocacy that supports them
and the funding for services outside of their
daily -- what do you call it, per diemor
what ever, has been cut, and we need that
funding to be restored.

Thanks.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Qur next speaker is fromthe Primary
Car e Devel opnent Corporation, Louise Cohen.

M5. COHEN:. Great. Thank you for
letting nme testify here today, and |
appreciate all of your work and the work of
your staff. | echo what ny coll eagues have
sai d.

For those of you who don't know us,
the Primary Care Devel opnment Corporation is a
not-for-profit comunity devel opnent
financial institution dedicated to building
excel l ence and equity in primary care.

So | have a couple of points I'd |ike

to make here today. The first one is |
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continue to suggest and to urge you to reject
the harnful cuts to Medicaid that have been
proposed in the Governor's budget. These
will certainly jeopardize primary care in a
very significant way.

And that we think that any additional
dollars in Medicaid should be going towards
building the primary care system W know
that primary care is about prevention, it's
about early diagnosis and treatnment, and
those are the things that reduce cost at the
ot her end of the healthcare scale.

You' ve heard a | ot about 340B, and |I'm
al so here to urge you to oppose the 340B
carve-out. But | want to give a little bit
of a different perspective.

As a community | ender -- for exanpl e,
we have lent mllions of dollars to
Cal | en-Lorde, who you heard fromearlier, in
order to create -- help themcreate their
facilities and build out facilities in both
Manhattan and in Brooklyn. And we know t hat
originally when we lent to them no bank was

going to lend to them so it really required
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a community devel opnent fi nanci al
institution.

Well, this 340B situation is going to
ensure that a nunber of FQHCs and certainly
aid service organi zations are potentially
going to default. And that nmeans that no
bank, no comrercial lender will ever lend to
them again. And so what you're actually
doing is not only destabilizing themfrom an
operational point of view, you' re actually
destabilizing themfromthe |ong-termcapital
point of view And | think that's a
perspective that perhaps has not been brought
out as much in the 340B conversation

| also want to tell you a little bit
about sone research that we've done at the
Primary Care Devel opnent Corporation with
funding fromthe Legislature fromlast year
We | ooked at FQHC penetration into New York
State and its relationship to COVID 19
si ckness and death, and here's what we found.

In New York State we found,
unsurprisingly, where peopl e del ayed

heal t hcare due to cost and where there are
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| ar ge nunbers of people w thout health
i nsurance, there was nore COVID sickness and
deat h.

But we al so found that
nei ghbor hood-1 evel COVID-19 nortality rates
are lower in communities with a greater
nunber of federally qualified health centers,
particularly in counties with high rates of
uni nsurance. And while we know t hat
comunities that had fewer primary care
provi ders before COVID-19 had worse outcones
during COVID-19, what we al so know i s that
going forward, unless we flip that and we
i ncrease the anount of primary care, that
we're going to continue to have these
devastating inpacts, particularly on
| ow-i ncome comunities of color.

And so this reinforces the idea that
in the safety net, the safety net is
essential, that Medicaid should provide nore
access to primary care, and that the 340B
carve-out will have significant negative
i mpacts on communities that you all serve.

Thank you.
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CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

And our last, but certainly not our
| east -- although we did let a nman sneak onto
this panel. How did that happen?

Ant hony Feliciano, Conm ssion on the
Public's Health System How are you doi ng?
MR. FELICI ANO Good eveni ng,

everyone. As stated before, |I'm Ant hony
Feliciano. |'mthe director of the

Comm ssion on the Public's Health System

al so serve on the board of API CHA Conmunity
Health Center. | also serve on the board of
t he Canpai gn for New York Health.

As advocates we often tal k about
austerity hits the poorest the hardest, we
tal k about consequences of cutting noney for
public health and Medicaid for far higher
costs in the future and long-terminpacts to
mar gi nal i zed communities. But | want to say,
as a person who's a Latino, we're hurting
now. W' ve been hurting for years when it
comes to care and access. And it's not just
us -- people with disabilities, wonen,

children, a range of marginalized




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

685

comuni ties, including indigenous people.

So it's clearly, to ne, an attack by
the Governor, and to ne it's a racist attack
in many ways when we cut public health
funding in certain ways. So, you know, we
ask that, one, we restore funding for
Article VI prograns to New York City and
ensure full state rei mbursenent back to
36 percent. W want to strengthen our city's
public health system

And you have seen in ny testinony the
anount of services that are inpacted, which
nmeans the types of comrunities that are being
i npacted, communities of color and ot her
conmuni ti es.

But | want to talk of the notion that
New York City can access federal dollars, and
it was nentioned even the CDC. Those sources
of federal funding sonetines are not
fungible, right? And it's msguided to think
that New York City is not |ooking for every
dollar that they can on the federal |evel
But it is really msguided to think this way.

And it's really discrimnatory to New York
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The other thing is obviously what our
col | eagues have said, is linmting any
proposal, reject it, to elimnate the state's
share of the Indigent Care Pool to our public
hospitals, to add | anguage that protects our
enhanced safety net providers fromthe 1
percent across-the-board cuts, to repeal the
gl obal spending cap. And it was nentioned
before, but the global spending cap has
simlar effects to what conservative states
are doi ng when they have bl ock grants, and
what ' s happeni ng t here.

So the other thing, as soneone who's
on the board of a community health center, is
to reject the Governor's 340B cuts. | really
t hi nk we shoul d penalize wasteful executive
pay and non-patient-care spending, support
vari ous proposals fromlnvest in Qur New York
on the tax breaks that the super-rich are
getting, pass the New York Health Act, ensure
safe staffing.

But really, if we really want to be
anti-racist, then we need to invest in our

comunities and in the services that they
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rely on and not undercut it while we're in a
pandemi c. And to be honest, it's not |ike
racismis going to go away after the
pandemi c. But we're not prepared as a city
to deal with any new pandem cs, and we can
see COVID-19 as a di sease being endenic as
part of the registry {sic} that we're going
to have to deal with for a very long tine.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Questions fromny col | eagues?

Qustavo Rivera.

SENATOR RIVERA: | got a few, very
gui ck.

Thank you so rmuch for hanging out with
us this late in the evening. You covered a
| ot of things that are inportant.

"Il start by saying that as far as
Ant hony' s poi nt about the continuing inpact
of health inequities in communities of color
and poor communities, that's something that's
kind of built into the systemfor a very |ong
time, and therefore we have to act

proactively to push it back, which is where
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t he nedi cal debt protection act -- which I'm
going to go to you in a second, Elisabeth
Benjamin -- as well as the New York Health
Act, which we've tal ked about a little bit
today but we certainly can talk about it a
little bit nore.

But Elisabeth, if you wanted to kind
of talk a little bit -- | mean, | know that
Chuck tal ked about it before, but as far as
t he Medi cal Debt Protection Act and how it
has i npacted exactly what Anthony was tal ki ng
about, whether we're tal king about
comunities of color that have had historic
inequities in healthcare -- are they inpacted
wor se by nedical debt? And would this bil
actually help those communities out?

M5. BENJAM N:  Thank you so nuch for
asking that, Senator Rivera. You are so
right.

Buf f al o, people of color four tines
nore likely to be in nmedical debt than white
peopl e. Rochester, three times. Syracuse,
twice. Wstchester County, also tw ce as

bad. Queens -- you know, | mean the profound
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racial disparities in nmedical debt are so
upsetting, it sort of shocks the conscience.

Mor eover, the hospitals, New York
State hospitals, every single one is a
501(c)(3) charity. Wiy are they suing people
for 9 percent interest?

I"mreally glad that Hel ene Wi nstein
has a bill with Senator Thonmas to cut
interest for judgnments from9 percent to the
U S. Treasury rate. A first step would be to
say just for medical debt. W can all agree
that charitable hospitals should probably not
be charging 9 percent interest and they
shoul d be charging the U S. Treasury rate, as
Chai rwonman Wi nstei n suggests, for al
consuner debt.

| don't care if we take the Governor's
proposal to get rid of all -- you know, use
the Treasury rate for all judgnents, or
Assenbl ywoman Weinstein's for all consuner
debt, that covers nedical debt, or yours,
Senator Rivera, just to make it start with
baby steps for nedical debt. But there's

just so much that needs to be done on nedi cal
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debt, fromcleaning up the surprise bill;
fromone visit, one bill; from standardi zi ng
patient financial liability bills; from
getting rid of facility fees, or at |east the
patient obligation for them to making
hospitals required to cooperate with the
Al'l Payer C ai ns dat abase.

| nmean, we just need to nmake it
better. It's just m nd-boggling what
patients have to navigate through in terns of
nmedi cal billing, and we must step up now,
especially for communities of color, but
really for everybody.

SENATOR RI VERA: Thank you so mnuch
Thank you for com ng out this evening, and
t hank you for the --

M5. BENJAM N.  Thank you. Thank you
for having us.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
O hers?

Well, | also just want to thank you
all for being here and for always -- really,
t he whol e group of you al ways focusing on

what we can't forget in trying to make sure
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that we're providing quality healthcare for
everyone.

And, | nmean, | get calls every day --
| supposedly represent the wealthiest
district in New York, but | get calls every
day from people terrified about these bills
that they're getting, that they don't
understand them they just know they coul dn't
possi bly pay them And they don't even
understand why they're getting them they
were originally told "Ch, no, you won't have
any bills."

And these are elderly people, and so
you can see themthinking: 1'mgoing to end
up back in the hospital with another heart
attack just by opening the envel opes that
come fromny hospital. So we've got to take
care of this.

Thank you all. W're going to
continue to the next panel.

PANELI ST: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

And our next panel will include the

Phar maceuti cal Care Managenent Associ ati on,
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Lauren Rowl ey; the Community Pharnacy
Associ ation of New York State, M ke Duteau;
and the Pharnmacists Society of the State of
New Yor k, Thomas D Angel o.

Wel come. Al right, is Lauren here?
Can we start with her?

M5. ROALEY: |'m here.

Thank you, Madam Chair. And thank you
all for -- | appreciate the opportunity to
once again be invited to participate in this
hearing, regardless of howlate it is
t oni ght .

My name is Lauren Rowley. [|'mthe
senior vice president of state governnent
affairs at the Pharmaceutical Care Managenent
Associ ation, the national trade association
representing PBMs, or pharmacy benefit
managers.

PBMs adm ni ster prescription drug
benefits for nore than 266 mllion insured
Anericans. In New York we adm nister
prescription drugs not just on behal f of
heal t h plans, but for hundreds of self-funded

uni ons, school boards, and nunicipalities and
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enpl oyers across the state. These are
entities in your communities with limted
budget s who depend on PBMs to manage their
drug benefits and their drug spend.

Qur nmenbers' ability to perform PBM
services and utilize PBMtools effectively
have real-life inplications for them their
menbers and their famlies.

PBVMs are on the front |ines, working
to mai ntain access and affordability of
prescription drugs. W help reduce the cost
of drugs by encouragi ng the use of generics
and af fordabl e brand nedi cations; by al so
reduci ng waste and increasi ng nmedici ne
adherence; by doing clains processing;
creating pharmacy networks; offering
mai | - servi ce pharmacy, which was very
critical during the pandenic; offering
specialty pharmacy drug utilization review,
which is responsible for identifying adverse
events at the point of sale, and disease
managenment and adherence initiatives, as well
as formul ary managenent.

PBM tools |ike formul ary managenent
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and policies that pronote |ower-cost

t her api es over nore expensive ones are relied
upon by enployers and mllions of New Yorkers
to mtigate the high cost of prescription

dr ugs.

The Governor, as you know, has
re-introduced his |icensure proposal that we
have opposed in previous years. Wile we
continue to have serious concerns with this
proposal, as a general matter PCVA and our
menbers do not oppose |licensure, state
regul ati on or transparency.

We do believe that there should be
transparency of all actors in a drug supply
chai n, however -- pharmaceuti cal
manuf act urers, whol esal ers, pharmacy services
adm ni strative organi zati ons, or PSAGCs, and
PBMs. But | think it's inmportant to al so
recogni ze that we are not the reason drugs
are so expensive. That starts and stops with
the drug manufacturers. They set the price,
they raise the price.

We believe that nmuch of the

Legislature's rightful focus on consuners and
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drug prices has unfortunately been
m sdirected. The prevailing narrative being
told is that PBMs are putting i ndependent
phar maci sts out of business in New York, when
t he obj ective evidence shows that is sinply
not true. |Independent pharnaci es make up
nearly 58 percent of the total nunber of
pharmacies in New York State, so nust be in
our pharmacy networks.

We | ook forward to working with you as
t hese i ssues continue to go, and | am happy
to answer any questions.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you.

Now, Commrunity Pharmacy Associ ation.

MR. DUTEAU. Hi. Can you hear ne?

CHAI RAOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  Yes, we can.

MR. DUTEAU:. Good evening. M/ nane
is -- oh, I have an echo.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: We can hear
you. Just go ahead.

MR. DUTEAU:. Can you hear ne now?

CHAl RWOVAN WVEI NSTEI' N: Yes.

MR. DUTEAU. Ckay, great. Thank you.

Good eveni ng, nenbers of the panel.
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My name is Mke Duteau and I'ma |icensed
pharmaci st in New York and al so president of
t he Chai n Pharmacy Associ ati on of New York
St at e.

Thank you again for the opportunity to
present this evening and al so thank you, as
al ways, for your strong past support of
comuni ty pharnacy.

As you are aware, the state
phar maci sts and pharnacy have pl ayed
essential and expanded roles in the state's
response to the COVI D-19 pandemi c
Phar maci es have remai ned open and have served
as a trusted access point for COVID 19
testing as well as vaccinations, and we've
al so ensured that patients have maintai ned
access to their nedications and ot her
i ncredi bly inportant pharnmacy care.

We | ook forward to continuing to serve
our comrunities as we work to inprove public
heal th and access to care overall.

This evening we'd like to comrent
briefly on multiple Executive Budget

proposal s.
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First and forenost, we are asking that
the transition from Medi caid managed care to
fee-for-service be inplenmented w thout
significant changes or delays. This change
woul d positively inpact nearly 7 mllion
New York patients who have been subjected to
benefit and network restrictions or other
limts that have harned patient access and
care. It also benefits the state, saving at
| east $100 million annually by inproving
transparency and renoving cost fromthe
syst em

| will pause there. W certainly
acknowl edge and understand t he hardshi p that
woul d be created with certain provisions for
340B entities. But that is not created by
the transition to fee-for-service. That
actually is created by the requirenent that
New York State pick up the savings, rather
than allowi ng the entities to reinvest that
back into their practices and ultimately the
conmuni ti es.

So we feel that the best optionis to

transition to fee-for-service but del ay
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af fecting 340B providers for at |east three
years as the state and all stakehol ders are
able to work through this to ensure that
patients, pharnmacies, providers and everybody
can provide and receive the care that they
all deserve

Addi tionally, we al so oppose the
1 percent across-the-board cut for al
providers. Gven the significantly increased
need for access to healthcare for Medicaid
patients, especially during the pandem c, we
think that this is the | ast place we should
be | ooking to save noney in the budget.

We al so support the budget proposal to
aut hori ze |icensed pharnacists to adm ni ster
recommended CDC- approved vaccines for adults.
Si nce 2008, pharnmacists in New York have
routinely adm ni stered certain adult
vacci nations, including those with inplenment
doses and scheduling requirenents --
initially for shingles, and now the COVI D 19
vacci nes. Myving forward would al | ow
New York to join the 48 other states that

al ready aut horize pharmaci sts to adm ni ster
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al | CDC-approved and reconmended vacci nes for
adul ts.

We al so support maki ng pernmanent the
ability for pharmaci sts to order and
adm ni ster CLI A-waived tests, as authorized
for COVID-19 and flu tests during the
pandem c. Pharmacists are extrenely well
prepared to order and adm ni ster these tests,
given their training and expertise. And in
fact, we've been providing other CLIA-waived
tests for conmmunities for many years.

Conveni ent | ocations, accessible
hours -- these have all owed pharmacies to
effectively provide these tests to their
communities. And just |ike vaccines,
New Yor kers have responded very positively to
havi ng access to the test at their | ocal
phar maci es.

| mportantly, we support and believe
t hat cl ear conmuni cation and col | aborati on
bet ween a physician and the pharmaci st or
ot her healthcare providers is essential to be
i ncluded in this |anguage.

CHAI RAMOVAN VEI NSTEI'N:  Can you wr ap
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up --

MR. DUTEAU. Finally, and inportantly,
we support pharnmacy benefit nmanager
regul ati on and ask for urgent action,

i ncluding registration, licensure and
oversight of PBMs in New York State.
Patients and providers --

CHAl RA\OVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Thank - -

MR. DUTEAU. -- need these protections
to end unfair practices.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. Thank
you. Sorry, we had to cut you off for tine.

And our | ast speaker, Pharnacists
Soci ety of the State of New York.

MR. D ANGELO Hi . Good evening,
everybody. Can you hear ne okay?

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Yes.

MR. D ANGELO Very good.

Honor abl e Fi nance Chair Senat or
Krueger, Honorable Ways and Means Chair
Assenbl ynmenber Wei nstein, Senator Rivera,
Assenbl yman Gottfried, and distingui shed
menbers, ny nane is Thomas D Angelo. | ama

i censed pharmaci st in Long Island, and | own
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two i ndependent pharmacies. |'mcurrently
t he president of PSSNY, the Pharnacists
Soci ety of the State of New York.

On behal f of PSSNY and t he pharmaci sts
we represent, thank you to both the Senate
and Assenbly for all of the support in the
past. W really do appreciate it.

It has taken a gl obal pandem c for
pharmaci sts to officially be recognized as
critical healthcare providers. Wile
doctors' offices closed, hospitals becane
overwhel med and coul dn't handl e nor mal
patients that were ill with other than COVID,
phar maci es renmai ned open. W took great
personal risk, we becane front-line COVID
testing locations. Many of ny coll eagues did
succunb to the disease, unfortunately.

When the COVI D-19 vacci ne becane
avai |l abl e, pharmaci sts once again rose to the
chal l enge. Today we have vacci nat ed
t housands of patients across New York. W
st epped up when the state and the conmunities
needed us nost.

As |l egislators debate the nerits of
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COVI D- 19 executive orders, we mnust point out
that certain orders were only necessary
because the | egislators had not acted to
expand our scopes of practice in the past.
And we have proven during this pandem c that
we are ready and capabl e of handling these
chal | enges.

We are calling on the Legislature to
enact PBMreformin the budget now,
i medi ately. For the |ast several years
t here have been various PBM reform neasures
in the proposed budget and in the
Legislature. All have been rejected for
various reasons, or vetoed. The PBMreform
in the proposed budget is very good for
pharmacy and patients. Wiile it does not
contain the stringent public health | aw and
patient protections which PSSNY strongly
supports, the proposed refornms are very
st rong.

PSSNY supports providing the
Depart ment of Financial Services broad
regul atory authority over the PBMs. |f you

enact the proposed reform nmeasure in the
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budget, PSSNY strongly supports subsequent
| egislation to further strengthen patient
protections.

But we need this now. The parasitic
PBMs have their hands around our throats and
our backs against the wall. Let's not |et
t he perfect beconme the eneny of the good.

PSSNY' s positions on the budget
proposal at this time. PSSNY supports the
| anguage in the proposed budget for pharnmacy
benefit managers. PSSNY suggests the
Legi sl ature incorporate person protections
into the final enacted budget. That said,
PSSNY supports passage of |anguage as is if
t he sides cannot agree on the scope of
addi ti onal patient protections.

As far as the expansions of scope of
practice for pharmacists, PSSNY is in favor
of the | anguage regardi ng vacci nati ons and
CLI A-wai ved testing. There's absolutely no
policy-based justification at this tinme for
limting the types of adult vaccines a
pharmaci st can performin the State of

New Yor k.
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The budget proposal also contains a
provi si on regardi ng col | aborative drug
t herapy managenent, CDTM Wil e PSSNY does
recogni ze the value of CDTM it does not
reflect the needs of patients in the
community. PSSNY is of the opinion that
col | aborati ve nedi cal managenent, or CW is
nore in line with conmunity needs. Tine and
again it has been denonstrated that patients
are nore successful with their drug therapy
when a pharmacist is directly involved.

Regardi ng fee-for-service, there has
been a | ot of discussion today and for
several weeks around the fee-for-service
carve-out. PSSNY is calling on the
Legislature to allow the inplenmentation to go
forward without delay, imrediately. Every
state that has noved their pharmacy benefit
to fee-for-service has realized mllions of
dollars in savings, and New York will be one
of themas well.

In conclusion, |essons fromthis past
year have taught us that pharmacy is a

critical part of New York's healthcare
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system PSSNY is asking the Legislature to
support pharnmacy by passing PBMreformin the
budget, as well as expanded i mruni zati on
authority and other critical scope-of-
practice issues that will continue to enhance
New Yor kers' |ives.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Any nenbers -- oh, look, |I'm seeing
mul ti pl e nenbers.

CHAl RAOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: W have a
nunber of Assenbl ynenbers.

Assenbl yman Cahil | .

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Ckay, |I'I1l check
with Gustavo. Are you -- Qustavo, are you
in --

SENATOR RIVERA: |1'mgoing to |let sone

of the Assenbl ymenbers go first.
CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Ckay.
Assenbl y.
SENATCR RI VERA:  You know |I'm a
cleanup hitter. I'ma cleanup hitter.
(Laughter.)
CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ynman
Cahi I I.
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ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL: Everybody wants
to get home even. Even though we're hone, we
still want to get homer hone.

Thank you, everybody. And | al ways
appreciate it when we put the independent
pharmaci sts on the same panel w th PCVA
It's like having the fourth of July right in
front of us.

So thank you all for com ng here
t oday, and thank you al so for your
perspectives. M. D Angelo, I'd like to
address sone of the things that -- in
particul ar, about not letting the perfect get
in the way of the good.

| want to just go over a few
differences in the Governor's fake proposal
for PBM nanagenent and the official proposal
by the Legislature. The definitional section
al nost doesn't exist. The bill lacks a form
of accountability for PBMs. There is no
transparency in the bill. There absolutely
is no duty of care to the patients. And if
you were here earlier today, you heard that

the adm ni strati on opposes that concept.
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There is no prohibition agai nst PBM
substitution. There is no drug price appeal
process. So perhaps after I'mdone with this
tirade you can explain to ne how that is the
good that the perfect is in the way of,
because to ne it doesn't sound like it's very
good.

So with that, let ne explain to you
what happened | ast year. Last year we knew
t he Rutl edge deci sion was pending. W knew
it was not here yet. Now the Rutl edge
decision has clearly said that regul ati on of
PBMs is not regul ation of health plans.
That's what Justice Sotomayor said.

W also -- although | wasn't concerned
about this, given the fact that it was passed
ei t her unani nously or nearly unani nously --
did not have what we call veto-proof
majorities in both houses. W do now, and
|'m pretty sure the sponsors are anxious to
nove forward with their bill to have it
consi der ed.

So | would urge you to go back to your

associ ation and ask themto stand for the
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really, really good over the really, really
bad.

So with that, I'd like to just ask
Ms. Rowl ey, in your conments you indicated
that you generally oppose the Governor's bil
but that you support sone |evels of
regi stration and |licensure.

Can you please tell ne in the next 52
seconds what it is about the Governor's
proposal for PBMregul ation that you don't
i ke?

M5. ROALEY: We think it gives really
broad regulatory authority to the
superintendent on a |l ot of different issues
that, you know, are of concern to us,
obviously. | nean, | think that, you know,
in contrast, we really have serious
objections to | think the Assenbly and the
Senate bills. W think that there's a |ot of
constitutional problens with them W do
believe that they run afoul of ERI SA,
frankly, on the fiduciary issue al one.

So, | mean, we're -- | guess our hope

is that after the third year of kind of going
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through this that maybe all parties can cone
to the table and negotiate sonething that
makes sense for everybody.

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL:  Thanks so nuch.

By the way, | was readi ng t he PCVA
meno on Rutledge, and it doesn't exactly say
t hat you' ve concluded that PBM regul ation
runs afoul of it. You said, be careful
because states are going to start regul ating
you. That's what your own internal meno
says.

But that's okay. [|'mout of tine.
do want to thank you. And if | run into
Superintendent Lacewell, | will tell her that
she has a kindred spirit on her understanding
of the Rutl edge decision. Thanks so mruch.

M5. ROALEY: 1'Il be happy to address
that issue of, you know, our neno, if | may.

You know, we believe that --

CHAI RAOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Excuse ne.

M5. ROALEY: (Ckay, sorry. Sorry,
Senat or .

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: | s

Senat or Rivera up, or does he want us to go
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forward with anot her Assenbl ynenber ?

CHAl RMOVAN KRUECER: He's fine. o
ahead with anot her Assenbl ynenber.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ynman Ra,
t hen.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you, Chair.

W're going to try to put sone runners
on base for Senator Rivera to clean up so he
can hit a grand sl am

Thank you, Chairs. Tough to follow
Chai rman Cahill on that one, but | also
al ways enj oy seeing this panel together with
that issue outstanding fromthe | ast couple
of -- coupl e of budget cycles.

But | did want to get into a different
issue. Tom you know, you're aware of nmny
support on the PBMissue, but | did want to
ask about the immunization and the scope of
practice issue. Because one of the things
that 1've | earned over the years -- you know,
fromyoursel f, from Howard Jacobson -- is
t hat when you create uncertainty with, you
know, what you're able to vaccinate for, it

just -- it nuddies the waters.
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And | renmenber when -- a few years ago
when we were in the mdst of a bad flu season
and the Governor canme out and said, "Hey,
pharmaci sts can i mmuni ze children.” And |
was tal king to Howard about the issue and he
said, "Yeah, that's great that came out, but
| don't have the vaccine in stock because |
couldn't give it, so why would I have stocked
it?"

So | was wondering if you can
el aborate nore on the inportance of creating
certainty both with this proposal and
per haps, you know, getting rid of sonme of the
sunsets that are there that cause you to have
to, you know, every couple of years ask for
ext ensi ons and expansi ons of those
aut horities.

MR D ANGELO Right. So -- that's
exactly right. You know, we -- if we were
allowed to do all CDC-recommended vacci nes or
any vaccine that was then energency-approved
by the CDC, when this COVID vacci ne cane out
we woul d have al ready had a process in place

to junmp right in and get going.
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It didn't turn out that way because we
had to get special approval to admi nister the
vacci ne, then we had to go through all the
training -- because not every pharnaci st was
trained to do the whole NYSIIS system because
we don't vaccinate children. So -- and
that's basically -- it was a child platform

And exactly right, a couple of years
ago when things got hard, it was okay for us
to vaccinate at that tine.

New York is still alnost dead |ast as
far as what they're allowed to vaccinate
The rest of the country is way ahead of the
pharmaci sts in New York as far as what
they're allowed to vaccinate. And that's
really not necessary. Nothing says that we
shoul d be hel d back.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Well, and thank you,
because | know you' re busy, you know,
vacci nati ng people. Because, you know, your
Garden City South location's right around the
corner fromny house, and | see the |ines out
there every norning. So keep up the good

work. Good to see you
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MR. D ANGELO Thank you very mnuch.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Rebecca
Seawri ght, then.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN SEAWRI GHT:  Thank you,
Chairs.

Good eveni ng, pharmaci sts. Thank you
for your testinony this evening. | grew up
in a pharmacy. M father was a pharnaci st,
and ny older sister, so |l grewup as a child
working in retail pharnmacy.

We heard testinony toni ght about your
interest in expanding the scope of practice.
How woul d you take into account the needs of
senior citizens? Wich is very inportant in
my district here on the Upper East Side and
on Roosevelt Island. And | want to al so
encourage early hours be reserved for senior
citizens in order to reduce their waiting
time, especially in this pandem c.

MR. D ANGELO So who's that question
to?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SEAWRI GHT:  Any nenber
that would like to answer it.

MR. DUTEAU. Maybe | can start, and
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you can finish up?

MR D ANGELO  Sure, M ke.

MR DUTEAU. QG eat.

So thank you very nuch for the
guestion. You know, | think there's a |ot
that we've learned just recently with this
pandem ¢, from finding new ways to schedul e
t he COVI D vacci ne.

Also a |lot of these scope of practice
expansi on proposals really are focused on the
el derly popul ation -- for exanple, CDIM --
and allowing us to better collaborate with
physi ci ans on nedi cati on adherence and really
chronic disease that affect the elderly --

di abet es, hypertension. | think this helps
us be much better positioned to treat and
care for those patients in that age group

And t hen when you conbine that with a
| ot of the operational prograns that we
continue to devel op and evolve, | think
pharmacy has never been better positioned now
to help care for all of our patients, but
especially the elderly.

MR. D ANGELO Yeah, and I'Il pick up
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where M ke left there.

So far during the vaccination program
|"ve noticed that the elderly have had a nuch
easier time dealing with their | ocal
comunity pharnmacies -- getting an
appoi ntnment, getting there, making sure the
vacci ne was done. It's convenient for them
they're confortable with those pharmaci sts,
they're confortable with their |oca
pharmaci st, they're like famly to them

You know, in nmy pharmacy in
particular, we have -- we're only allowed to
vacci nate people 65 and older. So all of
those elderly people at this point are com ng
to our pharmaci es and being taken care of.

And i ndependent phar naci es,
pharmaci es -- community pharmaci es, they
usually offer free delivery so the patients
do not have to | eave their hone for their
nmedi cations. The col | aborative managenent
bet ween doctors and pharnmaci sts to treat
patients or to nonitor their drug therapy to
make sure it's being effective. You know,

these are all things that the elderly would
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benefit from nore than anybody.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN SEAWRI GHT:  Thank you.
Thank you all. And thank you, Chairwonen

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Rebecca Seawright and | happen to
overlap in our districts, so I'll just point
out | really do find, Rebecca, that the
phar maci es where the person can just talk to
sormeone on the phone or go in and talk to the
pharmaci st, it's working so nmuch better
during a pandenmic than trying to go through
t he conputer systens that sone of the |arger
chai ns have been able to set up but our
seniors can't figure them out.

So | do agree that there's a real
difference in the direct care soneone can get
at tines like this fromknow ng their
pharmaci st and their |ocal pharnmacy.

Thank you, Helene. Do you have any
ot her menbers?

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Yes, we do have
one nore before Senator Rivera. So we have
Assenbl yman Byr ne.

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Thank you.
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actually had to relocate. | was listening, |
wasn't going to ask questions, | had to head
back hone.

But nmy question was for Ms. Row ey.
You wanted to finish your comrent about an
internal nenp, and | just wanted to give you
the tinme to -- that | have to address that
coment .

And | do want to thank everybody el se
for their testinony as well.

M5. ROALEY: Yeah, | just wanted to --
t hank you so much for the question.

We believe, and | believe actually
NCPA actual |y put out sonething that also
said that we think this is a very narrow
decision by the court. It basically viewed
the law s procedural requirenents -- map
lists, appeal procedures, reverse and rebill,
and decline to dispense -- as sinply
enf orcenent nechani sns to acconplish the rate
regul ati on.

So fromthat prem se, the court
concl uded that the Travel ers decision, which

was a 25-year-old Supreme Court decision
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deci des the case. So -- which is, again,
about rate regulation and the state's
authority to regulate rates on ERI SA pl ans.

It did not do away with all the other
court decisions and precedent that has been
set on ERI SA preenption. The court also
didn't say it was a good idea, they didn't
say it was good public policy, they didn't
say it wasn't going to cost noney. |In fact,
in the Sotonmayor opinion, they did say it was
going to cost noney on ERI SA plans and t hat
fol ks in Arkansas may pay nore.

So | just think that's an inportant
distinction to have here with regard to
ERI SA, since it's such a conplicated issue.
And we do believe there's still a lot of
ERI SA preenption issues out there. Just
regul ati on now has been solidly decided by
first Travel ers and now Rutl edge

Thank you so much for the question.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. So
now Senat or Custavo Rivera.

SENATOR RIVERA: 1'Il be very brief.

"1l just -- I"ll certainly thank Ms. Row ey
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for correctly pronouncing the nane

" Sot omayor," Justice Sotonmayor, and also to
say that we have a very strong di sagreenent.

| actually have been working with ny
comunity -- |'ve been talking to conmunity
phar maci es, certainly the Pharmacists
Society, as well as other fol ks that have
come to tell us about the issues that they
have.

We passed it |ast year, the Governor
vetoed -- or is it tw years ago? The 'rona
makes everything very, very conplicated. But
| know we passed it, it was vetoed by the
Governor. W certainly -- |'m supportive of
sonme of what's in the Governor's budget, but
" m | ooking forward to passing |egislation
that is stand-al one.

So with that, thank you, Madam Chair.
| am good.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Well, thank you all very much for
being with us tonight, appreciate it.

And we're going to nove on to our next

panel, which is --
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MR. DUTEAU:. Thank you.

MR. D ANGELO Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

-- the Anerican Cancer Society,
Julie Hart, senior director, New York
government relations; and Housi ng WrKks,
Charl es King, CEQO

Good eveni ng.

M5. HART: Good evening. Thank you.
Do you want me to go ahead and start?

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Yes, pl ease.

M5. HART: Hi, everybody, |I'mJulie
Hart. |1'mthe CGovernnment relations director
for the American Cancer Society Cancer Action
Net wor k. Thank you so rmuch for sticking with
us tonight. A huge thank you to your staff
and also to all the staff nmenbers that hel ped
put this together so that we can stil
advocate virtually and safely. It is greatly
appr eci at ed.

So you do have a copy of ny witten
testinmony that has significant details in
there, so | just want to highlight a couple

of items. As you can see on the first page,
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the toll that cancer takes on New Yorkers is
significant. About 120,000 New Yorkers w ||
be di agnosed with cancer this year, and
nearly 34,000 people are expected to |ose
their battle to cancer. So there's stil
very grimstatistics.

|"ve also listed -- you can see on the
bottom of the first page -- the main types of
cancer and al so cancer deaths. W anticipate
about 6800 people will lose their battle to
I ung cancer this year. And | know in
New York we've done a | ot on tobacco control
in recent years, so thank you for all that
you are doing. W certainly still need to do
nore when it comes to tobacco control so that
we can reduce those |ung cancer nunbers.

In addition, if you | ook on page 3,
there are sone nunbers related to snoking
rates in New York. So currently in New York
about 12.8 percent of adults are stil
snoki ng, but there are significant pockets
where that snoking rate is rmuch higher -- if
you | ook at those that report poor nental

heal t h, young cancer patients, Medicaid
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recipients. So there are still significant
pockets where the snoking rate is very high

Now, one of the nobst effective tools
that we have to reduce snoking rates is our
t obacco tax. And our tobacco tax in New York
has not been raised in over a decade. W're
currently at $4.35 per pack. If we increase
our cigarette tax by just one dollar, that
woul d encourage about 54,000 New York adults
to quit and about 22,000 kids woul d be
prevented from becom ng addi cted snokers.

So that cigarette tax has real public
health benefits. And in addition, that noney
shoul d be used for prograns |ike the Tobacco
Control Program and keep that program whol e
so that adults have the tools that they need
to quit and that we can keep encouragi ng kids
to not snoke, period.

So on the |ast page, you'll see ny
recomrendati ons, because | know |I'm al nost
out of time. But we encourage you to adopt a
tobacco tax, a cigarette tax of one dollar
per pack and then a parallel tax on other

t obacco products, and then to use that noney
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for the Tobacco Control Program and also to
mai ntai n funding for the Cancer Services
Program so that people can still get safe
cancer screenings.

So thank you. | appreciate your tinme.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Charl es?

MR. KING Good evening. And thank
you for holding this inportant hearing.

Hi storically I've testified at this
heari ng about steps we need to take to end
the AIDS epidem c. Tonight, however, | cone
before you to urge the Legislature to protect
New York's safety-net providers at a tine
when we have never been nore inportant yet
face dangerous attacks by Governor Cuono,
even as the state's m snmanagenent of the
COVID-19 crisis beconmes nore evident.

The Executive Budget not only fails to
rise to the historic nonment we are facing,
but its healthcare provisions include
proposal s that will underm ne both i ndividual
heal th of wvul nerable New Yorkers as well as

our health system
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Last April we threw Housing Wrks into
the COVI D response, operating a hotel for
homel ess people with COVID, expanding to
provi de nmedi cal and behavioral health
services to six quarantine and MOCJ hotel s,
delivering COVID tests to our consumers, our
nei ghbors, and all of HRA-funded supportive
housi ng staff and residents. W' ve fought
for vaccines, though initially shut out of
the distribution system and we're not
vacci nating our staff and qualifying
CONSUNers.

To do all this COVID work we' ve had to
secure all of our own PPE, invested thousands
of dollars to cover unfunded costs -- even
whi |l e the Governor decided to wthhold
20 percent of our contract reinbursenent,

t hough we were expected to continue to
perform at a hundred percent.

How does it nake sense in the mddle
of a nassive public health emergency to
wi t hhol d funds from safety net providers
caring for the poorest and nost narginalized

residents of this state?
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Now we face a pharmacy carve-out for
managed care that will cut mllions of
dol I ars of funding through the federal 340B
program W estimate the inpact on Housing
Wrks to be as nuch as $8 mllion a year,
wi th substitute funding which we estinate
will be a maxi mum of 40 cents on the dollar.

Let ne explain why this is so
important. W have al ways used our 340B
funding to pay for services and care that is
unrei mbursed. Wth COVID we've used 340B
funding to buy smartphones for our |owincone
consuners so that they can participate in
t el eheal t h, hel pi ng consunmers downl oad t he
telehealth and training themin its use.

It has also paid a | arge share of our
COVID testing and vaccination program To
adequately staff a vaccination program just
to deliver 100 vaccinations a day, wth
pati ent educati on, docunentation subm ssion,
preparation and post-vaccinati on observati on,
costs us $100,000 a nonth. Qur reinbursenent
per injection is $12 -- in other words, |ess

than a quarter of the expense.
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Nei t her New York City nor New York
State has provided us with any additi onal
funding for this work. W are using our 340B
funds to do this. So if the Legislature
allows this proposed carve-out to go through,
it is likely that Housi ng Wrks and ot her
community health centers will have to pul
back from vaccinating people for COVID except
in the course of a regular primary care
visit.

Pl ease don't allow this to happen. W
shoul d elimnate the gl obal cap and rai se new
revenue fromthose who profited during the
pandem c, not cut the safety net.

Thank you for your tine.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Are there any nenbers who woul d need
to ask questions?

SENATOR RIVERA: 1'Il| say sonething
very quickly.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: Custavo Rivera.

SENATOR RI VERA:  You're usually right
up until the -- Charles, we don't have you

right at the end. You should be at | east
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t hankful about that, shouldn't you?

MR KING So | didn't want to take
any of my tinme to thank you all. For three
years in a row, | have been the |last --

SENATOR RI VERA: Very | ast.

MR. KING -- person to testify.

SENATOR RI VERA: So |'m very thankful
to both of you for being with us.

And | certainly agree with you
Ms. Hart, about sonme of what we need to do to
continue to push down snoking rates in the
State of New York.

And Charl es, you' ve made the point, as
was nade earlier by other fol ks about the
flexibility of 340B, of what you're able to
do with the 340B savings, the flexibility
that it allows you to be able to react in a
situation when you need to, and considering
that you serve fol ks who are so vulnerable to
begin with. | thank you for doing that,

t hank you for speaking out. And we continue
to -- hopefully we will be able to push back
on this, because it's a bad idea, it's silly,

we shouldn't do it.
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So that's it fromnme, Madam Chair.

don't know if they -- anyway, |'m done,
Madam Chai r.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: | have a question
for Julie.

So for forever we've believed that
New York had the hi ghest taxes on cigarettes.
Is that still true, or have we fallen behind
over the last couple of years?

M5. HART: Right now DC has the
hi ghest tax, at $4.50 per pack. But if you
| ook at state and | ocal taxes conbined, there
are some -- |ike Chicago's is over $7 per
pack. So there's certainly precedent for
goi ng rmuch higher. And that dollar increase
would bring in about $38 mllion in new
revenue.

CHAIl R\MOVAN KRUEGER: Wl I, we've al so
al ways nmade the argunment that cigarette taxes
di scourage people fromstarting to snoke at
all. So it doesn't necessarily increase
revenue, it saves lives because it's --

M5. HART: Right. First and forenost,

it prevents kids -- kids are nore
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price-sensitive than adults are, as well.

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUECER:  And that's -- the
research still shows that that's true?

M5. HART: Yes.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: So the targeted
audi ence of perhaps who woul d be nore
di scouraged than ever from snoki ng woul d be
younger peopl e?

M5. HART: Yes, absolutely. Kids are
much nore price-sensitive.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  And we had done
some changes in the |laws around the flavored
t obaccos and other things. |Is there also
research findings that those are
di scouragi ng -- or encouraging kids not to
get into snoking or vapi ng because they can
no | onger buy the candy-fl avored product?

M5. HART: Yeah. Well, we certainly
know t hat kids are enticed by flavors. And
we know al so that tobacco conpani es have a
history of targeting mnority comunities,
particularly with nenthol. So we don't have
yet research on New York's |aw just because

it is so new. But | inmagine that we wll
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have that at some point.

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUECGER: Got it. Thank
you very rmuch.

M5. HART: Thank you.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you as
al ways, Charles, for your work.

We're going to nove along to the
New York Caring Majority, Bobbie Sackman; the
Enpire State Association of Assisted Living,
Li sa Newconb; and the New York State Health
Facilities Association, Stephen Hanse.

| s everybody here? Do | see people?
Let's see. Bobbie, are you with us?

M5. SACKMAN:  Yes.

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUEGER:  Ch, hi there.
Yes. Welconme. Wiy don't we start with you.

M5. SACKMAN. Thank you. Good
eveni ng, everybody. Thank you for the chance
to testify.

My name i s Bobbie Sackman. |1'mwth
the New York Caring Majority and Jews for
Raci al and Economic Justice. And the Caring
Majority is conprised of older adults, people

with disabilities, home care workers and
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famly caregivers who are working to address
the injustices in our long-termcare system
Qur central focus is the Fair Pay for Hone
Care Act, which Assenblyman Gottfried and
Senat or May have ki ndly and generously taken
on the prinme sponsorship for.

Well, it certainly has been a | ong
day. And | thought just for a nmonment, if you
could all think about a care story that you
m ght have -- and | think we all have a care
story, sonmebody that's been in our lives that
needed care and naybe even needed hone care.
This is -- it's not about them this is very
much about us.

And so the workforce caring for ol der
adults, the honme care workforce, are
predom nantly wonen with children and
immgrants. The state pays them poverty
wages. They're averagi ng about 18,600 a
year. This has led to a dranmatic hone care
shortage statewide. |In parts of the state,
especially upstate, you can't even find a
home care worker. You just can't. And so

the Fair Pay for Hone Care Act is good for
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New York's econony, it's good for New York's
care.

Testifying with me today are mllions
of ol der New Yorkers, people with
disabilities, hone care workers and fam |y
caregivers. W are indeed a caring najority.
We all urge you to support the Fair Pay for
Hone Care Act.

We support the New York Health Act --
t hank you, Senator Rivera. Wen it's passed,
we need to pay hone care workers enough so we
have home care workers. That's the other
pi ece of the pie here.

The Fair Pay for Hone Care Act woul d
rai se home care wages to 150 percent of
m ni mum wage, about $22,000 a year to $35, 000
a year. The CUNY School for Labor and Urban
Studies just released a report -- rel eased
t he executive summary so far -- and they
found out that this act would generate
$7.6 mllion -- $7.6 billion for the state
econony through new i ncone and sal es tax
revenue, econom c spillover, and reductions

in Medicaid and soci al assi st ance.
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Medicaid is the best investnment the
state can nmake to generate jobs and increase
revenue for the com ng years.

As New York faces w despread
unenpl oynment over the next decade, the act
woul d bring in 20,000 jobs a year. So
200, 000 j obs over the decade. It would
additionally create 18,000 jobs a year, or
180, 000 j obs over a decade, in industries via
i ncreased spendi ng and econom c activity.
Doing the math, that's 38,000 jobs a year.

| nvesting in Medicaid and putting
econoni ¢ devel opnent funds in hone care is
smart. They're shovel -ready. They keep
people safe -- | see ny tinme is up. So we're
just asking you to pass the Fair Pay for
Home Care Act and al so the Hone Care Jobs
| nnovati on Fund, which did get into the
Senat e one-house bill last year, and then the
pandem c hit.

Thank you very much

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Next we have Lisa Newconb, Enpire

St ate Associ ation of Assisted Living.
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M5. NEWCOVB: Thank you, and good
eveni ng.

A few of you al ready know about the
state's chronic underfunding of the adult
care facility/assisted living industry, with
only one SSI increase in 30 years. |'Il
refer you to nmy testinony for details. But
suffice to say it's virtually inpossible to
take care of 80- and 90-year-old seniors,
neeting all their needs for $42 a day.

So with the Governor's proposed budget
and 30-day anendnents, we get nore injury
upon injury. Today the departnment already
has broad fining authority. The Public
Heal t h Law aut hori zes specific fining
authority over ACFs. And if you |l ook at the
history of their fines, they have exercised
that authority with zeal, both before and
during the pandemn c.

The 30-day anendnents not only
dramatically increase the per-day
violation -- and sonebody nentioned it, it is
per day -- it nmultiplies our maxi mum per-day

fine tenfold, from$1,000 a day to $10, 000 a
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day. It also elimnates our ability to
rectify mnor, less serious infractions

wi t hout a concurrent fine. So one mnute

| ate per survey -- you know, we've been doing
t hose daily surveys for 300-and-sone-odd
days. One minute late, you' re subject to a
fine.

So why -- you know, we feel as if we
are under attack. And, you know, there
haven't been big allegations of w ongdoi ng
during the pandemic. |In fact, despite
virtually all the mandates being i nposed on
us as have been inposed on nursing hones,
wi th no fundi ng assistance, the ACFs have
fought valiantly to protect both their
residents and staff. So why then attack this
i ndustry, many of whom are fam|y-owned
busi nesses that struggled to nake ends neet
even before COVI D?

Wil e the nunbers of positive cases

and deaths are not as high as those in

nursi ng homes -- but one is too many, as
sonebody said earlier -- we have not escaped
unscat hed. ACF residents are still frai
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seniors in a congregate living arrangenent,
and that is where we know COVI D preys.
ESAAL's nore than 300 |icensed nenbers
and their staff have worked tirel essly
t hroughout this nightnare to keep our
residents safe -- this with alnost no state
government support other than sone PPE for a
short period of time when there was no ot her
place to get it, and even that support was
much del ayed.
ACF providers and staff should be
prai sed and honored, not punished, which is
what this budget does. It punishes us -- and
for what, we really don't know. W can only
surm se that, to use the Governor's own
words, it's just politics. Moreover, the
Governor's budget w pes out funding for the
one and only programthat the state dedicates
to ACFs that serve the indigent on SSI --
that programis EQUAL -- a nodest
$6.3 million. W ask that you restore that.
Just quickly back to the fines -- |
see |'mout of time -- and renoval of the

ability to rectify mnor violations. W've
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heard comments that it's sinply an attenpt to
adjust for inflation, our per-day fines.
Wl l, that would be fair if the same coul d be
said in ternms of the SSI rating, adjusting
that for inflation

And it's also inportant to note that
our violations are per day, unlike nursing
homes and hospitals, so potentially we could
be paying nore for the sane infraction than a
nursi ng home or a hospital.

And if you give the departnent the
ability -- nore broadly, power -- wthout
gi ving ACFs the chance to fix these m nor
i ssues, the departnent will abuse it.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

And our next testifier is
St ephen Hanse, New York State Health
Facilities Association.

MR. HANSE: (Good eveni ng, and thank
you.

My nanme is Stephen Hanse, and | have
the privilege of serving as president and CEO

of the New York State Health Facilities
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Associ ation and the New York State

Associ ation for Assisted Living, a statew de
organi zati on representing over 425 skilled
nursi ng and assisted living providers who are
not-for-profits, for-profits, and

gover nment - sponsored facilities.

When it conmes to the COVID 19 pandem c
and its inmpact on nursing honmes and assi sted
living providers, the focus nust be placed
where it truly belongs: First, with the
virus itself; second, with the state's
hospital -centric approach to conbating the
virus; third, to the state's over 12 years of
conti nuous nursing hone Medicaid cuts; and
fourth, to New York's long-termcare
wor kf orce cri si s.

At the onset of the pandemc the state
failed to i mediately focus fully on the
needs of nursing homes and assisted |iving
provi ders, and instead inplenented a
hospital -centric approach that led to
severely limted access to testing and
extensive staffing and PPE shortages in

nursi ng homes.
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The COVID 19 virus first appeared in
the United States at a nursing home in
Washi ngton State, with devastating
consequences. New York disregarded this fact
and inplenmented its hospital-centric approach
to conbating the virus, instead of focusing
on the people who are vulnerable to the
COVID-19 virus -- nanely, nursing hones
resi dents.

Upwar ds of 90 percent of New York's
nursi ng home resident care is paid for by
Medi caid. However, the state has cut
Medi cai d rei mbursenent to nursing homes for
over 12 years. And even in the mddle of the
pandem c, the state cut Medicaid to nursing
hones, creating a $2 billion rei nbursenent
void that was only exacerbated by the state's
primary focus on hospitals throughout the
pandem c.

The statew de average cost of
provi di ng around-the-cl ock nursing honme care
is $266. However, the statew de average
Medi cai d rei mbursenent for 24-hour care is

$211, resulting in nursing hones being




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

740

rei nbursed $8. 79 an hour to care for our npst
vul nerable. This reinbursenent is for
not-for-profit, for-profit and

gover nment - sponsored facilities.

Prior to the COVID 19 pandem c, NYSHFA

was working with the Departnment of Health to
address the state's | ong-term care workforce
crisis. The workforce shortage is well
docunented. Neverthel ess, New York has
failed to inplenent efforts to truly address
this crisis and recruit and retain wonmen and
men into fulfilling careers in long-term
care.

And as we address the 2021-'22 state
budget, it is critical that the Legislature
and the Executive work in partnership with
nursi ng home providers and treat |ong-term
care as an investnment, not an expense. In
| ooking at the 70/40 revenue proposal
advanced in the Legislature and by the
CGovernor, several issues nust be addressed,

i ncl udi ng speci fying Medi caid revenue and
i ncreasing the reinbursenent rate to nursing

homes in order to nake this proposal both
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| egal and feasible.

If the state is sincere about putting
residents first, the Legislature nust
i mpl enent genuine reformthat truly
saf eguards nursing hone residents and staff;
namel y, increasing Medicaid rei nbursenent to
nur si ng homes and resol ving the workforce
shortage crisis. Addressing these two issues
in the 2021-'22 enacted state budget w ||
truly benefit the nmen and wonen receiVing
essential care in New York's nursing hones.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Any questions?

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ynman
Di | an.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Ckay.

Are you there, Erik? Ah.

ASSEMBLYMAN DI LAN:  Yeah, |'m here.

Just very quickly, to Bobbie Sackman,
you nentioned sonme itens in your testinony
that are nore legislative in nature. |'m
just asking if nmaybe, to spare the conmttee

time, if you' d reach out to ne tonorrow so we
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can di scuss them

And | just want to say, you know, |
| oved working with you in a previous life.
We shoul d reconnect and work together again.
Pl ease reach out.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

M5. SACKMAN. Can | -- could | just
respond?

CHAl RWOVAN WVEI NSTEI' N: Sure.

M5. SACKMAN.  Thank you, Assenbl yman.
It's really nice to see you as well. W are
seeking to include the pay -- pay -- oh, ny
God, I'mso tired.

CHAI RAOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  Hone car e.

M5. SACKMAN. -- Fair Wages for Home
Care in the budget. So that's why |I'm here
testifying.

ASSEMBLYMAN DI LAN:  Yeah, and that's
why | brought it up. Because the first thing
we worked on together in ny previous life, ny
first chairmanship as the senior center
subcommittee chairman in the Council, was
COLAs for senior center workers. And now

see that all the social service workers who
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take care of seniors automatically get COLAs,
and a lot of that happened because of the
wor k that you did.

So reach out tonorrow, we'll talk nore
in-depth. And I'lIl give the chairs back
their tine.

M5. SACKMAN. W1 I do. Thank you very
much.

ASSEMBLYMAN DI LAN:  And for the
chairs, just to let you know I'm al ways here
and al ways paying attention. And |I'mvery
gui et .

CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEI' N Good. W
alnost did a roll call before to see if
everybody was really here who's still | ogged
in.

(Laughter.)

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Yeabh.

CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEIN: W do have
Assenbl yman Byrne for a question

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Certainly.

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Yes, thank you,
Chairs.

And this is nobre directed to
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M. Hanse, Steve. | asked this question when
some of the hospitals were giving their
testinmony as well. The 30-day anendnents
provi de some significant changes that affect
adult care facilities, hospitals, nursing
homes, basically a lot of folks in the
heal t hcare industry -- sone very significant
proposed fines and ot her changes.

| tend to think that this type of
di scussi on shoul d be separate fromthe
budget, and | think it's a very steep
proposal. But | would like to just get your
comments and your thoughts.

MR. HANSE: Sure. Thank you,

Assenbl ynman.

Yes, many of the fines are increased
over 500 percent. Really when you | ook at
t hat approach, really, fines don't work in
terms of ensuring quality care.

And really when you look at all the
proposals, quite frankly, included in the
30-day anendnents, they really don't speak to
quality care. They don't speak to the issues

that really face | ong-term care throughout
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t he pandemi c. They're proposals that are
framed as resolutions, but they're really
not. You really need to |look at the historic
under fundi ng of Medicaid and, quite frankly,
New York's | ong-termcare workforce crisis.
ASSEMBLYMAN BYRNE: Thank you, Steve.
And | would just echo the conments
made earlier to JimdCyne from Leadi ngAge,
woul d share that with you too. | know
there's been a | ot of conversation and
di scussi on about nursing hones, adult care in
general this year, and | think there's been
this stigma attached to it because of all the
conversations that we've had and some of the
things in the press.
And it certainly was not, you know, nmny
intention. And | do want to make sure |
t hank, you know, all the workers, the
frontline workers that you do represent. It
is avery difficult job. It takes patience,
it takes a |lot of dedication. And
particularly when you' re going into an
at nosphere where, you know, this virus is

bei ng spread everywhere, | just want to be
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sure | nmade those coments as wel | .

So thank you.

MR. HANSE: Thank you, Assenbl yman.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Ckay, thank you
all for being with us tonight. Appreciate
it. Take care, get honme safe. Well, you're
probably hone already, let's be --

(Overtal k.)

PANELI STS: Good night. Thank you.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUECGER:  Good ni ght
t hank you.

Qur next panel is the national office
for the Nurse-Fam |y Partnership,
Em |y Frankel; the Association of Perinatal
Net wor ks, LuAnne Brown; the Citizens
Commttee for Children, Alice Bufkin; and
certainly last but not |east, Steve Sanders,
Agencies for Children's Therapy Services.

kay. Everybody here? Enmly, are you
her e?

MS. FRANKEL: Yes.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Wy don't you
start us off.

M5. FRANKEL: Sure. Hi, everyone.
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|"'mEm |y Frankel, the governnment affairs
manager for Nurse-Fam |y Partnership. Thank
you so rmuch for the opportunity to present
testi nony today.

Nurse-Fam |y Partnership is an
evi dence- based hone visiting programthat
partners | owincone, first-tinme-pregnant
wonen with a registered nurse fromearly in
pregnancy through the child's second
birthday. A portion of NFP' s funding cones
fromthe state, thanks to the | ong-standing
support of the Legislature. W cannot thank
you enough for your partnership.

| cone before you today, on behalf of
the 162 NFP nurses and the nearly
4,000 New York famlies they serve, to urge
you to reject the multitude of cuts facing
NFP in the Executive Budget.

First, there is a 20 percent cut to
NFP' s DOH appropriation which reduces our
funding from$3 mllion to $2.4 mllion and
woul d reduce the nunber of famlies we
currently serve. W respectfully ask the

State Legislature to reject this cut.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

748

The NFP progranms in New York Gty and
Monroe County are facing an additional cut
t hrough the Governor's 20 percent reduction
to the Cormmunity Optional Preventive Services
Program COPS fundi ng supports prograns that
prevent at-risk children and youth from
entering the child welfare system

The CGovernor's conbined cuts to NFP' s
line itemand to COPS would | ead to workforce
reductions of at |east six nurse hone
visitors for New York City's NFP program as
well as at |east 150 |lowincone famlies
woul d no | onger receive NFP

The CGovernor's third cut to NFP occurs
t hrough a reduction to Article VI funding
from20 to 10 percent. This would lead to
further workforce and service reductions for
NFP. Additionally, the 1 percent
across-the-board Medi caid cut would al so
i mpact our progranms who are authorized to
bill targeted case managenent.

NFP' s capacity has al ready been
i npacted by the 20 percent wi thholds on state

government contracts. To absorb this
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reduction in funding, nmany prograns
instituted hiring freezes for nurse
positions. Now is not the tine to reduce
funding for vital progranms |ike Nurse-Famly
Partnershi p. NFP nurses support the very
popul ati ons that have been hit hardest by the
pandem c.

At the height of the pandem c, many of
our nmonms were unable to receive prenatal and
postpartum care due to the closure of nedica
practices and clinics. Qur nurses played a
critical role in filling these gaps in care.
Through regul ar telehealth visits, NFP nurses
were able to conduct clinical screenings and
assessnments, identify and nonitor nedical
conplications, and help their clients get the
heal t hcare that they needed.

| f enacted, these Executive Budget
cuts will underm ne the essential services
that NFP provides to |owinconme famlies. |
ask that you stand up for Nurse-Fam |y
Part nershi p, our nurses, and the | owincone
not hers and children we serve, and restore

our funding in the state budget.
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Thank you very nuch.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

Next, LuAnne Brown, fromthe
Associ ation of Perinatal Networks.

M5. BROMN: Good evening. |'m LuAnne
Brown, CEO of Buffalo Perinatal Network and
chair of the Association of Perinatal
Net wor ks, or APN. | also spent 30 years at
Wnen and Children's Hospital in Buffalo as a
nursi ng adm ni strator, and ny background is
in OB. So | have the experience of working
both in the healthcare system and the
comuni ty- based organi zati ons.

Thank you for allowing ne to present
on this panel as it relates to legislation
needed regarding child and maternal health as
wel | as addressing high maternal norbidity
and nortality.

APN is an unbrella organi zation of 16
perinatal networks and has focused on
mat ernal health for over 25 years. It
i ncl udes the Maternal -1 nfant Conmunity Health
Col | aborative, or MCHC, which works with
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community health workers, or CHW, and it's
funded by the Departnent of Health.

The perinatal networks and other M CHC
programnms are organi zati ons enbedded in
conmuni ties across the state who interact
with the nost vul nerable wonmen and famlies
every day and advance perinatal health.

The focus of CHWmmaternal prograns is
to ensure that wonen reach full-term
pregnancy through prenatal care attendance,
and it al so assures enornpus savings in
reduction in intensive-care nursery stays.
CHW tend to be fromthe conmmunity that they
serve, and they share |ived experiences as
clients, in addition to having an established
relationship with the comunity.

The Affordable Care Act has al so
pronoted the use of community health workers
wi t hin hone visiting prograns.

One recomendati on from Gover nor
Cuonp' s Wnen's Agenda to reduce naterna
nortality was to expand and enhance CHW
services. Due to this reconmendation, cuts

fromthe previous two years were restored so
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progranms could return to their baseline
staf fing.

Interestingly, in the rest of the
world 20 percent of resources are dedi cated
to medi cal services, and 80 percent to social
supports, while in the United States this is
reversed. W are of the belief that we can
realign our priorities and prevent nedi cal
conplications, which is much nore
cost-effective.

Li steni ng sessions coordi nated by the
Department of Health in 2018 gat hered wonen
fromaround the state to gather their
t houghts on their birth experience, and one
worman stated: "I wouldn't have nade it
wi thout my CHW" W feel the CHW nodel
shoul d be a universal option for all wonen.

So based on this information, many of
t hese prograns are subject to the state
20 percent w thhold, which began | ast April,
even t hough our progranms are not involved
with Medicaid. These were for services we
had al ready provided, and we're hitting our

one-year mark. We're requesting that the




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

753

COvI D-19 funds being cl awed back from nanaged
care and MLTC be earmarked for our agencies
rat her than swept away fromthe budget.

W would like to introduce |egislation
t hat allows reinbursenent of CHW services, as
ot her states have done. High-risk zip codes
could be targeted if global funding was not
avai l able. And we al so reconmend that CHW
be integrated into health homes and Medi caid
managed care plans, care nodels and care
t eans.

Thank you very much

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

Qur next speaker is with the Ctizens
Committee for Children, Alice Bufkin,
director of policy for child and adol escent
heal t h.

M5. BUFKIN: Good evening. Thank you
to the chairs and the conmttee nenbers and
all of your staff for the opportunity to
testify today, especially for sticking around
so late in the evening.

My name is Alice Bufkin, and I amthe
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director of policy for child and adol escent
health at Citizens' Committee for Children, a
mul ti-issue children's advocacy organi zation
dedi cated to ensuring every New York child is
heal t hy, housed, educated and safe.

| want to focus ny testinony on a
handful of issues we find critically
i mportant as children and famlies approach a
year of surviving this pandenic

First, | echo many before ne in
opposi ng the many cuts and cost shifts in the
Executive Budget that will severely harmthe
state's public health infrastructure and its
ability to recover. W oppose cuts to the
safety-net hospitals, including the proposed
elimnation of the state's share of the
| ndi gent Care Pool, as well as proposed cuts
to enhanced safety-net facilities.

Mor eover, we oppose the reduction to
the state's share of New York City's
Article VI program O the nore than
4,000 children who have |l ost a parent or a
guardian to the virus, 57 percent have been

in the Bronx, Brooklyn or Queens. Cuts to
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New York City's Article VI services inpact
programns providing inmunizations, |ead
testing, tubercul osis services, nmaternal and
child health, mental health, chronic diseases
and many ot her areas.

There are no federal resources sitting
unt apped that can sinply replace the
col | ective damage of those cuts. W nust
fully restore state rei nbursenent to
36 percent. And, nore broadly, we cannot cut
public health funding in the mddle of a
public health crisis.

Additionally, we urge the state to
reject cuts to the Nurse-Fani |y Partnership,
as you just heard about, and to take urgent
steps to address children's behavioral health
chal | enges that have been exacerbated by
COVID-19. Children have faced a year of |oss
of |l oved ones, of illness, economc
insecurity, disrupted |earning, isolation,
anxiety. Mental health needs are rising,
access to care has declined, and the result
has been a surge in children in psychiatric

di stress, hospitalizations, and famlies |eft
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on wait lists desperate for care.

To begin to address this, New York
nmust start by rejecting the proposal to
renove $22 mllion from Community Menta
Health reinvestment. Those are funds that
are desperately needed now nore than ever.
The state nust also reject cuts to | ocal
assi stance, which will harmthe behavi oral
heal th sector, anobng other sectors.

We al so urge passage of |egislation
sponsored by Senator Rivera and
Assenbl ynmenber Gottfried that will enable
coverage of children and fanm |y treatnent and
support services in the CHP program noving
us closer to parity between Medicaid and CHP

More generally, we believe the state
nmust invest in a full continuum of behavi oral
heal th supports for children, putting themin
early care and education settings, in schools
and in comunities to conbat the effects of
exi sting and exacerbated trauna.

Lastly, | want to address the serious
chal I enges facing children in the Early

I ntervention Program After years of
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i nadequate rates, we are now seeing the
conmpounded i npact of COVID 19. In June 2020
t he nunber of ElI providers was down

15 percent conpared to 2019. The nunber of
children enrolled in El is at its | owest
poi nt since 2013, and the nunber of ElI clains
has dropped 29 percent.

We strongly oppose the $13.7 mllion
reduction to El in the Executive Budget. W
al so urge, instead, the state to enact a
covered lives proposal which would assess
$40 million fromcommercial insurers and
rei nvest those funds back into the EIl system

| want to thank Chair Cahill for
bringing this up, because commercial insurers
overwhel m ngly deny clains for services
chil dren need, putting the burden and costs
on providers and the state. It's tine they
pay their fair share and tine we prioritize
t he needs of children, young children with
devel opnent al del ays and disabilities.

And | just want to address the
guestion Senator Rivera raised earlier. W

do support the elimnation of the global cap,
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and we do support identifying revenue options
to prevent cuts.

Again, | want to thank you all so much
for your time and truly thank you for your
chanpi oni ng of issues that inpact children
and famlies. Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. And
t hen Agencies for Children's Therapy
Servi ces, Assenbl ynenber Steve Sanders.

MR. SANDERS: Thank you very much
Chair Krueger, good friend Chairwonman
Wei nstein, good friend, colleague Chairnan
Kevin Cahill, the great Kevin Cahill,

Chai rman Rivera, all the ranking nmenbers who
are still here, and all the nenbers who have
sat through now, what, is 12 hours of this
budget hearing. You are all heroes.
Her oi nes and her oes.

(Laughter.)

MR SANDERS: | did that for a nunber
of years, but not to the extent that you al
are doing it this year. So | really
appreciate all the work you've put in, and

your staff.
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And whoever decided that Alice should
speak before me was prescient. Thank you for
t hose conments, Alice, about Early
Intervention. And so here's the perfect
segue. | represent the agencies that provide
Early Intervention services to 70,000
| earni ng di sabl ed or devel opnental |y di sabl ed
children every year.

The Governor has nade three proposal s
this year that inpact Early Intervention.
None of them are good. They either reduce
services to children or they reduce rates for
teletherapy. At the sane tine that we're
trying to pronote tel etherapy as the new
mediumto reach nmany nore people around the
state, the Governor proposes to cut the rates
for teletherapy. It's a bad idea.

There's a better idea, and Alice
touched on it, and I want to anplify on her
remarks. Covered lives. This was a proposal
that the Assenbly and the Senate included in
its one-house bills |ast year.

The fact of the matter is that for the

entire entirety of the Early Intervention
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Program conmmercial insurance has failed to
pay its fair share. As Kevin Cahill

nmenti oned earlier today, they pay 2 percent
of the program Two percent. They paid

2 percent 10 years ago, they paid 2 percent
20 years ago, and they'll continue to pay

2 percent no matter what reforns we try to
initiate. They continue to evade their
responsibility to pay their fair share.

What does that nmean? That means the
state and counties subsidize all of the
clainms that conmercial insurance rejects.
They reject 85 percent of the clains that

they receive each year. The way to generate

nor e noney, save noney for the counties, save

noney for the state, have comerci al
insurance finally pay its proportionate fair
share, is to cover the Early Intervention
Program under the covered |ives program

It will save noney for the state and
counties, and finally commercial insurance
will be paying their fair share and we won't
have to reduce rates and we won't have to

effect cuts.
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So | thank you for your time. | thank
you for all of your efforts this year, a very
tough year, and all the years that you've
been working to inprove the Early
I ntervention Program Thank you all.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Anyone want to ask a question?

CHAl RWOVAN WVEI NSTEI' N: Yes,

Assenbl yman Abi nanti has rai sed his hand, so
let's go to him

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Ckay. You're on,

Tom
CHAl RA\MOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N Ton? CGo ahead.
CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER:  Cet of f of nute.
ASSEMBLYMAN ABI NANTI: I'mtrying.
There we go. | clicked that button several

ti mes, but okay.

| just want to thank Alice and --
where's Assenbl yman -- there he is, there's
Steve over there. | want to thank both of
you for staying around so | ong and
hi ghlighting an issue that really needs to be
hi ghl i ghted, the whole issue of Early

| nt er venti on.
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The Governor has tried to use an
attenpt to get comercial insurance to pay
for part of Early Intervention as an excuse
to do all kinds of, quote, reforns. And they
really are just excuses to cut state support
for Early Intervention. Wich is really
foolish, as we all know, because Early
Intervention is a programthat gets kids when
t hey can be nost hel ped.

Wen | was a county |egislator, we
were -- the county was subsidizing it and the
counties tried to get out of the
responsibility for running the progranms or
adm nistering them and the Governor then
substituted this other thing that we have out
t here now, sonme kind of fiscal agent or
sonmething like that. None of this has
wor ked.  Your proposal for covered lives is
the way to go, and | thank you for raising
it, for both of you.

| just want to ask, what is the status
of the field these days? And | nean we
haven't had a report on how the fiscal

internediary is working. O is it working?
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Can either of you conment on that and tell us
what ' s happeni ng t here?

MR. SANDERS: Well, | can give you a
little bit of comment.

Wen the state fiscal agent was
contracted for, | think back in 2013, one of
the stated goals was to inprove the recovery
of noney from conmmercial insurance. They
were paying 2 percent of the grand total,
about a $700 mllion Early Intervention
Program And if you use that as a netric for
whet her they've been successful or not, and
you fast forward now ei ght years, commerci al
insurance is still paying 2 percent.

ASSEVMBLYMAN ABI NANTI:  And now we're
paying this fiscal internmediary -- this
fiscal agent to do paperwork?

MR. SANDERS: Well, the fiscal agent
is paid for a lot of purposes, adnm nistrative
pur poses, but it doesn't appear that they've
been successful in being able to retrieve
nore noney from conmercial insurance.

Now, | would just add this. Aside

fromthe fact that we -- | think we should
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all be insulted alittle bit by the fact that
commerci al insurance every year rejects

85 percent of the clains that are submtted
to commercial insurance. |f that wasn't bad
enough, they |l eave the counties and the state
to subsidize the expenses. Because whatever
comerci al insurance rejects, the state and
counties have to pay 50 percent each

So we're paying for what conmmerci al
i nsurance has refused to pay all these years.

ASSEMBLYMAN ABI NANTI :  Madam Chai r,
can | follow up with one question, very
brief?

Has the problemthat we saw over the
years, that the fiscal agent wasn't paying
the Early Intervention providers tinmely, has
t hat probl em been sol ved?

MR. SANDERS: It's better than it was
seven or eight years ago. But when a
provi der submts a claimthat would go to
comerci al insurance, it goes through a whol e
rigmarol e, which is so unnecessary. It has
to be adjudicated by commercial insurance.

That costs themtinme and noney.
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Utimately, with all of that effort,
sonetinmes a | ot of back-and-forth between
i nsurance conpani es and early intervention
agencies, at the end of the day insurance is
going to reject 85 percent of the clains.
They do that now, they did that |ast year,
they'Il do that next year, no matter what
ki nds of other reforns we try to put into
pl ace. So --

ASSEMBLYMAN ABI NANTI :  Thank you.

CHAI RANOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  Let's nobve on.
You have a nunber of nenbers who have raised
their hand. Tom you got people interested.

Assenbl yman Cahil | .

ASSEMBLYMAN CAHI LL:  Thanks so nuch.

And | just want to tell you when
listened to your testinony, this entire panel
but especially my dear and long-time friend
Steve Sanders, | really get a lunp in ny
t hroat because you're tal king about taking
care of children fromthe wonb right on up to
the tinme when they can start to naybe take
care of thensel ves.

And you' re tal ki ng about needs that
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have existed for a very long tine, but also
the one area that we know that if we invest,
if we invest, we will create productive

t ax- payi ng adults who will contribute back to
society. W wll invest in creating

i ndependence. We will invest in creating
great students and, who knows, maybe the next
Ei nstein. W don't know what's out there.
And thank you all for the good work that you
do.

Steve, | have a slightly different
take on what New York State is doing with our
providers. | don't want anybody to wal k away
t hinking that the providers are just dealing
with the big bad insurance conpanies. A |ot
of the clains that are denied are denied
because they're not covered by health
i nsurance. And health insurance only covers
what heal th insurance covers.

That doesn't stop the State of
New York from forcing providers to pursue
heal th insurance. It doesn't stop them from
forcing themto pursue clains that cannot

ever be paid. But what it does force themto
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do also is to take that neager little paynent
that they get for the service, for early

chil dhood intervention services, and divide
it between actually taking care of a child
and bill collecting.

And all for what? At the end of the
day, it's not that the provider is going to
get nore for that, it's that the state is
going to get less -- have less of a
responsibility for it. It is immoral. W
need to fix it.

| want to thank you all again for your
tenacity in sticking around for this |ong
time. | did-- 1 was able to extract from
t he superintendent this nmorning a conm tnent
to take a serious ook at this issue. | am
surprised, but she acted as if she didn't
know nmuch about it, but she expressed a
willingness to learn. And |I'mcertainly sure
that you are entirely capabl e of teaching
her .

So with that, | would wel cone you
using ny |ast 40 seconds for any comments you

want to nake. But | know the chairs woul d
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rather | just say thank you and drop the mc.
Thanks, everybody.
MR SANDERS: | think it's we who
t hank you.
CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you. So
we're going to go to Assenbl ywoman Sol ages.
SENATOR RI VERA: | think she m ght
have left.

ASSEMBLYMAN ABI NANTI:  Ch, no, she's

here.
ASSEMBLYWOVAN SOLAGES: |' m back.
(Laughter; cross-talk.)
ASSEMBLYWOVAN SOLAGES: Abinanti woke
me up.

So | just want to thank all the
panelists. You know, the saying goes that
it's easier to build strong children than to
repair broken nen. And so | thank you for
what you' re doi ng.

And we know that pandemic |ife may
have | asting effect on our babies, but it's
even taking a greater toll on our parents.

So these prograns that you have provided that

hol i stic approach of, you know, ensuring that
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famlies are, you know, protected. And so as
a state we should commt to protecting these
essential health and behavi oral services and
supports and nmake targeted investnments. So,

you know, | thank you all.

And especially to NFP, |'ve seen
firsthand that this programreally has
supported those who have been hardest hit.
There was a panel -- a roundtable in which
heard many of the nurses tal k about how t hey
had to be furloughed or there were many cuts
and their coll eagues were laid off.

And so | know that the budget
basically, essentially is going to disnmantle
NFP in two nmajor locations. But will it
destabilize |I guess the whole network that we
took so long -- you know, NFP took so long to
bui | d?

M5. FRANKEL: Thank you so mnuch
Assenbl ywoman Sol ages, for your support.

That's my concern. | mean, we're
seeing -- we've already had one closure in
Cayuga County. W don't know where the --

when the cuts are going to stop. You know,
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on top of the withholds, if there are going
to be nore in the future. There's a |ot of
uncertainty.

And | am concerned, especially where
we have county health departnents, especially
in upstate New York, that they're al so
responding to the pandemic. So we have NFP
nurses that are working three days a week on
NFP and two days a week they're working to
provi de vaccines. The sane thing in our
New York City inplenentation.

So | don't know. | can't answer that.
But it doesn't | ook good right now.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SOLAGES: How about for
any of the other panelists, is this going to
destabilize prograns that took so long to
i mpl enent ?

M5. BUFKIN. | will say on the -- oh,
|"msorry, go ahead, LuAnne.

M5. BROAN:  Yeah, | nean we've been --
Buffalo Prenatal's been in existence for
25 years and, you know, we had -- we al so
have a Healthy Families Program which is

anot her inportant program And that program
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has taken a huge hit. | had to lay off seven
people in Septenber. So that's 200 fanmlies
t hat are inpact ed.

And, you know, nobst of these prograns,
whether it's Nurse-Fam |y Partnership or
Heal thy Fami lies or conmunity heal th workers,
we're the only support sonme of these famlies
have. | nean, they're estranged fromtheir
famlies, they don't get any support except
from us.

So despite COVID going on -- and as
usual, nonprofits were the ones to step up in
t hese type of progranms, and we were out
there -- we did a food pantry, we were
delivering food and di apers to our clients.
And these are the prograns they deci ded they
want to w thhol d.

So it's very frustrating, | guess,
because | see ny staff working really hard
and ny clients being inpacted. And | just
t hi nk, you know, as somnmeone nentioned, this
is the beginning of |ife here. This is where
you're starting to build a healthy adult.

And when you i npact those prograns, you
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i npact these adults that can be valuable to
communi ti es.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Wel |, | also just
want to thank you all for your work. And
many of you and your organi zati ons have been
educators of mne for years.

And there's no doubt about it, if we
invest in the earliest tinme from pregnancy
through a child' s really fifth year of life,
you can pretty nuch be assured things are
going to go okay. And if you screw it up in
the first five years, you can pretty nuch be
assured froma governnent perspective you're
going to have to spend a whole | ot nore noney
for, as the Assenbl ynenber just said, the
broken adults that you end up wth.

So we know what the answers are, and
they're very inexpensive. And so it's
i nfuriating when we see oursel ves goi ng
backwards this way.

And | just also want to give a shout
out to Citizens' Committee for Children, who
we know very well down in New York City, but

the rest of the state may not know them  But
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this year | think is the first year they put
out a statistical book that covers every
county in New York State for poverty data and
ot her indicators. And when you're a
| egislator and you're trying to see what's
going on in your area or how you're doing in
conparison to other areas, that kind of data
that's statew de but broken down in ways you
can use it can be very, very val uabl e.

So I"'msure that the Gtizens
Comm ttee for Children would be happy to get
you t hose copi es of those books. AmI right?

M5. BUFKIN: Absol utely.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Ch, good, okay.
| was telling themyou wanted to give them
t he books.

M5. BUFKIN: | would be very happy to
get that to anyone.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  That woul d be
great.

M5. BUFKIN: Thank you so nuch for
bri ngi ng that up.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Al right --
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CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEIN: W still have
anot her Assenbl ynenber.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: Ch, you do?

CHAl RWOVAN WVEI NSTEI' N: Yes,

Assenbl ynman Jensen

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Thank you very
much. 1'll be nuch briefer than | have in
t he past.

| just wanted to echo M sters Abinanti
and Cahill and just thank our Early
| ntervention advocates. Certainly | know
firsthand how critically inportant those
services are. | didn't speak until | was
five, I had speech inpedi nents, speech del ay.
And | know for sure that | wouldn't be doing
this if it wasn't for the Early Intervention
services that | had. And | certainly
woul dn't be able to use ny voice to speak on
behal f of those | serve in ny community.

So just thank you to our advocat es,
not just in Early Intervention but, |ike what
Menber Sol ages said, and Chair Krueger, thank
you for everybody who's advocating right from

birth through -- right into ol der ages. So
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t hank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Al right. W covered everybody now?
Ch, wait, | see -- wait, are you raising your
hand, Gustavo? No. But Josh Jensen m ght
have been raising his hand, | wasn't sure.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: No, he's done.
W' re done.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Fi ne. (Ckay.
Thank you, panel. Geatly appreciate your
hard work and being with us this evening.

And we're nmoving on to -- | know you
can't believe this, but the |ast panel of the
| ast heari ng.

SENATOR RI VERA: Sign ne up for two
rounds, please. Sign ne up for two rounds of
guesti ons.

(Laughter.)

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER:  Sit down, rel ax,
Qustavo Rivera.

Al right. So certainly not the
| east, but appreciate everybody waiting this
long with us. Cderical-Admnistrative

Enpl oyees Local 1549, Ral ph Pal | adi no,
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2nd vice president; New York State Nurses
Associ ation, Judith Cutchin, president,
New York City; and Feeding New York State,
Dan Egan, executive director.

Heal th and food, what a better way to
chose out the eveni ng.

Good evening. Hi. Let's see, shal
we start with you, Ralph? You have to turn
on your voi ce.

MR. PALLADING Ch, yes. H.

CHAl R\OVAN KRUECER: Hi .

MR. PALLADI NO. Good evening. Good
eveni ng.

Yes, Local -- thank you, by the way.
Local 1549 has 14, 000 nenbers working for the
City of New York, 5,000 of whomwork in the
New York City Health + Hospitals and Metro
Pl us HMO.

So we think that the principles that
the state should be follow ng in budgeting
for safety-net hospitals is the follow ng.
One, Medicaid dollars should foll ow where the
Medi caid patients are. Two, Medicaid

rei nbursenent rates should be based on true
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cost of care. Three, fairness in
di stribution of funds to care for the
i ndigent patients is a nust. Sadly, this
Executive Budget fails on all three.
Specifically, what we need to do in
terms of what we're asking for is that we
have no Medicaid cuts for safety-net
hospital s as defined by Public Law
2807-c(34). Funding should be increased.
And with that, we should also end the
gl obal cap, which in practice neans | ess
services and less staff -- and also, | mght
add, leads to the overuse, as it does in
hospitals where we are, of the exploitative
tenp agencies for contracting out. That is
very bad.
Two, reject the proposed shift in the
share fromstate to localities for the
i ndi gent care pools. New York City has
al ready stepped up with billions of dollars
in support over the |ast nunber of years,
after 16 years of cuts by former mayors. The
city itself is facing a huge deficit already,

and we are short-staffed in every agency,
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i ncluding the police departnent. And | say
clericals in the police departnment, 911

The city itself is facing a huge

deficit, so how could we possibly take up the

| CP paynments? This anmobunts to a cut. |It's
not goi ng to happen.

Now, New York City Health + Hospitals
and Metro Plus are public and proud. Health
+ Hospitals had a $100 mllion cut fromits
budget and lost $1.2 billion fromthe COVID
war. How could we distribute the cuts we --
|"msorry. How could we absorb the cuts?
How coul d we serve the poorest conmunities
with the greatest disparities in care? Wo
will do that but us?

Peopl e should not pay |lip service to
this severe, |ong-standing problem They
shoul d pay with proper funding to end it.
And we should be -- Medicaid is an econom c
engine for comunities, it raises revenues.

I nvesting in care for high disparities neans
heal t hier and | ess future costs for sicker
patients. And we need to tax the rich, as

the New York coalition says.
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CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.  Your
time just ended. Well done.

Thank you. Qur next speaker is Judith
Cut chin, the president of the New York Nurses
Associ ation. Good evening, Judith.

M5. CUTCHIN. Hi, good evening. Thank
you for allowing ne the tine to testify. M
name is Judith Cutchin, and I amtestifying
on behal f of the New York Nurses Associ ation
| amdirector at large of the New York State
Nur ses Associ ation board of directors and the
presi dent of the Health + Hospitals Myoral
Executive Council, the largest NYSNA unit,
representing al nost 10,000 of our total
menber shi p of 44,000 nurses.

We have submtted our full testinony
on the proposed budget itens related to
heal t hcare, but | want to focus on three
critical issues in ny testinony today.

First, we think it is outrageous that
t he budget is considering hundreds of
mllions in cuts to hospitals and ot her
health services in the mddle of an ongoi ng

pandem c. W should not be cutting. W
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shoul d be increasing funding to build up our
public health infrastructure to be able to
deal with COVID and future health

ener genci es.

In addition, we should be expandi ng
funding for our hospitals and other providers
inthe front-line fight against the pandem c.
We shoul d al so be providing nore funding for
Medi caid to cover uninsured people, including
undocunent ed wor kers.

Second, we shoul d be inplenenting
m ni mum st affing standards for all hospitals
and nursing hones. In ny hospital we saw
firsthand that we did not have enough staff
to provide care that patients needed, and
that contributed to higher death tolls in al
of our hospitals and, as it was noted by the
Attorney Ceneral's report, in our nursing
hones.

Est abl i shing m ni mum staffing
standards is also vital to addressing raci al
and econom c disparities in care. Richly
funded private hospitals with nore staffing

had nore PPE and ot her equi prent than the
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public and other private-sector hospitals.
Those disparities have a devastating inpact
on the conmunities of color and | owincome
patients that safety-net hospitals serve.

M ni mum staffing standards are a first
step towards addressing inequalities and
inequities in healthcare.

Finally, where we have to provide
i ncreased funding for enhanced safety-net
hospital s and ot her safety-net hospitals. W
shoul d be increasing | CP and DSH fundi ng for
t hese hospitals, increasing their Medicaid
rei mbursenent rates to reflect their
di sproportionate share of these patients.

Now is not the tinme for business as
usual in addressing our heal thcare budget
gaps. W need to take bold action to
i ncrease spendi ng, mandate m ni num staffing
standards, and target extra funding to our
safety net. Instead of cutting costs, the
budget nust be bal anced and vital soci al
servi ce spendi ng nmust be increased by raising
taxes on the weal thi est New Yorkers,

Wal |l Street investors and corporations that
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have gotten richer during this crisis.

The Legislature needs to rise to the
occasion. W are in a serious crisis, and we
need to act like it.

Thank you very nmuch for allowing nme to
speak. Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

And our | ast speaker, Dan Egan from
Feedi ng New York State.

MR. EGAN. Thank you all, Senators and
Assenbl ynmenbers, for staying with us to work
so late into the evening. W really
appreci ate your hard work and the care you've
shown for the health of the people of our
state. | applaud your endurance, and I wl|
try to talk fast.

Last year when | was here | said that
every county in New York is hone to people
who cannot afford adequate food, and it's
about to get worse. | wish | had been w ong.
Last year over 2.2 mllion New Yorkers were
food-i nsecure. This year, right now, over

3 mllion New Yorkers are food-insecure.
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That's a 46 percent increase in need.
Pl ease renmenber that nunber. 1In sone
comunities it's a lot higher. You' ve al
seen the lines of people waiting.

| want to talk to you about a
different line, the line of wasted food.

Even as we have mllions of New Yorkers going
hungry, we are wasting perfectly good food --
1.2 billion pounds of produce are being

wast ed every year, never even |eaving the
farm because it has no market. The farners
did their jobs; the market fail ed.

You m ght ask, what does 1.2 billion
pounds of foods | ook |ike? That anount of
food would fill 30,000 tractor trailers. If
you park those tractor trailers end to end,
bunper to bunper, one behind the other, that
l'ine of trucks would stretch from Montauk to
Buf fal o, 450 mles of food being thrown out.

You didn't see that line in the nedia,
but you need to be aware of that. 1In a
normal year, the year before COVID, the
10 food banks of Feeding New York State

di stributed over 250 m|lion pounds of food.
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So far, in the first 10 nonths of the
pandem c, we've distributed 397 mllion
pounds, a 62 percent increase.

We are prepared to do nore. W expect
and need to do nore over the next few years.
| " masking you for three things to help us
out .

First, HPNAP. It's a great program
It funds critical operational costs for us.
It's been funded flat for quite a few years.
The Executive Budget proposes $34.5 mllion.
In recent years the Legislature has restored
500,000 to fund that programat 35 mllion
annually. W' re thankful for that support.
We ask you to restore that again.

But beyond that, recall that the need

for food is up 46 percent. A proportionate

increase in HPNAP would add 16 mllion for a
total funding level of $51 mllion.
Second, | think you all know what a

fantasti c program Nouri sh New York has been
W' ve supported over 4,000 New York farns
whil e providing over 17 mllion pounds of

food. W appl aud Senator Hi nchey and
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Senator Borrello for introducing Senate bill
S4892, which establishes Nourish New York as
a state program

It is essential that Nourish New York
continue, and we request 100 mllion be
al l ocated to Nourish New York this year and
t he program be put on a pernmanent basis.

Third, the Departnent of Environnental
Conservation is responsible for the Food
Scraps Law, and we ask that they be funded
adequately so that we can help them
adm ni ster the execution of that |aw.

| just want to conclude | hope
everyone understands fromall this we have
all the resources we need to solve the
probl em of hunger. All | ask is that you |et
us use them

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Any Senat ors? Assenbl ynmenbers?

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: Yes. We have
Assenbl yman Abi nanti and then
Assenbl yman Jensen to fol |l ow

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Ckay.
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ASSEMBLYMAN ABI NANTI:  Okay, thank you
to the three of you

|'"d like to address the | ast gentl enman
who just spoke. | thank you for raising the
i ssue of food insecurity or, put in conmon
| anguage, hunger. \When a kid goes to school
wi t hout having had breakfast, he's not
t hi nki ng food insecurity, he's just hungry.

So we appreciate very nmuch your
raising that issue with us. That's really a
heal t h i ssue.

You di scussed the Food Scraps Law. |
woul d just like to note that there was j ust
an amendnent to that, a bill that | sponsored
and Peter Harckham sponsored in the Senate.
The Governor just signed the bill. It's
going into effect imrediately. Wat it does
is set up a nmechanismfor the |argest
supernarkets to provide food to our food
banks.

It's only going to be a small piece of
the entire puzzle of trying to resolve this
i ssue, but it is something that's there. And

your asking for nore noney to nmake sure that
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this programworks is a very good request.
So thank you for raising that.

And thank you to all of you, and thank
you to the entire -- to the chairs, who spent
the entire day doing this. | admt 1've
junped off several times to do several other
Zoons, attended sonme other neetings. But you
guys have -- you know, you've been there al
day, so thank you for carrying the ball for
us, for the chairs and the ranking nmenbers.
You guys sat here and heard it all, so thank
you very much for doing this on all of our
behal fs.

MR. PALLADI NO. Assenbl yman, can |
just say to you -- thank you for bringing up
food. | just want to rem nd you, the SNAP
program -- the inportance of the SNAP
program It's also there, and it's also an
econonic engine for the state. So let's not
forget that too.

But thank you for saying that.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: And there was one
nore Assenbly person?

CHAI RAOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  Yes,
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Assenbl yman Jensen to close, | believe.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Thank you very
much.

Just very quickly to M. Egan, | know
anot her food initiative that you didn't
mention was the Ugly Food Initiative. | know
it's a pilot programin the M d-Hudson
regi on.

Do you think that's going to be a
viable programto go statewi de to get sone of
those nore -- | ess desirable pieces of
produce to fol ks who are food-insecure?

MR. EGAN. Thank you. It may be. |
think it remains to be seen.

| would just add to that that there's
top-quality produce that's not even being
harvested. So what we need is the tools to
get that to the people who need it.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Thank you
M. Egan.

And just to echo ny colleague, it's
been an honor to spend the day with the
chairs and the rankers and ny col |l eagues in

the Assenbly and the Senate. So thank you
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ever ybody.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

MR. EGAN. Thank you.

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUECER:  So | think in
closing | also want to thank all three of
you. | mean, obviously the inequities of
Medi cai d fundi ng and the inportance of the
safety-net hospitals, Ralph, were the thene
of , you know, al nost the whol e day, for
obvi ous reasons.

For the Nurses Association, | hope you
heard the testinony of the researcher from
the University of Pennsylvania. W have the
right nurse match, and we save people's
lives. It's as sinple as that. You can
actually | ook at the nunbers and see it.

So personally | can't thank both of
your menbers enough for the work that they
are doing during this pandenic every day.
And | don't even know how you can communi cate
to them how nuch we really are aware of what
they are doing and the critical role they
pl ay, and can't imagi ne that we woul d be

getting through this pandem c wi thout them
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t here every day.

So thank you, thank you.

MR. PALLADI NO. Thank you

M5. CUTCHI N. Thank you.

MR. PALLADINO Can | say one thing to
you, Madam Chair?

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Certai nly.

MR. PALLADINO | just remenber being
many years ago sonepl ace on the east side of
Manhattan on Election Day with all these
young people, and there was |ike a revolution
going on. And, you know, whatever happened
that night on Election Night, it was a damn
good choice. Thank you.

(Laughter.)

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you for
bei ng there.

(Laughter.)

SENATOR RI VERA: Cosing tine
(singing).

(Laughter; overtal k.)

SENATOR RI VERA: (Singing.) So finish
your whi skey or beer.

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Ckay, | think




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

791

it's tine to go.

SENATOR RI VERA: (Continuing to sing.)

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER:  -- |'ve been out
doi ng anti-hunger work from before | junped
into politics, and so | couldn't be happier
that you were there and being able to build
systens when we need them The Nouri sh
New York system it's a win/win/wn, just
like SNAP is. R ght? It's noney to make
sure that farmers can hire workers to pick
the crops, so nore people get jobs and the
crops get delivered then to food banks for
distribution to hungry people in need.

And we see a federal governnment that's
t aki ng these issues nore seriously al so.
Thank goodness.

And yes, | amnot going to take up any
nore time. This is now the official end of
the | ast budget hearing for this year on the
Governor's Executive Budget. | want to thank
all the staff people behind the scenes from
the Senate and the Assenbly for all the work
you did to nake this all look like it was

snoot h and easy.
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| want to thank so nuch ny chairs and
my rankers on every hearing, but particularly
Hel ene Weinstein, who -- you know, with a
smle on our faces, we got up every day and
said, | don't know how this one's going to
work out, but we'll get through it. And we
did, with pride. And we let the public see
nore and nore of how governnent tries to do
t hi ngs.

And hopefully we will end up with a
better budget this year because of all this
hard work. Because we have a | ot of
assignments in front of us, don't kid
yourselves. But we also are the State of
New York, and we can do the things other
peopl e can't do.

So | just really want to thank you
all. Get hone safely --

(Interruption.)

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: Pardon? Cet hone
safely. Get sonme sleep. No, | have a
neeting with Health + Hospitals at like 9 in
the norning, so | have to get to sleep fast.

SENATOR RI VERA: Cdosing tine
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(singing).

CHAl RA\OVAN VEI NSTEI'N:  Ckay, | think
it's time. | just wanted a nonent to --
let's nute that man.

| wanted to take a nonment also to just
t hank both nmy cochair, Liz Krueger, the
rankers Senator O Mara and Assenbl yman Ra
and all of the staff behind the scenes that
have really made this | ook |ike we knew what
we wer e doi ng.

And thank you all for your testinony,
those -- this last panel, but all of the
peopl e not only today, but all of the weeks
| eadi ng up to today.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. Thank
you, Tom Thank you, Ed. Bye.

SENATOR O MARA: Thank you. Well
done.

(Wher eupon, at 10:17 p.m, the budget

heari ng concl uded.)




